SPECIAL CONSULTING REPORT TO THE CITY OF NEW HAVEN The Honorable John DeStefano, Jr., Mayor of New Haven
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NATARELLI LLC
The Honorable John DeStefano, Jr.

Mayor of New Haven

City Hall

165 Church Street

New Haven, Connecticut  065 10

We have been engaged by the City of New Haven (the City) to review the financial impacts related to the closing of the New Haven Veterans Memorial Coliseum and Garage (the Coliseum).

The engagement's primary focus included the following:

Assess the financial impact to the City for continuing to fund SMG's (the Coliseum management company) cash needs for the Coliseum. SMG projected in a letter dated April 17, 2002 cash needs of $3,032,000 for th e period April 1, 2002 through June 30, 2004.

Estimate the amount of repairs and upgrades needed to maintain the Coliseum.

Assess the effects of competition on the Coliseum both on the number and quality of events.

Estimate the Coliseum total economic impact to the City.

We have segregated our conclusion into the following two components:

Cost Comparison Analysis (Continued Oper ation v. Shutdown)

Competition and Economic Impact

The Cost Comparison Analysis compares the cost of shutting down the Coliseum versus the cost of continuing its operations, both from an operational perspective as well as facility related (renovation versus demolition).
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The
Economic
Impact
analysis
incorporates
the
economic
effects
from:
1)
competition,

expenses related to Coliseum operations, 3) consumer spending through Coliseum visitors, and 4) expenditures related to its possible demoli tion.
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Certified Public Accountants and Consultants

555 long Wharf Drive • New Haven, CT  06511 • 203.787.8600 •  fax 203.787 .8604

Goodwin Square • 225 Asylum Street • Hartford, CT  06103 • 860.241 .8962 • fax 860.241 .9157
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COST COMPARISON ANALYSIS

SHUTDOWN OF THE COLISEUM WILL SAVE THE CITY $28.6 MILLION.
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The results of our procedures are the following :

Operational Costs Analysis
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Continued operations:

	
	(i)
	Estimated current value of funding
	
	

	
	
	SMG losses for next 10 years
	$10,000,000

	
	(ii)
	Principal outstanding on Coliseum
	
	

	
	
	general obligation bonds
	
	9,600,000

	
	Estimated cost today of continuing to
	
	

	
	keep Coliseum operating
	
	19,600,000

	b.
	Shutdown:
	
	

	
	(i)
	Estimated cash deficiency upon
	
	

	
	
	liquidating Coliseum assets and
	
	

	
	
	paying its debts
	
	1,600,000

	
	(ii)
	Principal outstanding on Coliseum
	
	

	
	
	general obligation bonds
	
	9,600,000

	
	Estimated cost today of shutting
	
	

	
	down Coliseum
	
	11,200,000

	
	Savings
	$
	8.400.000
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Facility Related Costs Analysis
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	a.
	Continued operations:
	

	
	(i)
	Renovation -  minimum required
	

	
	
	repairs and upgrades
	$10,500,000

	
	(ii)
	Incremental funding for full
	

	
	
	repairs and upgrades
	19,900,000

	
	
	
	30,400,000
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Shutdown:
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	(i)
	Cost to demolish Coliseum
	10,200,000

	Savings
	$20.200.000
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	Savings from Shutdow n
	
	

	a.
	From operation
	$
	8,400,000

	b.
	From facility
	
	20,200,000

	
	
	$
	28.600.000
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COMPETITION AND ECONOMIC IMPACT

THE BOTTOM LINE ASSESSMENT IS THE CLOSING OF THE COLISEUM WOULD HAVE A VERY MINIMAL IMPACT ON THE NEW HAVEN ECONOMY, BOTH IN TERMS OF OUTPUT AND EMPLOYMENT.
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The narrative presented below is the summary result of our economic impact study included in the body of our report.
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Competition to the Coliseum

The Coliseum is becoming less of a market force in the region not only due to its aging and outdated facility, but due to the current entrance into the marketplace of two major competitors; Clear Channel Entertainment (a nationally renowned entertainment company) and the casinos as discussed below:
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Clear Channel Entertainment (formerly known as SFX):

Meadows Music Centre (located in Hartford), with a 25,900 seat capacity and Oakdale Theatre (located in Wallingford), with a 4,800 seat capacity are both new facilities owned by Clear Channel Entertainment. The combination of the new large facilities and Clear Channel Entertainment's substantial economic and booking strength make these venues more appealing to entertainers, both for tour scheduling and financially.

Casinos:

Mohegan Sun Resort Casino (located in Uncasville), with a 10,000 seat capacity and Foxwoods Resort Casino (located in Ledyard), with two theatres; 1,700 and 3,000 seats, similar to 1. above are new facilities and both have substantial economic and booking strength to make those venues more appealing.
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The Hartford Civic Center and the Arena at Harbor Yard (Bridgeport Arena) are not considered significant in competition to the Coliseum, and in the case of the Arena at Harbor Yard, minimal competition at the current time. However, it is likely that, in the future , the Arena at Harbor Yard will adversely affect the Coliseum in its Fairfield County patronage.
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The competition has already affected the Coliseum and caused its number of events to decline from a high of 152 in 1989 to 7 1 in 2000. It should be noted that since its low in 2000, SMG has increased its events to 113 in 2002 with a 50 event increase due to sporting events and only one event increase in entertainment. These competitive factors have caused the Coliseum to be unable to present large draw entertainers which yield a significant profit to the Coliseum. Without these events, the Coliseum will continue to operate at a loss .
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These factors will cause the Coliseum to become even less competitive over time. The current economic impact, discussed below, would be adversely affected in future years due to this competitive environment. This adverse effect wou ld cause SMG to increase the required funding requests from the City.
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Economic Impact of the Current Coliseum Operations
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Our estimate of the total economic impacts on the City of New Haven is $6.1 million in total output each year, which can be characterized as being minimal. This impact assumes continued support by the City to fund the losses of the Authority and no further deterioration in SMG' s performance days. In terms of employment, the estimated impact on the job front can also be characterized as being modest-- 74 jobs (direct and indirect) would be eliminated from the City of New Haven economy.
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The impacts represent just slight fractions of one percent of the aggregate New Haven County economy. These figures reflect all aggregate economic activity, direct and indirect, not considering the impacts of the demolition of the Coliseum facility.
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Our review of other recent economic impact studies indicate the use of the Coliseum's site for an alternative purpose, including among other things, a conference center or theatre. Such activities would exceed significantly the current economic impact of the Coliseum. These studies include:
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Greater New Haven Arts and Entertainment Facility Study

Market, Financial and Economic Impact Analysis of a Potential Conference Center in New Haven, Connecticut
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Economic Impact of the Demolition of the Coliseum
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The demolition of the Coliseum amounts to a one-time, economic stimulus of $1.6 million and approximately 20 jobs.

[image: image78.jpg]



We would like to thank SMG and the City for their cooperation given to us during our procedures. Should you have any questions, please contact Anthony P. Scillia at 203-777-1099.

New Haven, Connecticut
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June 21 , 2002
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CONTINUED OPERATION VERSUS SHUTDOWN ANALYSIS
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	I.
	PRO FORMA BALANCE SHEET
	
	

	The  New  Haven  Coliseum Authority  (the  "Authority")  was  established  under the  section of

	Connecticut General Statute that governs the powers of municipalities .  As such, it is assumed

	for the purposes of this analysis that the City would ultimately be liable for any net deficiencies

	of assets in relation to liabilities should the City elect to shut down the Coliseum.  To accomplish

	this, we produced a pro-forma balance sheet based upon the last audited balance sheet of the

	Authority as of June 30, 2001 after adjusting for projected losses from operations through June

	30, 2002 and closing of the Coliseum.  The result was to recognize an estimated cash deficit of

	$1.6 million, consisting of the following liabilities (see Exhibit 1 for details) :

	
	Capital Lease Obligation
	$
	1,119,3 81

	
	Accounts Payable
	
	36,317

	
	Estimated Potential Shut-Down Costs
	
	500,000

	
	
	$
	1,655 ,698
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Assets
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The largest adjustment is for the liquidation of the property and equipment if the Coliseum were to be demolished . Some assets could be liquidated in an orderly manner whereas others could only be sold in forced liquidation or for scrap. The average recovery of $500,000 from a range of $250,000 to $750,000 was used for these purposes . An equipment listing is included in the Addenda. All other assets would be converted to cash and applied to liabilities.
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Liabilities

The normal operating liabilities such as accounts payable and accrued liabilities and the capital lease obligations remain as liabilities of the City, therefore no adjustment is applied to them, except to recognize the increase in liabilities caused by net losses . In addition, closing the Coliseum may result in the incurrence of liabilities related to shut-down. The range of potential liabilities have been estimated to be within a range of $450,000 to $550,000. Similarly, SMG's unamortized contribution-in-aid under its management contract is assumed to revert to SMG
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	-
	upon the cessation of operations, approximately $412,000.

	
	

	
	Halloran & Sage LLP assisted us in our evaluation of the terms and termination options of all

	
	known contracts entered into on behalf of the Coliseum.  These contracts generally consist of use

	
	license  agreement,  service  agreements,  maintenance  contracts,  advertising  agreements  and  a

	
	management services agreement.

	
	Other Considerations

	
	General Obligation B onds -   The City has outstanding general obligation bonds related to the

	
	Coliseum .  These bonds will be "orphaned" in that they are still payable, but there will be no

	
	related asset.  These have been included in the Authority pro forma balance sheet.
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CONTINUED OPERATION VERSUS SHUTDOWN ANALYSIS

Further discussion of the bonds is included in the Addenda on a letter from Robinson & Cole LLP, whereby they opine "that the City may take any action concerning the New Haven Coliseum, including closing the Coliseum, without regard to the effect of such action on any outstanding bonds of the City which were issued to fmance the Coliseum".

Hotel Tax - The distribution of the hotel tax is governed by Connecticut General Statute Sec . 32-305, which first defines the percentage of the tax collections to be available for distribution and then defines how those collected taxes are to distributed. This statute says, in part: "The portion of the funds attributable to such tax receipts in a municipality shall be allocated to the tourism district in which the municipality is located, provided . .. (B) seventy-five percent of the amount attributable to such gross receipts from sales in New Haven shall be allocated to the New Haven Coliseum Authority".

The amounts allocated to the Authority has therefore been carved out of the amount that would otherwise go to New Raven's tourism district. The tax receipts appear to be pledged to the

-
Coliseum Authority, not the structure itself. If the Coliseum building were demolished, but the Authority continued in existence with a similar purpose, by letter of the law, the tax distribution would remain with the Authority.

The Coliseum has received between $800,000 and $826,000 from fiscal year 1999 through 2001.

This may go down a bit for fiscal year 2002 due to the post September 11 downturn in travel.

Coliseum Grant - In 1997, the State of Connecticut, through the Department of Economic and Community Development (DECD) gave to the City of New Haven a grant of $2,500,000 for improvements to the Coliseum. The grant required a minimum of 1: 1 matching by the City, which was more than met. We reviewed the grant agreement to determine whether any or all of that grant needed to be returned to the State if the City closed the Coliseum.

The grant agreement used the standard "boiler plate" used for economic development grants and noted several instances of default and remedies thereof. Among the evidences of default were "change in business structure" and "receivership or bankruptcy" . The grant is with the City and these evidences of default appear to not be applicable to the shut down of the Coliseum. The agreement does not mention any specific time frame that the improvements must be in place.

Although the legal requirements are unclear at this time, it is our best determination that the City would not incur responsibility to pay back any of the grant if it proceeds with the closing and demolition of the Coliseum, therefore no pro forma adjustment was made. We have also been informally informed by the DECD that their review indicates that no return of grant funds would be required.

Summary

After consolidating the accumulated deficit and contributions-in-aid and applying the pro-forma adjustments, the result is an estimated accumulated deficiency accruing to the City of approximately $1.6 million . The pro forma balance sheet and related adjustments with notes is presented in Exhibit I.
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CONTINUED OPERATION VERSUS SHUTDOWN ANALYSIS

CONTINUED FUNDING OF SMG OPERATING LOSSES

Should the Coliseum continue to operate, it is anticipated that its history of operating losses will continue, as will the City 's ultimate responsibility to fund such losses. We have estimated the net present value of these losses to be approximately $10 million based on the following assumptions :

10 year discounted cash flow (loss)

Utilizing SMG's estimated losses for the next 3 years,

With years 3 through 10 stabilized at a loss of $1.4 million/year,

Discounted to present value at 5% based on an approximate current bond rate.

Note that cash flow (loss) estimates exclude the hotel tax subsidy.

	Future
	
	Recent
	

	Years
	
	Actual and Projected

	2003
	$
	1,200,000
	$
	1,200,000

	2004
	
	1,400,000
	
	1,333,333

	2005
	
	1,400,000
	
	1,269,841

	2006
	
	1,400,000
	
	1,209,373

	2007
	
	1,400,000
	
	1, 15 1,783

	2008
	
	1,400,000
	
	1,096,937

	2009
	
	1,400,000
	
	1,044,702

	2010
	
	1,400,000
	
	994,954

	2011
	
	1,400,000
	
	947,575

	
	
	
	$
	10,248,498
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CONTINUED OPERATION VERSUS SHUTDOWN ANALYSIS

EXHIBIT I
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NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY

PROFORMA BALANCE SHEET
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	Audited
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	Statements
	
	Pro Forma
	
	
	Pro Forma

	
	
	June 301 2001
	Adjustments
	
	June 301 2002

	
	ASSETS
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Cash and cash equivalents
	$
	371,888
	$
	(371 ,888)
	a
	$
	

	
	Receivables
	
	275,157
	
	(275,157)
	a
	
	

	
	Other current assets
	
	68,896
	
	(68,896)
	a
	
	

	
	Property and equipment
	
	30,415,476
	(29,915,476)
	b
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	{500,000)
	h
	
	

	
	Total assets
	$
	31 ,131 ,417
	g31,131,417)
	
	$
	

	
	LIABILITIES
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Accounts payable and accrued liabi lities
	$
	653 , 191
	$
	(616,874) a,h
	$
	36,317

	
	Capital lease obligations
	
	1,119,381
	
	
	
	
	1'119,3 81

	
	Shut-down liabilities
	
	
	
	500,000
	c
	
	500,000

	
	Due to SMG Management Company
	
	
	
	412,080
	d
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	(412,080)
	h
	
	

	
	General obligation bonds
	
	
	
	9,600,000
	g
	
	9,600,000

	-
	Total liabilities
	
	1,772,572
	
	9,483, 126
	
	
	11 ,255,698

	
	FUND EQUITY
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Contributions in Aid - City of New Haven
	
	54,410,828
	(25,514,063)
	e
	
	28,896,765

	
	
	
	
	(29,915,476)
	b
	(29,915,476)

	
	
	
	
	
	(51,987)
	a
	
	(51,987)

	
	
	
	
	
	(135,000)
	f
	
	(135,000)

	
	
	
	
	
	(500,000)
	c
	
	(500,000)

	
	
	
	
	
	50,000
	d
	
	50,000

	
	
	
	
	
	(9,600,000)
	g
	
	(9,600,000)

	
	Contributions in Aid - SMG Management
	
	462,080
	
	{462,080)
	d
	
	

	
	
	
	54,872,908
	(66, 128,606)
	
	{11,255,698)

	
	RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Restricted for debt
	
	5,119
	
	(5,119)
	g
	
	

	
	Unreserved and undesignated
	{25,5 19, 182)
	
	25,5 19, 182
	g
	
	

	
	Total retained earnings (deficit)
	(25 ,5 14,063)
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Total fund equity
	
	29,358,845
	
	
	
	{11,255,698)

	
	Total liabi lities and fund equity
	$
	31 , 131 ,417
	
	
	
	$
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CONTINUED OPERATION VERSUS SHUTDOWN ANALYSIS

EXHIBIT I

NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY

PROFORMA BALANCE SHEET

PRO FORMA ADJUSTMENTS

	a.
	The assets are assumed to be converted into cash and applied against liabilities.

	b .
	Property and equipment salvage value is assumed to be $500,000.  Estimated net value

	-
	for orderly liquidation is in a range of $250,000 to $750,000.

	
	


The City would potentially incur certain liabilities as a result of a shut-down . The range of these expenses would run from $450,000 to $550,000. An average figure of $500,000 is used.

d.
It is assumed that SMG would be owed its unamortized capital contribution. This is updated to year end June 30, 2002.

Reclassification of net accumulated deficit to New Haven contribution in aid.

The loss of the year after the offset of the hotel tax and other revenues is accrued.
Applies orphaned general obligation bonds to the Authority.

The proceeds from the sale of the residual assets are assumed to be applied due to SMG management company and accounts payable.
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COMPETITION AND ECONOMIC IMPACT

COMPETITION TO THE COLISEUM
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The Coliseum is becoming less of a market force in the region not only due to its aging and outdated facility, but also due to the current entrance into the marketplace of two major competitors; Clear Channel Entertainment (a nationally renowned entertainment company) and the casinos as discussed later:
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Meadows Music Centre (located in Hartford), with a 25,900 seat capacity and ct.now.com Oakdale Theatre (located in Wallingford), with a 4,800 seat capacity are both new facilities owned by Clear Channel Entertainment. The combination of the new large facilities and Clear Channel Entertainment's substantial economic and booking strength make these venues more appealing to entertainers, both for tour scheduling and financially.
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Mohegan Sun Resort Casino (located in Uncasville), with a 10,000 seat capacity and Foxwoods Resort Casino (located in Ledyard), with two theatres; 1,700 and 3,000 seats, similar to 1. above are new facilities and both have substantial economic and booking strength to make those venues more appealing.
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The Hartford Civic Center and the Arena at Harbor Yard (Bridgeport Arena) are not considered significant in competition to the Coliseum, and in the case of the Arena at Harbor Yard, minimal competition at the current time . However, it is likely that, in the future, the Arena at Harbor Yard will adversely affect the Coliseum and its activities.
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The competition has already affected the Coliseum and caused its number of events to decline from a high of 152 in 1989 to 71 in 2000, and more recently, 113 in 2002 (Exhibit 1). It should be noted that since its low in 2000, SMG has increased its events to 113 in 2002 with a 50 event increase due to sporting events and only one event increase in entertainment.

	-
	Exhibit 1 - Total Number of Event Days- New Haven Coliseum

	
	
	
	Number of

	
	Years
	Event Days

	
	1988-1989
	152

	
	1989
	- 1990
	164

	
	1990
	- 1991
	133

	
	1991 - 1992
	118

	
	1992- 1993
	136

	
	1993
	- 1994
	97

	
	1994
	- 1995
	89

	
	1995
	- 1996
	106

	
	1996
	- 1997
	98

	
	1997- 1998
	107

	
	1998
	- 1999
	110

	
	1999-2000
	7 1

	
	2000-2001
	106

	
	2001
	-2002
	113
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COMPETITION AND ECONOMIC IMPACT

The aforementioned factors will cause the Coliseum to become even less competitive gradually over time. Thus the current economic impact would be adversely affected in future years by this competitive environment. This adverse effect would cause SMG to increase the required funding requests from the City.

Clearly, the New Haven Coliseum has been competing with other venues for consumer dollars in a weakened economic environment in recent years. The recession, which began in March of 2001 , has resulted in regional employment losses, associated weakness in personal income growth, and declines in consumer confidence as many consumers now appear to be spending less discretionary income on entertainment given the uncertainty of the economic environment. Despite tangible signs that the region is in the early states of a viable economic recovery, it is important to note that real disposable personal income, the broadest measure of consumer spending power, is down roughly 2.3% for the first quarter of 2002 and that debt levels are high relative to historical norms. Simply stated, the bottom line is that consumers in Connecticut are not in a position to lead a robust economic expansion at this time . Therefore, consumer fundamentals will continue to impact local spending on entertainment and other discretionary items . Moreover, it is important to note that job growth is traditionally a lagging economic indicator, suggesting sluggish income growth in the near-term. This is important to note because of the documented linkages between employment growth and income expansion, which may further constrain consumer spending on entertainment over the near-term.

Looking at the latest research on the demographics of Coliseum visitors, we see that roughly 95% are coming from within the State's borders. Depending on the individual event, though, the data shows that roughly 20%-30% of the ticket buyers are from Fairfield County. However, these statistics were compiled before the Arena at Harbor Yard in Bridgeport became functional , and so they can be expected to change in coming quarters. Therefore, this new addition to the marketplace will clearly siphon off visitors from Coliseum events to the degree that comparable events can be staged.

Clearly, while the Coliseum has made a valuable and meaningful contribution to the New Haven arts and entertainment community since its inception in 1972, the current usefulness of the facility has been brought into question given the fact that the facility itself and its parking garage are in need of major capital improvements. In fact, the Coliseum has consistently been losing money and based on these competitive forces will continue to lose money and require substantial subsidy from the City.
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COMPETITION AND ECONOMIC IMPACT

ECONOMIC IMPACT OF THE CURRENT COLISEUM OPERATIONS

Our estimate of the total economic impacts on the City of New Haven is $6.1 million in total output each year, which can be characterized as being "extremely modest and narrow in scope. " This impact assumes continued support by the City to fund the losses of the Authority and no further deterioration in SMG's performance days. In terms of employment, the estimated impact on the job front can also be characterized as being modest-- 74 jobs would be eliminated from the City of New Haven economy .

The impacts represent just slight fractions of one percent of the aggregate New Haven County economy. These figures reflect all aggregate economic activity, direct and indirect, not considering the impacts of the demolition of the Coliseum facility.

Our review of other recent economic impact studies indicate the use of the Coliseum's site for an alternative purpose including among other things, a conference center or theatre. Such activities would exceed significantly the current economic impact of the Coliseum.

Economic impacts were derived utilizing the IMPLAN Model (IMPLAN stands for Impact Analysis for PLANning) and clearly demonstrate that the aggregate economic impacts associated with the possible closing of the New Haven Coliseum on the New Haven economy, prior to possible demolition, are extremely modest in scope. This is because much of the spending on the Coliseum and its events would be redirected locally in the event of possible closure. IMPLAN allows the analysis to estimate the effect of an economic change in a local economy by considering not only the impact from that change on the industry or group of industries directly effected but also the effects on the complete regional economy as the model's inter-industry linkages allow for the effects to ripple through the economy. The work done for this economic impact analysis was performed jointly by Scillia Dowling & Natarelli Advisors and the Connecticut Economic Resource Center (CERC) using the IMPLAN input/output model, while assumptions listed at the end of this analysis were developed jointly by the two respective research organizations.
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	COMPETITION AND ECONOMIC IMPACT

	
	


Don Klepper-Smith, Chief Economist and Director of Research at Scillia Dowling & Natarelli Advisors, directed the research and collaborated with Jeff Blodgett, Vice President of Research Services at the Connecticut Economic Resource Center (CERC), and Dale Shannon, Senior Economist of the same organization, in producing these estimates. This team of three economists was employed to help produce fair and unbiased estimates on possible economic impacts to the New Haven County area, employing the IMPLAN model because of its capability to assess conditions at a sub-state level. Model estimates were first derived at the County level and then estimated for the City of New Haven based on shares of employment and other measures of economic activity that were specific to the City of New Haven.

The IMPLAN Model and Model Results

The IMPLAN Model calculated economic impacts at the County level, representing economic output of $8.7 million, which translated into output of $6.1 million for the City alone.

Considered in this IMPLAN Model analysis were three primary components.  They were:

Table 1
Economic
impacts
emanating
from
expenses
related
to
the
operation
of  the

Coliseum .

Table 2
Economic impacts based on losses in the local New Haven area economy relating to

consumer spending and consumption through visitors attending Coliseum events.

Table 3
All economic impacts minus demolition, and

Table 4
Economic impacts as they related to the possible demolition of the Coliseum.

The three distinct parts listed above are required to conduct a comprehensive economic impact analysis on the New Haven County economy as they collectively reflect impacts associated with the possible closing of the New Haven Coliseum. The first part examines the impact from expenses relating to running the Coliseum (Table 1). The second part considers the loss to the local economy from the sales related to visitors coming to the Coliseum (Table 2). Table 3 summarizes Tables 1 and 2 and is referred to as "All Impact Minus Demolition

For Table 3, "All Impacts Minus Demolition", the IMPLAN Model calculated economic impacts at the County level, representing economic output of $8.7 million. This equates to just three one-hundredths of one percent, which can be characterized as a "modest impact" to the area economy. Direct effect: $4.7 million, indirect effect: $4.0 million. Total impacts on employment: 106 jobs within the New Haven area. Direct jobs: 60 workers, indirect jobs: 46 workers.
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Table 1 - Annual Effects of Closing the Coliseum:  Coliseum Expenses

	
	
	
	Indirect Effects
	
	
	

	
	Direct
	
	Indirect Inputs
	
	Induced
	Total

	
	Effect
	Total
	
	Effect
	
	Effect
	Effect

	Output
	$ (3,738,46 1)
	$ (3,363,089)
	$
	(1,733,690)
	$
	(I ,589,399)
	$ (7,101 ,550)

	Employment
	(38 .0)
	(39 .3)
	
	(20.4)
	
	(19.0)
	(77.3)

	Employee
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Compensation
	$ (I ,545,333)
	$ (1,099,121)
	$
	(548, 154)
	$
	(550,966)
	$ (2,644,454)

	Total Value Added
	$ (1,615,333)
	$ (2,128,544)
	$
	(1,080,927)
	$
	(1,047,617)
	$ (3 ,743 ,878)

	Total Personal
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Income
	$ ( I ,545,333)
	$ (1,347,086)
	$
	(712,903)
	$
	(634,182)
	$ (2,892,418)


Table 2 - Annual Effects of Closing the Coliseum: Net Loss of $1.41 in Local Expenditures

	
	
	
	
	
	Indirect Effects
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Direct
	
	
	Indirect Inputs
	
	Induced
	
	Total

	
	
	Effect
	
	Total
	
	Effect
	
	Effect
	
	Effect

	Output (Retail Margin
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	$1.4 m)*
	$
	(965, 187)
	$
	(602,843)
	$
	(251 ,569)
	$
	(351,273)
	$
	(1 ,568,029)

	Employment
	
	(22.4)
	
	(6 .8)
	
	(2 .6)
	
	(4.2)
	
	(29 . 1)

	Employee
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Compensation
	$
	(360,799)
	$
	(196,966)
	$
	(75,196)
	$
	(121,769)
	$
	(557,764)

	Total Value Added
	$
	(626,377)
	$
	(380,996)
	$
	(149,462)
	$
	(231 ,534)
	$
	(1,007,372)

	Total Personal
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Income
	$
	(403,725)
	$
	(235 ,529)
	$
	(95,369)
	$
	(140,161)
	$
	(639,254)


See Appendix
Table 3 - Annual Effects of Closing the Coliseum: All but Demolition

	
	
	
	Indirect Effects
	
	
	

	
	Direct
	
	Indirect Inputs
	
	Induced
	Total

	
	Effect
	Total
	
	Effect
	
	Effect
	Effect

	Output (Retail Margin)*
	$ (4,703,648)
	$ (3,965,932)
	$
	(2,025,259)
	$
	(I ,940,673)
	$ (8,669,579)

	Employment
	(60.4)
	(46 . 1)
	
	(22.9)
	
	(23.2)
	(106 .5)

	Employee
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Compensation
	$ ( 1,906, 132)
	$ (I ,296,086)
	$
	(623,351)
	$
	(672,736)
	$ (3,202,218)

	Total Value Added
	$ (2,24 1,7 10)
	$ (2,509 ,540)
	$
	(1 ,230,389)
	$
	(1,279,151)
	$ (4,751 ,250)

	Total Personal
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Income
	$ (1 ,949,058)
	$ (1,582,615)
	$
	(808,272)
	$
	(774,343)
	$ (3,531 ,673)


See Appendix
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ill.
ECONOMIC IMPACT OF THE DEMOLITION OF THE COLISEUM

The demolition of the Coliseum amounts to a one-time, economic stimulus of $1.6 million and approximately 20 jobs, this representing economic impacts specific to the City of New Haven .
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Table 4 presents accounts for the impact related to the expenditures in the New Haven County economy from the demolition of the facility. It should be noted that the first two parts represent annual, recurring losses to the regional economy while demolition, is a one-time gain and a non-recurring event.
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Table 4 -
Effects of Closing the Coliseum:  Demolition Expenses

	
	
	
	
	
	Indirect Effects
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Direct
	
	
	Indirect Inputs
	
	Induced
	
	Total

	
	
	Effect
	
	Total
	
	Effect
	
	Effect
	
	Effect

	Output
	$
	10,214,300
	$
	7,503,679
	$
	2,498,041
	$
	5,005,639
	$
	17,7 17,979

	Employment
	
	125 . 1
	
	87. 1
	
	27.4
	
	59.7
	
	212.3

	Employee
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Compensation
	$
	4, 116,733
	$
	2,598, 137
	$
	862,929
	$
	1,735,208
	$
	6,7 14,910

	Total Value Added
	$
	6,346,0 10
	$
	4,837,423
	$
	I ,538,068
	$
	3,299,355
	$
	11 ,183,433

	Total Personal
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Income
	$
	6,053,897
	$
	3,055 ,460
	$
	1,058, 172
	$
	1,997,288
	$
	9, 109,3 57


[image: image145.jpg]


[image: image146.jpg]


[image: image147.jpg]


[image: image148.jpg]


[image: image149.jpg]


[image: image150.jpg]



15

[image: image151.jpg]



OMPETITION AND ECONOMIC IMPACT

Definitions

Output - Total production of an industry or region as measured by that industry' s sales in the specified region. For sectors of the economy that do not (primarily) have sales, output is commonly measured using the enterprise's expenses.

Employment- Number of full and part-time (annual average) required by a given industry in the specified region .

Employee Compensation -
Total costs (wages, salaries, benefits) paid in a local industry.

Value Added- The amount of value added to the intermediate goods and services. Value added is equal to employee compensation plus proprietor income plus other property income plus indirect business taxes.

Personal Income - The sum of net earnings by place of residence, rental income of persons, personal dividend income, personal interest income, and transfer payments.

Direct Effects- The assumed change in the economic variable that will be used to estimate the total regional impact of the model.

Indirect Effects- The sum of the indirect inputs effect and the induced effect.

Indirect Imputs Effect - The estimated impact on the local economy from the inter-industry activity through the input/output model. These are the effects on the local economy that result from the change in the buying inputs and selling outputs from the directly effected industry.

Induced Effect - The estimated impact on the local economy from the change in household expenditures. These changes in household expenditures result from the changed modeled in the direct effect as well as the indirect inputs effect.
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Employment Multipliers



May 9, 2002

Coc>vrioht MIG 2002
NewHavCol-Type2.iap

	
	Description
	
	
	
	
	Total A
	ImU
	Ixruill

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	
	I Dairy Farm Products
	6.054870
	1.968235
	2.878997
	10.902102
	1.325066
	1.800551

	
	2
	Poultry and Egj!,s
	4.494212
	2.1161 61
	1.622979
	8.2333 52
	1.470864
	1.831990

	
	3
	Ranch Fed Cattle
	16.652199
	2.338156
	2.331079
	21.32 1434
	1.140411
	1.280398

	
	4 Range Fed Cattle
	17.891851
	1.823 170
	1.991874
	21.706895
	1.101899
	1.213228

	
	5 Cattle Feedlots
	5.046363
	2.372441
	2. 139010
	9.557814
	1.470 129
	1.894000

	
	,6 Sheep. Lambs and Goats
	91.868629
	2.939903
	2.229809
	97.038342
	1.03200 1
	1.056273

	
	7
	Hogs. Pigs and Swine
	24.406092
	2.310728
	1.952476
	28 .669295
	1.094678
	U74678

	
	8
	Other Meat Animal Products
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	9 Miscellaneous Livestock
	35.952583
	2 .440300
	2.511066
	40.903950
	1.067876
	1.137719

	-
	10
	Cotton
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	· II
	Food Grains
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	12 Feed Grains
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	13
	Hay and Pasture
	44
	.300465
	2.729095
	2 .705535
	49.735095
	1.061604
	1.122677

	
	14
	Grass Seeds
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	15
	Tobacco
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	16
	Fruits
	14.725786
	3.783005
	3.021053
	2 1.529844
	1.256897
	1.46205 1

	
	17
	Tree Nuts
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	18 Vegetables
	8.657106
	3.564034
	3.094526
	15.315667
	1.411 689
	1.769 144

	
	19
	Sugar C rops
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	20
	Miscellaneous Crops
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	21  Oil Bearing Crops
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	22 Forest Products
	12.56 11 50
	3.222140
	2.385532
	18. 168822
	1.256516
	1.446430

	
	23 Greenhouse and Nursery Products
	14.507984
	2.936855
	3.859728
	21.304568
	1.202430
	1.4684 72

	
	24 Forestry Products
	96.274231
	2. 160942
	2.862471
	101 .297644
	1.022446
	1.052 178

	
	25
	Commercial Fishing
	18.793882
	1.250900
	4 .283024
	24 .327807
	1.066559
	1.294454

	
	26
	Agricultural. Forestry. Fishery Services
	52.695271
	1.813354
	4 .881590
	59 .39021 5
	1.0344 12
	1.127050

	
	27 Landscape and Hortic ultural Services
	24
	.173738
	2.950672
	4 .5 12686
	31.637097
	1.1 22061
	1.308738

	
	28
	Iron Ores
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	29
	Copper Ores
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	30 Lead and Z inc Ores
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	3 1 GoldOres
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	32
	Silver Ores
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	33
	Ferroalloy Ores. Except Vanadiwn
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	34
	Metal Mining Services
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	35
	Uranium-radium-vanadium Ores
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	36
	Metal Ores. Not Elswhere C lassified
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	37 Coal Mining
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	38
	Natural Gas & Crude Petroleum
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	39 Natural Gas Liquids
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	40 Dimension Stone
	6.757502
	1.624379
	3.668905
	12 .050786
	1.240381
	1.783320

	
	41
	Sand and Gravel
	3.715782
	1.443038
	4 .073333
	9 .232 153
	1.388354
	2.484579

	
	42
	C lav. Ceramic. Refractory Minerals. N.E.C .
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	4 3 Potash. Soda. and Borate Minerals
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	44
	Phosphate Rock
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	45 Chemical. Fertilizer Mineral Mininig. N .E.C.
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	46
	Nonmetallic Minerals (Except Fuels) Service
	4.077379
	1.956929
	3.281372
	9 .3 15679
	1.479948
	2.284723

	
	47
	Misc. Nonmetallic Minerals. N .E.C.
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	48
	New Residential Structures
	6.951294
	4.418053
	3 .394828
	14.764174
	1.635573
	2. 123946

	
	49
	New Industrial and Commercial Buildings
	7.681732
	3.50 1863
	4.368613
	15 .552208
	1.455869
	2.024570

	
	50
	New Utility Structures
	9 .229588
	3.224495
	4 .989856
	17.443939
	1.349365
	1.890002

	
	5 1 New Highways and Streets
	7.80446 1
	3. 146321
	4.243940
	15 . 194723
	1.403 144
	1.946928

	
	52
	New Farm Structures
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	53  New Mineral Extraction Facilities
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000


	A Per Million dollars of output
	
	

	*Type (=(Direct + Indirect)/Direct
	
	Report MR020

	**Type II =(Direct+ Indirect+ lnduced)/Direct
	Page#  I
	


May9, 2002

Employment Multipliers

Coovri•ht MIG 2002
NewHavCol-Type2.iap

	
	Description
	
	
	Induced
	
	
	Im<J
	Typell

	
	
	Effects"
	Effects"
	Effects"
	Total "
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	54
	
	New Government Facilities
	5.730232
	3.766595
	4.495527
	13
	.99235 4
	1.657320
	2.441848

	55 Maintenance and Repair, Residential
	6.977 155
	4.701993
	3.991281
	15.670428
	1.6739 13
	2.245962

	56
	
	Maintenance and Repair Other Facilities
	12.636271
	2.284009
	5.958994
	20
	.879274
	1.180750
	1.652329

	57
	
	Maintenance and Repair Oil and Gas Wells
	6.286293
	2.370738
	3.922814
	12.579845
	1.377128
	2.001155

	58
	
	Meat Packinl( Plants
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	59
	
	Sausages and Other Prepared Meats
	4.483297
	3. 103036
	2.479013
	10.065346
	1.692 133
	2.245077

	60
	Poultry Processing
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	61 Creamery Butter
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	62
	
	Cheese. Narural and Processed
	1.957810
	2.393667
	1.432195
	5.783672
	2.222625
	2.954154

	63 Condensed and Evaporated Milk
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	64
	
	Ice Cream and Frozen Desserts
	4.224810
	3.238640
	2.777044
	10.240494
	1.766577
	2.423894

	65 RuidMilk
	2.667861
	2.038291
	1.747486
	6.453637
	1.764017
	2.4 19031

	66
	Canned Specialties
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	67
	
	Canned Fruits and Vegetables
	4.027439
	3. 100826
	2.843675
	9
	.97 1940
	1.769925
	2.476000

	68
	
	Dehydrated Food Products
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	69
	
	Pickles. Sauces. and Salad Dressings
	4.496751
	2.420425
	1.839365
	8
	.756541
	1.53826 1
	1.947304

	70
	Frozen Fruits. Juices and Vegetables
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	71
	
	Frozen Specialties
	5. 174234
	2.945725
	2.475517
	10.595476
	1.569306
	2.047738

	72
	
	Flour and Other Grain Mill Products
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	73
	
	Cereal Preparations
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	74
	Rice Milling
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	75
	
	Blended and Prepared Flour
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	76 Wet Com Milling
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	77
	Dog. Cat. and Other Pet Food
	2. 178878
	3.629437
	2.648976
	8
	.457290
	2.665737
	3.88 1490

	78
	Prepared Feeds. N.E.C
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	79
	Bread. Cake, and Related Products
	6.087413
	3. 187084
	2.950043
	12.224540
	1.523553
	2.008167

	80
	Cookies and Crackers
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	81  Sul(ar
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	82
	Confectionery Products
	3.853473
	3.511151
	2.44943 5
	9.814059
	1.911165
	2.546809

	83
	
	Chocolate and Cocoa Products
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	84
	
	Chewing Gum
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	85
	
	Salted and Roasted Nuts & Seeds
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	86
	Cottonseed Oil Mills
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	87 Soybean Oil Mills
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	88
	
	Vegetable Oil Mills. N.E.C
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	89
	Animal and Marine Fats and Oils
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	90
	Shortening and Cooking Oils
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	91
	
	Malt Beverages
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	92
	Malt
	. 0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	93 Wines. Brandy. and Brandy Spirits
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	94
	
	Distilled Liquor, Except Brandy
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	95
	Bottled and Canned Soft Drinks & Water
	3.375592
	3.66 1807
	2.046473
	9
	.083872
	2.084790
	2.691046

	96
	Flavorinl( Extracts and Syrups, N.E.C.
	14.202264
	1.726675
	2.338528
	18
	.267467
	1.1 2 1578
	1.286236

	97
	
	Canned and Cured Sea Foods
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	98
	
	Prepared Fresh Or Frozen Fish Or Seafood
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	99
	
	Roasted Coffee
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	I 00
	
	Potato Cbips & Simi lar Snacks
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	I 0 I
	
	Manufacrured Ice
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	I 02
	
	Macaroni and Spaghetti
	8.651338
	5.01788 1
	2.420385
	16
	.089604
	1.5800 12
	1.859782

	103
	Food Preparations. N.E.C
	5.042873
	2.964081
	2.525762
	10.5327 16
	1.587776
	2.088634

	I 04 Cigarettes
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	I 05
	
	Cigars
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	I 06
	
	Chewing and Smoking Tobacco
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	"Per Million dollars of output
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	*Type I =(Di rect+ Indirect)/Direct
	
	
	
	
	
	Report MR020

	**Type II =(Direct+ Indirect+ lnduced)/Direct
	
	Pa!!e #  2
	
	
	
	


	
	
	Employment Multipliers
	
	May9,2002

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Coovrioht MIG 2002
	NewHavCol-Type2 .iap
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Description
	EffectsA
	EffectsA
	EffectsA
	Total A
	IW
	~

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	
	I 07 Tobacco Stemming and Redrying
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	108 Broadwoven Fabric Mills and Finishing
	7.941405
	2 .269925
	2.991 110
	13
	.20244 1
	1.285834
	1.662482

	
	109 Narrow Fabric Mills
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	110 Womens Hosiery. Except Socks
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	Ill
	Hosiery, N.E.C
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	112 Knit Outerwear Mills
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	113 Knit Underwear Mills
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	114 Knit Fabric Mills
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	115 Knitting Mills. N.E.C.
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	116 Yam Mills and Finishing Of Textiles. N.E.C.
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	117 Carpets and Rugs
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	118 Thread Mills
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	119 Coated Fabrics. Not Rubberized
	5.379678
	3.165613
	3.749192
	12 .294483
	1.588439
	2.185357

	
	120 Tire Cord and Fabric
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	121  Nonwoven Fabrics
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	122 Cordage and Twine
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	123 Textile Goods. N.E.C
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	124  Apparel Made From Purchased Materials
	7.926176
	2.760833
	3.662420
	14 .349429
	1.348318
	1.810385

	
	125 Curtains and Draperies
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	126 Housefurnishings. N.E.C
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	127 Textile Bags
	10.289668
	1.983865
	3. 106275
	15.379808
	1.192802
	1.494685

	
	128 Canvas Products
	8 .688906
	1.848785
	4.542196
	15.079887
	1.212775
	1.735534

	
	129 Pleating and Stitching
	11 .620955
	1.736928
	3.453114
	16.8 10996
	1.149465
	1.44661 1

	
	130 Automotive and Apparel Trimmings
	6 .287627
	2 .778685
	2.957446
	12.023758
	1.441929
	1.912289

	
	131
	Schiffi Machine Embroideries
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	132 Fabricated Textile Products. N.E.C.
	6 .281446
	2.924 148
	2.605534
	11.8 1 I 128
	1.46552 1
	1.880320

	
	133 Logging Camps and Logging Contractors
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	134 Sawmills and Planing Mills. General
	5.574831
	2.90943 I
	2.500283
	10.984545
	1.521887
	1.970382

	
	135 Hardwood Dimension and Flooring Mills
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	136 Special Product Sawmills. N.E.C
	. 0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	137 Millwork
	9 .1 9403 1
	2 .390210
	4.469744
	16.05398 5
	1.259974
	1.7461 31

	
	138 Wood Kitchen Cabinets
	11.207782
	2 . 11 5104
	4 .362620
	17.685505
	1.188717
	1.577967

	
	139 Veneer and Plywood
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	140 Structural Wood Members. N.E.C
	9.139668
	2.630228
	3. 164 101
	14 .933996
	1.287782
	1.633976

	
	141  Wood Containers
	12.252731
	2.045082
	4.540539
	18 .838352
	1.166908
	1.537482

	
	142 Wood Pallets and Skids
	12.5952 11
	2 .673719
	4 .236732
	19.505662
	1.21 228 1
	1.548657

	
	143 Mobile Homes
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	144 Prefabricated Wood Buildings
	7.157686
	2.643 11 8
	3.57736 1
	13 .378165
	1.369270
	1.869063

	-
	14 5 Wood Preserving
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	146 Reconstituted Wood Products
	3.240354
	3 .044374
	2.747291
	9 .032019
	1.9395 19
	2.7873 55

	
	147 Wood Products. N .E .C
	9 .908584
	2 .660183
	3.675196
	16.243963
	1.268473
	1.639383

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	148 Wood Household Furniture
	10.921548
	3. 124578
	3.8 16703
	17 .862828
	1.286093
	1.63 5558

	
	149 Upholstered Household Furniture
	10.740035
	2. 157962
	3.647887
	16.545884
	1.200927
	1.540580

	
	150
	Metal Household Furniture
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	. 151
	Mattresses and Bedsprings
	8 .756974
	2.669483
	3. 138772
	14.565230
	1.304841
	1.663272

	
	152 Wood Tv and Raclio Cabinets
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	153  Household Furniture. N.E.C
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	154 Wood Office Furniture
	10.821695
	3.479383
	3 .894455
	18.195534
	1.32 15 19
	1.681394

	
	155  Metal Office Furniture
	5. 102603
	3.946326
	3.424864
	12.473793
	1.773395
	2.444594

	
	156 Public Building Furniture
	6.30 153 1
	3.493529
	2.59599 1
	12.391052
	1.554394
	1.966356

	
	157  Wood Partitions and Fixtures
	8.3 16911
	2.987700
	3.960558
	15.265 168
	1.359232
	I .835437

	
	158  Metal Partitions and Fixtures
	7.53 1486
	3 .238976
	3.599880
	14 .370342
	1.430058
	1.90 8036

	
	159 Blinds, Shades, and Drapery Hardware
	7.319063
	2.564792
	3.546528
	13.430383
	1.350426
	1.834987

	
	160
	Furniture and Fixtures  N.E.C
	4 .674543
	1.230085
	2.227774
	8 . 132403
	1.263146
	1.739721


	A Per Million dollars of output
	
	V .......... l • . Jfa1

	
	
	

	*Type [=(Direct+ Indirect)/Direct
	Pae:e #  3
	Report MR020

	**Type II =(Direct+ Indirect+ Induced)/Direct
	
	


May9, 2002

Employment Multipliers

	Copyrio:ht MIG 2002
	NewHavCol-Type2.iap
	
	
	
	

	Description
	Direct
	Indirect
	Induced
	
	ImU
	Type II

	
	Effects"
	Effects"
	Effects"
	Total"
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	
	
	
	
	
	
	


-

-



Pulp Mills

Paper Mills. Except Building Paper

Paperboard Mills

Papetboard Containers and Boxes

Paper Coated & Laminated Packaging

Paper Coated & Laminated N .E.C.

Bags. Plastic

Bags. Paper

Die<ut Paper and Board

Sanitary Paper Products

Envelopes

Stationery Products

Converted Paper Products. N .E.C

Newspapers

Periodicals

Book Publishing

Book Printing

Miscellaneous Publishing

Commercial Printing

Manifold Business Fonns

Greeting Card Publishing

Blankbooks and Looseleaf Binder

Bookbinding & Related

Typesetting

Plate Making

Allcalies & Chlorine

Industrial Gases

[norganic Pigments

Inorganic Chemicals Nee.

Cyclic Crudes. lntenn. &  lndus. Organic Chern.

Plastics Materials and Resins

Synthetic Rubber

Cellulosic Man-made Fibers

Organic Fibers. Noncellulosic

Drugs

Soap and Other Detergents

Polishes and Sanitation Goods

Surface Active Agents

Toilet Preparations

Paints and Allied Products

I Gum and Wood Chemicals

Nitrogenous and Phosphatic Fertilizers

Fertilizers. Mixing Only

Agricultural Chemicals. N .E.C

Adhesives and Sealants

Exnlosives

Printing Ink

Carbon Black

Chemical Preparations. N .E.C

Petroleum Refining

Paving Mixtures and Blocks

12 Asphalt Felts and Coatings

3 Lubricating Oils and Greases



.000000

0.000000

145391

.909980

5.252656

311932

5.070465

5.674598

8.553593

.000000

0.000000

0.000000

165870

12.563226

320572

4.917003

524108

5.269666

794338

5.799831

426115

190968

15.614641

7.630342

10.661552

.000000

3.732826

.000000

336904

1.766894

902660

.203443

.000000

0.000000

2.96087I

0.000000

.102121

.000000

139776

2.362813

0.000000

.000000

3.011846

0.000000

3.438817

.000000

511971

.000000

365877

.000000

1.908962

3.654037

589848



	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	3.431896
	2.764439
	8.341726
	2.599660
	3 .888209

	2.284925
	2.796621
	9 .991525
	1.465363
	2.0 34942

	3. 131014
	2.268240
	10.651910
	1.596082
	2.027910

	2.658598
	2.880090
	10.850620
	1.500496
	2.042688

	3.223037
	2.801085
	11.094587
	1.635649
	2.188081

	3.023010
	3.013998
	11.711606
	1.532727
	2.063865

	2 .742694
	2.347538
	13
	.643825
	1.320648
	1.595099

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	2.793891
	2.685399
	10.645160
	1.540836
	2.060671

	3.104530
	4 .300583
	19.968339
	1.247113
	1.589428

	3.144149
	3.739157
	12.203879
	1.590942
	2.29371 5

	3
	.670219
	2.552647
	I 1.139869
	1.746434
	2.265581

	3.575545
	2.715658
	14.815311
	1.419463
	1.738048

	2
	.272873
	3.628014
	11.170553
	1.431313
	2. 119784

	2.376299
	3.909856
	14
	.080493
	1.304875
	1.806503

	2
	.208746
	3.485846
	11.494424
	1.380829
	1.98 1855

	5
	.740757
	3.368777
	14.535648
	2.057986
	2.678832

	2.990575
	3.529728
	14.711271
	1.365106
	1.796036

	3.036739
	4.950061
	23
	.601442
	1.194480
	1.511494

	3.424270
	4 .822385
	15.876997
	1.448770
	2.080 771

	1.241137
	6.58393 8
	18.486627
	1.11 6412
	1.733953

	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	1.439910
	5.227567
	10.400303
	1.385743
	2.786174

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	3.393340
	2.857821
	8.588065
	2.452066
	3.674975

	3
	.334283
	2.821305
	7.922482
	2.887088
	4.483848

	3.843859
	2.789175
	8
	.535693
	3.020256
	4.486 190

	3.705623
	3.157909
	11.066976
	1.881 569
	2.632836

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	2
	.645108
	3.707151
	9.313131
	1.893355
	3.145403

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.857205
	3. 164170
	9
	.123496
	1.452743
	2.2 24092

	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	3.305243
	2.946459
	9
	.391479
	2.052700
	2.991130

	2
	.974487
	2.994560
	8
	.331859
	2.258876
	3.526246

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	3.236186
	2. 179302
	8.427335
	2.074486
	2.798063

	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	3.330740
	3.308862
	10.078420
	1.968571
	2.930781

	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	3.289422
	2.831460
	10.632852
	1.729043
	2.356587

	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	2.724718
	3.290200
	8
	.380795
	2.151673
	3.542363

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	1.887591
	2.202895
	5
	.999448
	1.988805
	3. 14278 1

	2 .245079
	1.948203
	7.847319
	1.614411
	2. 147575

	2.3 16735
	3.20749 1
	7 .114074
	2.45 7206
	4.474689


Per Million dollars of output *Type I =(Direct+ lndirect)/Direct

**Type H =(Direct + Indirect + lnduced)/Direct
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	c.,.,n,.ht MIG 2002
	
	NewHavCol-Type2.iap
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Description
	
	
	
	Induced
	
	
	~
	~

	
	Effects"
	Effects"
	Effects"
	Total"
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2 14
	Petroleum and Coal Products, N.E.C.
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	215
	Tires and Inner Tubes
	4.599195
	2.180996
	4 .234765
	11.014956
	1.474213
	2.394975

	216 Rubber and Plastics Footwear
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	2 17
	Rubber and Plastics Hose and Bettini!:
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	218 Gaskets, Packinl!: and Sealinl!: Devices .
	7.662459
	2.924902
	3.868093
	14.455454
	1.381719
	1.886529

	2 19 Fabricated Rubber Products, N.E.C.
	5.836877
	3 .148305
	3.852885
	12.838067
	1.539382
	2. 199475

	220
	Miscellaneous Plastics Products
	5.3352 10
	3.880 162
	3.648868
	12.864240
	1.727275
	2.4111 97

	22 1 Leather Tannin~t and Finishin~t
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	222
	Footwear Cut Stock
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	223 House Slippers
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	224 Shoes, Except Rubber
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	225 Leather Gloves and Mittens
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	226
	Luru!;al!;e
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	227
	Womens Handbai!:S and Purses
	12
	.564222
	O.oJ 1743
	4.498222
	17.094188
	1.002527
	1.360545

	228
	Personal Leather Goods
	11.861254
	L078788
	3. 168343
	16.108384
	1.090951
	1.358068

	229
	Leather Goods, N .E .C
	7.083596
	0 .630413
	4.568079
	12.282087
	1.088996
	1.733878

	230
	Glass and Glass Products, Exc Containers
	6.826858
	3. 125426
	3.872367
	13
	.824651
	1.457813
	2.02503 8

	23 I Glass Containers
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	232
	Cement, Hydraulic
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	233 Brick and Structural Clay Tile
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	234
	Ceramic Wall and Floor Tile
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	23 5 Clay Refractories
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	236
	Structural Clay Products, N.E.C
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	23 7
	Vitreous Plumbinl!: Fixtures
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	23 8
	Vitreous China Food Utensils
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	239
	Fine Earthenware Food Utensils
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	240
	Porcelain Electrical Supplies
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	24 1 Pottery Products, N.E.C
	6.393470
	2.206 197
	5 .212696
	13
	.812363
	1.345070
	2. 160386

	242
	Concrete Block and Brick
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	243 Concrete Products, N.E.C
	5.705 173
	2.249075
	4.102838
	12.057086
	1.394217
	2. 113360

	244
	Ready-mixed Concrete
	4
	.260937
	2.271026
	3.907560
	10.439524
	1.532987
	2
	.450053

	245
	Lime
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	246
	Gypsum Products
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	24 7
	Cut Stone and Stone Products
	8.475413
	1.991517
	5.094203
	15.56 1134
	1.234976
	1.836033

	248
	Abrasive Products
	3.625634
	3 .088192
	3.121338
	9
	.835163
	1.851766
	2.712674

	249
	Asbestos Products
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	250
	Minerals, Ground Or Treated
	5.160374
	2.926573
	3 .742610
	11.829557
	1.567124
	2.292384

	251  Mineral Wool
	5.300239
	2.708242
	3.486597
	11.495078
	1.510966
	2. 168785

	252
	Nonclay Refractories
	4
	.888317
	2.954759
	3.895647
	11.738723
	1.604453
	2.401383

	253 Nonmetallic Mineral Products, N.E.C.
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	254
	Blast Furnaces and Steel Mills
	3.041647
	33 19934
	2.898285
	9259867
	2.091492
	3.044359

	255
	Electrometallurl!;ical Products
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	256
	Steel Wire and Related Products
	3.741257
	2.966259
	2.397848
	9 .105364
	1.792851
	2.433771

	257
	Cold Fin.ishinl!: Of Steel Shapes
	4
	.032565
	1.155530
	3.002998
	9.19 1093
	1.534531
	2.27921 8

	258
	Steel Pipe and Tubes
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	259
	Iron and Steel Foundries
	7.602620
	3.074800
	4.083579
	14.761000
	1.404440
	1.941567

	260
	Primary Copp.;;:
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	261
	Primary Aluminum
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	262
	Primary Nonferrous Metals, N.E.C.
	3.495014
	1.293422
	2.359255
	7.14769 1
	1.370077
	2.045111

	263
	Secoodarv Nonferrous Metals
	2.622266
	4. 11 8658
	2.853563
	9.594487
	2.570648
	3.658853

	264
	Copper Rollinl!: and Drawin~t
	2.9 12822
	2.775993
	2.688374
	8.377189
	1.953025
	2.875970

	265
	Aluminum Rollin~!; and Drawinl!:
	3.010022
	2. 197857
	2.434806
	7.642685
	1.730180
	2.5 39079

	266
	Nonferrous Rollinl!: and Drawinl!:, N.E.C.
	3. 109303
	2.599738
	2.926879
	8.635921
	1.836 116
	2.777446

	267
	Nonferrous Wire Drawing and Insulating
	3.4 16395
	2.626961
	2.769254
	8.812609
	1.768928
	2.579505
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	Coovri~ht MIG 2002
	NewHavCol-Type2.iap
	
	
	:rmu
	

	
	Deocription
	Direct
	Indirect
	Induced
	
	
	~

	
	
	Effects"
	Effects"
	Effects"
	Total"
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	
	268 Aluminum Foundries
	8.393182
	2 .106061
	3.792694
	14.29 1937
	1.250925
	1.702803

	
	269 Brass. Bronze, and Copper Foundries
	25 .778498
	0 .04241 9
	8.312733
	34. 133650
	1.001646
	1.324 113

	
	270 Nonferrous Castings, N.E.C.
	1.972676
	3.387538
	1.957944
	7.3181 58
	2.71 7230
	3.709761

	
	271  Metal Heat Treating
	5.290476
	2.764713
	3.267 173
	11.322362
	1.522583
	2. 1401 41

	
	272 Primary Metal Products. N.E.C
	4.061 572
	3.163283
	2.900224
	10. 125079
	1.778832
	2.492897

	
	273 Metal Cans
	2.503698
	2.037752
	2.276308
	6.817759
	1.813897
	2.723075

	
	274 Metal Barrel s. Drums and Pails
	7.008978
	2.815217
	2.094819
	11.919014
	1.401659
	1.700535

	
	275 Cutlery
	4.2 19990
	1.577938
	3.993323
	9.791251
	1.373920
	2.320207

	
	276 Hand and Edge Tools. N.E.C.
	4.045985
	1.761103
	2.789638
	8.596725
	1.435272
	2. 124755

	
	277 Hand Saws and Saw Blades
	3.952125
	2.235168
	2.923250
	9. 110543
	1.56556 1
	2.305 227

	
	278 Hardware, N.E.C.
	5.27 1870
	2.257016
	3.024986
	10.553872
	1.428124
	2.001 922

	
	279 Metal Sanitary Ware
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	280 Plwnbing Fixture Fittings and Trim
	6.660012
	2.439588
	3.2 11777
	12.311377
	1.366304
	1.848552

	
	281  Heating Equipment. Except Electric
	8.617015
	2.043409
	2.567212
	13.227636
	1.237137
	1.535060

	
	282 Fabricated Structural Metal
	5. 190679
	2.66391 2
	3.162663
	11.017254
	1.5132 11
	2.122507

	
	283 Metal Doors, Sash. and Trim
	6. 1114 53
	1.795745
	3.313639
	11.220838
	1.293833
	1.836034

	
	284 Fabricated Plate Work (Boiler Shops)
	10. 175400
	1.703708
	4.125640
	16.004747
	1.1 67434
	1.572886

	
	285 Sheet Metal Work
	6.680489
	1.912700
	3.455266
	12.048455
	1.2863 11
	1.803529

	-
	286 Architectural Metal Work
	6.610242
	1.41811 5
	3.582255
	11.610613
	1.214533
	1.756458

	
	287 Prefabricated Metal Buildings
	8.836055
	2.654041
	2.693605
	14. 183701
	1.300365
	1.605208

	
	288 Miscellaneous Metal Work
	2.282434
	2.641948
	1.965166
	6.889548
	2. 157514
	3.018509

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	289 Screw Machine Products and Bolts. Etc.
	6.3 51048
	2.787621
	3.577756
	12.716425
	1.438923
	2.002256

	
	290 Iron and Steel Forgings
	7.099555
	2. 12 1101
	3.460390
	12.68 1046
	1.298765
	1.786175

	
	291 Nonferrous Forgings
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	292 Automotive Stampings
	5.225739
	3.371649
	3.497533
	12.094921
	1.64 5200
	2.3 14490

	
	293 Crowns and Closures
	6.323694
	2. 174208
	2.837777
	11.335679
	1.3438 19
	1.792572

	
	294 Metal Stampings, N.E.C.
	5.38283 1
	2.65 1433
	3.642010
	11.676275
	1.492572
	2. 169170

	
	295 Plating and Polishing
	12.548999
	1.005175
	4.856439
	18.410613
	1.080100
	1.467098

	
	296 Metal Coating and Allied Services
	5.634268
	2. 101426
	3.020513
	10.756207
	1.372972
	1.909069

	
	297 Small Arms Ammunition
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	298 Ammunition. Except For Small Arms, N .E.C.
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	299 Small Anns
	5.8292 11
	0 .906 167
	2.940798
	9.676 175
	1.1 55453
	1.659946

	
	300 Other Ordnance and Accessories
	3.851231
	7.154653
	4.0846 54
	15.09053 8
	2.857757
	3.9 18367

	
	30 1 Industrial and Fluid Valves
	4.2509 16
	3.200853
	2.850839
	10.302608
	1.752980
	2.423621

	
	302 Steel Springs, Except Wire
	6.021385
	3.404464
	2.562263
	11.9881 12
	1.565395
	1.990923

	
	303 Pipe, Valves. and Pipe Fittings
	8.373079
	2.609497
	3.719558
	14.702135
	1.311653
	1.755882

	
	304 Miscellaneous Fabricated Wire Products
	8.593045
	2.2 16845
	4.2 19836
	15.029726
	1.257981
	1.749057

	
	305 Metal Foil and Leaf
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	306 Fabricated Metal Products, N.E.C.
	6.835621
	3.086178
	3.545084
	13.466883
	1.451485
	1.970104

	
	307 Steam Engines and Turbines
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	308 Internal Combustion Engines, N.E .C.
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	309 Farm Machinery and Equipment
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	3 10 Lawn and Garden EQuipment
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	3 11 Construction Machinery and EQuipment
	3.359509
	2.635221
	2.937848
	8.932578
	1.784407
	2.658894

	
	312 Mining Machinery, Except Oil Field
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	313 Oil Field Machinery
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	314 Elevators and Moving Stairways
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	315 Conveyors and Conveying Equipment
	4.205184
	2.079579
	4.3 10939
	10.595701
	1.494527
	2.519676

	
	3 16 Hoists, Cranes, and Monorails
	6. 13123 5
	2.221676
	2.535260
	10.888171
	1.362354
	1.775853

	
	317 Industrial Trucks and Tractors
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	318 Machine Tools, Metal Cutting Types
	9.089743
	2.447431
	4.910489
	16.447662
	1.269252
	1.809475

	
	319 Machine Tools. Metal Forming Types
	7.066047
	2.357854
	4.849098
	14.273000
	1.333688
	2.019941

	
	320 Industrial Patterns
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
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Employment Multipliers

Copyriotht MIG 2002
NewHavCol-Type2.iap

	Description
	Effects"
	Effects"
	Effects"
	
	Im;J
	Ixl!lill

	
	
	
	
	Total"
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	32 1 Special Dies and Tools and Accessories
	11.1 572 11
	2.229660
	5.437326
	18.824 197
	1.199840
	1.687178

	322 Power Driven Hand Tools
	6.445648
	4 .329123
	2221162
	12.995933
	1.671635
	2.016234

	323 Rolling Mill Machinery
	12. 162809
	1257167
	6.693996
	20. 113972
	1.103362
	1.653727

	324 Welding Apparatus
	3.773262
	3.008363
	4.007483
	10.789 107
	1.797284
	2.8593 58

	325 Metalworking Machinery, N.E.C.
	3.488478
	3.959748
	3.003485
	10.45 171 2
	2. 135093
	2.996066

	326 Textile Machinery
	8.543070
	2.774026
	3.556437
	14.873533
	1.324711
	1.741006

	327 Woodworking Machinery
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	328 Paper Industries Machinery
	7.960206
	3.326732
	3.716227
	15 .003164
	1.417920
	1.884771

	329 Printing Trades Machinery
	6.322149
	2.619414
	3.87774 1
	12.8 19304
	1.414323
	2.027681

	330 Food Products Machinery
	8.93343 I
	2.463 149
	4.438330
	15.8349[0
	1.275723
	1.772545

	331 Special Industry Machinery N.E.C.
	3261765
	3.306612
	2.957398
	9.525774
	2.013749
	2.920435

	332 Pumps and Compressors
	4.365639
	2.703914
	2.857580
	9.927133
	1.619363
	2.273924

	333 Ball and Roller Bearings
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	334 Blowers and Fans
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	335 Packaging Machinery
	5.600656
	3.029845
	3.590400
	12.220901
	1.540980
	2.182048

	336 Power Transmission Equipment
	6.682626
	2.846823
	3.395948
	12.925398
	1.426004
	1.9341 79

	337 Industrial Furnaces and Ovens
	9.313440
	2.482508
	3.582734
	15.378682
	1.266551
	1.651235

	338 General Industrial Machinery, N.E.C
	5.64 106 1
	2.677477
	3.442670
	I 1.761208
	1.474641
	2.084928

	339 Electronic Computers
	3.347985
	3.051325
	3.225288
	9.624598
	1.911392
	2.874744

	340 Computer Storage Devices
	3.086283
	2.955706
	2.717643
	8.759633
	1.957691
	2.838246

	34 1 Computer Terminals
	52.523350
	0.125011
	13 .685 11 8
	66.333479
	1.002380
	1.26293 3

	342 Computer Peripheral Equipment.
	3.489596
	2.890557
	2.847106
	9.227258
	1.828336
	2.644220

	343 Calculating and Accounting Machines
	6.351305
	2.090767
	3.880996
	12.323068
	1.329187
	1.940242

	344 Typewriters and Office Machines N.E.C.
	9.056512
	2.840923
	4.126117
	16.023552
	1.313689
	1.769285

	345 Automatic Merchandising Machine
	7. 185257
	2.802917
	2.742976
	12.731150
	1.390093
	1.771843

	346 Commercial Laundry Equipment
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	347
	Refrigeration and Heating Equipment
	3.926296
	2.503492
	3.289073
	9.7 18862
	1.637622
	2.475326

	348
	Measuring and DiSPensing Pumps
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	349
	Service Industry Machines, N.E.C.
	5.539267
	2.832063
	3.347653
	I 1.718983
	1.5 11 270
	2. 11 5620

	350
	Carburetors, Pistons. Rings, Valves
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	351
	Fluid Power Cylinders & Actuators
	5.804562
	3.804 175
	3.166521
	12.775258
	1.655377
	2.200900

	352
	Fluid Power Pumps & Motors
	9.5043 17
	2. 109851
	5.288264
	16.902432
	1.221989
	1.778395

	353 Scales and Balances
	6.129838
	2.020708
	4 .236038
	12.386583
	1.329651
	2.020703

	354
	Industrial Machines N .E.C.
	8.938073
	2.23 11 83
	4.588367
	15.757624
	1.249627
	1.762978

	355
	Transformers
	21.583 118
	3.803204
	2.042277
	27 .428599
	1.176212
	1.270836

	356
	Switchgear and Switchboard Apparatus
	7.159583
	1.566393
	3.685808
	12.4 11784
	1.218783
	1.733590

	357 Motors and Generators
	4.676746
	1.835025
	3.502279
	10.0 14050
	1.392372
	2. 141243

	358
	Carbon and Graphite Products
	5.352438
	1.871562
	2.982003
	10.206003
	1.349665
	1.906795

	359
	Relays & Industrial Controls
	12.345148
	1.607680
	3.981206
	17.934034
	1.130228
	1.452719

	360 Electrical Industrial Apparatus, N.E.C.
	4.590602
	4.303863
	2.3 156 16
	11.210080
	1.937538
	2.441963

	361 Household Coolcing Equipment
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	362
	Household Refrigerators and Freezers
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	363
	Household Laundry Equipment
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	364
	Electric Housewares and Fans
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	365
	Household Vacuum Cleaners
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	366 Household Appliances. N.E.C.
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	367 Electric Lamps
	9.27639 1
	1.578048
	3.820008
	14.674446
	1.170114
	1.581913

	368
	Wiring Devices
	5.6 1090 1
	1.903383
	3.488776
	11.003060
	1.339229
	1.96101 5

	369 Lighting Fixtures and Equipment
	4.937376
	2.658737
	3.723773
	11.319886
	1.538492
	2.292692

	370 Radio and TV Receiving Sets
	6.042402
	2.3 16216
	3.531720
	11.890338
	1.383327
	1.96781 6

	37 1 Phonograph Records and Tape
	16.64053 5
	1.011789
	5.978044
	23 .630368
	1.060803
	1.420048

	372 Telephone and Telegraph Apparatus
	2.805 183
	2.205307
	2.557256
	7.567746
	1.7861 55
	2.697773

	373
	Radio and Tv Communication Equipment
	2.5 19 169
	2.237857
	2.790492
	7.547518
	1.888331
	2.996035

	374
	Communications Equipment N.E.C.
	6.134742
	1.423692
	4. 117668
	11.676102
	1.232070
	1.903275
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Electron Tubes

Printed Circuit Boards

Semiconductors and Related Devices

Electronic Components, N.E.C.

3 79 StoraRe Batteries

380 Primary Batteries, Dry and Wet

EnRine Electrical Equipment

MaRDetic & Optical Recording Media

Electrical Equipment. N.E.C.

Motor Vehicles

Truck and Bus Bodies

Motor Vehicle Parts and Accessories

Truck Trailers

Motor Homes

Aircraft

390 Aircraft and Missile Engines and Parts

Aircraft and Missile Equipment.

Ship BuildinR and RepairinR

Boat BuildinR and RepairinR

Railroad Equipment

Motorcycles, Bicycles, and Parts

Complete Guided Missiles

Travel Trailers and Camper

Tanks and Tank Components

Transportation Equipment. N .E.C

Search & Navigation Equipment

Laboratory Apparatus & Furniture

Automatic Temperature Controls

Mechanical MeasurinR Devices

Instruments To Measure Electricity

Analytical Instruments

Optical Instruments & Lenses

Surgical and Medical Instrument

SurRical Appliances and Supplies

Dental Equipment and Supplies

X -Ray Apparatus

Electromedical Apparatus

Ophthalmic Goods

PbotoRfaphic Equipment and Supplies

Watches. Clocks. and Parts

Jewelry, Precious Metal

Silverware and Plated Ware

Jewelers Materials and Lapidary Work

Musical Instruments

Dolls

Games, Toys, and Childrens Vehicles

Sporting and Athletic Goods, N.E.C.

Pens and Mechanical Pencils

Lead Pencils and Art Goods

MarkinR Devices

Carbon Paper and Inked Ribbons

Costume Jewelery

Fasteners. Buttons, Needles, Pins



	6.493506
	4.401684
	3
	.282916
	14
	. 178106
	1.677859
	2.183429

	11.545974
	1.263994
	5.675451
	18.4854 19
	1.109475
	1.601027

	5.983639
	2.093534
	3
	.256320
	11.333493
	1.349877
	1.894080

	4. 114020
	2.942714
	3
	.019569
	10.076303
	1.71 5289
	2.449260

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	3.607044
	1.478403
	3.426031
	8.5 11479
	1.409865
	2.359682

	5.671946
	1.712623
	3.26 1268
	10.645836
	1.301946
	1.876928

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	4.598852
	3.58 1800
	3.35804 1
	11.538693
	1.778847
	2.509038

	1.104308
	2.744870
	2.522951
	6.372129
	3.485601
	5.770245

	4. 101743
	0.641189
	2
	.24058 1
	6.983512
	1.156321
	1.702572

	4.323565
	2.853627
	2.971244
	10. 148435
	1.660017
	2.347238

	6.906723
	2.319116
	2.581885
	11.807724
	1.335777
	1.709598

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	3.711126
	4. 14886 1
	3.401270
	11.261256
	2. 117952
	3.034458

	4.570333
	4.579899
	4 .253469
	13.403702
	2.002093
	2.932763

	6.925038
	3. 12 1521
	4.314600
	14
	.36 11 59
	1.450759
	2.073802

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	5.884743
	1.683815
	4.737321
	12.305880
	1.286132
	2.091150

	2.334103
	1.397673
	4.532646
	8.264423
	1.598805
	3.540727

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	3.573659
	2.074198
	2
	.879586
	8.527443
	1.580413
	2.386 194

	5.975024
	4. 198949
	4
	. 194643
	14
	.368617
	1.702750
	2.404780

	3.955 11 5
	3.341863
	3.670678
	10.967656
	1.844947
	2.773031

	18.32 1417
	2.385859
	5
	.327961
	26.035236
	1.1 30222
	1.421 027

	6.511815
	2.702250
	4.521402
	13
	.735466
	1.414976
	2. 10931 4

	6. 109184
	3.311958
	3.613 156
	13.034297
	1.542128
	2. 133558

	4.531156
	4 . 145344
	3.647513
	12.324013
	1.914854
	2.719839

	6.864034
	2.918616
	4
	.97962 1
	14.762271
	1.425204
	2. 150670

	3.556594
	2.6 101 72
	5.220994
	11 .38776 1
	1.733896
	3.201872

	5.716158
	4.682692
	3.482974
	13
	.88 1824
	1.819203
	2.428524

	4.804714
	3.897362
	3.970368
	12.672444
	1.811154
	2.637502

	3.339598
	3.360281
	3.345089
	10.044968
	2.006193
	3.00783 7

	4.457366
	3.207407
	3.438467
	11.10324 1
	1.719575
	2.490987

	7.484784
	3.786725
	5.2552 16
	16.526725
	1.505923
	2.208043

	3.906663
	4.633287
	3.268184
	11.808134
	2. 185996
	3.022563

	4.544557
	2.579 157
	4.566288
	11.690001
	1.567527
	2.572308

	6.905149
	0.883194
	2.703567
	10.49 19 10
	1.127904
	1.519433

	6.542303
	2.990656
	2.983617
	12.516576
	1.457126
	1.9131 76

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	106.847992
	0.097733
	6
	.840106
	II 3.785830
	1.000915
	1.064932

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	8.783072
	3.138637
	3.29 1691
	15.213400
	1.357351
	1.732127

	4.774699
	2.606962
	3.408806
	10.790467
	1.545995
	2.259926

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	14. 18202 1
	1.360419
	4
	.620414
	20 . 162855
	1.095926
	1.42171 9

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	8.3 13636
	0.643058
	2.228690
	I 1.1 85384
	1.077350
	1.345426

	9.430744
	1. 173698
	4
	.913977
	15.518420
	1.124454
	1.645514
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	De1Uiption
	Direct
	Indirect
	Induced
	
	L$_1
	fuill

	
	
	Effects"
	Effects"
	Effects"
	Total"
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier* *

	
	4 28 Brooms and Brushes
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	4 29 S igns and Advertising Displays
	9.8885 16
	2.7 11 557
	4 .008876
	16.608950
	1.274213
	1.679620

	
	4 30 Burial CaskeiS and VauiiS
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	431  Hard Surface Floor Coverinl(s
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	43 2 Manufacturing Industries, N.E.C.
	7.552161
	2.671505
	3.859383
	14.083049
	1.353741
	1.86477 1

	
	4 33 Railroads and Related Services
	3.795913
	2.632574
	4 .977543
	11 .406030
	1.693528
	3.00481 9

	
	434 Local, Interurban Passenger Transit
	19.650904
	2.484140
	531350 1
	27.448545
	1.1 26414
	1.396808

	
	435 Motor Freil(ht Transport and Warehousing
	8.705244
	4 .618007
	4 .386920
	17.710171
	1.530486
	2 .034425

	
	436 Water Transportation
	5.092747
	5.548542
	3.486333
	14. 127622
	2.089499
	2.774067

	
	437 AirTransportation
	10.9385 19
	2.097632
	4 .348136
	17.384288
	1.1 9 1766
	1.589272

	
	438 Pipe Lines, Except Natural Gas
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	439 Arranl(ement Of Passenger Transportation
	16.6660 25
	2. 135252
	5.350489
	24. 15 1766
	1.1 28120
	1.449 162

	
	440 Transportation Services
	I 1.8884 53
	2.097997
	6.22 1040
	20.207490
	1.176473
	1.699758

	
	441 Communications, Except Radio and TV
	2.951550
	2.607527
	3.097252
	8.656329
	1.883 443
	2.932807

	
	442
	Radio and TV Broadcasting
	6.085009
	5.259188
	4 .110966
	15 .455162
	1.864286
	2.539875

	-
	443 Electric Services
	1.822047
	1.317533
	2. 183909
	5.323488
	1.723106
	2 .92 1708

	
	444 Gas Production and Distribution
	1.424757
	1.9442 15
	1.804896
	5. 173867
	2.364594
	3 .631404

	
	445 Water Supply and Sewerage Systems
	3.621811
	4 .325938
	3.72453 1
	I 1.672280
	2.194413
	3.222774

	
	446 Sanitary Services and Steam Supply
	5.033 5 17
	2.71 27 19
	3.747240
	11.493477
	1.53893 1
	2.283389

	
	447 Wholesale Trade
	7.162243
	2.404698
	4.309829
	13.876770
	1.335746
	1.937489

	
	448
	Buildin11, Materials & Gardeninl!.
	16.180609
	1.105865
	4 .830436
	22. 11 69 10
	1.068345
	1.366878

	
	449
	General Merchandise Stores
	27.8 11850
	1.623362
	4.47909 1
	33 .914302
	1.058369
	1.2 194 19

	
	450 Food Stores
	25 .754116
	0 .637562
	5.145434
	3 1.537 11 2
	1.024756
	1.224547

	
	45 1 Automotive Dealers & Service Stations
	11.342240
	1.738113
	4.402990
	17.483344
	1.153242
	1.541437

	
	452
	Apparel & Accessory Stores
	20.615290
	2.252487
	4 .054436
	26.922213
	1.109263
	1.305934

	
	4 53 Furniture & Home Furnishini!,S Stores
	18.870846
	1.369774
	4 .65 1036
	24.89 1655
	1.072587
	1.319054

	
	4 54 Eatinl( & Drinking
	25.812670
	2 .843557
	4.233474
	32.889701
	1.1101 61
	1.2741 69

	
	4 55 Miscellaneous Retail
	25 .712204
	1.409111
	4 .62679 1
	3 1.748 106
	1.054803
	1.234748

	
	456
	Banking
	4 .371944
	2.505679
	2.857333
	9.734956
	1.573127
	2.226688

	
	4 57
	Credit Agencies
	23 .689182
	2.933752
	7.19 1274
	33 .814208
	1.1 23844
	1.427411

	
	4 58 Security and Commodity Brokers
	5.479304
	1.097923
	5.444752
	12.02 1979
	1.200376
	2.194071

	
	4 59
	Insurance Carriers
	7.854532
	4 .2 15727
	4.365603
	16.435863
	1. 536726
	2.092533

	
	460
	Insurance Agents and Brokers
	15.358418
	3.02 1781
	6. 096056
	24.476256
	1.196751
	1.593670

	
	461 Owner-occupied Dwellings
	0.000000
	2.235212
	0 .684030
	2 .9 19242
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	4 62
	Real Estate
	5.268897
	2 .892027
	2.003047
	10. 16397 1
	1.548887
	1.92905 1

	
	463 Hotels and Lodging Places
	16.869102
	3 .243937
	4 .418168
	24 .53 1207
	1.192300
	1.454209

	
	464
	Laundry, Cleaning and Shoe Repair
	30.314545
	2.841774
	6 .279538
	39.435856
	1.093743
	1.300889

	
	465 Portrait and Photographic Studios
	20.44358 1
	4 .237986
	4 .847299
	29.528865
	1.207301
	1.444408

	
	466 Beauty and Barber Shops
	35.977985
	5.477291
	5.976272
	47.431549
	1.1 52240
	1.318349

	
	467
	Funeral Service and Crematories
	11.334473
	1.61 2279
	5.395 184
	18.341936
	1.142246
	1.618243

	
	468
	Miscellaneous Personal Services
	14.267794
	5.537287
	4 .066545
	23 .871625
	1.388097
	1.673113

	
	4 69 Advertising
	9 .056506
	2.939481
	5.1 66226
	17. 1622 13
	1.324571
	1.89501 5

	
	470 Other Business Services
	9.813419
	4.005479
	4.125704
	17.944602
	1.408 163
	1.828578

	
	471
	Photofinisbinl(, Commercial Photol(raphy
	8.121760
	4 .572725
	4 .386267
	17.080752
	1. 5630 2 1
	2. 103085

	
	4 72 Services To Buildinl!,s
	25 .214668
	4.333479
	4 .7 11 956
	34 .260103
	1.171 863
	1.358737

	
	4 73
	Equipment Rental  and Leasing
	7.502 170
	3.769755
	4370327
	15.64225 1
	1.502489
	2.085030

	
	474 Personnel Supply Services
	5 1.329659
	0 .706318
	7.623878
	59.659854
	1.013760
	1.162288

	
	475
	Computer and Data Processing Services
	7.397794
	1.669362
	6.399689
	15.466845
	1.225657
	2.090737

	
	476 Detective and Protective Services
	28.708925
	1.77823 1
	6.547508
	37.034664
	1.06 1940
	1.290005

	
	477 Automobile Rental and Leasing
	6.802079
	3.192303
	3.416939
	13.411321
	1.469313
	1.97 1650

	
	478 Automobile Parking and Car Wash
	22.751139
	2. 10366 1
	4.059258
	28.9 14057
	1.092464
	1.270884

	
	479 Automobile Repair and Services
	10.800089
	2. 141 828
	3.65 1042
	16 .592959
	1.1983 16
	1.536372

	
	480 Electrical Repair Service
	12.352299
	2.473 102
	4 . 141689
	18.967089
	1.2002 14
	1.5355 11

	
	481
	Watch, C lock, Jewelry and Furniture Repair
	16.858303
	2. 197603
	3. 176695
	22 .23260 1
	1.1 30357
	1.3 18792

	
	" Per Million dollars of output
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	*Type I =(Direct+ Indirect)/Direct
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	Description
	Direct
	Indirect
	Induced
	
	
	Im_I
	Iyptl!.

	
	Effects"
	Effects"
	Effects"
	Total"
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	482 Miscellaneous Repair Shops
	12.26627 1
	2.616830
	4.421528
	19.304628
	1.213335
	1.573798

	483 Motion Pictures
	14.228 11 2
	5.224698
	3.082663
	22.535473
	1.3672 10
	1.583869

	484 Theatrical Producers, Bands Etc.
	15.634160
	9 .862741
	4 .430083
	29
	.926984
	1.630846
	1.914205

	485 B9wling Alleys and Pool Halls
	44 . 107220
	3.201485
	4 .900899
	52.209603
	1.072584
	l.l83697

	486 Commercial Sports Except Racing
	2 1.060234
	3.892513
	5.217848
	30. 170595
	1.1 84828
	1.432586

	487 Racing and Track Operation
	34 .628952
	2.622375
	2.912444
	40
	. 163771
	1.075128
	1.1 5983 2

	488 Amusement and Recreation Services. N.E.C.
	10. 1646 12
	5.449537
	5.072826
	20
	.686975
	1.5361 28
	2.0351 96

	489 Membership Sports and Recreation Clubs
	30.179718
	4 .314163
	5.305071
	39.798952
	l.l4 2949
	1.318732

	4 90 Doctors and Dentists
	9.953416
	2.911672
	6.086586
	18.951674
	1.292530
	1.904037

	491 Nursing and Protective Care
	21.674223
	1.903265
	6.695 170
	30.272658
	1.087812
	1.396712

	492 Hospitals
	13 .230529
	2.730412
	6.333356
	22.294298
	1.206372
	1.685065

	493 Otber Medical and Health Services
	18.235487
	3.152184
	5.109220
	26.496891
	l.l72860
	1.453040

	494 Legal Services
	10.461329
	2.235865
	6.727765
	19.424959
	1.213727
	1.856835

	495 Elementary and Secondary Schools
	27.583210
	3.393665
	6.944074
	37.920949
	l.l23034
	1.374784

	496 Colleges, Universities. Schools
	20.338873
	2.165524
	7.283479
	29.787876
	l.l06472
	1.464579

	497 Other Educational Services
	21.026352
	4.554899
	4.595097
	30. 176348
	1.216628
	1.435168

	498 Job Trainings & Related Services
	27.048725
	3.278978
	5.949856
	36.277559
	1.121225
	1.341193

	499 Child Day Care Services
	23.008 102
	4 . 180794
	4.407110
	31.596006
	l.l 81710
	1.373256

	500
	Social Services. N.E.C.
	18
	.457846
	4. 102896
	5.208512
	27
	.769254
	1.222285
	1.504469

	50 I Residential Care
	27 .748098
	2.538811
	6.698816
	36.985725
	1.091495
	1.332910

	502 Other Nonprofit Organizations
	31.487644
	2.790081
	6.582967
	40.860693
	1.088609
	1.297674

	503 Business Associations
	18.61 5589
	1.310352
	7.237121
	27. 163063
	1.070390
	1.459157

	504 Labor and Civic Organizations
	54
	.344212
	0 . 142635
	8.295757
	62
	.782604
	1.002625
	1.155277

	505 Religious Organizations
	7.893230
	7.091228
	3.382039
	18.366497
	1.898394
	2.326867

	506
	Engineering, Architectural Services
	11 .032630
	5.653913
	5.659200
	22
	.345743
	1. 512472
	2.025423

	507
	Accounting, Auditing and Bookkeeping
	13 .998297
	2. 179552
	6.922664
	23. 100513
	1.1 5570 1
	1.650237

	508 Management and Consulting Services
	11.31 5359
	4.664034
	5.598097
	2 1.577490
	1.4121 86
	1.906920

	509
	Research. Development & Testing Services
	14
	.2408 19
	3.635970
	6.067805
	23
	.944594
	1.255320
	1.681406

	510
	Local Government Passenger Transit
	24 .749939
	17.369877
	15.372083
	57.49 1899
	1.70181 5
	2.3229 11

	5 11 State and Local Electric Utilities
	1.3969 10
	3.511667
	2.6 15417
	7.523994
	3.513882
	5.386169

	512
	Other State and Local Govt Enterprises
	4
	.74582 1
	5.689254
	4 .254185
	14 .689260
	2. 198792
	3.095 199

	513 U.S. Postal Service
	12.795567
	1.736474
	7. 122652
	2 1.654692
	1.13 5709
	1.692359

	5 14
	Federal Electric Utilities
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	515
	Other Federal Government Enterprises
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	516 Noocomparable Imports
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	511 Scrap
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	518
	Used and Secondhand Goods
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	5 19
	Federal Government -Mi litary
	30.138256
	0.000000
	4.866391
	35.004647
	1.000000
	1.161469

	520
	Federal Government - Non-Military
	13
	.620234
	0.000000
	7. 123383
	20.743618
	1.000000
	1.523000

	521 Commodity Credit Corporation
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	522 State & Local Government- Education
	22.708853
	0 .000000
	8.397953
	31.106806
	1.000000
	1.369810

	523 State & Local Government - Non-Education
	16.699604
	0 .000000
	6.543943
	23 .243547
	1.000000
	1.391862

	524
	RestOfThe World Industry
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	525 Domestic Services
	75
	.960449
	0 .000000
	8.397956
	84
	.358405
	1.000000
	1.110557

	526 Dummy
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	527 Dummy
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	528
	Inventory Valuation Adiusttnent
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000


Vcn0D. U 1.1 11( 1

Per Million dollars of output *Type !=(Direct+ lndirect)/Direct

**Type II =(Direct+ Indirect+ Induced)/Direct
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	Description
	Direct
	Indirect
	lnduced
	
	IYml
	Druill

	
	
	Effects
	Effects
	Effects
	Total
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	I Dairy Farm Products
	1.000000
	0 .223718
	0 .241286
	1.465004
	1.223718
	1.465003

	2 Poultry and EJtgs
	1.000000
	0 .210896
	0. 136020
	1.346916
	1.210896
	1.34691 6

	3
	Ranch Fed Cattle
	1.000000
	0.266876
	0. 195365
	1.46224 1
	1.266876
	1.462241

	4 Range Fed Cattle
	1.000000
	0210806
	0. 166937
	1.377743
	1.210806
	1.377743

	5 Cattle Feedlots
	1.000000
	0.272878
	0. 179268
	1.452146
	1.272878
	1.452146

	6 Sheep, Lambs and Goats
	1.000000
	0.266520
	0 . 186878
	1.453398
	1.266520
	1.453398

	7 Hogs, Pigs and Swine
	1.000000
	0.269292
	0. 163635
	1.432927
	1.269292
	1.432927

	8
	Other Meat Animal Products
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	9 Miscellaneous Livestock
	1.000000
	0
	.257666
	0 .2 10450
	1.468116
	1.257666
	1.468116

	10 Cotton
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	II
	Food Grains
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	12
	Feed Grains
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	13 Hay and Pasture
	1.000000
	0.327594
	0 .226748
	1.554342
	1.327594
	1.554342

	14
	Grass Seeds
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	15
	Tobacco
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	16
	Fruits
	1.000000
	0.398046
	0 .253 191
	1.651237
	1.398046
	1.651237

	17 Tree Nuts
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	18
	Vegetables
	1.000000
	0
	.371198
	0.259349
	1.630547
	1.371198
	1.630547

	19 Sugar Crops
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	20
	Miscellaneous Crops
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	21  Oil Bearing Crops
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	22
	Forest Products
	1.000000
	0.350953
	0. 199929
	1.550881
	1.350953
	1.55088 1

	23
	Greenhouse and Nursery Products
	1.000000
	0.3 14555
	0.323480
	1.638034
	1.314555
	1.638034

	24
	Forestrv Products
	1.000000
	0.125246
	0.239901
	1.365147
	1.1 25246
	1.365 147

	25
	Commercial Fishing
	1.000000
	0.130311
	0.3 58956
	1.489266
	1.1 30311
	1.489266

	26 Al!:ricultural. Forestry, Fishery Services
	1.000000
	0
	.177033
	0.409121
	1.586154
	1.177033
	1.5861 54

	27 Landscape and Horticultural Services
	1.000000
	0
	.263832
	0.378203
	1.642036
	1.263832
	1.642036

	28
	Iron Ores
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	29
	Copper Ores
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	30
	Lead and Zinc Ores
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	31  Gold Ores
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	32
	Silver Ores
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	33
	Ferroalloy Ores, Except Vanadium
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	34
	Metal Mining Services
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	35
	Uranium-radium-vanadium Ores
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	36
	Metal Ores. Not Elswhere Classified
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	37 Coal Mining
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	38
	Natural Gas & Crude Petroleum
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	39 Natural Gas Liquids
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	40
	Dimension Stone
	1.000000
	0. 187152
	0.307487
	1.494639
	1.187152
	1.494639

	41  Sand and Gravel
	1.000000
	0
	.178426
	0 .341382
	1.519808
	1.178426
	1.519808

	42
	Clay, Ceramic, Refractory Minerals, N.E.C.
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	43  Potash, Soda. and Borate Minerals
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	44
	Phosphate Rock
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	45
	Chemical, Fertilizer Mineral Mininig, N.E.C.
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	46
	Nonmetallic Minerals (Except Fuels) Service
	1.000000
	0
	.225005
	0 .275008
	1.500013
	1.225005
	1.500013

	47
	Misc. Nonmetallic Minerals, N.E.C.
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	48
	New Residential Structures
	1.000000
	0
	.402151
	0 .2845 17
	1.686668
	1.402151
	1.686668

	49
	New Industrial and Commercial Buildings
	1.000000
	0
	.324054
	0.366129
	1.690183
	1.324054
	1.690183

	50
	New Utility Structures
	1.000000
	0.292572
	0.418 194
	1.710766
	1.292572
	1.710766

	5 I New Highways and Streets
	1.000000
	0.343601
	0.355680
	1.699281
	1.343601
	1.699281

	52
	New Farro Structures
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	53 New Mineral Extraction Facilities
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	54 New Government Facilities
	1.000000
	0
	.341759
	0.376765
	1.718524
	1.341759
	1.71 8524

	55
	Maintenance and Repair, Residential
	1.000000
	0.423367
	0.334505
	1.757872
	1.423367
	1.757872
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	Output Multipliers
	
	
	May 9 , 2002

	
	
	
	
	

	Ccvvriglu MIG  2002
	NewHavCol-Type2 .iap
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Induced
	
	Im<J
	IyruUl

	
	Descrjptiop
	Effects
	Effects
	Effecls
	Total
	Mnltjp!jer*
	Multiplier**

	56
	Maintenance and Repair Other Facilities
	1.000000
	0 .213886
	0 .499417
	1.713303
	1.213886
	1.713303

	57
	Maintenance and Repair Oil and Gas Welts
	1.000000
	0 .273785
	0
	.328767
	1.602552
	1.273785
	1.602552

	58
	Meat Packing Plants
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	59
	Sausages and Other Prepared Meats
	1.000000
	0 .354894
	0.207763
	1.562658
	1.354894
	1.562657

	60
	Poultry Processing
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	61  Creamery Butter
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	62 Cheese, Natural and Processed
	1.000000
	0
	.37 1919
	0
	. 120031
	1.491950
	1.371919
	1.491950

	63 Condensed and EvaPOrated Milk
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	64  lee Cream and Frozen Desserts
	1.000000
	0
	.427598
	0
	.232741
	1.660339
	1.427598
	1.660339

	65 Fluid Milk
	1.000000
	0 .244789
	0
	.146455
	1.391244
	1.244789
	1.391244

	66
	Canned Specialties
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	67
	Canned Fruits and Vegetables
	1.000000
	0.361459
	0
	.238325
	1.599784
	1.361459
	1.599784

	68
	Dehydrated Food Products
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	69
	Pickles. Sauces, and Salad Dressings
	1.000000
	0 .270333
	0
	. 154 155
	1.424488
	1.270333
	1.424488

	70
	frozen Fruits. Juices and Vegetables
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	71
	Frozen Specialties
	1.000000
	0 .388712
	0.207470
	1.596 182
	1.388712
	1.596182

	72
	Flour and Other Grain Mill Products
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	73 Cereal Preparations
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	74
	Rice Milling
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	75
	Blended and Prepared Flour
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	76 Wet Com Milling
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	77 Dog, Cat. and Other Pet Food
	1.000000
	0 .445736
	0
	.222008
	1.667744
	1.445736
	1.667744

	78
	Prepared Feeds, N.E.C
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	79
	Bread. Cake, and Related Products
	1.000000
	0
	.35383 1
	0
	.247240
	1.60 1071
	1.353831
	1.60107 1

	80 Cookies and Crackers
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	81  Sugar
	0.000000
	O.OOQOOO
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	82 Confectionery Products
	1.000000
	0.405922
	0.205285
	1.611206
	1.405922
	1.611206

	83 Chocolate and Cocoa Products
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	84
	Chewing Gum
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	85 Salted and Roasted Nuts & Seeds
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	86 Cottonseed Oil Mills
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	87 Soybean Oi l Mills
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	88 Vegetable Oil Mills. N.E.C
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	89 Animal and Marine Fats and Oils
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	90 Shortening aod Cooking Oils
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	91
	Malt Beverages
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	92
	Malt
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	93
	Wines, Brandy. and Brandy Spirits
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	94 Distilled Liquor, Except Brandy
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	95 Bottled and Canned Soft Drinks & Water
	1.000000
	0 .424907
	0. 171513
	1.596419
	1.424907
	1.59641 9

	96 flavoring Extracts and Syrups, N.E.C.
	1.000000
	0
	.209367
	0
	. 195990
	1.405356
	1.209367
	1.405356

	97 Canned and Cured Sea Foods
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	98
	Prepared fresh Or Frozen fish Or Seafood
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	99 Roasted Coffee
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	100 Potato Chips & Similar Snacks
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	l 0 I Manufactured Ice
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	102 Macaroni and Spaghetti
	1.000000
	0
	.6037 16
	0
	.202850
	1.806566
	1.603716
	1.806566

	103 Food Preparations, N.E.C
	1.000000
	0.330854
	0.211681
	1.542535
	1.330854
	1.542535

	I 04
	Cigarettes
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	105
	Cigars
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	I 06 Chewing and Smoking Tobacco
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	107 Tobacco Stemming and Redrying
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	108 Broadwoven Fabric Mills and Finishing
	1.000000
	0 .258462
	0.250682
	1.509144
	1.258462
	1.509144

	109
	Narrow Fabric Mills
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	110 Womens Hosiery, Except Socks
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
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	Output Multipliers
	
	
	May 9 ,2002

	
	
	
	
	

	Coovri.<IU MIG  2002
	NewHavCoi-Type2.iap
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Direct
	Indirect
	Induced
	Total
	ImJ
	Iyru;Jl

	
	Description
	Effects
	Effects
	Effects
	
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	Ill
	Hosiery, N.E.C
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	112 Knit Outerwear Mills
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	113 Knit Underwear Mills
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	114 Knit Fabric Mills
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	115 Knittin11: Mills. N.E.C .
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	116 Yam Mills and Finishing Of Textiles, N.E.C.
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	117 Carpets and Rugs
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	118 Thread Mills
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	119 Coated Fabrics, Not Rubberized
	1.000000
	0.432956
	0
	.314216
	1.747171
	1.432956
	1.747171

	120
	Tire Cord and Fabric
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	121  Nonwoven Fabrics
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	122
	Cordal!;e and Twine
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	123 Textile Goods. N .E.C
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	124 Apparel Made From Purchased Materials
	1.000000
	0
	.291743
	0
	.306943
	1.598686
	1.291743
	1.598686

	125 Curtains and Draperies
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	126 Housefurnishinl!;s, N.E.C
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	l27
	Textile Bags
	1.000000
	0
	.220979
	0
	.260334
	1.481312
	1.220979
	1.48131 2

	128 Canvas Products
	1.000000
	0
	.216201
	0 .380676
	1.596877
	1.216201
	1.596877

	129
	Pleatinl!; and Stitching
	1.000000
	0.174105
	0 .289402
	1.463506
	1.174105
	1.463 506

	130
	Automotive and Apparel Trimmings
	1.000000
	0
	.275463
	0
	.247860
	1.523324
	1.275463
	1.523324

	131 Schiffi Machine Embroideries
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	132 Fabricated Textile Products, N.E.C.
	1.000000
	0
	
	.327512
	0
	.218367
	1.545878
	1.327512
	1.545879

	133  Logging Camps and Loj!;j!;inl!; Contractors
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	134
	Sawmills and Planing Mills. General
	1.000000
	0.308052
	0209546
	1.517598
	1.308052
	1.5 17598

	135
	Hardwood Dimension and Flooring Mills
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	136
	Special Product Sawmills. N .E.C
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	137 Millwork
	1.000000
	0.281143
	0
	.374604
	1.655747
	1.281143
	1.655747

	138
	Wood Kitchen Cabinets
	1.000000
	0.247757
	0.365626
	1.613383
	1.247757
	1.613384

	139 Veneer and Plywood
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	140 Structural Wood Members, N.E.C
	1.000000
	0.303795
	0.265180
	1.568975
	1.303795
	1.568975

	141  Wood Containers
	1.000000
	0
	.223485
	0
	.380538
	1.604023
	1.223485
	1.604023

	142 Wood Pallets and Skids
	1.000000
	0
	.26885 1
	0
	.355076
	1.623927
	1.268851
	1.623927

	143
	Mobile Homes
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	144
	Prefabricated Wood Buildings
	1.000000
	0.285865
	0
	.2998 15
	1.585680
	1.285865
	1.585680

	145
	Wood Preservinl!;
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	146 Reconstituted Wood Products
	1.000000
	0.408356
	0.230247
	1.638603
	1.408356
	1.638603

	147 Wood Products, N.E.C
	1.000000
	0
	.298832
	0.308014
	1.606846
	1.298832
	1.606846

	148
	Wood Household Furniture
	1.000000
	0.347666
	0
	.319874
	1.667540
	1.347666
	1.667540

	149
	Upholstered Household Furniture
	1.000000
	0
	.233969
	0.305725
	1.539694
	1.233969
	1.539694

	150 Metal Household Furniture
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	151  Mattresses and Bedsprinl!;s
	1.000000
	0
	.277079
	0
	.263057
	1.540136
	1.277079
	1.540136

	152 Wood Tv and Radio Cabinets
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	153
	Household Furniture. N .E.C
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	154 Wood Office Furniture
	1.000000
	0 .389415
	0.326390
	1.715805
	1.389415
	1.7 15805

	155
	Metal Office Furniture
	1.000000
	0.438040
	0
	.287034
	1.725074
	1.438040
	1.725074

	156 Public Building Furniture
	1.000000
	0
	.395392
	0
	.217567
	1.61 2959
	1.395392
	1.61 2960

	157 Wood Partitions and Fixtures
	1.000000
	0.317469
	0
	.331930
	1.649399
	1.317469
	1.649399

	158
	Metal Partitions and Fixtures
	1.000000
	0.372933
	0
	.301702
	1.674635
	1.372933
	1.674635

	159 Blinds. Shades, and Drapery Hardware
	1.000000
	0.313977
	0
	.297231
	1.611207
	1.313977
	1.611207

	160 Furniture and Fixtures. N.E.C
	1.000000
	0
	.219296
	0
	. 186707
	1.406004
	1.21 9296
	1.406004

	161  Pulp Mills
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	162
	Paper Mills. Except Building Paper
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	163 Paperboard Mills
	1.000000
	0.441381
	0 .23 1685
	1.673065
	1.44138 1
	1.673065

	164
	Paperboard Containers and Boxes
	1.000000
	0 .264527
	0 .234382
	1.498909
	1.26452 7
	1.498909

	165 Paper Coated & Laminated Packal!;ing
	1.000000
	0.4 20534
	0 .190099
	1.6 10633
	1.420534
	1.610633

	*Type I=(Direct + Indirect)/Direct
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Output Multipliers


May9, 2002

Copyri~ht MIG  2002

Description

Paper Coated & Laminated N.E.C .

Bags, Plastic

Bags, Paper

Die-cut Paper and Board

Sanitary Paper Products

Envelopes

Stationery Products

Converted Paper Products, N.E.C

Newspapers

Periodicals

Book Publishing

Book Printing

Miscellaneous Publishing

Commercial Printing

Manifold Business Forms

Greeting Card PublishinR

Blankbooks and Looseleaf Binder

Bookbinding & Related

TypesettiQR

Plate MakinR

Alkalies & Chlorine

Industrial Gases
Inorganic PiRroents

InorRanic Chemicals Nee.

Cyclic Crudes, Interm. & Indus. Organic Chern .

1 Plastics Material s and Resins

Synthetic Rubber

193 Cellulosic Man-made Fibers I 94 OrRanic Fibers, Noncellulosic

Drugs

Soap and Other Detergents

Polishes and Sanitation Goods I 98 Surface Active Agents

Toilet Preparations

Paints and Allied Products

201  Gum and Wood Chemicals

Nitrogenous and Phosphatic Fertilizers

Fertilizers. Mixing Only

ARricultural Chemicals, N.E.C

Adhesives and Sealants

Explosives

PrintinR Ink

Carbon Black

Chemical Preparations, N.E.C 2 10 Petroleum Refining

21 1 Paving Mixtures and Blocks

Asphalt Fe lts and CoatinRs 2 13 LubricatinR O ils and Greases

2 14  Petroleum and Coal Products. N.E.C.

Tires and Inner Tubes

2 16 Rubber and Plastics Footwear

2 17 Rubber and Plastics Hose and BeltinR

2 18 Gaskets, Packing and Sealing Devices

2 19 Fabricated Rubber Products, N.E.C .

Miscellaneous Plastics Products



NewHavCol-Type2.iap

	
	
	
	lnduced
	
	ImU
	iliDill

	Effects
	Effects
	Effects
	Total
	Multiplier*
	Mu!tjp! jer* *

	1.000000
	0.357083
	0 .2413 77
	1. 598460
	1.357083
	1.598460

	1.000000
	0.499250
	0 .234756
	1.734006
	1.499250
	1. 734006

	1.000000
	0.468266
	0 .252600
	1.720866
	1.468266
	1.720866

	1.000000
	0.31 8659
	0 .196745
	1.5 15404
	1.31 8659
	1.515404

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0
	.337800
	0 .225060
	1.56286 1
	1.3 37800
	1.56286 1

	1.000000
	0.307976
	0 .360427
	1.668404
	1.307976
	1.668404

	1.000000
	0.343204
	0
	.3 13375
	1.656578
	1.343204
	1.656578

	1.000000
	0.405706
	0 .2 13935
	1.6 19641
	1.405706
	1.6 19641

	1.000000
	0.381360
	0 .227596
	1.608956
	1.3 8 1360
	1.608956

	1.000000
	0
	.234445
	0
	.304060
	1.538505
	1.23444 5
	1.538505

	1.000000
	0.248832
	0
	.32768 1
	1.5765 13
	1.248832
	1.576513

	1.000000
	0
	.250424
	0
	.292 145
	1.542568
	1.250424
	1.542568

	1.000000
	0.589227
	0
	.282334
	1.871 560
	1.589227
	1.871560

	1.000000
	0
	.324582
	0
	.295823
	1.620404
	1.324582
	1.620404

	1.000000
	0
	.314939
	0.414859
	1.729798
	1.314939
	1.729798

	1.000000
	0
	.32 1720
	0.4041 59
	1.725879
	1.321720
	1.725879

	1.000000
	0
	.126874
	0
	.55 1793
	1.678667
	1.1 26874
	1.678667

	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0.207893
	0.438 117
	1.646010
	1.207893
	1.64601 0

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0
	.489928
	0
	.2395 11
	1.729439
	1.489928
	1.729439

	1.000000
	0
	.48 1401
	0.23645 1
	1.71 7852
	1.48 140 1
	1.717852

	1.000000
	0.605068
	0
	.233758
	1.838826
	1.605068
	1.838826

	1.000000
	0
	.601 884
	0
	.26466 1
	1.866544
	1.601 884
	1.866544

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0.400856
	0
	.3 10692
	1.711 548
	1.400856
	1.711548

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0
	.23459 1
	0
	.265 186
	1.499777
	1.23459 1
	1.499777

	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0
	.386688
	0
	.246940
	1.633627
	1.386688
	1.633627

	1.000000
	0.505430
	0
	.25097 1
	1.756401
	1.505430
	1.756401

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0 .4053 36
	0.1 82645
	1.587981
	1.405336
	1.58798 1

	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0
	.508226
	0
	.2773 12
	1.785539
	1.508226
	1.785 539

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0.537709
	0
	.237302
	1.775011
	1.537709
	1.775010

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0
	.378557
	0.275748
	1.654305
	1.378557
	1.654305

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0
	.25 8111
	0
	.184622
	1.442733
	1.258 11 I
	1.442733

	1.000000
	0.277638
	0
	. 163277
	1.4409 15
	1.277638
	1.4409 15

	1.000000
	0
	.326850
	0
	.2688 16
	1.595666
	1.3 26850
	1.595666

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0
	.290204
	0
	.3549 11
	1.645 11 5
	1.290204
	1.645 11 5

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0.390259
	0
	.324 18 1
	1.714440
	1.390259
	1.714440

	1.000000
	0
	.441 634
	0
	.322906
	1.764540
	1.44 1634
	1.764540

	1.000000
	0
	.595543
	0.30 5808
	1.90 135 1
	1.595543
	1.9013 5 1
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Qescription

22 t Leather Tanning and Finishing

Footwear Cut Stock

House Slippers

Shoes, Except Rubber

Leather Gloves and Mittens

226 Luggage
Womens Handbags and Purses

Personal Leather Goods

Leather Goods. N .E.C

Glass and Glass Products. Exc Containers

Glass Containers
Cement. Hydraulic

Brick and Structural Oav Tile

Ceramic Wall aod Floor Tile

Clay Refractories

Structural Clay Products. N .E.C

Vitreous Plumbing Fixtures

Vitreous Olina Food Utensils

Fine Earthenware Food Utensils

Porcelain Electrical Supplies

Pottery Products. N.E.C

Concrete Block and Brick

Concrete Products. N .E.C

Ready-mixed Concrete

Lime

Gypsum Products

Cut Stone and Stone Products

Abrasive Products

Asbestos Products

Minerals. Ground Or Treated

Mineral Wool

Nonclay Refractories

Nonmetallic Mineral Products, N.E.C .

Blast Furnaces and Steel Mills

Electrometallurgical Products

Steel Wire and Related Products

Cold Finishing Of Steel Shapes
Steel Pipe and Tubes

Iron aod Steel Foundries
Primary Copper

26 1 Primary Aluminum

Primary Nonferrous Metals, N.E .C.

Secondary Nonferrous Metals

Copper Rolling and Drawing

Aluminum Rolling and Drawing

Nonferrous Rolling and Drawing. N.E.C.

Nonferrous Wire Drawing and Insulating

Aluminum Foundries

Brass. Bronze. and Copper Foundries

Nonferrous Castings. N.E.C .

Metal Heat Treating

Primary Metal Products. N .E.C

Me tal Cans

Me tal Barrels. Drums and Pails

275 Cutlery

*Type I=(Direct + Indirect)/Direct

**Type II =(Direct+ Indirect+ Induced)/Direct



NewHavCol-Type2.iap

	Direct
	Indirect
	Induced
	
	
	

	Effects
	Effects
	Effects
	Iota)
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0.003102
	0.376991
	1.380093
	1.003102
	1.380093

	1.000000
	0
	. 103256
	0.265535
	1.368791
	1.103256
	1.368791

	1.000000
	0
	.082909
	0.382846
	1.465754
	1.082909
	1.465754

	1.000000
	0
	.39986 1
	0 .324539
	1.724399
	1.399861
	1.724399

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	·o.oooooo
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	1.000900
	0
	.252434
	0.436870
	1.689304
	1.252434
	1.689304

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0
	.244509
	0.343854
	1.588364
	1.244509
	1.588364

	1.000000
	0.266496
	0.327488
	1.593984
	1.266496
	1.593984

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0.230334
	0.426940
	1.657274
	1.230334
	1.657274

	1.000000
	0.409861
	0.261596
	1.671457
	t.4098 6 1
	1.671457

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0.332976
	0 .313664
	1.646640
	1.332976
	1.646640

	1.000000
	0.364374
	0 .292208
	1.656581
	1.364374
	1.656581

	1.000000
	0
	.322596
	0 .326490
	1.649086
	1.322596
	1.649086

	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0.429294
	0 .242902
	1.672196
	1.429294
	1.6721 96

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0 .375381
	0 .20096 1
	1.576342
	1.375381
	1.576342

	1.000000
	0 .281322
	0.251678
	1.533000
	1.281322
	1.533000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0 .360190
	0.342240
	1.702430
	1.360190
	1.702430

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0 . 162675
	0 .197726
	1.360401
	1.162675
	1.360401

	1.000000
	0.495347
	0.239154
	1.734501
	1.495347
	1.734501

	1.000000
	0.348647
	0.225310
	1.573957
	1.348647
	1.573957

	1.000000
	0 .269005
	0 .204058
	1.473064
	1.269005
	1.473064

	1.000000
	0.313699
	0 .245299
	1.558998
	1.313699
	1.558998

	1.000000
	0.368510
	0 .232088
	1.600599
	1.368510
	1.600599

	1.000000
	0 .24 1490
	0 .317862
	1.559352
	1.241490
	1.559352

	1.000000
	0.005208
	0 .696681
	1.701889
	1.005208
	1.701889

	1.000000
	0.435547
	0 . 164093
	1.599640
	1.43 5547
	1.599640

	1.000000
	0.392064
	0.273818
	1.665882
	1.392064
	1.665882

	1.000000
	0 .344349
	0.243065
	1.587414
	1.344349
	1.58741 4

	1.000000
	0 .263004
	0. 190775
	1.4 53779
	1263004
	1.453779

	1.000000
	0 .378300
	0 .175564
	1.55386 5
	1.378300
	1.55 3865

	1.000000
	O. t69487
	0 .334676
	1. 504 164
	1.1 69487
	1.504164
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	Indirect
	Induced
	
	iliru
	~

	
	Description
	
	Effects
	Effects
	Total
	Mnltjp!jer*
	Multiplier**

	276  Hand and Edge Tools, N .E.C .
	1.000000
	0 . 199344
	0 .233796
	1.433141
	1.199344
	1.43314 1

	277 Hand Saws and Saw Blades
	1.000000
	0 .268920
	0 .244994
	1.513914
	1.268920
	1.513914

	278  Hardware, N .E.C.
	1.000000
	0 .273883
	0 .253521
	1.527404
	1.273883
	1.527404

	279  Metal Sanital)l Ware
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	280  Plumbing Fixture Fittings and Trim
	1.000000
	0 .297313
	0 .269 176
	1.566488
	1.297313
	1.5664 88

	281
	Heating Equipment, Except Electric
	1.000000
	0 .231042
	0 .2 15 155
	1.446197
	1.231042
	1.446197

	282  Fabricated Structural Metal
	1.000000
	0 .309882
	0 .265059
	1.574942
	1.309882
	1.574942

	283  Metal Doors, Sash, and Trim
	1.000000
	0 .223752
	0 .277712
	1.501465
	1.223752
	1.50 1465

	284  Fabricated Plate Work (Boiler Shops)
	1.000000
	0 . 197992
	0 .345765
	1.543758
	1.197992
	1.543758

	285 Sheet Metal Work
	1.000000
	0 .238962
	0 .289582
	1.528544
	1.238962
	1.528544

	286 Architectural Metal Work
	1.000000
	0.170920
	0.300225
	1.471144
	1.170920
	1.471144

	287  Prefabricated Metal Buildings
	1.000000
	0 .313898
	0 .225748
	1.539646
	1.313898
	1.539646

	288  Miscellaneous Metal Work
	1.000000
	0 .337429
	0.164698
	1.502128
	1.337429
	1.502128

	289 Screw Machine Products and Bolts, Etc.
	1.000000
	0 .292672
	0 .299848
	1.592520
	1.292672
	1.592520

	290 Iron and Steel Forgings
	1.000000
	0 .258410
	0.290011
	1.548421
	1.258410
	1.54842 1

	291  Nonferrous Forgings
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	292  Automotive Stampings
	1.000000
	0.41 5488
	0.293124
	1.708613
	1.41 5488
	1.708613

	293 Crowns and Closures
	1.000000
	0 .265430
	0.237831
	1.503261
	1.265430
	1.503261

	294 Metal Stampings, N.E.C .
	1.000000
	0 .306247
	0.305233
	1.611480
	1.306247
	1.611480

	295 Plating and Polishing
	1.000000
	0 . 129752
	0.407013
	1.536764
	1.1 29752
	1.536764

	296  Metal Coating and Allied Services
	1.000000
	0 .279529
	0 .253146
	1.532675
	1.279529
	1.532675

	297 Small Arms Ammunition
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	298  Ammunition, Except For Small Anns, N .E.C.
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	299 Small Anns
	1.000000
	0 .099907
	0 .246465
	1.346372
	1.099907
	1.346372

	300 Other Ordnance and Accessories
	1.000000
	0 .830515
	0.342330
	2. 172845
	1.8305 15
	2. 17284 5

	301
	Industrial and Fluid Valves
	1.000000
	0 .370364
	0.238926
	1.609290
	1.370364
	1.609290

	302 Steel Springs, Except Wire
	1.000000
	0.43421 2
	0 .2 14740
	1.648953
	1.4342 12
	1.648953

	303  Pipe, Valves, and Pipe Fittings
	1.000000
	0 .301940
	0 .311732
	1.613672
	1.301940
	1.613672

	304 Miscellaneous Fabricated Wire Products
	1.000000
	0 .263860
	0.353660
	1.617520
	1.263860
	1.617520

	305 Metal Foil and Leaf
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	306 Fabricated Metal Products, N.E.C.
	1.000000
	0.358675
	0 .297110
	1.655785
	1.358675
	1.655785

	307 Steam Engines and Turbines
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	308  Internal Combustion Engines, N .E.C.
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	309 Farm Machinel)l and Equipment
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	310
	Lawn and Garden Equipment
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	311  Construction Machinery and Equipment
	1.000000
	0 .294657
	0.246218
	1.540875
	1.294657
	1.540875

	312 Mining Machinel)l, Except Oil Field
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	313 Oil Field Machinery
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	314 Elevators and Moving Stairways
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	315 Conveyors and Conveying Equipment
	1.000000
	0 .238583
	0.361295
	1.599878
	1.238583
	1.599878

	316
	Hoists, Cranes, and Monorails
	1.000000
	0 .248028
	0 .212477
	1.460505
	1.248028
	1.460505

	317
	Industrial Trucks and Tractors
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	318
	Machine Tools, Metal Cutting Types
	1.000000
	0 .254895
	0.411543
	1.666438
	1.254895
	1.666438

	319
	Machine Tools, Metal Forming Types
	1.000000
	0 .254823
	0.406398
	1.661220
	1.254823
	1.661 220

	320
	Industrial Patterns
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	321  Special Dies and Tools and Accessories
	1.000000
	0 .236933
	0.455696
	1.692629
	1.236933
	1.692629

	322
	Power Driven Hand Tools
	1.000000
	0.485648
	0.186153
	1.671801
	1.485648
	1.671801

	323 Rolling Mill Machinery
	1.000000
	0 . 119403
	0.561016
	1.680419
	1.119403
	1.68041 9

	324
	Welding Apparatus
	1.000000
	0.404498
	0 .335863
	1.740360
	1.404498
	1.740360

	325
	Metalworking Machinery, N.E.C.
	1.000000
	0.458846
	0.25 171 9
	1.710565
	1.458846
	1.710565

	326
	Textile Machinery
	1.000000
	0 .313023
	0.298061
	1.611084
	1.313023
	1.6 11084

	327
	Woodworking Machinery
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	328
	Paper Industries Machinery
	1.000000
	0 .367708
	0 .311453
	1.679 161
	1.367708
	1.679 16 1

	3 29
	Printing Trades Machinery
	1.000000
	0 .294208
	0.324989
	1.6 191 97
	1.294208
	1.619197

	330 Food Products Machinery
	1.000000
	0 .2776 10
	0.371972
	1.649582
	1.277610
	1.649582
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	Description
	E[ec(S
	E[ects
	E[ects
	
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	331
	Special Industry Machinery N.E.C .
	1.000000
	0 .372879
	0
	.2478 56
	1.620735
	1.372879
	1.620 735

	332 Pumps and Compressors
	1.000000
	0 .306653
	0
	.239491
	1.546144
	1.306653
	1.546144

	333
	Ball and Roller Bearings
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	334  Blowers and Fans
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	335 Packaging Machinery
	1.000000
	0 .337530
	0
	.300907
	1.638437
	1.337530
	1.638437

	336  Power Transmission Equipment
	1.000000
	0 .320528
	0
	.284611
	1.605139
	1.320528
	1.605139

	337  Industrial Furnaces and Ovens
	1.000000
	0 .275520
	0
	.300265
	1.575785
	1.275520
	1. 575785

	338 General Industrial Machinery, N .E.C
	1.000000
	0295807
	0
	.288526
	1.584333
	1.295807
	1.584333

	339  Electronic Computers
	1.000000
	0.409711
	0
	.270308
	1.680018
	1.409711
	1.68001 8

	340 Computer Storage Devices
	1.000000
	0 .383227
	0
	.227763
	1.610990
	1.383227
	1.610990

	341  Computer Terminals
	1.000000
	0 .016208
	1.146935
	2.163143
	1.016208
	2. 163143

	342 Computer Peripheral Equipment,
	1.000000
	0 .374780
	0
	.238613
	1.613393
	1.374780
	1.613392

	343  Calculating and Accounting Machines
	1.000000
	0 .275794
	0
	.325262
	1.601056
	1.275794
	1.601056

	344 Typewriters and Office Machines N .E.C.
	1.000000
	0 .344822
	0 .345805
	1.690628
	1344822
	1.690628

	345 Automatic Merchandising Machine
	1.000000
	0 .344557
	0
	.229886
	1.574443
	1.344557
	1.574443

	346 Commercial Laundry Equipment
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	347  Refrigeration and Heating Equipment
	1.000000
	0 .301379
	0
	.275654
	1.577033
	1.301379
	1.57703 3

	348  Measuring and Dispensing Pumps
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	349 Service Industry Machines, N .E.C.
	1.000000
	0 .332896
	0
	.280563
	1.613459
	1.332896
	1.613459

	350 Carburetors, Pistons, Rings, Valves
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	351
	Fluid Power Cylinders & Actuators
	1.000000
	0 .411370
	0
	.265383
	1.676752
	1.411370
	1.676752

	352 Fluid Power Pumps & Motors
	1.000000
	0 .228152
	0.443204
	1.671355
	1.228152
	1.6713 55

	353 Scales and Balances
	1.000000
	0 .262577
	0
	.355018
	1.617595
	1.262577
	1.617595

	354  Industrial Machines N.E.C .
	1.000000
	0 .238785
	0 .384546
	1.623331
	1.238785
	1.62333 1

	355 Transformers
	1.000000
	0 .44682 5
	0 .171161
	1.617986
	1.446825
	1.6 17986

	356
	Switchgear and Switchboard Apparatus
	1.000000
	0 . 181228
	0 .308904
	1.490132
	1.181228
	1.490132

	357  Motors and Generators
	1.000000
	0 .221628
	0 .293522
	1.515151
	1.221628
	1. 5 15 15 1

	358 Carbon and Graphite Products
	1.000000
	0 .261594
	0 .24991 8
	1.511512
	1.261594
	1.5 11 5 12

	359
	Relays & Industrial Controls
	1.000000
	0.187765
	0 .333660
	1.521426
	1.187765
	1.52 1426

	360
	Electrical Industrial Apparatus, N .E.C.
	1.000000
	0.402822
	0.194069
	1.596891
	1.402822
	1.596891

	361
	Household Cooking Equipment
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	362
	Household Refrigerators and Freezers
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	363  Household Laundry Equipment
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	364
	Electric Housewares and Fans
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	o.oooooo
	0 .000000

	365  Household Vacuum Cleaners
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	9.000000
	0 .000000

	366
	Household Appliances, N.E.C.
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	367
	Electric Lamps
	1.000000
	0.187907
	0 .320151
	1.508058
	1.187907
	1.508058

	368
	Wiring Devices
	1.000000
	0 .234308
	0 .292390
	1.526699
	1.234308
	1.526699

	369
	Lighting Fixtures and Equipment
	1.000000
	0 .330759
	0 .312085
	1.642844
	1330759
	1.642844

	370 Radio and TV Receiving Sets
	1.000000
	0 .303975
	0 .295990
	1.599965
	1.303975
	1.599965

	371
	Phonograph Records and Tape
	1.000000
	0.113633
	0 .501013
	1.614646
	1.113633
	1.614646

	372
	Telephone and Telegraph Apparatus
	1.000000
	0 .290135
	0 .214321
	1.504455
	1.290135
	1.504455

	373
	Radio and Tv Communication Equipment
	1.000000
	0 .285482
	0 .233868
	1.519350
	1.285482
	1.519350

	374
	Communications Equipment N .E.C .
	1.000000
	0.181619
	0 .345097
	1.526717
	1.181619
	1.52671 7

	375
	Electron Tubes
	1.000000
	0.561663
	0 .275138
	1.836800
	1.561663
	1.836800

	376 Printed Circuit Boards
	1.000000
	0.160702
	0.47 5653
	1.636355
	1.160702
	1.636356

	3 77
	Semiconductors and Related Devices
	1.000000
	0 .220387
	0 .272909
	1.493295
	1.220387
	1.493295

	378 Electronic Components, N.E.C.
	1.000000
	0374131
	0 .25 3067
	1.627198
	1.374131
	1.6271 98

	3 79
	Storage Batteries
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	3 80
	Primary Batteries, Dry and Wet
	1.000000
	0 . 193314
	0 .287132
	1.480446
	1.193314
	1.480446

	381
	Engine Electrical Equipment
	1.000000
	0 .213568
	0 .2733 23
	1.486892
	1.213 568
	1.486892

	382 Magnetic & Optical Recording Media
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0. 000000

	383
	Electrical Equipment, N.E.C .
	1.000000
	0.432274
	0 .281434
	1.713707
	1.432274
	1.713707

	384
	Motor Vehicles
	1.000000
	0 .386923
	0 .211446
	1.598369
	1.386923
	1.5983 69

	385
	Truck and Bus Bodies
	1.000000
	0 .081248
	0 . 18778 1
	1.269028
	1.08 1248
	1.269028
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Description

Motor Vehicle Parts and Accessories

Truck Trailers
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388 Motor Homes

Aircraft

Aircraft and Missile Engines and Parts

Aircraft and Missile Equipment,

Ship Building and Repairing

Boat Building and Repairing

Railroad Equipment

395 Motorcycles. Bicycles. and Parts396CompleteGuidedMissiles
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Travel Trailers and Camper

Tanks and Tank Components

Transportation Equipment, N .E.C

Search & Navigation Equipment

Laboratory Apparatus & Furniture

Automatic Temperature Controls

Mechanical Measuring Devices

Instruments To Measure Electricity

Analytical Instruments

Optical Instruments & Lenses

Surgical and Medical Instrument

Surgical Appliances and Supplies

409 Dental Equipment and Supplies

410 X-Ray Apparatus

4 II  Electromedical Apparatus

412 Ophthalmic Goods

413  Photographic Equipment and Supplies

414 Watches. C locks. and Parts
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415 Jewelry, Precious Metal
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· 416 Silverware and Plated Ware

Jewelers Materials and Lapidary Work

Musical Instruments

419 Dolls
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Games. Toys, and Childrens Vehicles

Sporting and Athletic Goods, N.E.C .

Pens and Mechanical Pencils

Lead Pencils and Art Goods

Marking Devices

Carbon Paper and Inked Ribbons

Costume Jewelerv

Fasteners, Buttons, Needles, Pins

Brooms and Brushes

Signs and Advertising Displays

Burial Caskets and Vaults

Hard Surface Floor Coverings

Manufacturing Industries, N.E.C.

Railroads and Related Services

Local. Interurban Passenger Transit
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435 Motor Freight Transport and Warehousing

WaterTransportation

Air Transportation

Pipe Lines. Except Natural Gas
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439 Arrangement Of Passenger Transportation

440 Transportation Services



	
	
	Induced
	
	Im<J
	Type II

	Effects
	Effects
	Effects
	Total
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	1.000000
	0.373301
	0 .249017
	1.6223I8
	1.373301
	1.62231 8

	1.000000
	0.313868
	0 .216385
	1.530253
	1313868
	1.530253

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0.511308
	0 .285057
	1.796365
	1.511308
	1.796365

	1.000000
	0.542750
	0 .356479
	1.899228
	1.542750
	1.899228

	1.000000
	0.330175
	0.361602
	1.691777
	1330175
	1.691 777

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0.217577
	0.397030
	1.614607
	1.217577
	1.614607

	1.000000
	0.164124
	0 .379876
	1.544000
	1.164124
	ts44000

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0 .273361
	0 .241335
	1.514696
	1.273361
	1.514696

	1.000000
	0.430026
	0 .351548
	1.781574
	1.430026
	1.781574

	1.000000
	0.365354
	0.307636
	1.672990
	1.365354
	1.672990

	1.000000
	0 .290891
	0.446531
	1.737422
	1.290891
	1.737422

	1.000000
	0.321476
	0 .378934
	1.700410
	1.321476
	1.700410

	1.000000
	0.392810
	0.302815
	1.695625
	1392810
	1.695625

	1.000000
	0.462931
	0.305694
	1.768625
	1.462931
	1.768625

	1.000000
	0.325936
	0.417337
	1.743273
	1.325936
	1.743273

	1.000000
	0.314904
	0.437566
	1.752470
	1314904
	1.752470

	1.000000
	0.509222
	0 .291904
	1.801127
	1.509222
	1.801126

	1.000000
	0 .447412
	0 .332752
	1.780164
	1.447412
	1.7801 64

	1.000000
	0.438000
	0 .280348
	1.718348
	1.438000
	1.718349

	1.000000
	0.410298
	0 .288174
	1.698472
	1.410298
	1.698472

	1.000000
	0.422391
	0.440434
	1.862825
	1.422391
	1.862825

	1.000000
	0.500164
	0 .273903
	1.774067
	1.500164
	1.774067

	1.000000
	0 .292949
	0 .382696
	1.675645
	1.292949
	1.675645

	1.000000
	0 .094288
	0 .226583
	1.320871
	1.094288
	1.32087 1

	1.000000
	0.316311
	0 .250054
	IS66365
	1.316311
	1.566365

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0.008437
	0.573262
	1.58 1699
	1.008437
	1.581699

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0.365350
	0 .275873
	1.641223
	1.365350
	1.641223

	1.000000
	0 .279942
	0 .285688
	1.565630
	1.279942
	1.565630

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	1.000000
	0.161608
	0.387232
	1.548840
	1.161608
	1.548840

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0.060240
	0.186784
	1.247024
	1.060240
	1.247024

	1.000000
	0 .138034
	0.411835
	1.549869
	1.138034
	1.549869

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0.310079
	0 .335980
	1.646058
	1.310079
	1.646058

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0.298757
	0.323451
	1.622207
	1.298757
	1.622207

	1.000000
	0 .259827
	0.417163
	1.676990
	1.259827
	1.676990

	1.000000
	0.265534
	0 .445319
	1.710852
	1.265534
	1.710852

	1.000000
	0.459271
	0.367663
	1.826934
	1.459271
	1.826934

	1.000000
	0 .535090
	0 .292186
	1.827276
	1.535090
	1.827276

	1.000000
	0 .213587
	0 .364413
	1.578000
	1.213587
	1.578000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	1.000000
	0 .230541
	0 .4484 19
	1.678959
	1.230541
	1.678959

	1.000000
	0.221110
	0.521379
	1.742489
	1.221110
	1.742489
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May 9, 2002

Output Multipliers

C011vrioh< MIG  2002

Description

Communications, Except Radio and TV

Radio and TV Broadcasting

Electric Services

Gas Production and Distribution

Water Supply and Sewerage Systems

Sanitary Services and Steam Supply

Wholesale Trade

Building Materials & Gardening

General Merchandise Stores

Food Stores

Automotive Dealers & Service Stations

Apparel & Accessory Stores

Fwniture & Home Furnishings Stores

Eating & Drinking

Miscellaneous Retail

Banking

Credit Agencies

Security and Commodity Brokers

Insurance Carriers

Insurance Agents and Brokers

Owner-occupied Dwellings

Real Estate
Hotels and Lodging Places

Laundry, Cleaning and Shoe Repair

Portrait and Photographic Studios

Beauty and Barber Shops

Funeral Service and Crematories

Miscellaneous Personal Services

Advertising

Other Business Services

Photofinishing, Commercial Photography

Services To Buildings

Equipment Rental  and Leasing

Personnel Supply Services

Computer and Data Processing Services

Detective and Protective Services

Automobile Rental and Leasing

Automobile Parking and Car Wash

Automobile Repair and Services

Electrical Repair Service

Watch, C lock. Jewelry and Furniture Repair

482 Miscellaneous Repair Shops
Motion Pictures

Theatrical Producers, Bands Etc.

Bowling Alleys and Pool Halls

Commercial Sports Except Racing

Racing and Track Operation

Amusement and Recreation Services, N.E.C.

Membership Sports and Recreation Clubs

Doctors and Dentists

Nursing and Protective Care

Hospitals

Other Medical and Health Services

Legal Services

495  Elementary and Secondary Schools



NewHavCol-Type2.iap

	
	
	
	Induced
	
	ImD
	Type II

	Effects
	Effects
	Effects
	Total
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	1.000000
	0.310817
	0 .259577
	1.570394
	1.3 10817
	1.570394

	1.000000
	0.395356
	0
	.344536
	1.739892
	1.395356
	1.739892

	1.000000
	0.132888
	0.183031
	1.315919
	1.132888
	1.3 15919

	1.000000
	0
	.238483
	0.151266
	1.389749
	1.238483
	1.389749

	1.000000
	0.390008
	0
	.312149
	1.702157
	1.390008
	1.702157

	1.000000
	0.337781
	0.314052
	1.651833
	1.337781
	1.65 1833

	1.000000
	0.230778
	0 .361202
	1.591980
	1.230778
	1.591980

	1.000000
	0.112534
	0
	.404834
	1.517367
	1.112534
	1.517367

	1.000000
	0.165194
	0
	.375388
	1.540582
	1.165194
	1.540582

	1.000000
	0
	.064880
	0.431233
	1.496113
	1.064880
	1.496113

	1.000000
	0.176871
	0
	.3690 10
	1.545881
	1.176871
	1.545881

	1.000000
	0
	.2292 15
	0.339798
	1.569013
	1.229215
	1.569013

	1.000000
	0. 139389
	0.389798
	1.529187
	1.139389
	1.529187

	1.000000
	0 .297817
	0
	.354803
	1.652620
	1.297817
	1.652620

	1.000000
	0
	. 143393
	0.387766
	1.531159
	1.143393
	1.531159

	1.000000
	026211 5
	0 .239470
	1.501585
	1.262115
	1.501585

	1.000000
	0.301061
	0 .602693
	1.903753
	1.301061
	1.903753

	1.000000
	0.157574
	0 .456319
	1.613893
	1.157574
	1.613893

	1.000000
	0294765
	0.365876
	1.660642
	1.294765
	1.660642

	1.000000
	0
	.245304
	0.510904
	1.756208
	1.245304
	1.756208

	1.000000
	0
	.229802
	0 .057328
	1.287130
	1.229802
	1.287130

	1.000000
	0
	.278813
	0.167873
	1.446686
	1.278813
	1.446686

	1.000000
	0.271203
	0
	.370282
	1.641485
	1.271203
	1.641485

	1.000000
	0.207544
	0.526281
	1.733825
	1207544
	1.733825

	1.000000
	0
	.395346
	0.406247
	1.801593
	1.395346
	1.801593

	1.000000
	0.320601
	0
	.500865
	1.821465
	1.320601
	1.82 1465

	1.000000
	0
	.157173
	0.452164
	1.609337
	1.157173
	1.609337

	1.000000
	0.516553
	0.340813
	1.857366
	1.516553
	1.857366

	1.000000
	0
	.278373
	0.432976
	1.711349
	1.278373
	1.711349

	1.000000
	0.362049
	0
	.345771
	1.707819
	1.362049
	1.707819

	1.000000
	0.403878
	0 .367608
	1.771487
	1.403878
	1.771487

	1.000000
	0.371150
	0 .394904
	1.766054
	1.371150
	1.766054

	1.000000
	0
	.384471
	0.366272
	1.750743
	1.384471
	1.750743

	1.000000
	0.055842
	0 .638949
	1.694791
	1.05584 2
	1.694791

	1.000000
	0
	. 184348
	0.536351
	1.720699
	1.184348
	1.720699

	1.000000
	0
	. 144410
	0.548739
	1.693149
	1.144410
	1.693 149

	1.000000
	0
	.270036
	0 .286370
	1.556406
	1.270036
	1.556406

	1.000000
	0
	. 195837
	0
	.340202
	1.536039
	1.195837
	1.536039

	1.000000
	0
	.256936
	0 .305990
	1.562926
	1.256936
	1.562926

	1.000000
	0.281240
	0 .347110
	1.628350
	1.281240
	1.628350

	1.000000
	0
	.230226
	0 .266235
	1.496461
	1.230226
	1.496461

	1.000000
	0.269529
	0.370563
	1.640092
	1.269529
	1.640092

	1.000000
	0.471670
	0 .258355
	1.730024
	1.471670
	1.730024

	1.000000
	0
	.715310
	0
	.371280
	2.086591
	1.715310
	2.086591

	1.000000
	0.328667
	0 .410739
	1.739407
	1.328667
	1.739407

	1.000000
	0
	.267442
	0.437302
	1.704744
	1.267442
	1.704744

	1.000000
	0
	.247885
	0 .244089
	1.49 1974
	1.247885
	1.491974

	1.000000
	0.474444
	0.425 148
	1.899592
	1.474444
	1.899592

	1.000000
	0.400123
	0 .444612
	1.844736
	1.400123
	1.844736

	1.000000
	0
	.277 167
	0.510110
	1.787277
	1.277167
	1.787277

	1.000000
	0. 185379
	0.561115
	1.746494
	1.185379
	1.746494

	1.000000
	0280802
	0
	.530792
	1.811594
	1.280802
	1.811594

	1.000000
	0.369994
	0.428198
	1.798192
	1.369994
	1.798192

	1.000000
	0
	. 199859
	0.563847
	1.763705
	1.1 99859
	1.763705

	1.000000
	0.307242
	0.581975
	1.8892 17
	1.307242
	1.8892 17
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	Elf~ts
	L:tml
	Mulligli~:r*
	Multipli,r* *

	496 Colleges, Universities, Schools
	
	1.000000
	0.214088
	0.610420
	1.824509
	1. 2 1408&
	1.824509

	497 Other Educational Services
	
	1.000000
	0.450003
	0.385 110
	1.835 113
	1.450003
	1.835 113

	498 Job Trainings & Related Services
	
	1.000000
	0.3 16682
	0.49865 1
	1.81 5333
	1.316682
	1.8 1533 3

	499 Child Day Care Services
	
	LOOOOOO
	0.449570
	0 .369355
	1.818925
	1.449570
	1.8 18925

	500
	Social Services. N.E.C.
	
	1.000000
	0.412446
	0.436520
	1.848966
	1.41 2446
	1.848966

	50 I Residential Care
	
	1.000000
	0 .226328
	0 .561420
	1.7&774&
	1226328
	1.78774&

	502
	Other Nonprofit Organizations
	
	1.000000
	0254862
	0
	.55 1711
	1.806574
	1.254862
	1.806574

	503 Business Associations
	
	1.000000
	0 .132587
	0 .606535
	1.7391 22
	1.1 32587
	1.739 122

	504  Labor and Civic Orl(anizations
	
	1.000000
	0.013223
	0.695258
	1.7084&1
	1.013223
	1.708481

	505
	Religious Orl(anizatioos
	
	1.000000
	0.763039
	0
	.2&3445
	2.046484
	1.763039
	2.046484

	506 Engineering, Architectural Services
	
	1.000000
	0.461926
	0.474291
	1.936217
	1.461926
	1.936218

	507
	Accounting, Auditing and Bookkeeping
	
	1.000000
	0 .205768
	0
	.580181
	1.785949
	1.20576&
	1.785949

	50& Management and Consulting Services
	
	1.000000
	0 .371909
	0.469170
	1.841079
	1.371909
	1.841079

	509
	Research. Development & Testing Services
	1.000000
	0.325090
	0.508536
	1.833626
	1.325090
	1.833626

	510
	Local Government Passenger Transit
	
	1.000000
	1.732071
	1.2&8317
	4.020388
	2.732071
	4.02038 &

	511
	State and Local Electric Utilities
	
	1.000000
	0.390938
	0
	.219195
	1.610134
	1.390938
	1.610134

	5 12
	Other State and Local Govt Enterprises
	
	1.000000
	0.5&05 37
	0.356539
	1.937076
	1.580537
	1.937076

	5 13
	U.S. Postal Service
	
	1.000000
	0. 176014
	0.596942
	1.772955
	1.176014
	1.772955

	514
	Federal Electric Utilities
	
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	515
	Other Federal Government Enterprises
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	516
	Noncomparable Imports
	
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	517
	Scrap
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	5 1& Used and Secondhand Goods
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	5 19
	Federal Government- Military
	
	1.000000
	0.000000
	0.407847
	1.407&47
	1.000000
	1.407847

	520
	Federal Government- Non-Military
	
	1.000000
	0.000000
	0.597003
	1.597003
	1.000000
	1.597003

	52 1 Commodity Credit Corporation
	
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	522
	State & Local Government - Education
	
	1.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.703&23
	1.703823
	1.000000
	1.703823

	523
	State & Local Government - Non-Education
	1.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.54844 1
	1.54844 1
	1.000000
	1.548441

	524
	Rest Of The World Industry
	
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	525
	Domestic Services
	
	1.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.703823
	1.703823
	1.000000
	1.703823

	526
	Dummy
	
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	527
	Dummy
	
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	528
	Inventory Valuation Adjustment
	
	1.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	1.000000
	! .000000
	1.000000
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	Total Value Added Multipliers
	May09, 2002

	
	
	

	CovvriRht MIG 2002
	NewHavCol-Type2.iap
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Direct
	Indirect
	Induced
	
	I) $ ]
	ilruill

	Description
	Effects
	Effects
	Effects
	Total
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	1 Dairy Farm Products
	0 .291751
	0.143296
	0.159038
	0 .594084
	1.4911 58
	2.036275

	2 Poultry and Eggs
	0 . 145920
	0. 130705
	0 .089655
	0 .366280
	1.895728
	2.510136

	3 Ranch Fed Cattle
	0 .240482
	0.165869
	0. 128771
	0 .535121
	1.689736
	2.225204

	4 Range Fed Cattle
	0 .211955
	0.132267
	0. 110033
	0.454255
	1.624034
	2.143167

	5 Cattle Feedlots
	0 .210810
	0. 170499
	0.118161
	0 .499470
	1.808781
	2.369287

	6 Sheep, Lambs and Goats
	0 .219273
	0.165578
	0.123176
	0 .508028
	1.755120
	2.3 16869

	7 Hogs, Pigs and Swine
	0.197227
	0 .170133
	0 .107856
	0.475216
	1.86262 5
	2.409489

	8 Other Meat Animal Products
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	9 Miscellaneous Livestock
	0.270528
	0. 151979
	0 .138713
	0.561221
	1.561788
	2.074537

	10 Cotton
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	II
	Food Gnins
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	12 Feed Gnins
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	13 Hay and Pasture
	0.414781
	0.205078
	0.149456
	0.769315
	1.494423
	1.854748

	14 Glass Seeds
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	15 Tobacco
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	16 Fruits
	0 .278923
	0 .238966
	0.166885
	0 .684775
	1.856747
	2.455066

	17 Tree Nuts
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	18 Vegetables
	0 .351372
	0.217709
	0. 170944
	0.740025
	1.619598
	2.106102

	19 Sugar Crops
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	20 Miscellaneous Crops
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	21  Oil Bearing Crops
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	22 Forest Products
	0.4454 15
	0 .219359
	0.131779
	0 .796552
	1.492483
	1.788339

	23 Greenhouse and Nursery Products
	0.537199
	0.200332
	0 .213214
	0 .950746
	1.372920
	1.769820

	24 Forestry Products
	0.607015
	0.080886
	0. 158125
	0 .846027
	1.133253
	1.393749

	25 Commercial Fishing
	0.863762
	0.073 182
	0.236598
	1.173543
	1.084725
	1.358640

	26 Agricultural, Forestry, Fishery Services
	0.627994
	0. 104805
	0 .269663
	1.002462
	1.166888
	1.596292

	27 Landscape and Horticultu!al Services
	0 .642661
	0. 161085
	0.249284
	1.053031
	1.250653
	1.638547

	28 Iron Ores
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	29 Copper Ores
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	30
	Lead and Zinc Ores
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	31  GoldOres
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	32
	Silver Ores
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	33 Ferroalloy Ores. Except Vanadium
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	34 Metal Mining Services
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	35 Unnium-radium-vanadium Ores
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	36
	Metal Ores. Not Elswhere Classified
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	37
	Coal Mining
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	38
	Natu!al Gas & Crude Petroleum
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	39 Natunl Gas Liquids
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	40
	Dimension Stone
	0 .653641
	0 .120018
	0 .202673
	0 .976332
	1.183615
	1.493683

	41  Sand and Gravel
	0.69 1961
	0.113569
	0.225014
	1.030544
	1.164126
	1.489309

	42
	Clay, Ce~amic. Refractory Minerals, N.E.C.
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	43 Potash, Soda, and Borate Minenls
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	44
	Phosphate Rock
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	45 Chemical, Fertilizer Mineral Mininig, N.E.C.
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	46
	Nonmetallic Minerals (Except Fuels) Service
	0 .596783
	0 .137333
	0 .181266
	0 .915381
	1.230121
	1.533859

	47
	Misc. Nonmetallic Mine!als. N_E.C.
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	48
	New Residential Structures
	0 .273750
	0 .255938
	0. 187533
	0 .717220
	1.934933
	2.61998 5

	49
	New Industrial and Commercial Buildings
	0.434486
	0.195530
	0.241326
	0 .871341
	1.450025
	2.005452

	50 New Utility Structures
	0.532053
	0 . 172814
	0.275643
	0 .980511
	1.324806
	1.842881

	51  New Highways and Streets
	0.445294
	0 .195370
	0 .234439
	0 .875102
	1.438743
	1.965223

	52 New Farm Structures
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	53
	New Mineral Extraction Facilities
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	·54 New Government Facilities
	0.453382
	0 .201868
	0.248336
	0 .903 586
	1.44524 8
	1.992990
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Total Value Added Multipliers


Mav 09. 2002

NewHavCol-Type2.iap

Ccc>vriol>t MIG 2002

	Description
	Direct
	
	Indirect
	Induced
	
	
	Im:J
	Type II

	
	Effects
	
	Effects
	Effects
	
	Total
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	55 Maintenance and Repair, Residential
	0.308099
	0.266080
	0 .22048 1
	0.79466 1
	1.863620
	2.579238

	56
	Maintenance and Repair Other Facilities
	0.65 1175
	0. 130674
	0 .3291 79
	1.111029
	1.200675
	1.706191

	57
	Maintenance and Repair Oil and Gas Wells
	0.5598 10
	0. 162780 .
	0 .216699
	0.939290
	1.290778
	1.677872

	58
	Meat Packin~ Plants
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	59 Sau~es and Other Prepared Meats
	0.2 18736
	0.19413 2
	0. 136943
	0.5498 1 I
	1.8875 17
	2.513580

	60
	Poultry Processin~
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	61 Creamery Butter
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	62 Cheese, Natural and Processed
	0. 131727
	0.160226
	0.079 11 6
	0.371068
	2.2 16350
	2.816954

	63 Condensed and Evaporated Milk
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	64
	Ice Cream and Frozen Desserts
	0
	.290610
	0.222088
	0 . 153406
	0 .666103
	1.7642 13
	2.292090

	65
	Fluid Milk
	0
	. 180901
	0.136115
	0 .096532
	0.413548
	1.752428
	2.286050

	66
	Canned Specialties
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	67
	Canned Fruits and VeRetables
	0.397119
	0.211141
	0. 157087
	0.765347
	1.531 68 1
	1.927247

	68
	Dehydrated Food Products
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	69
	Pickles, Sauces, and Salad Dressin~
	0.433858
	0. 156609
	0.101608
	0.692075
	1.360970
	1.5951 66

	70
	Frozen Fruits, Juices and VeRetables
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	71
	Frozen Specialties
	0
	.355 167
	0. 194487
	0
	. 136749
	0.686403
	1.547592
	1.932620

	72
	Flour and Other Grain Mill Products
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	73 Cereal Preparations
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	74
	Rice MillinR
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	75
	Blended and Prepared Flour
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	76
	Wet Com Millin!(
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	77
	Dog, Cat, and Other Pet Food
	0.249805
	0
	.250817
	0. 1463 31
	0.646954
	2.004050
	2.589832

	78 Prepared Feeds, N.E.C
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	79
	Bread, Cake , and Related Products
	0.35985 7
	0.206203
	0
	. 162963
	0.729023
	1. 57301 5
	2.025869

	80
	Cookies and Crackers
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	8 1 Su~ar
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	82
	Confectionery Products
	0.338743
	0
	.232264
	0.13 5309
	0.7063 15
	1.685664
	2.085108

	83 Chocolate and Cocoa Products
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	84
	Chewing Gum
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	85 Salted and Roasted Nuts & Seeds
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	86
	Cottonseed Oil Mills
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	87
	Soybean Oil Mills
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	88
	Vegetable Oil Mills. N.E.C
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	89
	Animal and Marine Fats and Oils
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	90
	Shortening and Cookin 11: Oils
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	91
	Malt BeveraRes
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	9 2
	Malt
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	93
	Wines, Brandy, and Brandy Spirits
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	94
	Distilled Liquor, Except Brandy
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	9 5
	Bottled and Canned So ft Drinks & Water
	0.144672
	0.238680
	0. 113049
	0.496400
	2.649800
	3.431215

	9 6
	Flavoring Extracts and Syrups, N.E.C.
	0.660875
	0 .117554
	0
	. 129182
	0.90761 I
	1.177876
	1.373348

	9 7
	Canned and Cured Sea Foods
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	98
	Prepared Fresh Or Frozen Fish Or Seafood
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	99
	Roasted Coffee
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	I 00
	Potato Chips & Similar Snacks
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	I 0 I
	Manufactured Ice
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	I 02
	Macaroni and Spaghetti
	0
	.097208
	0.340597
	0
	. 133704
	0.5 71 509
	4.503788
	5.879229

	103
	Food Prepara tions, N .E.C
	0.344140
	0. 1898 15
	0. 139525
	0.673480
	1. 551565
	1.956996

	I 04 Cigarettes
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	105
	Cigars
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	106
	Chewin~ and Smoking Tobacco
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	107
	Tobacco Stemmin~ and Redryin~
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	108
	Broadwoven Fabric Mill s and Finishing
	0.338872
	0. 154765
	0. 16523 I
	0.658868
	1.456708
	1.944300

	*Type I=(Direct + lndirect)/Direct**Ty!£ II =(Direct + Indirect +
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	Total Value Added Multipliers
	May09, 2002

	
	
	

	Copyri~ht MIG 2002
	
	NewHavCol-Type2.iap
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Direct
	
	lndirect
	lnduced
	
	
	ImU
	Type II

	Description
	Effects
	
	Effects
	Effects
	
	Total
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	109 Narrow Fabric Mills
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	110
	Womens Hosiery, Except Socks
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	Ill
	Hosiery, N.E.C
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	112
	Knit Outerwear Mills
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	113 Knit Underwear Mills
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	114 Knit Fabric Mills
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	115 Knittinl!: Mills, N.E.C.
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	116
	Yam Mills and Finishinl!: Of Textiles, N.E.C.
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	117
	Carpets and Rul!;s
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	118
	Thread Mills
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	119
	Coated Fabrics, Not Rubberized
	0.33 2924
	0.230888
	0
	.207108
	0 .770921
	1.693515
	2.315603

	120
	Tire Cord and Fabric
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	121 Nonwoven Fabrics
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	122
	Cordal!;e and Twine
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	123 Textile Goods, N.E.C
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	124
	Apparel Made From Purchased Materials
	0.406163
	0 . 171429
	0
	.202315
	0.779907
	1.422070
	1.920182

	125
	Curtains and Draperies
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	126
	Housefurnishinl!;s, N.E.C
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	127 Textile Bai!:S
	0
	.379801
	0. 133588
	0.171593
	0 .684982
	1.351733
	1.803530

	128
	Can vas Products
	0
	.632871
	0. 129376
	0.250914
	1.013161
	1.204428
	1.600898

	129
	Pleatinl!; and Stitchinl!;
	0.71483 5
	0.111828
	0
	.190753
	1.017416
	1.156439
	1.423288

	130 Automotive aud Apparel Trimmings
	0
	.33232 1
	0 . 157806
	0.163372
	0
	.653498
	1.474859
	1.966467

	131 Scbiffi Machine Embroideries
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	132
	Fabricated Textile Products, N.E.C.
	0.365807
	0 . 194077
	0
	. 143932
	0
	.7038 15
	1.530545
	1.924009

	133
	Logging Camps and Logging Contractors
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	134
	Sawmills and Planing Mills, General
	0.25 1910
	0
	. 189425
	0 .138118
	0.579453
	1.751956
	2.300238

	135
	Hardwood Dimension and Flooring Mills
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	136 Special Product Sawmills, N.E.C
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	137 Millwork
	0.478020
	0
	. 169891
	0
	.246912
	0
	.894823
	1.355407
	1.871 938

	138
	Wood Kitchen Cabinets
	0.531562
	0
	. 147343
	0.240994
	0.919899
	1.277188
	1.730558

	139 Veneer and Plywood
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	140 Structural Wood Members, N.E.C
	0 .3 15753
	0
	. 188393
	0.174787
	0 .678934
	1.596645
	2.150202

	141
	Wood Containers
	0.536969
	0
	. 137527
	0.250823
	0.92 53 18
	1.256 117
	1.723226

	142 Wood Pallets and Skids
	0.474666
	0
	. 166434
	0.234040
	0
	.875140
	1.35063 3
	1.843697

	143
	Mobile Homes
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	144
	Prefabricated Wood Buildings
	0
	.379743
	0
	. 172950
	0
	.197616
	0
	.750309
	1.455441
	1.975835

	145
	Wood Preserving
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	146 Reconstituted Wood Products
	0.375436
	0
	.223329
	0. 151762
	0
	.750527
	1.594852
	1.999082

	147
	Wood Products, N.E.C
	0.43 1073
	0
	. 179704
	0 .203021
	0
	.813798
	1.416876
	1.887841

	148
	Wood Household Furniture
	0.419292
	0
	.202407
	0 .210838
	0.832537
	1.482736
	1.985577

	149 Upholstered Household Furniture
	0.399599
	0. 144666
	0.201512
	0.745777
	1.362028
	1.866313

	150 Metal Household Furniture
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	151
	Mattresses and Bedsprings
	0.348230
	0.1600 11
	0 .173388
	0 .681629
	1.459497
	1.95741 0

	!52 Wood Tv and Radio Cabinets
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	! 53
	Household Furniture, N.E.C
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	154
	Wood Office Furniture
	0.3 54602
	0.23572 1
	0 .215133
	0 .805455
	1.664747
	2.27 1435

	155
	Metal Office Furniture
	0.297168
	0.270376
	0. 1891 92
	0 .756736
	1.909842
	2.546492

	156 Public Buildinl!; Furniture
	0.2 15468
	0.238051
	0.143405
	0.596923
	2.104808
	2.770358

	157
	Wood Partitions and Fixtures
	0.428 179
	0
	. 189742
	0.2 18784
	0.836705
	1.443137
	1.954102

	! 58
	Metal Partitions and Fixtures
	0.372321
	0.217501
	0.198860
	0 .788682
	1.584 176
	2.118285

	159
	Blinds, Shades , and Drapery Hardware
	0.491231
	0. 176949
	0.195913
	0 .864093
	1.3602 15
	1.759035

	160
	Furniture and Fixtures, N.E.C
	0.336846
	0.090597
	0. 123064
	0.550508
	1.268957
	1.634299

	161 Pulp Mills
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	162 Paper Mills, Except Building Paper
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	*Type [={Direct + Indirect)/Direct**Ty~ II =(Direct + Indirec t+
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	Direct
	Indirect
	Induced
	
	Im<J
	fuill

	Description
	Effects
	Effects
	Effects
	Total
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	163 Paperboard Mills
	0 .323082
	0.256271
	0.152710
	0.732062
	1.793208
	2.265874

	164 Paperboard Containers and Boxes
	0.293569
	0 .158409
	0.154487
	0.606465
	1.539598
	2.065837

	J 65 Paper Coated & Laminated Packaging
	0 .214809
	0.223416
	0.125299
	0.563525
	2.040070
	2.623376

	166 Paper Coated & Laminated N .E.C.
	0.333280
	0.189707
	0.159098
	0.682085
	1.569211
	2.046582

	167 Bags, Plastic
	0.302967
	0.237819
	0.154734
	0.695520
	1.784966
	2.295695

	168 Bags, Paper
	0.346226
	0.223059
	0. 166496
	0.735781
	1.644259
	2.125146

	169 Die-cut Paper and Board
	0.209673
	0. 187470
	0.129680
	0.526823
	1.894107
	2.5 12594

	170 Sanitary Paper Products
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	171 Envelopes
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	172 Stationery Products
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	173 Converted Paper Products. N .E.C
	0.329722
	0. 196468
	0.148344
	0.674534
	1.595862
	2.045767

	174 Newspapers
	0.5033 14
	0.188701
	0.237568
	0.929582
	1.374917
	1.846924

	175 Periodicals
	0 .428592
	0 .208319
	0.206554
	0.843466
	1.486055
	1.967991

	176 Book Publishing
	0.255 186
	0.247963
	0.141010
	0.644159
	1.971694
	2.524272

	177 Book Printing
	0.209874
	0.228250
	0.150015
	0.588139
	2.087556
	2.802342

	178 Miscellaneous Publishing
	0.572642
	0.139430
	0.200414
	0.912486
	1.243485
	1.593467

	179 Commercial Printing
	0.442092
	0.149447
	0.215983
	0 .807521
	1.338044
	1.826593

	180 Manifold Business Forms
	0.4290 12
	0.154660
	0.192561
	0.776232
	1.360502
	1.809350

	181 Greeting Card Publishing
	0. 180847
	0.37 1607
	0.186094
	0.738547
	3.054812
	4.083 825

	182 Blankbooks and Looseleaf Binder
	0.400234
	0.192950
	0.194985
	0.788 169
	1.482093
	1.969270

	183 Bookbinding & Related
	0.545022
	0.185314
	0.273445
	1.003781
	1.340012
	1.841 726

	184 Typesetting
	0 .533352
	0.205253
	0.266392
	1.004997
	1.384835
	1.884303

	185 Plate Making
	0.819915
	0 .081404
	0.363702
	1.265020
	1.099283
	1.542868

	186
	Alkalies & Chlorine
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	18 7 Industrial Gases
	0.706682
	0. 114753
	0.288775
	1.1102 10
	1.162383
	1.5710 18

	188 Inorganic Pigments
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	189 Inorganic Chemicals Nee.
	0.308758
	0 .270431
	0.157868
	0.737057
	1.875869
	2.387171

	190
	Cyclic Crudes.lnterm. & Indus. Organic Chern.
	0.320788
	0.265725
	0.155851
	0.742363
	1.828351
	2.3 141 89

	191 Plastics Materials and Resins
	0.2 13168
	0.32 1031
	0.154076
	0.688276
	2.505999
	3.228790

	192
	Synthetic Rubber
	0.259345
	0.314904
	0.174445
	0.748695
	2.214 229
	2.886867

	193 Cellulosic Man-made Fibers
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	I 94 Organic Fibers, Noncellulosic
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	195 Drugs
	0.580996
	0.238269
	0.204786
	1.024052
	1.410105
	1.762579

	196
	Soap and Other Detergents
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	197 Polishes and Sanitation Goods
	0.651 160
	0.130051
	0.174791
	0.956002
	1.199723
	1.4681 53

	198
	Surface Active Agents
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	199
	Toilet Preparations
	0.496958
	0.211587
	0.162765
	0.87 1310
	1.425766
	1.753288

	200
	Paints and Allied Products
	0.406683
	0.247788
	0.165422
	0.819893
	1.609290
	2.016048

	20 I Gum and Wood Chemicals
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	202
	Nitrogenous and Phosphatic Fertilizers
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	203 Fertilizers. Mixing Only
	0. 142085
	0 .233718
	0.120386
	0.496250
	2.645338
	3.492620

	204
	Agricultural Chemicals, N.E.C
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	205 Adhesives and Sealants
	0.376811
	0.252655
	0.182784
	0.812250
	1.670508
	2. 155590

	206
	Explosives
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	207
	Printing Ink
	0.202545
	0.278077
	0.156412
	0 .637034
	2.372914
	3.145148

	208
	Carbon Black
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	209
	Chemical Preparations, N.E.C
	0.433383
	0.203470
	0.181753
	0 .818606
	1.469492
	1.888874

	210
	Petroleum Refining
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	.211
	Paving Mixtures and Blocks
	0.4835 16
	0.145808
	0.121690
	0.751013
	1.301557
	1.553233

	212 Asphalt Felts and Coatings
	0.5126 18
	0.160212
	0.107620
	0.780450
	1.312537
	1.522480

	213
	Lubricating Oils and Greases
	0.345586
	0 . 175951
	0.177184
	0.69872 1
	1.509138
	2.021845

	214
	Petroleum and Coal Products, N.E.C.
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	2 15 Tires and Inner Tubes
	0.521594
	0. 155834
	0.23393 2
	0 .9 11360
	1.29876 5
	1.747259

	216 Rubber and Plastics Footwear
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000


*Type I=(Direct+ Indirect)/Direct**TyJX II =(Direct+ Indirect +
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	Indirect
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	I) $ ]
	Type II
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	Effects
	Effects
	Effects
	
	Total
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	217 Rubber and Plastics Hose and Belting
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	2 18
	Gaskets, Packing and Sealing Devices
	0 .421766
	0.201394
	0 .213676
	0
	.836837
	1.477503
	1.9841 26

	219 Fabricated Rubber Products, N.E.C.
	0.393918
	0.230602
	0 .212836
	0.837356
	1.585407
	2. 125714

	220 Miscellaneous Plastics Products
	0.347746
	0286224
	0 .20 1566
	0.835537
	1.823085
	2.402722

	221
	Leather Tanning and Finishing
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	222 Footwear Cut Stock
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	223 House Slippers
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	224 Shoes. Except Rubber
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	225 Leather Gloves and Mittens
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	226 Luggage
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	227 Womens Handbags and Purses
	0.985423
	0.002254
	0.248485
	1.236 163
	1.002288
	1.254449

	228 Personal Leather Goods
	0.762515
	0.063537
	0. 175022
	1.001073
	1.083326
	1.312858

	229 Leather Goods, N.E.C
	0 .8 15491
	0.047220
	0.252344
	1.11 5056
	1.057904
	1.367343

	230
	Glass and Glass Products, Exc Containers
	0.485105
	0.225 192
	0.213913
	0 .924210
	1.464213
	1.905174

	23 I Glass Containers
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	232 Cement. Hydraulic
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	23 3
	Brick and Structural Clay Tile
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	234 Ceramic Wall and Floor Tile
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	235 C lay Refractories
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	236
	Structural Clay Products, N.E.C
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	237
	Vitreous Plumbing Fixtures
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	238
	Vitreous China Food Utensils
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	239
	Fine Earthenware Food Utensils
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	240
	Porcelain Electrical Supplies
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	241  Pottery Products. N.E.C
	0.626478
	0. 139078
	0.287953
	1.053509
	1.222000
	1.681638

	242
	Concrete Block and Brick
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	243 Concrete Products. N.E.C
	0.522601
	0.143792
	0~226644
	0 .893037
	1.275146
	1.708830

	244
	Readv-mixed Concrete
	0.501601
	0. 151106
	0.2 15857
	0 .868564
	1.30 1248
	1.73 1584

	245
	Lime
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	246
	Gypsum Products
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	247
	Cut Stone and Stone Products
	0.629792
	0.140488
	0.28 1408
	1.051688
	1.223071
	1.669897

	248
	Abrasive Products
	0.421696
	0.226206
	0. 172425
	0 .820327
	1.536420
	1.945305

	24 9 Asbestos Products
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	250
	Minerals. Ground Or Treated
	0.554924
	0.182153
	0.206745
	0 .943822
	1.328248
	1.700812

	25 1 Mineral Wool
	0.476029
	0.203810
	0. 192602
	0.872442
	1.428 147
	1.832748

	252
	Nonclay Refractories
	0.499553
	0.178829
	0.2 15199
	0.893580
	1.357978
	1.788760

	253
	Nonmetallic Mineral Products, N.E.C .
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	254
	Blast Furnaces and Steel Mills
	0.240244
	0.256929
	0.160104
	0.657276
	2.069448
	2.735868

	255
	Electrometallurgical Products
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	256
	Steel Wire and Related Products
	0293377
	0.22 1351
	0. 132459
	0 .647187
	1.754493
	2.205991

	257 Cold Finishing Of Steel Shapes
	0.418018
	0. 164567
	0. 165888
	0 .748473
	1.393685
	1.790529

	258
	Steel Pipe and Tubes
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	259 Iron and Steel Foundries
	0.418342
	0.222871
	0.225580
	0.866793
	1.532748
	2.071972

	260 Primary Copper
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	261  Primary Aluminum
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	262 Primary Nonferrous Metals, N.E.C.
	0.423077
	0.102550
	0. 130327
	0.655954
	1.242390
	1.550435

	263
	Secondary Nonferrous Metals
	0. 199427
	0.305654
	0. 157633
	0.662714
	2.532655
	3.323083

	264
	Copper Rolling and Drawing
	0.207858
	0.207 16 1
	0. 148508
	0.563527
	1.996647
	2.7 11 I 15

	265
	Aluminum Rolling and Drawing
	0.271036
	0.158544
	0. 134501
	0.564081
	1.584955
	2.081200

	266
	Nonferrous Rolling and Drawing, N.E.C.
	0.306719
	0.199917
	0 .161683
	0.668319
	1.651791
	2. 178929

	267 Nonferrous Wire Drawing and Insulating
	0.326077
	0. 193922
	0.152976
	0.672974
	I .594713
	2.063853

	268
	Aluminum Foundries
	0.45 1638
	0. 143819
	0. 2095 11
	0 .804968
	1.318439
	1.782331

	269 Brass. Bronze. and Copper Foundries
	0.989013
	0.002984
	0.459202
	1.451199
	1.003017
	1.46732 1

	270 Nonferrous Castings. N.E.C.
	0. 194768
	0256057
	0. 108158
	0 .558983
	2.3 14680
	2.870000


*Type I=(Direct+ Indirect)/Direct**Ty!J'! II =(Direct+ Indirect+
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	271
	Metal Heat Treating
	0.455000
	0 .223957
	0.180481
	0
	.859438
	1.492214
	1.888876

	272 Primary Metal Products, N.E.C
	0
	.380743
	0.201429
	0.160211
	0
	.742383
	1.529043
	1.949827

	273 Metal Cans
	0
	.240073
	0
	. 148407
	0.125745
	0
	.5 14225
	1.618175
	2. 141954

	274 Metal Barrels, Drums and Pails
	0
	. 186355
	0
	.214730
	0.115719
	0.516805
	2. 152260
	2_773221

	275 Cutlery
	0
	.738806
	0.096506
	0.220594
	1.055907
	1.130625
	1.429206

	276 Hand and Edge Tools, N.E.C.
	0
	.646192
	0
	. 11 9605
	0
	. 154102
	0 .919899
	1.185092
	1.423569

	277 Hand Saws and Saw Blades
	0.5218 10
	0
	. 158988
	0
	.16 1483
	0
	.84228 1
	1.304686
	1.6141 52

	278 Hardware, N.E.C.
	0 .50566 1
	0.160876
	0
	. 167 103
	0 .833639
	1.318150
	1.648614

	279 Metal Sanitary Ware
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	280 Plwnbing fixture Fittings and Trim
	0.476809
	0. 173487
	0.177421
	0.827716
	1.363850
	1.73595 1

	281
	Heating Equipment. Except Electric
	0.540582
	0
	.136603
	0.141815
	0 .819000
	1.252697
	1.515033

	282 fabricated Structural Metal
	0.440912
	0
	. 178224
	0.174708
	0.793844
	1.404216
	1.800:457

	283 Metal Doors, Sash, and Trim
	0.546386
	0. 1280 15
	0.183048
	0 .857449
	1.234294
	1.569309

	284 fabricated Plate Work (Boiler Shops)
	0 .6 10905
	0 . 117301
	0.227904
	0.956110
	1.192012
	1.565071

	285 Sheet Metal Work
	0.523523
	0.139030
	0.190872
	0.853424
	1.265566
	1.6301 56

	286 Architectural Metal Work
	0.630138
	0
	.099843
	0.197887
	0 .927867
	1.1 58446
	1.472482

	287 Prefabricated Metal Buildings
	0.387909
	0. 180114
	0.148797
	0
	.716819
	1.464321
	1.847908

	288 Miscellaneous Metal Work
	0. 196905
	0
	. 196643
	0
	.108557
	0.502 106
	1.998670
	2.549988

	289 Screw Machine Products and Bolts, Etc.
	0.5 16374
	0
	. 177910
	0.197638
	0.89 1922
	1.344538
	1.727280

	290
	Iron and Steel Forgings
	0.502720
	0
	. 153260
	0 . 191155
	0 .847135
	1.304861
	1.685102

	29 1 Nonferrous forgings
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	292 Automotive Starnpings
	0.270006
	0
	.245051
	0.193206
	0.708263
	1.907576
	2.623141

	293 Crowns and Closures
	0.517216
	0
	. 145793
	0.156761
	0
	.8 1977 1
	1.281881
	1.584967

	294 Metal Starnpings, N.E.C.
	0.504112
	0
	. 179513
	0
	.201187
	0
	.8848 13
	1.356096
	1.7551 89

	295
	Plating and Polishing
	0.831360
	0
	.075180
	0
	.268273
	1.174813
	1.090430
	1.413122

	296
	Metal Coating and Allied Services
	0.485837
	0.159349
	0
	. 166855
	0
	.812042
	1.327989
	1.671428

	297
	S mall Arms Anununition
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	298
	Anununition, Except For Small Arms, N.E.C.
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	299
	Small Arms
	0.834508
	0.059769
	0.162452
	1.056729
	1.071622
	1.266290

	300
	Other Ordnance and Accessories
	-0.085538
	0.482202
	0.225639
	0
	.622303
	. 0.000000
	0.000000

	301 Industrial and Fluid Valves
	0.287 120
	0.222785
	0
	. 157483
	0 .667387
	1.775930
	2.324420

	302
	Steel Springs, Except Wire
	0. 198652
	0
	.254030
	0.141541
	0.594223
	2.278770
	2.99 1281

	303 Pipe, Valves, and Pipe fittings
	0.418824
	0.181626
	0.205471
	0.805921
	1.433656
	1.924247

	304
	Miscellaneous Fabricated Wire Products
	0.495675
	0. 156488
	0
	.233 107
	0
	.885270
	1.315707
	1.785988

	305
	Metal Foil and Leaf
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	306
	Fabricated Metal Products, N.E.C.
	0.354658
	0.211283
	0
	. 195833
	0 .761774
	1.595738
	2.147913

	307
	Stearn Engines and Turbines
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	308 Internal Combustion Engines, N.E.C.
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	309
	Farm Machinery and Equipment
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	31 0 Lawn and Garden Equipment
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	311 Construction Machinery and Equipment
	0.313596
	0
	. 180572
	0
	. 162289
	0
	.656457
	l.5758ll
	2.093321

	312 Mining Machinery, Except Oil Field
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	313 Oil Field Machinery
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	314
	Elevators and Moving Stairways
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	315 Conveyors and Conveying Equipment
	0.552226
	0
	.146057
	0
	.238 140
	0
	.936423
	1.264487
	1.695722

	316
	Hoists, Cranes, and Monorails
	0.284640
	0
	. 145473
	0. 140050
	0.570 162
	1.51 1078
	2.003103

	3 17
	Industrial Trucks and Tractors
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	318
	Machine Tools, Metal Cutting Types
	0.519864
	0. 157937
	0
	.27 1259
	0.949061
	1.303805
	1.825594

	319 Machine Tools, Metal Forming Types
	0.5 12164
	0
	. 1573 25
	0.267868
	0 .937357
	1.307177
	1.8301 89

	320 Industrial Patterns
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	32 1 Special Dies and Tools and Accessories
	0.610303
	0
	. 1442 19
	0 .300362
	1.054884
	1.236308
	1.728460

	322 Power Driven Hand Tools
	0. 121178
	0.294424
	0. 122699
	0
	.53830 1
	3.429674
	4.442220

	323
	Rolling Mill Machinery
	0.759356
	0 .079388
	0 .36978 1
	1.208526
	1.104546
	1.591513

	324
	Welding Apparatus
	0.450268
	0 .227683
	0 .221376
	0 .899327
	1.505660
	1.997315
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	Total Value Added Multipliers
	May09. 2002

	
	
	
	

	
	eo.m;.;u MlG 2002
	
	NewHavCol-Type2.iap
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	•·
	
	Direct
	Indirect
	Induced
	
	IwJ
	IYruill.

	
	Description
	
	Effects
	Effects
	Effects
	Total
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	
	325 Metalworking Machinery, N .E.C.
	
	0 .249710
	0 .2630 58
	0 . 1659 15
	0 .678683
	2.0 53452
	2 .7 17881

	
	326 Textile Machi nery
	
	0.342223
	0 . 186777
	0 . 196460
	0 ,725461
	1.545775
	2 .119845

	
	327 Woodworking Machinery
	
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	328 Paper Industries Machinery
	
	0.34491 2
	0 .204553
	0 .205 287
	0 .75475 2
	1.593058
	2 . 188245

	
	329 Printing Trades Machinery
	
	0 .3 83696
	0.\82590
	0 .2 14209
	0 .780496
	1.47587 1
	2. 034150

	
	330 Food Products Machinery
	
	0.487562
	0.169369
	0 .245 177
	0 .902 107
	1.347379
	1.850242

	
	33 1 Special Industry Machinery N .E.C.
	
	0 .287860
	0 .230454
	0 . 163369
	0 .68 1683
	1.800576
	2.368 106

	
	332 Pumps and Compressors
	
	0 .297114
	0 .186296
	0 . 157855
	0 .64 1265
	1.627019
	2. 158313

	
	333  Ball aod Roller Bearings
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	334 Blowers and Fans
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	335  Packal!;iog Machinery
	
	0 .3802 19
	0 .20746 1
	0 . 198336
	0 .786016
	1.545636
	2 .067273

	
	336 Power Transmission Equipment
	
	0 .332067
	0.201789
	0 . 187595
	0 .721451
	1.607676
	2. 172606

	
	3 37 Industrial Furnaces and Ovens
	
	0 .358576
	0 . 16768 1
	0 . 197913
	0 .724169
	1.467630
	2.019572

	
	338 Geoeral lodustrial Machinery, N.E.C
	
	0.402063
	0 . 181 295
	0 . 190176
	0 .773533
	1.450911
	1.9239 11

	
	339 Electronic Computers
	
	0 .273313
	0 .224152
	0.178167
	0 .675633
	1.8201 3 1
	2.472011

	
	340 Computer Storage Devices
	
	0 . \95406
	0.2 16510
	0 . 1501 25
	0 .562040
	2. 107999
	2.876270

	
	341 Computer Terminals
	
	0 .965971
	0 .0091 57
	0 .755976
	1.731104
	1.009480
	1.792088

	
	342 Computer Peripheral Equipment,
	
	0 .2 13140
	0 .2 11737
	0 . 157276
	0 .582154
	1.993418
	2.73131 8

	-
	343 Calculating and Accounting Machines
	
	0.482813
	0 . 157083
	0 .2 14389
	0 .854285
	1.325351
	1.769393

	
	344 Typewriters and Office Machines N .E.C.
	0.404215
	0 .200530
	0 .227930
	0 .832675
	1.496098
	2.05998 1

	
	345 Automatic Merchandis ing Machine
	
	0 .277049
	0 .202838
	0.1515 24
	0 .6314 11
	1.732 137
	2 .279059

	
	346 Commercial Laundry Equipment
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	347 Refrigeration and Heating Equipment
	
	0 .377776
	0 . 180252
	0 . 18 169 1
	0 .7397 19
	1.477139
	1.958088

	
	348 Measuring and Dispensing Pumps
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	349 Service Industry Machines, N .E.C .
	
	0 .386465
	0 . 198222
	0 . 184927
	0 .7696 14
	1.5 12_912
	1.991421

	
	350 Carburetors, Pis tons, Rings, Valves
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	35 1 Fluid Power Cylinders & Actuators
	
	0 .254692
	0 .2534 53
	0.174921
	0 .683066
	1.995 136
	2 .68 193 1

	
	352 Fluid Power Pumps & Motors
	
	0.586641
	0 . 140569
	0 .292 128
	1.01 9337
	1.2396 17
	1.737584

	
	353 Scales and Balances
	
	0 .535624
	0 . 141467
	0 .234002
	0 .9 11 094
	1.264117
	1.700994

	
	354 Industrial Machines N .E .C.
	
	0 .522963
	0 . 142813
	0.253465
	0 .9 1924 1
	1.273085
	1.757756

	
	355 Transformers
	
	0 . 105961
	0 .273087
	0 . 1128 17
	0.49 1864
	3.577250
	4 .641956

	
	356 Switchgear and Switchboard Apparatus
	0 .684582
	0 . \11 691
	0 .203607
	0 .999880
	1.163 152
	1.460570

	
	357 Motors and Generators
	
	0 .527206
	0 . 1291 50
	0.193469
	0 .849824
	1.244970
	1.6 11 940

	
	358 Carbon and Graphite Products
	
	0 .538088
	0 . 150443
	0.164728
	0 .853260
	1.279588
	1.585724

	
	359 Relays & Industrial Controls
	
	0 .694138
	0 . 113687
	0 .2 19925
	1.027750
	1.163782
	1.4806 13

	
	360 Electrical Industrial Apparatus, N .E.C.
	0 . 13255 1
	0 .232729
	0 . 127916
	0.493 197
	2.755775
	3 .72081 2

	
	361  Household Cooking Equipment
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	362 Household Refrigerators and Freezers
	
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	363  Household Laundry Equipment
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	364 Electric Housewares and Fans
	
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	365 Household Vacuum Cleaners
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	366 Household Appliances, N .E.C .
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	367 Electric Lamps
	
	0 .743554
	0 . \1 2582
	0 .2 11020
	1.067 155
	1.151410
	. 1.435210

	
	368  Wiring Devices
	
	0 .607237
	0 . 133770
	0. 192723
	0 .933729
	1.220292
	1.537669

	
	369 Lighting Fixtures and Equipment
	
	0.476986
	0 . \ 90224
	0 .20 5704
	0 .8729 14
	1.398805
	1.830064

	
	3 70 Radio and TV Receiving Sets
	
	0 .368783
	0 . 164376
	0.195095
	0 .728253
	1.445725
	1.974750

	
	371  Phonol!;r3ph Records and Tape
	
	0 .748342
	0 .067 195
	0 .330232
	1.145769
	1.08979 1
	1.53 1076

	
	372 Telephone and Telegraph Apparatus
	
	0.470444
	0 . 164 362
	0.141 265
	0 .776071
	1.349377
	1.649657

	
	373  Radio and Tv Communication Equipment
	0.508586
	0 . 157499
	0.154149
	0 .820234
	1.309681
	1.612774

	
	374 Communicatio ns Equipment N .E.C.
	
	0 .687369
	0 . 1001 99
	0 .227463
	1.015031
	1.14577 1
	1.476690

	
	375 Electron Tubes
	
	0.189241
	0 .3 17630
	0 . 18135 1
	0 .688223
	2.67844 1
	3 .636745

	
	376 Printed C ircuit Boards
	
	0 .705061
	0 .088547
	0.313516
	1.1071 25
	1.1 25587
	1.570 253

	
	377 Semiconducto rs and Related Devices
	
	0 .633629
	0 . 137050
	0.179882
	0 .950560
	1.216293
	1.500 184

	
	378 Electronic Compo nents . N .E.C.
	
	0 .3 13355
	0 .206 146
	0 .166803
	0 .686305
	1.657868
	2. 190181
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	Total Value Added Multipliers
	Mav09. 2002

	
	
	
	
	

	
	~F-
	
	

	
	Olovrioht MIG 2002
	
	NewHavCol-Type2.iap
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Description
	Direct
	
	Indirect
	Induced
	
	Total
	ImJ
	lYru;Jl

	
	
	Elfeels
	
	Effocls
	Elfocls
	
	
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	
	3 79 Storaj!.e Batteries
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	3 80 Primary Batteries, Dry and Wet
	0 .65041 1
	0 .106731
	0 . 189257
	0
	.946398
	L1 64097
	1.455077

	
	381
	En11:ine Electrical Equipment
	0.501048
	0 .121150
	0
	.1801 55
	0
	.80 2353
	1.24 1794
	1.601350

	
	382 Ma11:netic & Optical Recordinl!: Media
	0 .000000
	0 .000000 .
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	-
	383 Electrical Equipment. N .E.C.
	0 .25945 1
	0 .239223
	0
	. 18550 1
	0
	.684175
	1.922037
	2 .637011

	
	384 Motor Vehicles
	0 .337246
	0
	.183341
	0
	. 139370
	0
	.659957
	1.543643
	1.956902

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	385 Truck and Bus Bodies
	0.484 181
	0
	.044028
	0.1 2377 1
	0
	.651981
	1.090932
	1.346563

	
	386 Motoc Vehicle Parts and Accessories
	0 .288644
	0 . 198936
	0. 164134
	0
	.651713
	1.68920 8
	2 .257846

	
	387 Truck: Trailers
	0.268622
	0 . 16032 1
	0.142625
	0
	.571569
	1.596829
	2 .127780

	
	388 Motoc Homes
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	389
	Aircraft
	0 .219939
	027271 5
	0
	. 187889
	0
	.680542
	2.239958
	3 .094236

	
	390 Aircraft and Miss ile En11:ines and Parts
	0 .312717
	0 .308624
	0
	.234965
	0
	.856306
	1.9869 10
	2.738275

	
	391  Aircraft and Miss ile Equipment.
	0.424507
	0 . 197107
	0
	.238342
	0
	.859956
	1.464320
	2 .025776

	
	392 Ship Buildinl!: and Repairinl!:
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	393 Boat Building and Repairing
	0 .546065
	0
	. 117693
	0 .26 1693
	0
	.9254 5 1
	1.2 15528
	1.694763

	
	394 Railroad Equipment
	0.555689
	0.100302
	0.250387
	0
	.906377
	1.180500
	1.63 1088

	
	395 Motorcycles, Bicycles, and Parts
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	396 Complete Guided Missiles
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	397
	Travel Trailers and Camper
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	398
	Tanks and Tank Components
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	399 Transportation Equipment. N.E.C
	0 .361799
	0
	.140496
	0 . 15907 1
	0
	.661366
	1.388327
	1.827991

	
	400
	Search & Navi11:ation Equipment
	0.336381
	0
	.252275
	0
	.23 171 5
	0
	.820372
	1.749969
	2.438817

	
	401
	Laboratory Apparatus & Furniture
	0.333944
	0
	.2 11 851
	0
	.20277 1
	0
	.748567
	1.634392
	2 .24 1592

	
	402 Automatic Temperature Controls
	0 .526827
	0
	.177662
	0
	.29432 1
	0
	.998810
	1.3 37230
	1.895896

	
	403 Mechanical Measuring Devices
	0.446296
	0
	. 185932
	0
	.249766
	0
	.881993
	1.41 66 11
	1.976253

	
	404 Instruments To Measure Electric ity
	0 .299373
	0
	.224823
	0
	. 199593
	0
	.723789
	1.750978
	2.4 17684

	
	405 Analytical Instruments
	0 .260276
	0 .2699 11
	0
	.20 149 1
	0
	.731 678
	2.037017
	2 .8 111 62

	
	406 Optical Instruments & Lenses
	0.479 182
	0 .190036
	0
	.275078
	0 .944296
	1.396585
	1.97064 3

	
	407
	Surgical and Medical Instrument
	0
	.567090
	0.179285
	0
	.288412
	1.034787
	1.316150
	1.824732

	
	408
	Sur)!;ical Appliances and Supplies
	0
	.247370
	0 .285246
	0
	. 192402
	0 .725019
	2 .153 11 6
	2 .930 908

	
	409. Dental Equipment and Supplies
	0
	.330846
	0 .268877
	0
	.2 19326
	0.819050
	1.8 12696
	2 .475620

	
	410
	X- Ray Apparatus
	0
	.280058
	0 .240506
	0. 184785
	0 .705349
	1.85877 1
	2.5 18581

	
	411
	Electromedical Apparatus
	0
	.289423
	0 .227085
	0 . 189944
	0
	.7064 5 1
	1.7846 11
	2 .440894

	
	41 2 Ophthalmic Goods
	0
	.50 2993
	0 .233486
	0 .290302
	1.02678 1
	1.464 192
	2.04134 1

	
	413  Photomphic Equipment and Supplies
	0
	.230539
	0 .296229
	0. 180537
	0
	.707305
	2.28494 1
	3 .068050

	
	414
	Watches, Clocks. and Parts
	0
	.463312
	0.167938
	0
	.252245
	0 .883496
	1.362473
	1.906913

	
	41 5 Jewelry, Precious Metal
	0
	.497319
	0 .059377
	0 . 149347
	0 .706043
	1.119393
	1.419698

	
	416 Silverware and Plated Ware
	0.421242
	0 .184103
	0. 164817
	0.770 162
	1.437048
	1.828313

	
	417 Jewelers Materials and Lapidary Work
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	418
	Musical Instruments
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	419 Dolls
	0
	.934337
	0.005229
	0 .377853
	1.3174 19
	1.005597
	1.410004

	
	4 20
	Garnes, Toys, and Childrens Vehicles
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	421
	Sportinl!: and Athletic Goods, N .E.C .
	0 .462267
	0 .2 12731
	0. 18 1836
	0 .856833
	1.460 19 1
	1.853548

	
	4 22 Pens and Mechanical Pencils
	0.6058 12
	0 .164999
	0. 18830 5
	0 .9591 16
	1.27236 1
	1.5831 92

	
	4 23
	Lead Pencils and Art Goods
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	4 24
	Markin!!: Devices
	0
	.71356 7
	0 .09577 1
	0 .255235
	1.064 573
	1.1 342 14
	1.491904

	
	4 25
	Carbon Paper and Inked Ribbons
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	4 26 Costume Jewelery
	0.619220
	0 .036809
	0 .123 11 5
	0 .779143
	1.059445
	1.258267

	
	4 27 Fasteners, Buttons, Needles, Pins
	0.757482
	0 .079173
	0.271452
	1.108 107
	1.10452 1
	1.462881

	
	4 28 Brooms and Brushes
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	4 29 Sii!:OS and Advertisinl!: Displays
	0.493499
	0 . 176499
	0 .22 1453
	0 .89 14 5 1
	1.357647
	1.806388

	
	430 Burial Caskets and Vaults
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	4 3 1 Hard Surface Floor Coverini!:S
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	432 Man ufacturinl!: Industries, N.E.C.
	0 .552783
	0 .171 432
	0 .213195
	0 .9374 10
	1.310 125
	1.69580 1
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	Total Value Added Multipliers
	May09, 2002

	
	
	

	
	Cc!Jyril(ht MIG 2002
	NewHavCol-Type2.iap
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Direct
	Indirect
	Induced
	
	
	

	
	Description
	Effects
	Effects
	Effects
	Total
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	
	433 Railroads and Related Services
	0 .642242
	0. 168070
	0 .274963
	1.085276
	1.261692
	1.689822

	
	434 Local, Interurban Passenger Transit
	0.629147
	0. 167529
	0 .293522
	1.090198
	1.266280
	1.732820

	
	435 Motor Freight Transport and Warehousing
	0.455352
	0263928
	0 .242337
	0 .961617
	1.5796 12
	2. 111 809

	-
	436 Water Transportation
	0 .300926
	0.297910
	0 . 192588
	0.791424
	1.989977
	2.629960

	
	437 AirTransportation
	0 .684696
	0.118725
	0240194
	1.043616
	1.173398
	1.524202

	
	438 Pipe Lines. Except Natural Gas
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	439 Arrangement Of Passenger Transportation
	0.737278
	0 . 157175
	0 .295565
	1.190018
	1.213183
	1.61407 1

	
	440 Transportation Services
	0 .713937
	0 .147448
	0 .343655
	1.205041
	1.206529
	1.68788 1

	
	441  Communications. Except Radio and TV
	0 .577964
	0. 187368
	0 . 171095
	0.936427
	1.324186
	1.620216

	
	442 Radio and TV Broadcasting
	0 .442980
	0. 192727
	0 .227093
	0 .862800
	1.435069
	1.947717

	
	443 Electric Services
	0 .812409
	0 .083481
	0 .120641
	1.016531
	1.102758
	1.251255

	
	444 Gas Production and Distribution
	0.339297
	0. 128516
	0 .099704
	0 .5675 17
	1.378770
	1.672624

	
	445 Water Supply and Sewerage Systems
	0 .590510
	0.253624
	0 .205746
	1.049880
	1.429499
	1.777919

	
	446 Sanitary Services and Steam Supply
	0 .62 1476
	0 .194190
	0 .207000
	1.022666
	1.312465
	1.645544

	
	447 Wholesale Trade
	0 .709593
	0 . 144653
	0 .238078
	1.092324
	1.203854
	1.539368

	
	448 Building Materials & Gardening
	0.867320
	0 .070033
	0 .266837
	1.204191
	1.080747
	1.388403

	
	449 General Merchandise Stores
	0 .805233
	0. 102805
	0 .247428
	1.155467
	1.127672
	1.434947

	
	450 Food Stores
	0 .923505
	0 .040377
	0 .284238
	1.248119
	1.04372 1
	1.351 503

	
	451  Automotive Dealers & Service Stations
	0 .791464
	0 .110073
	0 .243225
	1.144761
	1.139075
	1.4463 85

	
	452 Apparel & Accessory Stores
	0.729751
	0.142648
	0 .223970
	1.096368
	1.195475
	1.502388

	
	453 Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores
	0 .835657
	0 .086746
	0 .256927
	1.179330
	1.103806
	1.411 260

	
	454 Eating & Drinking
	0.576370
	0 . 170421
	0 .233860
	0 .980651
	1.295679
	1.701427

	
	455 Miscellaneous Retail
	0 .830937
	0.089238
	0 .255588
	1.175762
	1.107394
	1.414984

	
	456 Banking
	0 .627686
	0.175627
	0.157841
	0 .961154
	1.279801
	1.53 1266

	
	457 Credit Agenc ies
	0 .517141
	0.201357
	0 .397251
	1.115749
	1.389365
	2. 157533

	
	458 Security and Commodity Brokers
	0 .737224
	0. 110848
	0 .300772
	1.148845
	1.1 50358
	1.558338

	
	459 Insurance Carriers
	0 .641455
	0 .202844
	0.241159
	1.0854 59
	1.316225
	1.692182

	
	460 Insurance Agents and Brokers
	0 .703 588
	0 .154976
	0 .336751
	1.195315
	1.220266
	1.698886

	
	461 Owner-occupied Dwellings
	0 .770649
	0 . 112496
	0 .037786
	0 .920931
	1.145976
	1.195008

	
	462 Real Estate
	0 .717071
	0 . 157748
	0 . 110650
	0 .985469
	1.219990
	1.374297

	
	463 Hotels and Lodging Places
	0 .673921
	0.172276
	0 .244063
	1.090260
	1.255633
	1.617787

	
	464 Laundry, Cleaning and Sboe Repair
	0 .755668
	0 .134354
	0.346887
	1.236908
	1.177795
	1.636841

	
	465 Portrait and Photographic Studios
	0.529062
	0 .258500
	0 .267769
	1.055330
	1.488599
	1.994718

	
	466 Beauty and Barber Shops
	0 .641118
	0.207340
	0 .330134
	1.178592
	1.323404
	1.838338

	
	467 Funeral Service and Crematories
	0 .705160
	0.097461
	0 .298034
	1.100655
	1.138211
	1.560858

	
	468 Miscellaneous Personal Services
	0 .384680
	0 .337751
	0 .224639
	0 .947071
	1.878005
	2.461968

	
	469 Advertising
	0.597149
	0.170725
	0 .285386
	1.053260
	1.285900
	1.763814

	
	4 70 Other Business Services
	0.513406
	0 .230724
	0 .227907
	0 .972037
	1.449397
	1.893309

	
	471  Pbotofmishing, Commercial Photomphy
	0.507596
	0264968
	0 .242301
	1.014865
	1.522005
	1.999355

	
	472 Services To Buildings
	0.538365
	0 .225578
	0 .260292
	1.024236
	1.419006
	1.902492

	
	473 EQuipment Rental  and Leasing
	0.541253
	0 .258137
	0 .241420
	1.040811
	1.476925
	1.922964

	
	474 Personnel Supply Services
	0.930196
	0 .035994
	0.42 1149
	1.387339
	1.038695
	1.49 1448

	
	475 Computer and Data Processing Services
	0 .760098
	0 .122696
	0 .353524
	1236318
	1.161422
	1.626525

	
	476 Detective and Protective Services
	0 .800381
	0 .094836
	0 .361689
	1.256906
	1.118488
	1.570385

	
	4 77 Automobile Rental and Leasing
	0 .644204
	0 . 165849
	0 . 188754
	0 .998808
	1257448
	1.550452

	
	478 Automobile Parking and Car Wash
	0 .767621
	0 . 125483
	0 .224236
	1.117341
	1.163471
	1.455589

	
	479 Automobile Repair and Services
	0.568854
	0. 138706
	0 .201686
	0 .909246
	1.243834
	1.598382

	
	480 Electrical Repair Service
	0.491453
	0. 172701
	0 .228790
	0 .892943
	1.351409
	1. 8 16947

	
	481  Watch, Clock. Jewelry and Furniture Repair
	0.423880
	0 .145562
	0 . 175483
	0 .744925
	1.343405
	1.757397

	
	482 Miscellaneous Repair Shops
	0 .557731
	0. 168428
	0 .244249
	0 .970408
	1.301988
	1.739921

	
	483 Motion Pictures
	0 .237014
	0 .231557
	0 . 170289
	0 .638860
	1.976977
	2.695452

	-
	484 Theatrical Producers. Bands Etc.
	0 .333618
	0.368706
	0 .24472 1
	0 .947046
	2.105174
	2.8387 10

	
	485 Bowling Alleys and Pool Halls
	0 .621695
	0 .211412
	0 .270730
	1.103837
	1.340058
	1.775528

	
	486 Commercial Sports Except Racing
	0 .579072
	0. 164856
	0 .288238
	1.032167
	1.284690
	1.78244 8

	
	*Type I=(Direct + Indirect)/Direct**Ty~ II =(Direct+ Indirect +
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	Total Value Added Multipliers
	May09. 2002

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Copyright MIG 2002
	
	
	
	NewHavCol-Type2.iap
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	•
	
	
	
	Direct
	
	Indirect
	Induced
	
	ImJ
	~

	
	Description
	
	
	
	Effects
	
	Effects
	Effects
	Total
	Multiplier*
	Multiplier**

	
	487 Racing and Track Operation
	
	0.481803
	0
	. 15 1276
	0 . 160886
	0 .793965
	1.313980
	1.647904

	
	488 Amusement and Recreation Services, N.E..C.
	0.432085
	0. 289 137
	0 .280227
	1.001449
	1.669 167
	2.3177 12

	
	489 Membership Sports and Recreation Clubs
	0.530323
	0
	.258 177
	0 .293056
	1.081556
	1.486830
	2.0394 30

	
	490 Doctors and Dentists
	
	0
	.686355
	0
	. 178710
	0 .336228
	1.201292
	1.260375
	1.750249

	
	491  Nursin11: and Protective Care
	
	0
	.775908
	0
	. 117959
	0 .369846
	1.263713
	1.1 52026
	1.628689

	
	492 Hospitals.
	
	
	
	0
	.675831
	0 . 1731 28
	0 .349859
	1.198819
	1.256 171
	1.773844

	
	493 Other Medical and Health Services
	
	0.564600
	0
	.230703
	0 .282237
	1.077540
	1.4086 12
	1.908501

	
	494 Le11:31 Services
	
	0
	.769446
	0.126821
	0 .371647
	1.267914
	1.16482 1
	1.647827

	
	495 Elementary and Secondary Schoots
	
	0
	.68 1862
	0.200854
	0 .383596
	1.266313
	1.294567
	1.857138

	
	496 CoiiCJ!:es, Universities, Schools
	
	0
	.760309
	0
	. 143657
	0.402345
	1.306311
	1.188945
	1.71 8131

	
	497 Other Educational Services
	
	0.399055
	0
	.283918
	0 .253837
	0 .936809
	1.711476
	2.347571

	
	498 Job Trainin11:5 & Related Services
	
	0
	.575478
	0
	.211050
	0 .328675
	1.115202
	1.366738
	1.937872

	
	499 Child Day Care Services
	
	0
	.389573
	0
	.28 1633
	0 .243452
	0.914659
	1.722927
	2.347847

	
	500 Social Services, N .E.C.
	
	0.463 533
	0
	.250999
	0 .287722
	1.002254
	1.541491
	2.162208

	
	50 I
	Residential Care
	
	0
	.729403
	0
	. 143137
	0.370048
	1.242588
	1.196239
	1.703569

	
	502 Other Nonprofit Organizations
	
	0
	.680051
	0.154802
	0.363648
	1.198501
	1.227633
	1.762370

	
	503  Business Associations
	
	0
	.8 11 868
	0 .082387
	0 .399784
	1.294039
	1.101478
	1.593903

	
	504 Labor and Civic Or11:anizations
	
	0 .982807
	0 .008158
	0.458264
	1.449229
	1.008301
	1.474581

	
	505 Religious Or11:30izations
	
	0
	. 135799
	0.504549
	0 . 186826
	0 .827175
	4 .71 5398
	6.091150

	-
	506 Enltineering, Architectural Services
	
	0.478997
	0 .291883
	0.3126 19
	1.083499
	1.609362
	2.262014

	
	507 Accounting. Auditin11: and Bookkeepin11:
	0 .756239
	0.144100
	0 .382413
	1.282753
	1.190548
	1.696226

	
	508 Management and Consultin11: Services
	
	0 .536558
	0.238906
	0 .309243
	1.084707
	1.44 5257
	2.021603

	
	509 Research. Development & Testin11: Services
	0.594713
	0 .208466
	0 .335 190
	1.138369
	1.350533
	1.9141 50

	
	5 10
	Local Government Passenger Transit
	
	-1.682 175
	1.077861
	0 .849166
	0 .244852
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	51 1 State and Local Electric Utilities
	
	0 .460686
	0 .229515
	0 . 144478
	0 .834678
	1.498203
	1.8 1181 7

	
	512
	Other State and Local Govt Enterprises
	0.439089
	0 .334179
	0 .235004
	1.008273
	1.761074
	2.296282

	
	513 U.S. Postal Service
	
	0.760927
	0 .1020 27
	0 .393461
	1.25641 5
	1.134083
	1.651164

	
	514 Federal Electric Utilities
	
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	515
	Other Federal Government Enterprises
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	5 16
	Noncomparable Imports
	
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	5 17
	Scrap
	
	
	
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	518 Used and Secondhand Goods
	
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	519
	Federal Government - Military
	
	1.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .268823
	1.268823
	1.000000
	1.268823

	
	520
	Federal Government - Non-Military
	
	1.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .393501
	1.393501
	1.000000
	1.393501

	
	521 Commodity Credit Corporation
	
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	522
	State & Local Government - Education
	1.000000
	0 .000000
	0.463909
	1.463909
	1.000000
	1.463909

	
	523 State & Local Government - Non-Education
	1.000000
	0.000000
	0 .361492
	1.36 1492
	1.000000
	1.361492

	
	524
	Rest OfThe World Industry
	
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	525
	Domestic Services
	
	1.000000
	0.000000
	0.463909
	1.463909
	1.000000
	1.4639 10

	
	526 Dummy
	
	
	
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	527
	Dummy
	
	
	
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	528
	Inventory Valuation Adjustment
	
	1.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	1.000000
	1.000000
	1.000000
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Output, Value Added and Employment
May 9, 2002

Ba.<e Year:l999
NewHavCoi-Type2.iap

Copyrigtol MIG 200 2

	
	
	
	Industry
	
	Employee
	Proprietor
	Other  Property
	Indirect
	
	Total

	
	
	
	Output*
	Emplovment Compensation*
	~
	Income*
	
	Business Tax*
	Value Added*

	
	I
	Dairy Farm Products
	3
	.701
	22
	0 .219
	0
	.735
	0
	. 114
	0
	.011
	1.080

	
	2
	Poultry and Eggs
	4
	.873
	22
	0 .223
	0
	.320
	0
	. 153
	O.Ql5
	0 .711

	
	3
	Ranch Fed Cattle
	0
	.861
	14
	0.038
	0
	. 120
	0.027
	0.023
	0.207

	-
	4
	Range Fed Cattle
	0
	.085
	2
	0 .004
	0
	.010
	0
	.002
	0
	.002
	0 .01 8

	
	5
	Cattle Feedlots
	0.252
	
	0.011
	0
	.029
	0
	.007
	0
	.006
	0 .053

	
	6
	Sheep, Lambs and Goats
	0
	.011
	
	0.000
	0.001
	0
	.000
	0
	.000
	0 .002

	
	7   Hogs, Pigs and Swine
	0
	.042
	
	0 .002
	0
	.004
	0
	.001
	0
	.001
	0.008

	
	8
	Other Meat Animal Products
	0
	.000
	0
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	9
	Miscellaneous Livestock
	3. 173
	114
	0 .269
	0
	.391
	0. 165
	0
	.033
	0 .858

	
	10
	Cotton
	0
	.000
	0
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	II
	Food Grains
	0
	.000
	0
	0.000
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	12
	Feed Grains
	0
	.000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	13
	Hay and Pasture
	1.957
	87
	0.042
	0
	.373
	0.286
	0 . 111
	0 .81 2

	
	14
	Grass Seeds
	0
	.000
	0
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0
	.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	15
	Tobacco
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	16
	Fruits
	2.234
	33
	0 .371
	0
	.099
	0
	.116
	0
	.037
	0.623

	
	17
	Tree Nuts
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	18
	Vegetables
	4.500
	39
	0.595
	0 .474
	0
	.444
	0
	.068
	1.58 1

	
	19
	Sugar Crops
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0.000

	
	20
	Miscellaneous Crops
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	21
	Oil Bearing Crops
	0.000
	0
	o.ooo ·
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	22
	Forest Products
	2.475
	31
	0 .051
	0 .336
	0 .655
	0
	.061
	1.102

	
	23
	Greenhouse and Nursery Products
	45
	. 122
	655
	9 .793
	5.606
	8.476
	0
	.36 5
	24.240

	
	24
	Forestry Products
	0 .238
	23
	0 .006
	0 .061
	0.063
	0
	.01 5
	0 . 144

	
	25
	Commercial Fishing
	3.437
	65
	0 .674
	0 .885
	1.321
	0.089
	2.969

	
	26
	Agricultural, Forestry, Fishery Ser
	3.659
	193
	1.438
	0.421
	0 .348
	0
	.091
	2 .298

	
	27
	Landscape and Horticultural Servi·
	71.002
	1,716
	22.573
	7.829
	13.339
	1.890
	45.630

	
	28
	Iron Ores
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	29
	Copper Ores
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	30
	Lead and Zinc Ores
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	31
	Gold Ores
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	32
	Silver Ores
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	33
	Ferroalloy Ores, Except Vanadium
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	34
	Metal Mining Services
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	35
	Uranium-radium-vanadium Ores
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	36
	Metal Ores, Not Elswhere Classifi<
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	37
	Coal Mining
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	38
	Natural Gas & Crude Petroleum
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	39
	Natural Gas Liquids
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	40
	Dimension Stone
	1.353
	9
	0 .319
	0 . 172
	0.353
	0 .040
	0 .885

	
	41
	Sand and Gravel
	83 .397
	310
	24 .241
	10.793
	20.059
	2.614
	57.707

	
	42
	Clay, Ceramic, Refractory Mineral
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	4 3
	Potash. Soda, and Borate Minerals
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	44
	Phosphate Rock
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	45
	Chemical, Fertilizer Mineral Mini1
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	46
	Nonmetallic Minerals (Except Fue
	0.759
	3
	0.180
	0 .049
	0.200
	0 .025
	0 .453

	
	47
	Misc. Nonmetallic Minerals, N .E.I
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	48
	New Residential Structures
	562.913
	3,913
	88.361
	44.427
	16.797
	4 .5 13
	154.097

	
	49
	New Industrial and Commercial B
	517 .787
	3,978
	132.705
	65 . 172
	20.809
	6 .285
	224 .971

	
	50
	New Utility Structures
	53.901
	497
	16.963
	8.287
	2.955
	0.4 73
	28.678

	
	51
	New Highways and Streets
	132.107
	1,031
	33 .534
	16.352
	7.731
	1.209
	58 .826

	
	52
	New Farm Structures
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	53
	New Mineral Extraction Facilities
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
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	.
	
	B~ Year:l999
	NewHavCoi-Type2.iap
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Copyiighl MIG2001
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Industry
	
	Employee
	Proprietor
	Other  Property
	Indirect
	Total
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Output*
	Employment  Compensation*
	Income*
	Income*
	Business Tax*
	Value Added*

	
	54
	New Government Facilities
	574.748
	3,293
	148.877
	74
	.389
	32. 163
	5. 151
	260.581

	
	55
	Maintenance and Repair, Resident
	435.722
	3,040
	81 .556
	43.506
	2.858
	0.326
	134.246

	
	56
	Maintenance and Repair Other Fa<
	873.473
	11,037
	363.5 19
	179
	.732
	23 .359
	2. 175
	568
	.784

	
	57
	Maintenance and Repair Oil and G
	22.923
	144
	0.295
	7
	.904
	3.792
	0.842
	12.83 2

	
	58
	Meat Packing Plants
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0
	.000

	
	59
	Sausages and Other Prepared Mea•
	42.959
	193
	6.832
	0.312
	1.909
	0 .343
	9
	.397

	
	60
	Poultry Processing
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000

	
	61
	Creamery Butter
	
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0
	.000

	
	62
	Cheese, Natural and Processed
	66.450
	130
	4.434
	0 . 159
	3.751
	0.410
	8
	.75 3

	
	63
	Condensed and Evaporated Milk
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0
	.000

	
	64
	Ice Cream and Frozen Desserts
	20.711
	88
	3.666
	0 .164
	2.01 2
	0. 178
	6
	.019

	
	65
	Fluid Milk
	
	19.713
	53
	2.252
	0
	.102
	1.052
	0 . 160
	3.566

	
	66
	Canned Specialties
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000

	
	67
	Canned Fruits and Vegetables
	6.502
	26
	1.281
	0
	.030
	1.2 15
	0.056
	2.582

	
	68
	Dehydrated Food Products
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	
	69
	Picldes, Sauces, and Salad Dressin
	0 .220
	I
	0 .024
	0
	.001
	0 .069
	0.002
	0 .096

	
	70
	Frozen Fruits, Juices and Vegetabl
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0
	.000

	
	71
	Frozen Specialties
	36 .342
	188
	5.891
	0
	.236
	6.504
	0 .277
	12
	.908

	
	72
	Flour and Other Grain Mill Produ<
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0
	.000

	
	73
	Cereal Preparations
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000

	
	74
	Rice Milling
	
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000

	
	75
	Blended and Prepared Flour
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0
	.000

	
	76
	Wet Com Milling
	
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0
	.000

	
	77  Dog, Cat, and Other Pet Food
	0 .918
	2
	0.131
	0
	.006
	0 .084
	0 .009
	0
	.229

	
	78
	Prepared Feeds, N .E.C
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0
	.000

	
	79
	Bread, Cake, and Related Producll
	71.573
	436
	14.480
	0 .806
	10.035
	0 .434
	25
	.756

	
	80
	Cookies and Crackers
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0
	.000

	
	81
	Sugar
	
	
	
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000

	
	82
	Confectionery Products
	197.610
	761
	25 .975
	1.022
	38.466
	1.475
	66.939

	
	83
	Chocolate and Cocoa Products
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000

	
	84
	Chewing Gum
	
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000

	
	85
	Salted and Roasted Nuts & Seeds
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0
	.000

	
	86
	Cottonseed Oil Mills
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0
	.000

	
	87
	Soybean Oil Mills
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0
	.000

	
	88
	Vegetable Oil Mills, N .E.C
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0
	.000

	
	89
	Animal and Marine Fats and Oils
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	90
	Shortening and Cooking Oils
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	91
	Malt Beverages
	
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	92
	Malt
	
	
	
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	93
	Wines, Brandy, and Brandy Spirill
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	94
	Distilled Liquor, Ex:cept Brandy
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	95   Bottled and Canned Soft Drinks &
	10.991
	37
	0.855
	0 .057
	0 .622
	0 .056
	1.590

	
	96
	Flavoring Ex:tracts and Syrups, NJ
	0.373
	5
	0 .072
	0 .004
	0 . 169
	. 0 .003
	0 .247

	
	97
	Canned and Cured Sea Foods
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	98  Prepared Fresh Or Frozen Fish Or
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000

	
	99
	Roasted Coffee
	
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	100
	Potato Chips & Simi lar Snacks
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	I 0 I
	Manufactured Ice
	
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	-
	I 02
	Macaroni and Spaghetti
	0 .729
	6
	0.043
	0 .002
	0 .02 5
	0.001
	0 .071

	
	103
	Food Preparations, N.E.C
	25 .759
	130
	4 .282
	0 .238
	4. 143
	0 .202
	8.865

	
	I 04
	Cigarettes
	
	
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	105
	Cigars
	
	
	
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	106
	Chewing and Smoking Tobacco
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
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	.
	Output, Value Added and Employment
	
	May9, 2002

	
	.
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	.
	B~ Year:1999
	Ne wHavCoi-Type2.iap
	
	
	
	
	

	•COIJI'Tiglt MIG 2002
	
	Industry
	
	Employee
	Proprietor
	Other  Property
	Indirect
	
	Total

	
	
	
	Output*
	Employment  Compensation*
	Income*
	Income*
	Business Tax*
	Value Added*

	107
	Tobacco Stemming and Redrying
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	108
	Broadwoven Fabric Mills and Fini
	7.543
	60
	1.913
	0 .0 37
	0 .540
	0
	.065
	2.556

	109
	Narrow Fabric Mi lls
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0.000

	110  Womens Hosiery, Except Socks
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	Ill
	Hosiery, N .E.C
	
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .0 00

	112
	Knit Outerwear Mills
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	113
	Knit Underwear Mills
	0 .000
	0
	o:ooo
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	114
	Knit Fabric Mills
	
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	115
	Knitting Mills, N .E.C .
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	11 6
	Yam M ills and Finishing OfTexti
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	117
	Carpets and Rugs
	
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0.000

	118
	Thread Mills
	
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000

	1 19
	Coated Fabrics, Not Rubberized
	10. 114
	54
	2 .979
	0.017
	0 .259
	0 . 11 2
	3.367

	· 120
	Tire Cord and Fabric
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	121
	Nonwoven Fabrics
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	122
	Cordage and Twine
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0.000

	123
	Textile Goods, N .E.C
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0.000

	124  Apparel Made From Purchased M:
	70. 198
	556
	22 .669
	0 .2 53
	5. 172
	0.41 7
	2 8.51 2

	125
	Curtains and Draperies
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0.0 00

	126
	Housefu mishings, N .E.C
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	127
	Textile. Bags
	
	0 .272
	3
	0 .077
	0 .001
	0 .023
	0
	.003
	0.103

	128
	Canvas Products
	
	8.885
	77
	4 .05 5
	0 .0 58
	1.43 1
	0
	.079
	5.623

	129
	Pleating and Stitching
	5.67 1
	66
	1.940
	0.0 25
	2.03 8
	0
	.0 51
	4.0 54

	130
	Automotive and Apparel Trimmin:
	7.326
	46
	1.782
	0.033
	0 .55 2
	0 .0 67
	2.435

	131
	Schiffi Machine Embroideries
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	132
	Fabricated Textile Products, N .E.C
	14.479
	9 1
	2.645
	0.040
	2 .507
	0 . 104
	5.297

	133  Logging Camps and Logging C oni
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	134
	Sawmills and Planing Mills, Gene1
	1.848
	10
	0 .272
	0.0 55
	0. 122
	0 .0 16
	0.465

	135
	Hardwood Dimension and Floorin;
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	136
	Special Product Sawmills, N .E.C
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000

	137
	Millwork
	
	27.790
	255
	9 . 184
	2.58 1
	1.203
	0 .3 16
	13 .284

	138
	Wood Kitchen Cabinets
	26.607
	298
	8 .9 55
	2. 396
	2.503
	0 .289
	14. 143

	139
	Veneer and Plywood
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	140  Structural Wood Members, N.E.C
	0.678
	6
	0 . 137
	0.0 37
	0.034
	0 .006
	0.2 14

	141
	·Wood Containers
	
	0 .473
	6
	0.169
	0.045
	0.03 5
	0 .005
	0 .254

	142
	Wood Pallets and Skids
	9.202
	116
	2 .943
	0.691
	0.642
	0 .092
	4 .368

	143
	Mobile Homes
	
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000

	144
	Prefabricated Wood Buildi ngs
	0 .363
	3
	0 .093
	0.021
	0 .02 1
	0 .004
	0 . 138

	145
	Wood Preserving
	
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	146
	Reconstituted Wood Products
	1.548
	5
	0 .236
	0.0 58
	0 .2 70
	O.ot8
	0 .58 1

	147
	Wood Products, N.E.C
	7.821
	77
	2 .018
	0.499
	0 .774
	0 .080
	3.372

	148
	Wood Household Furniture
	6 .702
	73
	1.967
	0 .20 2
	0 .592
	0 .04 8
	2.8 10

	149
	Upholstered Household Furniture
	5.428
	58
	1.678
	0. 171
	0 .2 82
	O.o38
	2. 169

	150
	Metal Household Furniture
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	151
	Mattresses and Bedsprings
	1.552
	14
	0.383
	0 .028
	0. 122
	0 .008
	0 .541

	152
	Wood Tv and Radio Cabinets
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	153
	Household Furniture, N .E.C
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	154
	Wood Office Furniture
	0.4 25
	5
	0 . 11 8
	0.0 14
	0.01 6
	0 .002
	0 . 151

	155
	Metal Office Furniture
	25. 380
	130
	5.250
	0.544
	1.587
	0 . 163
	7.542

	156
	Public Buildi ng Furniture
	0.444
	
	0 .0 59
	0.009
	0 .026
	0 .002
	0 .096

	157
	Wood Partitions and Fix tures
	5.952
	50
	1.922
	0. 155
	0.43 1
	0.040
	2.548

	158
	Metal Partitions a nd Fixtures
	4 .50 1
	34
	1.1 94
	0.097
	0 .357
	0 .0 28
	1.676

	159
	Blinds, Shades, and Drapery Hard•
	7.787
	57
	2.243
	0. 18 1
	1.347
	0 .0 55
	3.825
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	Output, Value Added and Employment
	
	May 9,2002

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Bare Y ear:l999
	NewHavCol-Type2.iap
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	•Copyrigl< MIG2002
	Industry
	
	Employee
	Proprietor
	Other  Property
	Indirect
	
	Total

	
	
	
	Output*
	Emplovment Compensation*
	Income*
	Income*
	Business Tax*
	Value Added*

	
	160
	Furniture and Fixtures, N .E.C
	12. 141
	51
	2331
	0.1 88
	1.498
	0
	.073
	4 .090

	
	161
	Pulp Mills
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	162
	Paper Mills, Except Building Pape
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	163
	Paperboard Mills
	27 .362
	59
	4.319
	0
	.174
	4 .002
	0
	.345
	8.840

	-
	164
	Paperboard Containers and Boxes
	138.286
	679
	30.791
	0 .977
	7.223
	1.606
	40.597

	
	165
	Paper Coated & Laminated Packat
	1.276
	1
	0.151
	0
	.007
	0. 107
	0 .009
	0 .274

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	166
	Paper Coated & Laminated N.E.C.
	10.929
	58
	2 .269
	0
	. 122
	1.156
	0
	.095
	3.643

	
	167
	Bags, Plastic
	0.710
	4
	0. 124
	0
	.004
	0.080
	0
	.007
	0.2 15

	
	168
	Bags, Paper
	0 .352
	2
	0 .073
	0 .002
	0 .042
	0 .004
	0 . 122

	
	169
	Die-cut Paper and Board
	9.1 25
	78
	1.374
	0
	.052
	0.420
	0.067
	1.913

	
	170
	Sanitary Paper Products
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000

	
	171
	Envelopes
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000

	
	172
	Stationery Products
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	173  Converted Paper Products, N.E.C
	45.470
	235
	8.574
	0
	.260
	5.660
	0.498
	14 .992

	
	174
	Newspapers
	123.766
	1,555
	44.686
	2
	.969
	13.211
	1.426
	62293

	
	17 5
	Periodicals
	87.940
	468
	24.570
	1.941
	10. 182
	0 .997
	37.691

	
	176
	Book Publishing
	59 .126
	291
	8270
	0
	.701
	5.604
	0 .5 13
	15.088

	
	177
	Book Printing
	0 .2 10
	2
	0.032
	0
	.003
	0 .007
	0 .002
	0.044

	
	178
	Miscellaneous Publishing
	138.520
	730
	43 .232
	3
	.425
	30.845
	1.821
	79.323

	
	179
	Commercial Printing
	334 .600
	2,608
	113.568
	8
	.261
	21.813
	4.282
	147.924

	
	180
	Manifold Business Forms
	15.545
	90
	4.465
	0
	.337
	1.645
	0.221
	6.669

	
	181
	Greeting Card Publishing
	14.358
	78
	2.236
	0
	.325
	0.033
	0 .002
	2.597

	
	182
	Blankbooks and Looseleaf Binder
	2.393
	20
	0 .630
	0 .072
	0 .226
	0
	.0 30
	0 .958

	
	183
	Bookbinding & Related
	4.041
	63
	1.755
	0
	.128
	0 .272
	0 .047
	2.202

	
	184
	Typesetting
	3. 144
	24
	1.266
	0
	.099
	0 .278
	0
	.035
	1.677

	
	185
	Plate Making
	13.655
	146
	9.305
	0
	.673
	1.050
	0
	.168
	11.196

	
	186
	Alkalies & Chlorine
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	187
	Industrial Gases
	152.719
	570
	81.448
	2
	.264
	2 1.038
	3. 174
	107.924

	
	188
	Inorganic Pigments
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	189
	Inorganic Chemicals Nee.
	26.830
	63
	4 .250
	0.1 80
	3.349
	0
	.505
	8284

	
	190
	Cyclic Crudes, lnterm. & Indus. 0
	486.499
	860
	77.374
	2. 317
	66.361
	10.011
	156.063

	
	191
	Plastics Materials and Resins
	318. 190
	605
	37.076
	1.200
	27 .019
	2.533
	67.828

	
	192
	Synthetic. Rubber
	2 1.937
	92
	3.574
	0
	.158
	1.814
	0
	. 144
	5.689

	
	193
	Cellulosic Man-made. Fibers
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	194
	Organic Fibers, Noncellulosic
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	195
	Drugs
	1,481.490
	4,387
	416.815
	18
	.004
	406.916
	19.006
	860.740

	
	196
	Soap and Other Detergents
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	
	197
	Polishes and Sanitation Goods
	18.428
	16
	5.090
	0
	.211
	6:44 5
	0. 194
	12.000

	
	198
	Surface Active Agents
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	199
	Toilet Preparations
	21.153
	68
	4.258
	0
	.200
	6 .133
	0.219
	10.81 1

	
	200
	Paints and Allied Products
	33 . 183
	78
	6.286
	0 . 197
	6.63 2
	0.380
	IJ.495

	
	20 I
	Gum and Wood Chemicals
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	
	202
	Nitrogenous and Phosphatic Fertili
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	
	203
	Fertilizers, Mixing Only
	16.370
	49
	1.592
	0
	.076
	0.530
	0 . 127
	2.326

	
	204
	Agricultural Chemicals, N .E.C
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	
	205
	Adhesives and Sealants
	32.941
	113
	7.231
	0 .239
	4.611
	0.334
	12.41 5

	
	206
	Explosives
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	
	207
	Printing Ink
	3.834
	17
	0 .593
	0 .011
	0 . 150
	0 .0 22
	0.777

	
	208
	Carbon Black
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	209
	Chemical Preparations, N.E.C
	21 5.897
	511
	53.591
	1.759
	35 .686
	2.530
	93.566

	
	210
	Petroleum Refining
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	2 11
	Paving Mixtures and Blocks
	17.70 2
	34
	2.971
	0 .066
	5.31 8
	0 .204
	8.559

	
	2 12
	Asphalt Felts and Coatings
	26.550
	97
	3.241
	0 .104
	10.01 8
	0.248
	13.610
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	Bare Year:I 999
	NewHavCol-Type2.iap
	
	
	
	
	
	

	•Co~gjll MIG2002
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Industry
	
	Employee
	Proprietor
	Other  Property
	Indirect
	
	Total

	
	
	
	Output*
	Employment  Compensation*
	~
	Income*
	Business Tax*
	Value Added*

	2 13
	Lubricating Oils and Greases
	12.33 1
	20
	3. 154
	0.1 24
	0 .739
	0
	.245
	4 .262

	2 14
	Petrolewn and Coal Products, N.E
	0.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	2 15
	Tires and Inner Tubes
	0.652
	3
	0
	.258
	0 .003
	0 .049
	0
	.030
	0 .340

	2 16
	Rubber and Plastics. Footwear
	0.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	217
	Rubber and Plastics Hose and Belt
	0.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	218  Gaskets, Packing and Sealing Dev:
	56.354
	432
	18.453
	0 .125
	4 .759
	0
	.43 1
	23.768

	219
	Fabricated Rubber Products, N.E.<
	52.049
	304
	15
	.964
	0 .147
	3.927
	0 .465
	20 .503

	220
	Miscellaneous Plastics Products
	294.741
	1,573
	72
	.943
	0 .659
	26.439
	2 .453
	102.495

	221
	Leather Tanning and Finisrung
	0.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	222
	Footwear Cut Stock
	0.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	·2 23
	House Slippers
	
	0.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0.000

	224
	Shoes, Except Rubber
	0.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	225
	Leather Gloves and Mittens
	0.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	226
	Luggage
	
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0.000

	227
	Womens. Handbags and Purses
	15.22 1
	191
	8.182
	-0.050
	6.746
	0
	.122
	14.999

	228
	Personal Leather Goods
	3.054
	36
	1.029
	-0.009
	1.282
	0
	.026
	2 .329

	229
	Leather Goods, N .E.C
	3. 106
	22
	1.600
	-0.004
	0 .916
	0
	.02 1
	2.5 33

	230  Glass and Glass Products, Exc Cor
	35 .077
	239
	8.654
	2.423
	5.480
	0.459
	17.0 16

	231
	Glass Containers
	
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	232
	Cement, Hydraulic
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	233
	Brick and Structural Clay Tile
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	234
	Ceramic Wall and Floor Tile
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	2 3 5
	Clay Refractories
	
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	236
	Structural Clay Products, N.E.C
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	23 7
	Vitreous Plumbing Fixtures
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	238
	Vitreous China Food Utensils
	0 .000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	239
	Fine Earthenware Food Utensils
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	240
	Porcelain Electrical Supplies
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	241
	Pottery Products, N.E.C
	0.717
	5
	0 .290
	0 .088
	0 .056
	0 .01 6
	0.449

	242
	Concrete Block and Brick
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	2 43
	Concrete Products , N .E.C
	45.468
	259
	14.42 1
	3.43 5
	5.013
	0 .892
	23.76 1

	244
	Ready-mixed Concrete
	13 .260
	56
	3.870
	0 .959
	1.554
	0 .269
	6 .651

	245
	Lime
	
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	246
	Gypsum Products
	
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000

	24 7
	Cut Stone and Stone Products
	9.044
	77
	3 .686
	0 .946
	0 .93 5
	0.1 29
	5.696

	2 48
	Abrasive Products
	23.913
	87
	4 . 195
	1.141
	4 .380
	0 .368
	10.084

	249
	Asbestos Products
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	250
	Minerals, Ground Or Treated
	2. 190
	II
	0.556
	0.157
	0 .471
	0 .03 1
	1.21 6

	25 1
	Mineral Wool
	
	4.094
	22
	0 .893
	0 .291
	0 .714
	0 .05 1
	1.949

	252
	Nonclay Refractories
	9.618
	47
	2.504
	0 .792
	1.367
	0 .142
	4 .805

	253
	Nonmetallic Mineral Products, N.l
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	254
	Blast Furnaces and Steel Mills
	89.058
	271
	15 .73 5
	0.463
	4 .228
	0 .969
	2 1.396

	255
	Electrometallurgical Products
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	256
	Steel Wire and Related Products
	32.8 14
	123
	4 .552
	0.153
	4.549
	0 .373
	9 .627

	257
	Cold Finishing Of Steel Shapes
	19 3.247
	779
	47 .526
	1.554
	29.324
	2.3 77
	80.781

	258
	Steel Pipe and Tubes
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	259
	Iron and Steel Foundries
	1.171
	9
	0 .391
	0.01 2
	0.074
	0 .013
	0.490

	260
	Primary Copper
	
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	261
	Primary Aluminum
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	O.oOO
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	262
	Primary Nonferrous Metals, N.E.C
	16.39 1
	57
	3.537
	0 .069
	3. 13 3
	0 .195
	6 .93 4

	263
	Secondary Nonferrous Metals
	53 .392
	140
	7 .442
	0 .276
	2.247
	0 .683
	10.64 8

	264
	Copper Rolling and Drawing
	3 17.7 19
	92 5
	57.735
	2.050
	1.64 8
	4 .608
	66 .040

	265
	Aluminum Rolling and Drawing
	107.345
	323
	19.588
	0.542
	7.654
	1.31 0
	29.094
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Bare Year:l999
NewHavCoi-Type2.iap

Co~gb< MIG2002

	
	
	
	Industry
	
	Employee
	Proprietor
	Other  Property
	Indirect
	Total

	
	
	
	Outout*
	Emplovment  Compensation*
	~
	Income*
	Business Tax*
	Value Added *

	
	266
	Nonferrous Rolling and Drawing, -
	93 .545
	291
	20. 172
	0 .697
	6.620
	1.203
	28.692

	
	267
	Nonferrous Wire Drawing and los•
	209.498
	716
	41.821
	1.214
	22.687
	2.591
	68.3 12

	
	268
	Aluminum Foundries
	20.361
	171
	7.012
	0.256
	1.701
	0.227
	9 . 196

	
	269
	Brass, Bronze, and Copper Foundr
	0 .256
	7
	0 .248
	0.005
	-0.003
	0.003
	0 .253

	
	270
	Nonferrous Castings, N.E.C .
	7.604
	15
	0.547
	0 .018
	0.847
	0.070
	1.481

	
	271
	Metal Heat Treating
	19.617
	104
	4.739
	0 . 161
	3.801
	0.225
	8.926

	
	272
	Primary Metal Products, N .E.C
	10.526
	43
	2.202
	0 .071
	1.616
	0.119
	4 .008

	
	273
	Metal Cans
	5.951
	15
	1.024
	0 .022
	0 .315
	0.068
	1.429

	
	274
	Metal Barrels, Drums and Pails
	0.214
	2
	0 .024
	0 .001
	0 .014
	0.001
	0 .040

	
	275
	Cutlery
	212.828
	898
	84.633
	2.777
	67.764
	2.064
	157.23 8

	
	276
	Hand and Edge Tools, N.E.C.
	51.038
	207
	12.680
	0.318
	19.403
	0.580
	32.981

	-
	277  Hand Saws and Saw Blades
	33 .249
	131
	8.017
	0 .239
	8.672
	0 .422
	17.350

	
	278
	Hardware, N.E.C.
	245 .900
	1,296
	61.599
	1.434
	58.639
	2.670
	124.34 2

	
	279
	Metal Sanitary Ware
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	280
	Plumbing Fixture Fittings and Trir
	14. 102
	94
	3.717
	0 .083
	2.791
	0 .133
	6 .724

	
	281
	Heating Equipment, Except Electr.
	0.313
	3
	0.066
	0.002
	0 .099
	0.003
	0. 169

	
	282
	Fabricated Structural Metal
	8.322
	43
	2 . 146
	0 .043
	1.385
	0.095
	3.669

	
	283  Metal Doors, Sash, and Trim
	32.901
	201
	10.095
	0 .215
	7.276
	0.391
	17.971

	
	284
	Fabricated Plate Worlc: (Boiler Sho
	22 .417
	228
	9. 109
	0.203
	4 . 159
	0.224
	13 .695

	
	285
	Sheet Metal Work
	85 .233
	569
	26.928
	0.574
	16. 183
	0.937
	44 .621

	
	286
	Architectural Metal Worlc:
	20.584
	136
	7.320
	0 . 151
	5.277
	0.224
	12.971

	
	287
	Prefabricated Metal Buildings
	6 .440
	57
	1.302
	0.024
	1.123
	0 .050
	2 .498

	
	288
	Miscellaneous Metal Worlc:
	31.105
	71
	3.348
	0.067
	2.369
	0.341
	6 .125

	
	289  Screw Machine Products and Boll!
	280.847
	1,784
	84 .379
	2.048
	55.589
	3.006
	14 5.022

	
	290  Iron and Steel Forgings
	0.620
	4
	0 . 190
	0 .005
	0 . 111
	0.006
	0 .3 12

	
	291
	Nonferrous Forgings
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	292
	Automotive Starnpings
	86.705
	453
	21.317
	1.026
	0 .207
	0.801
	23 .41 1

	
	293
	Crowns and Closures
	23383
	148
	5.555
	0 . 161
	6. 154
	0.224
	12.094

	
	294
	Metal Stampings, N.E.C.
	262.891
	1,415
	79.743
	1.853
	47.976
	2.95 5
	132.527

	
	295
	Plating and Polishing
	54 . 184
	680
	28 . 128
	0.621
	15.746
	0.551
	4 5.04 6

	
	296
	Metal Coating and Allied Services
	85.792
	483
	21.875
	0.552
	18.310
	0.943
	41.681

	
	297
	Small Arms Ammunition
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	298
	Ammunition, Except For Small Ar
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	299
	Small Arms
	169.120
	986
	51.022
	1.485
	72.687
	15 .937
	141.1 32

	
	3 00
	Other Ordnance and Accessories
	24.155
	93
	3.858
	0 . 108
	-6.236
	0203
	-2.066

	
	301
	Industrial and Fluid Valves
	27 .946
	119
	5.337
	0 . 116
	2.352
	0 .220
	8.024

	
	302
	Steel Springs, Except Wire
	0 .714
	4
	0 .104
	0.003
	0 .033
	0.003
	0 .142

	
	303
	Pipe, Valves, and Pipe Fittings
	10367
	87
	3303
	0.069
	0 .887
	0 .083
	4.342

	
	304
	Miscellaneous Fabricated Wire Pn
	25 .975
	223
	10. 199
	0 .251
	2. 193
	0.232
	12.875

	
	305
	Metal Foil and Leaf
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	306
	Fabricated Metal Products, N.E.C.
	27.504
	188
	7.648
	0.181
	1.686
	0.239
	9 .754

	
	307
	Steam Engines and Turbines
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	308
	Internal Combustion Engines, N.E
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	309
	Farm Machinery and Equipment
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	3 I 0
	Lawn and Garden Equipment
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	31 I  Construction Machinery and Equi1
	18. 188
	61
	4. 106
	0.077
	1.317
	0.204
	5.704

	
	312
	Mining Machinery, Except Oil Fie
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000

	
	3 13
	Oil Field Machinery
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	314
	Elevators and Moving Stairways
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	3 15
	Conveyors and Conveying Equipn
	7.467
	31
	3.025
	0 . 103
	0 .898
	0.097
	4 .123

	
	316
	Hoists, Cranes, and Monorails
	0. 163
	
	0 .033
	0 .001
	0 .011
	0.001
	0.046

	
	317
	Industrial Trucks and Tractors
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	
	318
	Machine Tools, Me1al Cutting Tyt:
	39.958
	363
	18.343
	0 .739
	1.325
	0.366
	20.173
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	Industry
	
	Employee
	Proprietor
	Other  Property
	Indirect
	Total

	
	
	Output*
	Employment  Compensation*
	Income*
	Income*
	Business Tax*
	Value Added*

	3 19
	Machine Tools, Metal Forming Ty
	6 .919
	49
	3 . 158
	0
	.113
	0 .207
	0.066
	3.544

	320
	Industrial Patterns
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	321
	Special Dies and Tools and Acces1
	105.677
	1, 179
	55 .807
	2.380
	5.3 17
	0 .992
	64.495

	322
	Power Driven Hand Tools
	0.589
	4
	0.042
	0
	.002
	0 .0 26
	0.002
	O.o71

	323
	Rolling Mill Machinery
	15.613
	190
	11 .029
	0
	.443
	0.254
	0 . 129
	11.856

	324
	Welding Apparatus
	29.094
	110
	9.201
	0
	.424
	3.118
	0.356
	13 . 100

	325
	Metalworking Machinery, N.E.C.
	44 .088
	154
	7.609
	0
	.411
	2 .669
	0.320
	11.009

	326
	Textile M achinery
	1.650
	14
	0 .484
	0 .013
	0 .0 54
	0 .013
	0.565

	327
	Woodworking Machinery
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000

	328
	Paper Industries Machinery
	3.944
	31
	1.144
	0 .044
	0 . 141
	0 .030
	1.360

	329
	Printing Trades Machinery
	28.558
	181
	9.553
	0 .290
	0 .856
	0.259
	10.958

	330
	Food Products Machinery
	0 .571
	5
	0 .23 1
	0.008
	0 .0 35
	0 .005
	0 .278

	331
	Special Industry Machinery N .E.C
	96.731
	316
	19. 11 5
	0
	.572
	7 .290
	0 .868
	27 .845

	332
	Pumps and Compressors
	32.458
	142
	6 .869
	0
	.237
	2.248
	0.290
	9.644

	333
	Ball and Roller Bearings
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000

	334
	Blowers and Fans
	0.000
	0
	0.000
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0.000

	335
	Packaging Machinery
	4.573
	26
	1.298
	0
	.038
	0 .360
	0 .043
	1.739

	336
	Power Transmission Equipment
	16.385
	109
	4 .38 1
	0
	. 141
	0 .787
	0 .133
	5.441

	33 7
	Industrial Furnaces and Ovens
	2. 190
	20
	0 .677
	0
	.024
	0 .067
	0 .016
	0.78 5

	338
	General Industrial Machinery, N .E
	18.011
	102
	5.050
	0.190
	1.832
	0.170
	7.241

	339
	Electronic Computers
	10.442
	35
	2.348
	0
	.059
	0 .379
	0.068
	2.854

	340
	Computer Storage Devices
	29. 161
	90
	4 .985
	0
	.211
	0 .295
	0.208
	5.698

	341
	Computer Terminals
	0 .442
	23
	0 .696
	0
	.021
	-0.295
	0.004
	0.427

	342
	Computer Peripheral Equipment,
	36.479
	127
	7 .000
	0 .179
	0.349
	0.246
	7.775

	343
	Calculating and Accounting Mach
	24 .092
	153
	8.246
	0.332
	2 .868
	0 . 186
	11.632

	344
	Typewriters and Office Machines :
	16.797
	152
	5.769
	0 .236
	0 .653
	0. 131
	6.790

	345
	Automatic Merchandising Machin
	7.236
	52
	1.381
	0 .049
	0 .520
	0 .0 54
	2.005

	346
	Commercial Laundry Equipment
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	347
	Refrigeration and Heating Equipm
	3.718
	15
	0 .983
	0 .031
	0 .3 44
	0 .046
	1.404

	348
	Measuring and Dispensing Pumps
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000

	349
	Service Industry Machines, N.E .C.
	19. 143
	106
	5.011
	0 . 160
	2.037
	0 .189
	7.398

	350
	Carburetors, Pistons, Rings, Valve
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	35 1
	Fluid Power Cylinders & Actuator:
	1.493
	9
	0.307
	0 .011
	0 .051
	0.011
	0.380

	352
	Fluid Power Pumps & Motors
	I 1.785
	11 2
	6 .2 14
	0 . 138
	0.461
	0.101
	6 .914

	353
	Scales and Balances
	5.694
	35
	2.257
	0 .070
	0 .685
	0 .039
	3.050

	354
	Industrial Machi nes N.E.C.
	149.408
	1,335
	65 .596
	2 .092
	8 .9 18
	1.529
	78.135

	355
	Tr:ansformers
	0.797
	17
	0 .046
	0 .009
	O.o28
	0.001
	0.084

	356
	Switchgear and Switchboard Appa
	12.444
	89
	4 .120
	0.452
	3.8 10
	0. 137
	8.519

	357
	Motors and Generators
	29.724
	139
	8.919
	1.009
	5.384
	0.358
	15 .670

	358
	Carbon and Graphite Products
	3.064
	16
	0 .724
	0 .076
	0 .8 17
	0 .031
	1.649

	359
	Relays &  Industrial Controls
	5.744
	71
	2.044
	0.256
	1.607
	0 .080
	3.987

	360
	Electrical Industrial Apparatus, N.
	5.098
	23
	0 .548
	0 .048
	0 .052
	0 .029
	0 .676

	36 1
	Household Cooking Equipment
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	362
	Household Refrigerators and Free2
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	363
	Household Laundry Equipment
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	364
	Electric Housewares and Fans
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	365
	Household Vacuum Cleaners
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000

	366
	Household Appliances, N.E.C.
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	367
	Electric Lamps
	60.6 10
	562
	21.775
	1.451
	21.229
	0 .612
	45 .067

	368
	Wiring Devices
	174 .600
	980
	52 .826
	4 .604
	46.851
	1.743
	106.0 23

	369
	Lighting Fixtures and Equipment
	53 .270
	263
	15.983
	1.099
	7 .687
	0 .640
	25.409

	370
	Radio and TV Receiving Sets
	145.025
	876
	41.922
	2.847
	7.348
	1.366
	53.483

	371
	Phonograph Records and Tape
	0.400
	7
	0 .234
	0.033
	0 .0 29
	0.003
	0 .300
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	Industry
	
	Employee
	Proprietor
	Other  Property
	Indirect
	
	Total
	

	
	
	
	
	~  Employment Compensation*
	Income*
	Income*
	
	Business Tax*
	Value Added*

	
	372
	Telephone and Telegraph Apparan
	311.706
	874
	5737 1
	3.421
	83 .063
	2 .785
	146.640

	
	373
	Radio and T v Communication Eqt
	324
	.795
	818
	69 .22 1
	4.228
	88 .387
	3.350
	165.186

	
	374
	Communications Equipment N.E.I
	103.463
	635
	40.945
	2.798
	26
	.374
	1.000
	71.11 8

	
	375
	Electron Tubes.
	
	1.078
	7
	0
	. 190
	0.010
	-0.002
	0
	.006
	0
	.204

	
	376
	Printed C ircuit Boards
	50.427
	582
	28.934
	2. 117
	4 .005
	0
	.497'
	35554

	
	3 77
	Semiconductors and Related Devi<
	13.422
	80
	3.463
	0 .472
	4.439
	0
	. 130
	8.505

	
	378
	Electronic Components, N.E.C.
	165
	.605
	681
	33
	.288
	3. 106
	13.787
	1.71 2
	5 1.893

	
	3 79
	Storage Batteries
	
	0
	.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0
	.000

	
	380
	Primary Batteries, Dry and Wet
	3
	.244
	12
	0
	.976
	0 . 123
	0 .979
	0
	.032
	2. ll0

	
	38 1
	Engine Electrical Equipment
	ll4
	.670
	650
	31.440
	4.067
	20
	.829
	1.119
	57.455

	
	382
	Magnetic & Optical Recording M<
	0
	.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000

	
	383 _ Eleetrical Equipment, N.E.C.
	29.904
	138
	6.445
	0 .711
	0.31 2
	0 .29 1
	7
	.759

	
	384
	Motor Vehicles
	
	9.961
	ll
	1.616
	0 . 138
	1.530
	0
	.075
	3
	.359

	
	385
	Truck and Bus Bodies
	1.170
	5
	0 .259
	0 .019
	0.283
	0
	.006
	0
	.567

	
	386
	Motoc Vehicle Parts and Accessori
	378
	.686
	1,637
	76.822
	6 .329
	24.662
	1.493
	109
	.305

	
	387
	Truck Trailers
	
	0
	.261
	2
	0
	.050
	0 .003
	0.017
	0
	.001
	0.070

	
	388
	Motor Homes
	
	0
	.000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0
	.000

	
	389
	Aircraft
	
	142.250
	528
	29.366
	0 .341
	0.459
	1.1 2 1
	31.286

	
	390
	Aircraft and Missile Engines and I
	496
	.725
	2,270
	134.978
	1.433
	14
	.768
	4
	. 156
	155.335

	
	39 1
	Aircraft and Missile Equipment,
	40
	.736
	282
	15.388
	0 . 111
	1.455
	0.338
	17
	.293

	
	392
	Ship Building and Repairing
	0
	.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0
	.000

	
	393
	Boat Building and Repairing
	5.979
	35
	2.905
	0 .021
	0 .260
	0
	.079
	3
	.265

	
	3 94
	Railroad Equipment
	0
	.643
	2
	0
	.304
	0.001
	0
	.039
	0
	.012
	0
	.357

	
	395
	Motorcycles, Bicycles, and Parts
	0
	.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000

	
	396
	Comp lete G uided Missiles
	0
	.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0
	.000
	0
	.000

	
	397
	Travel Trailers and Camper
	0
	.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0
	.000
	0
	.000

	
	398
	Tanks and Tank Components
	0
	.000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0
	.000

	
	399
	Transportation Equipment, N.E.C
	0 .279
	
	0
	.069
	0 .000
	0
	.028
	0
	.004
	0 .101

	
	400
	Search & Navigation Equipment
	111.991
	669
	35 .38 1
	-0. 108
	1.507
	0 .891
	37.672

	
	40 I
	Laboratory Apparatus & Furniture
	0
	.253
	
	0 .074
	0 .000
	0.007
	0 .003
	0
	.084

	
	402
	Automatic Te mperature Controls
	1.136
	2 1
	0.577
	-0.001
	0
	.013
	0.009
	0
	.598

	
	403
	Mechanical Measuring Devices
	141.882
	924
	58
	.717
	-0.079
	3.159
	1.524
	63.321

	
	404
	Instruments To Measure Electricit:
	27.809
	170
	7.776
	-0.030
	0.384
	0 . 196
	8
	.325

	
	405
	Analytical Instruments
	36.991
	168
	8.968
	-0 .023
	0
	.376
	0.306
	9
	.628

	
	406
	Optical Instruments & Lenses
	2.288
	16
	1.05 1
	-0.004
	0
	.027
	0 .022
	1.096

	
	407
	Surgical and Medical Instrument
	443
	.880
	1,579
	222.271
	-0 .390
	22.834
	7 .005
	25 1.720

	
	408
	Surgical Appliances and Supplies
	28 .603
	164
	6 .081
	-0.005
	0
	.769
	0 .23 1
	7
	.076

	
	409
	Dental Equipment and Supplies
	35.067
	168
	10.438
	-0.026
	0
	.781
	0 .409
	11.602

	-
	410
	X-Ray Apparatus
	
	3.893
	l3
	0 .936
	-0.001
	0
	. 118
	0 .037
	1.090

	
	411
	Electromedical Apparatus
	204 . 11 6
	910
	52.441
	-0. 140
	4 .932
	1.843
	59.076

	
	412
	Ophthalmic Goods
	5.625
	42
	2.621
	-0.005
	0.151
	0 .063
	2.829

	
	413
	Photographic Equipment and Supr
	62.973
	246
	11.696
	-0.018
	2.346
	0 .494
	14.5 18

	
	414
	Watches, C locks, and Parts
	67 .717
	308
	29.321
	-0 .064
	1.105
	1.013
	31.374

	
	41 5
	Jewelry, Precious Metal
	9.543
	66
	2.509
	0 .200
	1.923
	0 .114
	4.746

	
	416
	S ilverware and Plated Ware
	4.401
	29
	0 .923
	0 .073
	0 .796
	0 .062
	1.854

	
	417
	Jewelers Materials and Lapidary \\
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	418
	Musicallnstruments
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	
	419
	Dolls
	
	0 .085
	9
	0 .063
	0 .006
	0.009
	0 .001
	0 .080

	
	4 20
	Games, Toys, and Childrens Vehic
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	421
	Sporting and Athletic Goods, N.E.
	5.738
	50
	1.366
	0 .080
	0 .994
	0 .2 13
	2.653

	
	422
	Pens and Mechanical Penci ls
	233 .941
	1, 117
	65 .296
	4 .820
	68 .547
	3.061
	141.724

	
	4 23
	Lead Pencils and Art Goods
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	
	424
	Marking Devices
	
	2. 108
	30
	0 .974
	0.059
	0.4 56
	0 .015
	1. 504
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	Industry
	
	Employee
	Proprietor
	Other  Property
	Indirect
	Total

	
	
	Output*
	Employment Compensation*
	Income*
	Income*
	Business Tax*
	Value Added*

	4 25
	Carbon Paper a nd Inked Ribbons
	0 .000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	4 26
	<;:ostume Jewelery
	54 3 01
	45 1
	11
	.835
	1.354
	19.857
	0 .579
	33 .624

	427
	Fasteners, Buttons, Needles, Pins
	15.363
	145
	7.522
	0 .674
	3.264
	0 . 178
	11.637

	4 28
	Brooms and Brushes
	0 .000
	0
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	4 29
	Signs and Advertising Displays
	9.455
	93
	3
	.264
	0.1 56
	1.1 38
	0 . 108
	4.666

	4 30
	Burial Cask ets and Vaults
	0 .000
	0
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	4 3 1
	Hard S urface Floor Coverings
	0 .000
	0
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	4 32
	Manufacturing Industries, N .E.C.
	53 .869
	407
	17.424
	1.096
	10.532
	0 .726
	29.778

	4 33
	Railroads and Related Services
	151.583
	515
	70
	.229
	0 .000
	22.958
	4 . 167
	97.3 53

	4 34
	Local, Interurban Passenger Transi
	239 .228
	4,701
	11 6
	.09 1
	7.399
	2 1.469
	5.55 1
	150.5 10

	4 35
	Motor Freight Transport and Ware
	472.314
	4, 11 2
	131.652
	29.490
	46 .768
	7 . 159
	2 15.069

	4 36
	Water Transportation
	82.842
	4 22
	15
	.509
	0 .228
	7.249
	1.942
	24.929

	4 37
	Air Transportation
	7 1.901
	786
	29
	.988
	0 .875
	12.838
	5.529
	49.231

	4 38
	Pipe Lines, Except Natural Gas
	0 .000
	0
	0
	.000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	4 39
	Arrangement Of Passenger T ransp
	35.50 3
	592
	15
	.388
	2.854
	6.939
	0. 994
	26. 175

	440
	Transportation Services
	6.569
	78
	3.490
	0 .640
	0 .5 10
	0 .050
	4 .690

	441
	Communications, Except Radio ar
	2,046.79 1
	6,041
	4 20 .690
	80.4 24
	564:035
	11 7.823
	1,182 .972

	44 2  Radio and TV Broadcasting
	47.276
	288
	13
	.494
	2.80 8
	3 .868
	0 .772
	20 .942

	443
	Electric Services
	530.657
	967
	78
	.675
	24 .526
	260 .794
	67. 11 5
	431.1 10

	444
	Gas Produc tion and Distributio n
	395.633
	564
	40.762
	7.35 1
	55.4 3 1
	30 .693
	134 .237

	44 5
	Water Supply and Sewerage Syste.
	17.585
	64
	3.298
	0 .853
	5.004
	1.229
	10.384

	446  Sanitary Services and Steam Supp:
	190 .638
	960
	48.386
	11.653
	22 .732
	35 .70 6
	118.477

	447
	Wholesale T rade
	3,05 1.409
	2 1,855
	1,207 .71 5
	52.706
	456. 163
	44 8.673
	2, 165.258

	44 8
	Building Materia ls & Gardening
	2 17.867
	3,525
	109.689
	6.11 4
	37 .843
	35 .3 16
	188.961

	449
	General Me rchand ise Stores
	236.752
	6 ,585
	108.475
	2.622
	41.14 5
	38 .398
	190 .640

	4 50
	Food Stores
	600.778
	15,473
	3 17.083
	35.889
	104.410
	97.439
	554 .821

	4 5 1
	Automoti ve Dealers & Service Sta
	650.022
	7,373
	285.558
	10 .632
	11 2.908
	105.370
	5 14 .469

	4 52
	Apparel & Accessory Stores
	234 .141
	4,827
	87.139
	5.077
	40.682
	37 .966
	170.865

	4 53
	Furniture & Home Furnishings Stc
	156 .883
	2,96 1
	75 .758
	2.643
	27 .259
	25.439
	13 1.100

	4 54
	Eating & Drinking
	755.714
	19,507
	275.596
	24 .863
	8 1.7 12
	53 .400
	435 .571

	4 55
	Miscellaneous Retail
	54 6.53 0
	14,052
	243.03 1
	27.667
	94 .884
	88.549
	454 . 132

	4 56
	Banking
	1,301.439
	5,690
	259.20 5
	12 .436
	523 .008
	22.246
	8 16.895

	4 57
	Credit Agencies
	24 2.950
	5,755
	120 .6 11
	49 .258
	-55 . 192
	10.963
	125.640

	4 58
	Security and Commodity Brokers
	298. 141
	1,634
	148.280
	20 .890
	36.79 1
	13.835
	2 19.796

	4 59
	Ins urance Carriers
	803 .242
	6,309
	281.640
	0.000
	182.550
	5 1.054
	5 15.244

	4 60
	Insurance A gents and Brokers
	329.61 8
	5 ,062
	174.460
	28 .1 64
	25.934
	3 .357
	231.9 15

	46 1
	Owner-occupied Dwe llings
	2,74 2.820
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	I , 753.8683 59 .883
	2, 113.751

	4 62
	Real Estate
	1,723. 154
	9,079
	90.697
	140.573
	799.0 88
	20 5.266
	1,235.624

	4 63
	Hotels and Lodging Places
	131.341
	2,2 16
	44 .825
	9 .059
	24 .767
	9 .862
	88 .51 3

	4 64
	Laundry, Cleaning and Shoe Repa
	96.947
	2,939
	41.4 39
	22.174
	7 . 177
	2.470
	73 .260

	4 65
	Portrait and Photographic Studios
	34 .591
	707
	8.797
	4 .599
	4 .0 32
	0 .873
	18 .301

	4 66
	Beauty and Barber Shops
	102.576
	3,690
	37.432
	2 1.500
	5.5 16
	1.31 6
	65.764

	4 67
	Funeral Service and Cremato ries
	46.972
	532
	17.478
	9.652
	4 .662
	1.330
	3 3. 123

	4 68
	Miscellaneous Personal Services
	65 . 139
	929
	9.692
	5.683
	7.959
	1.723
	25 .058

	4 69
	Advertis ing
	48.042
	435
	17.280
	6 .472
	4 .4 24
	0.5 12
	28.688

	4 70
	Other Business Services
	3 11.226
	3,054
	74 .938
	26.939
	52 .920
	4 .988
	159 .78 5

	4 7 1
	Photofinishing, Commercial Photc
	4 5.337
	368
	11.095
	3.755
	6 .938
	1.225
	23.013

	4 72
	Services To Buildi ngs
	148.835
	3,753
	45.257
	14.764
	17.306
	2 .800
	80. 127

	4 73
	Equipment Rental  and Leasing
	74 .749
	56 1
	18.350
	6 .089
	13 .650
	2.369
	40.458

	474
	Personnel Suppl y Services
	2 11.852
	10,874
	137.6 17
	49.410
	6 . 147
	3.890
	197.064

	4 7 5
	Computer and Data Processing Se.
	790 .884
	5 ,85 1
	383 .76 1
	144 .625
	60 .864
	11.899
	60 1.149

	4 76
	Detective and Protecti ve Services
	36.968
	1,06 1
	19.4 73
	6 .896
	2.7 16
	0 .503
	29.588

	4 77
	Automobile Rental and Leasing
	11 4.765
	78 1
	26 .342
	6 .84 6
	3 1.406
	9 .33 8
	73.932
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	478
	Automobile Parking and Car Wast
	18.258
	415
	5.952
	1.523
	5
	.598
	0 .942
	14
	.01 6

	479
	Automobile Repair and Services
	298.617
	3,225
	82.845
	20.212
	52.070
	14.743
	169.870

	480
	Electrical Repair Service
	44.933
	555
	12.653
	4 .600
	3.117
	1.713
	22
	.083

	481
	Watch, Clock, Jewelry and furnin:
	11.835
	200
	2.522
	0 .890
	0.992
	0 .613
	5
	.017

	482
	Miscellaneous Repair Shops
	83 . 104
	1,019
	25.435
	9 .339
	8
	.842
	2.733
	46.350

	483
	Motion Pictures
	45. 107
	642
	6 .522
	3.058
	0
	.705
	0.406
	10.691

	484
	Theatrical Producers, Bands Etc.
	66.937
	1,047
	14.854
	1.944
	3 .868
	1.665
	22
	.332

	485
	Bowling Alleys and Pool Halls
	5.475
	242
	2.127
	0.336
	0.507
	0.435
	3.404

	486
	Commercial Sports Except Racing
	19. 126
	403
	8 .064
	1.585
	0.569
	0 .858
	11.075

	487
	Racing and Track Operation
	0.450
	16
	0 .096
	0 .014
	0 .042
	0 .065
	0.217

	488
	Amusement and Recreation Servic
	220.835
	2,245
	91.285
	0 .000
	0 .000
	4 .135
	95.420

	489
	Membership Sports and Recreatio1
	46.087
	1,391
	18.544
	3.360
	0 .923
	1.614
	24
	.441

	490
	Doctors and Dentists
	1,280.031
	12,741
	675.632
	92.611
	93 .859
	16.454
	878.556

	491
	Nursing and Protective Care
	663 .832
	14,388
	421.856
	59.743
	16.757
	16.7 17
	515.073

	492
	Hospitals
	1,286.811
	17,025
	720.939
	100.276
	43 .718
	4 .733
	869.667

	493
	Other Medical and Health Servi=
	426.028
	7,769
	172.110
	25.365
	35 .709
	7 .351
	240
	.536

	4 94
	Legal Services
	565.432
	5,915
	239.770
	161.797
	28
	.635
	4 .869
	435
	.070

	495
	Elementary and Secondary Schoo(;
	232. 141
	6,403
	154.110
	4 . 178
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	158
	.288

	496
	Colleges, Universities, Schools
	1,157.005
	23,532
	848 .494
	31.l88
	0 .000
	0 .000
	879
	.682

	497
	Other Educational Services
	121.l77
	2,548
	41.453
	1.012
	2
	.088
	3.804
	48
	.356

	498
	Job Trainings & Related Services
	45. 173
	1,222
	25.733
	0.000
	0.149
	0 .113
	25
	.996

	499
	Child Day Care Services
	113.364
	2,608
	39.549
	0.000
	3.343
	1.271
	44
	.164

	500
	Social Services, N .E. C .
	210.844
	3,892
	95 .622
	0 .000
	1.804
	0 .307
	97
	.73 3

	50 I
	Residential Care
	119.757
	3,323
	85 .030
	0 .000
	1.080
	1.241
	87
	.351

	502
	Other Nonprofit Organizations
	29.577
	931
	18.207
	1.662
	0
	.005
	0 .240
	20. 114

	503
	Business Associations
	44 .653
	831
	36.038
	0 .000
	0 . 184
	0.030
	36.253

	504
	Labor and Civic Organizations
	67.085
	3,646
	65.919
	0.000
	0
	.001
	0.011
	65
	.932

	505
	Religious Organizations
	75 .371
	595
	10.235
	0 .000
	0
	.000
	0 .000
	10.235

	506
	Engineering, Architectural Service
	254.272
	2,805
	94.775
	18.653
	6.501
	1.866
	121.795

	507
	Accounting, Auditing and Bookke
	280.842
	3,931
	101.018
	98.392
	I 0 .502
	2.472
	2 12.384

	508
	Management and Consulting Servi
	332 .062
	3,757
	130.057
	31.014
	14
	.637
	2 .464
	178.170

	509
	Research, Development & Testing
	191.497
	2,727
	88 .947
	19.332
	3.410
	2. 198
	113
	.886

	510
	Local Government PassengerTran
	1.333
	33
	1.336
	0 .000
	-3.579
	0 .000
	-2.243

	511
	State and Local Electric Utilities
	27.062
	38
	3.746
	0.000
	8
	.721
	0 .000
	12.467

	512
	Other State and Local Govt Enterp
	272..257
	1,292
	67.406
	0 .000
	52. 139
	0 .000
	119.545

	513
	U .S. Postal Service
	295 .680
	3,783
	230.924
	0 .000
	-5.933
	0.000
	224.991

	514
	Federal Electric Utilities
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	515
	Other Federal Government Enterpr
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	516
	Noncomparable Imports
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0 .000

	517
	Scrap
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	518
	Used and Secondhand Goods
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	519
	Federal Government - Military
	69.314
	2,089
	40.166
	0 .000
	29 . 148
	0 .000
	69.314

	520
	Federal Government - Non -Militar
	313.413
	4,269
	265 .846
	0 .000
	47.567
	0 .000
	313 .413

	521
	Commodity Credit Corporation
	0.000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	522
	State & Local Government - Edua
	1, 126.230
	25,575
	1,126.230
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	1, 126.230

	523
	State & Local Government - Non-1
	812 .216
	13,564
	632 .904
	0 .000
	179.3 12
	0 .000
	812 .216

	524
	Rest Of The World Industry
	0 .000
	0
	0.000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000

	525
	Domestic Services
	31.927
	2,425
	31.927
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	31.927

	526
	Dummy
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000

	527
	Dummy
	0 .000
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0 .000
	0.000
	0.000

	528
	Inventory Valuation Adjustment
	- 12.793
	0
	0 .000
	0 .000
	- 12.793
	0 .000
	- 12.793

	
	Totals
	48,460.150
	46 5,396
	-----
	-----
	8,275 .975
	------
	29,686.177

	
	
	
	
	16,955.884
	2,239.002
	
	2,215.317
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	Gross
	Total
	
	
	Total
	Absorption
	
	

	
	
	Industry
	Intermediate
	Value
	Total
	Foreign
	Adjust-
	Industry

	
	~
	Outlay*
	Outlay*
	Added*
	lmPQrts*
	lmPQrts*
	ment
	RPC

	I  Dairy F ann Products
	3
	.70 1051
	2.621268
	1.079784
	1.966308
	0
	.019977
	0:992269
	0.016172

	2 Poultry and Eggs
	4
	.873009
	4 .16 1938
	0
	.7 11072
	3.356725
	0 .074355
	1.062511
	0 .162885

	3
	Ranch Fed Cattl!
	0
	.860871
	0 .653847
	0
	.207024
	0.474193
	0 .0075 16
	1.042616
	0 .073263

	4 Range Fed Cattle
	0
	.084967
	0.066958
	0
	.018009
	0
	.052943
	0
	.000884
	1.086005
	0.016134

	5 Cattle FeecDots
	0
	.25 1758
	0
	. 198685
	0
	.053073
	0
	. 144964
	0
	.002230
	1.006171
	0.019880

	6 Sheep, Lambs and Goats
	0
	.010922
	0
	.008527
	0
	.002395
	0
	.006251
	0
	.000206
	1.063138
	0.060942

	7 Hogs, Pigs and Swine
	0
	.042239
	0.033908
	0
	.008331
	0
	.025017
	0.000387
	0 .984083
	0.013840

	8 Other Meat Arimal Products
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	9 Miscellaneous Livestock
	3
	. 173035
	2.314639
	0
	.858396
	1.681426
	0
	.079795
	1.093149
	0.259655

	10
	Cotton
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	II
	Food Grains
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	12
	Feed Grnins
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	I3  Hay and Pasture
	1.957199
	1.145389
	0 .811810
	0
	.643217
	0
	.044181
	0
	.933302
	O.OI5442

	14
	Grnss Seeds
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000

	15
	Tobacco
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	I6
	Fruits
	2
	.234164
	1.611004
	0
	.623160
	0
	.905776
	0
	.050333
	1.256505
	0
	.036307

	I7 Tree Nuts
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	18
	Vegetables
	4.499873
	2
	.918745
	1.581128
	1.597422
	0
	.057688
	1.222370
	0.052135

	19
	Sugar Crops
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	20
	Miscellaneous Crops
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	21  Oil Bearing Crops
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	22
	Forest Products
	2.475129
	1.372671
	1.102459
	0
	.690923
	0.054270
	0.982861
	0.012142

	23 Greenhouse and Nursery Products
	45
	. 122269
	20.882639
	24
	.239632
	9
	.571668
	0.56I210
	1.119823
	0.505372

	24
	Forestry Products
	0
	.237852
	0
	.093472
	0.144380
	0
	.069227
	0
	.001913
	1.000000
	0.000550

	25
	Commercial Fishing
	3.437289
	0.468288
	2.96900I
	0
	.12 1445
	0
	.012630
	1.000000
	0
	.003740

	26 Agriculturnl, Forestry, Fishery Services
	3
	.658622
	1.361028
	2
	.297593
	0
	.847159
	0
	.070941
	1.053266
	0
	.08036 1

	27 Landscape and Horticultural Services
	71.002213
	25.371836
	45
	.630375
	10.723984
	0.581167
	0
	.976836
	0.438940

	28
	Iron Ores
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	29 Copper Ores
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	30 Lead and Zinc Ores
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	31 Gold Ores
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	3 2 Silver Ores
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	33
	Ferroalloy Ores, Except Vanadium
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000

	34
	Metal Mining Services
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	35
	Uranium -rndium-vanadium Ores
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	36 Metal Ores, Not Elswhere C lassified
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	3 7 Coal Mining
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000

	38
	Naturnl Gas &Crude Petroleum
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	39 Naturnl Gas Liquids
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	40 Dimension Stone
	1.353228
	0.468703
	0
	.884525
	0
	.266236
	0
	.040383
	0 .999964
	0
	.010690

	41  Sand and Qavel
	83
	.396790
	25
	.689449
	57
	.707340
	13
	.780749
	1.783222
	1.000001
	0 .094904

	4 2 Clay, Cernmic, Refractory Minerals, N.l
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	43
	Potash, Soda, and Borate Minernls
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	44
	Phosphate Rock
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	45
	Chemical, Fertilizer Mineral Mininig, N
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	46 Nonmetallic Minerals (Except Fuels) Sel
	0
	.759101
	0.306082
	0.453019
	0
	. 171160
	0
	.02869 1
	0
	.877089
	0.006174

	47
	~isc. Nonmetallic Minerals, N .E.C.
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	48
	New Residential Structures
	562
	.912720
	408
	.815460
	154
	.097260
	229.598602
	21.706255
	0
	.953152
	1.000000

	49
	New Industrial and Commercial Buildin
	517
	.786865
	292.815582
	224
	.971268
	164
	.688293
	16. 186182
	0.930169
	1.000000

	50 New Utility Structures
	53
	.900524
	25
	.222572
	28
	.677952
	13.367636
	1.089155
	0
	.917946
	1.000000

	5 I New Highways and Streets
	132
	. 106506
	73.280289
	58
	.826221
	38
	.83 11 54
	2.003196
	0
	.922I43
	1.000000

	52
	New Fann Structures
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	53 New Mineral Extraction Fadities
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	54
	New Government Facilities
	574
	.747986
	314
	.167419
	260.580566
	166.504639
	13
	.566305
	0
	.925236
	1.000000

	55
	Maintenance and Repair, Residential
	435
	.722046
	301.476501
	134
	.245544
	155
	.863983
	14.218861
	0.950224
	0.903553

	56
	Maintenance and Repair Other Facilities
	873.473267
	304.689178
	568
	.784058
	159.636 124
	14
	.23 1452
	0.924305
	1.000000

	57
	Maintenance and Repair Oil and Gas w.
	22
	.922890
	10.090418
	12.832472
	5
	.253606
	0.521788
	0
	.874074
	0
	.000000

	58
	Meat Packing Plants
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	59 Sausages and Other Prepared Meats
	42
	.959042
	33
	.562344
	9
	.396698
	2 1.60908 1
	1.040595
	0
	.99 1707
	0.411736

	60 Poultry Processing
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	6 1 Creamery Butter
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	62
	Cheese, Natural and Processed
	66.450233
	57
	.696960
	8.753270
	38.759193
	0
	.786569
	1.043283
	0.55 6618
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	Industry
	Summary
	
	
	
	
	

	
	.f.:!'
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Mav9. 2002

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Copyright MIG  2002
	Base Year : 1999
	NewHavCol -Type2. iap
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	-
	
	
	
	
	
	Gross
	
	Total
	
	
	Total
	Absorption
	

	
	
	Industry
	
	Industry
	Intermediate
	Value
	Total
	Foreign
	Adjust-
	Industry

	
	
	
	
	Outlay*
	Outlay*
	
	Added*
	Imwrts*
	Imwrts*
	ment
	RPC

	
	63 Condensed and Evaporated Milk
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	64
	Ice Cream and Frozen Desserts
	
	20.710991
	14.692179
	6 .018812
	7.752305
	0.428871
	0
	.985314
	0 .637905

	
	65 Fluid Milk
	
	19.713247
	16. 147110
	3 .566137
	12.3647 11
	0.192423
	1.004252
	0.328612

	
	66
	Canned Specialties
	
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	
	67
	Canned Fruits and Vej!.etables
	
	6
	.501748
	3.919778
	2.581970
	2.075849
	0 . 144386
	0
	.927882
	0 .010376

	
	68
	Dehydrated Food Products
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	
	69
	Pickles, Sauces. and Salad Dressin~
	0
	.220423
	0. 124791
	0
	.095632
	0.078260
	0 .010570
	0
	.979021
	0 .042695

	
	70
	Frozen Fruits, Juices and Vegetables
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	{1.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	71
	Frozen Specialties
	
	36.342125
	23.434593
	12.907533
	12.4 17332
	0.600133
	1.019847
	0.030000

	
	72
	Flour and Other Grain Mill Products
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	73 Cereal Preparations
	
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	74
	Rice Millin~?.
	
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	7 5
	Blended and Prepared Flour
	
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	76
	Wet Com Milling
	
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	77
	Dog, Ca~ and Other Pet Food
	
	0
	.917997
	0
	.688676
	0
	.229320
	0
	.370760
	0 .017362
	0 .949935
	0 .004936

	
	78
	Prepared Feeds, N.E.C
	
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	79
	Bread, Cake, and Related Products
	
	71.572548
	45
	.816685
	25
	.755863
	25
	.854040
	1.354300
	1.021484
	0 .884398

	
	80
	Cookies and Crackers
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	
	81
	Sugar
	
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	82
	Confectionery Products
	
	197.610138
	130.671158
	66
	.938988
	67
	.4559 17
	5. 196660
	1.011364
	0 .03051 5

	
	83
	Chocolate and Cocoa Products
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	-
	84
	Chewing Gum
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	85
	Salted and Roasted Nuts & Seed;
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	86
	Cottonseed Oil Mills
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	
	87
	Soybean Oil MiUs
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	88
	VC~?.etable Oil Mills, N.E.C
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	89
	Animal and Marine Fats and Oils
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .0000()()
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	90 Shortening and Cooki ng Oils
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	o:oooooo
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	91
	Malt Beverages
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	92
	Malt
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	93
	Wines, Brandy, and Brandy Spirits
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	94
	Distilled Liquor, Exce~ Brandy
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	95
	Bottled and Canned Soft Drinks & Wate
	10.990554
	9
	.400531
	1.590023
	5.732087
	0.193288
	1.110460
	0.008631

	
	96
	Flavoring Extracts and Syrups, N.E.C .
	0
	.373198
	0
	. 126561
	0
	.246637
	0
	.066358
	0.003411
	1.000000
	0 .038230

	-
	97
	Canned and Cured Sea Foods
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	98
	Prepared Fresh Or Frozen Fish Or Seaf<>
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	99
	Roasted Coffee
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	I 00
	Potato Chips & Similar Snacks
	
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	
	I 0 I  Manufactured Ice
	
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	I 02
	Macaroni and Spa!11etti
	
	0
	.728509
	0
	.657692
	0
	.070817
	0.310877
	0 .011099
	1.384435
	0 . 155247

	
	103
	Food Preparations, N.E.C
	
	25
	.759468
	16.894613
	8.864855
	10.219759
	2.296916
	1.000121
	0.400235

	
	104
	Cigarettes
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	105
	Cigars
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	I 06
	Chewing and Smoking Tobacco
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	107 Tobacco Stemrninl!. and Redrying
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	I 08
	Broadwoven Fabric Mills and Finishing
	7.542746
	4
	.986723
	2
	.556022
	3.471774
	0 .364032
	1.008210
	0.015113

	
	109
	Narrow Fabre Milts
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	110 Womens Hosiery, Except Socks
	
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	Ill
	Hosiery, N.E.C
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	11 2
	Knit Outerwear Mills
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	113
	Knit Underwear MiUs
	
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	114
	Knit Falric Mills
	
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	-
	11 5
	Knitting Mills. N.E.C.
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	116
	Yam MiUs and FinishingOfTextiles, N
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	I I 7
	Carpets and RUI!.s
	
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	I 18
	Thread Mills
	
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	I I 9 Coated Fabrics, Not Rubberized
	
	10. 114035
	6.746828
	3.367207
	3.52 1364
	0 .374371
	0
	.925613
	0.054029

	
	120
	Tire Cord and Fabric
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	
	12 1 Nonwoven Fabrics
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	122 Cordage and Twine
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	
	123 Textile Goods, N.E.C
	
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
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Apparel Made From PurchaSed Material

Curtains and Drnperies

Housefumishings, N.E.C

Textile Bags

Canvas PJOducts

Pleating and Sti!ching

Automotive and Apparel Trimmings

Schiffi Machine Embroideries

Fabricated Textile Products, N.E.C.

Logging Camps and Logging Contractm

Sawmills and Planing Mills. Genernl

Hardwood Dimension and Aooring Mill

Special Product Sawmills, N.E.C
Millwork

Wood IG!chen Cabinets

Veneer and Plywood

Struct\nl Woo:! Members, N.E.C

Wood Containers

Wood PaDets and Skids

Mobile Homes

Prefabricated Wood Buildings

14 5 Wood Preserving
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Reconstituted Wood Products

Wood Products, N.E.C

Wood Household Furniture

Upholstered Household Furniture

Metal Household Furniture

I 51
Mattresses and Bedsprings

Wood Tv and Radio Cabinets

Household Furniture, N.E.C

Wood Office Furniture

Metal Office Furniture

Public Building Furniture
Wood Partitions and Fixtures I 58 Metal Partitions and Fixtures

Blinds, Shades, and Drnpel)' Hardware

Furniture and Fixtures, N.E.C

Pu lp Mills

Paper Mills, Except Building Paper

Paperboard Mills

Paperboard Cortainers and Boxes

Paper Coated & Laminated Packaging

Paper Coated & laminated NE.C.

Bags, Plastic

Bags, Paper

Die-<:ut Paper and Boad

Sanitary Paper Products

Envelopes

Stationery Products

Converted Paper Products, N.E.C

Newspapers

Periodicals

Book Pwlishing

Book Printing

MisceOaneous Publishing

Comme~eial Printing
Manifold Business Forms I 8 1 Greeting Card Publishing

I 82  Blankbooks and Looseleaf Binder

Bookbinding & Rebted

Typesetting

Plate Making

*MiUions of Dollars



	70. 197800
	41.686035
	. 28.51 1761
	25
	.776527
	4.095006
	0
	.841709
	0. 152476

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0 .272 146
	0.16878 5
	0 .103361
	0
	.122220
	0 .013830
	0
	.973674
	0
	. 196000

	8 .88 5297
	3.262054
	5.623243
	1.7 55867
	0 .240161
	0.766369
	0
	.836065

	5.67079 1
	1.617113
	4 .053677
	0
	.820205
	0 .134373
	1.000000
	0
	.875472

	7.326473
	4.89 1733
	2.434740
	3.355279
	0.559004
	0
	.930990
	0
	.50629 1

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	14.479273
	9. 182656
	5.29661 6
	5.478939
	0.519955
	0
	.985983
	0.704981

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	1.847617
	1.382184
	0.465433
	0
	.936990
	0 .066669
	1.039395
	0
	.047530

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	27.789574
	14.505606
	13.283967
	8.408400
	1.579796
	0
	.895174
	0
	.715192

	26.606760
	12.463614
	14. 143147
	7
	.321497
	1.296060
	0
	.919450
	0
	.785452

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	0 .678349
	0 .464158
	0 .2 14191
	0
	.303264
	0 .057626
	1.061524
	0.05 11 62

	0.472897
	0.218966
	0 .253931
	0
	.136928
	0 .028035
	0
	.888339
	0.482501

	9 .20 1553
	4 .833889
	4.367665
	2.897139
	0.525859
	0.916579
	0
	.717198

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000

	0.363272
	0 .225322
	0 . 137950
	0
	.144441
	0 .021349
	0.938202
	0
	.001599

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000

	1.548100
	0 .966888
	0.581212
	0.494782
	0.060996
	0 .920595
	0
	. 127279

	7.82 1367
	4.449783
	3.37 1584
	2.617517
	0.457152
	0
	.954554
	0.299500

	6 .70 1670
	3 .891711
	2.809960
	2.06789 1
	0.295974
	0 .968676
	0 .187146

	5.428288
	3.259 148
	2. 169139
	2.256552
	0 .249968
	0.980879
	0 . 180313

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	1.552469
	1.011852
	0 .540616
	0
	.674697
	0.056021
	1.049742
	0. 13971 2

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0.425048
	0 .274325
	0 .150723
	0
	. 14391 8
	0.017954
	1.084010
	0.513858

	25 .380375
	17.838140
	7.542234
	9
	.019905
	0 .95 1868
	1.0139 14
	0 .79 130 1

	0 .444336
	0 .348596
	0 .095740
	0.2 10349
	0 .022828
	1.138885
	0.419522

	5.951841
	3.403390
	2.548450
	1.9337 11
	0 .252 166
	0.944802
	0.853654

	4 .501 2 10
	2.825314
	1.675896
	1.512896
	0. 184983
	0.985041
	0.776 184

	7 .786981
	3.961771
	3.825210
	2.058879
	0.2409 10
	0 .891752
	0 .707236

	12. 141090
	8 .051410
	4.089681
	5.895039
	3.857 515
	0.954199
	0.276333

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	27 .362118
	18 .521919
	8.840198
	9.059798
	1.371708
	0.953038
	0 .000894

	138.286484
	97 .689873
	40.5966 11
	69
	.566742
	8.862130
	0.991484
	0 .968007

	1.275809
	1.001754
	0 .274055
	0.604281
	0 .057351
	1.206109
	0 .0211 23

	10.929358
	7 .286819
	3.642539
	4.395579
	0 .417172
	1.169913
	0.021123

	0 .709942
	0.494853
	0 .2 15089
	0 .24 1939
	0 .022986
	1.027705
	0 .003946

	0 .352404
	0.230393
	0 . 12201 2
	0 .112641
	0.010702
	0 .996980
	0 .003946

	9 . 124952
	7 .211698
	1.913255
	4.955928
	0.588275
	1.211642
	0.023804

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	45.470009
	30.477568
	14.992441
	18.513247
	2.4835 15
	1.031193
	0 .0 22027

	123 .766479
	61.473099
	62.293385
	31.715109
	2.502834
	1.111475
	0 .631283

	87.940498
	50.249874
	37.690624
	26.569681
	1.043042
	1.053273
	0.495733

	59. 1256 10
	44.037579
	15.08803 1
	25
	.226936
	0 .628522
	1.169820
	0 . 195989

	0 .209548
	0 .165570
	0.043979
	0 .102937
	0 .009070
	1.222519
	0. 147186

	138.520233
	59. 1977 35
	79.322502
	33 .637871
	1.179356
	0 .916069
	0 .566918

	334 .600220
	186.676285
	147.923920
	121.734848
	10.5 14029
	0 .954295
	0.456370

	15.544777
	8.875888
	6 .668890
	5.822661
	0 .672809
	0.933440
	0 . 183946

	14.3 57506
	I 1.760995
	2.5965 11
	5.166687
	0.233263
	1.040360
	0. 188 159

	2.392879
	1.435 167
	0 .9577 13
	0 .826227
	0.06533 0
	1.024696
	0 .125064

	4.041079
	1.838603
	2.202476
	0 .847560
	0.082964
	1.004365
	0 .180817

	3.144222
	1.467245
	1.676978
	0 .667106
	0 .034771
	0.9 12965
	0.1761 10

	13.6548 88
	2.459046
	I 1.1 95842
	1.083082
	0 .067 110
	0 .946959
	0.225635
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	Gross
	Total
	
	
	Total
	Absorption
	
	

	
	
	
	Industry
	Intermediate
	Value
	Total
	Foreign
	Adjust-
	Industry

	
	
	
	Outlay*
	Outlay*
	Added*
	lmports*
	lmpo rts*
	ment
	RPC

	
	186
	Alkalies & Chlorine
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	18 7
	Industrial Gases
	152.718887
	44
	.795204
	107.923683
	20.876896
	3.289600
	1.007502
	0.510453

	
	188
	Inorganic Pigmerts
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	189
	Inorganic Chemicals Nee.
	26.830366
	18.546288
	8 .284079
	8.643535
	1.361973
	1.050624
	0.510453

	
	190
	Cyclic Crudes, Interm. & Indus. Organic
	486.499512
	330.436493
	156.063004
	154.000595
	24.266077
	1.006539
	0 .5 10453

	
	191
	Plastics Materials and Resins
	318 . 190308
	250 .362244
	67.828064
	107.945099
	13
	.916371
	1.069916
	0.835622

	
	192
	Synthetic Rubber
	21.936810
	16.247606
	5.689203
	6.454083
	0
	.869885
	1.210987
	0.782 180

	
	193
	Cellulosic Man-made Fibers
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	194
	Or!!;anic Fibers, Noncellulosic
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	
	195
	Drugs
	1.481.489746
	620.749939
	860.739807
	176.497070
	15
	.606243
	1.018781
	0 .7875 19

	
	196
	Soap and Oher Detergents
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	
	197
	Polishes and Sanitation Goods
	18.428387
	6.428561
	11.999826
	3
	.094347
	0
	.217447
	1.000000
	0.446052

	
	198
	Strlace Active Agents
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	
	199
	Toilet Preparations
	21.753435
	10.942899
	10.810536
	4.416687
	0
	.255458
	1.000520
	0 .464876

	
	200
	Pairts and Allied Products
	33
	. 182701
	19
	.687857
	13.494845
	7
	.700043
	0
	.850859
	0
	.927123
	0 .013614

	
	20 I
	Gum and Wood Chemicals
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	-
	202
	Nitrogenous and Phosphatic Fertilizers
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	
	203
	Fertilizers, Milling Only
	16.370476
	14
	.044471
	2
	.326005
	8
	.933970
	1.252462
	1.047492
	0 .053247

	
	204
	Agricultural Chemicals, N.E.C
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	205
	Adhesives and Sealarts
	32 .947376
	20.532442
	12.414935
	8.408344
	1.136990
	1.010554
	0
	.892382

	
	206
	Explosives
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	
	207
	Printing lnk
	3 .834473
	3
	.057820
	0
	.776653
	1.559537
	0
	. 155934
	1.222230
	0 .272827

	
	208
	Carbon Black
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	
	209
	Chemical Preparations, N.E.C
	2 15.897369
	122
	.331177
	93
	.566 193
	61.536041
	13
	.549779
	0
	.906356
	0.822595

	
	2 10
	Petroleum Refining
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	,000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	211
	Paving Mixtures and Blocks
	17.701729
	9
	.142655
	8.559073
	5
	.633502
	0.519582
	0.858707
	0 .942475

	
	212
	Asphalt Felts and Coatings
	26.550045
	12
	.940017
	13
	.610028
	7
	.319 171
	0
	.779361
	1.0553 3 1
	0
	.9743 53

	
	213
	lubricating Oils and Greases
	12.331278
	8
	.069764
	4
	.261514
	5
	.015167
	0
	.60 11 33
	0
	.786700
	0 .7462 15

	
	214
	Petrolewn and Coal Products, N.E.C.
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	215
	Tires and Inner Tubes
	0
	.652304
	0.312066
	0.340238
	0
	.172692
	0
	.019264
	0
	.843033
	0 .000907

	
	216
	Rubber and Plastics Footwear
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	217
	Rubber and Plastics Hose and Belting
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	2 18
	Gaskets, Packing and Sealinl': Devices
	56
	.353966
	32
	.585781
	23
	.768 187
	16
	.587656
	1.921972
	0
	.994170
	0
	.019199

	
	219
	Fabricated Rubber Products, N .E .C.
	52
	.048851
	3 1.545885
	20.502964
	14
	.760044
	1.444991
	0
	.900141
	0 .012642

	
	220 Miscellaneous Plastics Products
	294
	.740540
	192
	.245712
	102.494820
	67.437447
	5.654733
	0
	.941482
	0 .01881 9

	
	22 1 leather Tannin~"; and Finishinl':
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	222 Footwear Cut Svck
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	223
	House Slippers
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	
	224
	Shoes, Except Rubber
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	225
	leather Gloves and Mittens
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	
	226
	lllgl':age
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	227
	Womens Handbags and PlrSes
	15
	.220739
	0.221866
	14
	.998874
	0
	. 181652
	0
	. 124336
	1.000003
	0
	. 135551

	
	228
	Personal leather Goods
	3
	.053942
	0 .725266
	2.328676
	0
	.476675
	0
	. 125803
	1.000000
	0 .376178

	
	229
	leather Goods, N.E.C
	3
	. 105520
	0 .572997
	2.532523
	0
	.376148
	0
	.089261
	1.000000
	0 .634002

	
	230
	Glass and Glass Products, Exc Containe>
	35
	.076813
	18.060860
	17.015953
	7
	.309924
	0
	.807025
	1.024527
	0.551052

	
	23 I
	Glass Containers
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000

	
	232
	Cement, Hydraulic
	o.oooooo
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	
	233
	Brick and Structural Clay Tile
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	234
	Ceramic W.tl and Floor Tile
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	
	235
	Clay Refractories
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	
	236
	Structural Clay Pro:lucts, N.E.C
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	
	23 7
	Vitreous Plumbing Fixtures
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	
	238
	Vitreous China Food Utensils
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	
	239
	Fine Earthenware Food Utensils
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	
	240
	Porcelain Electrical Supplies
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	241
	Pottery Products, N .E.C
	0.717114
	0.267858
	0
	.449256
	0
	. 130278
	0
	.023680
	0.608889
	0 .008458

	
	242
	Concrete Block and Brick
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	
	243
	Concrete Products, N.E.C
	45.467506
	21.706133
	23
	.761372
	13
	. 176791
	1.106152
	0 .801670
	0.003249

	
	244
	Ready-mixed Concrete
	13
	.259889
	6
	.608714
	6
	.651175
	3.962416
	0.314732
	0
	.790341
	0 .005223

	
	245
	lime
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	
	246
	Gypsum Products
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000


*Millions of Dollars
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	Gross
	Total
	
	Total
	Absorption
	
	

	
	
	Industry
	Intermediate
	Value
	Total
	Foreign
	Adjust-
	Industry

	
	
	Outlay*
	Outlay*
	Added*
	Imports*
	Imports*
	ment
	RPC

	247 Cut Stone and Stone Products
	9.043694
	3.348044
	5 .695651
	1.706794
	0 . 192079
	0
	.784049
	0
	.004 831

	2 4 8  Abrasive Products
	23 .913061
	13 .829029
	10.084032
	6 .433368
	1.446721
	0
	.907556
	0 .054690

	249  Asbestos Products
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	250
	Minerals, Ground Or Treated
	2.190430
	0 .974907
	1.215523
	0 .438139
	0 .023144
	0
	.929194
	0
	.008551

	251
	Mineral Wool
	4 .093822
	2 . 145043
	1.948779
	1.017456
	0 . 123402
	1.031660
	0 .01 1389

	252 Nonclay Refractories
	9 .6 17950
	4 .813273
	4 .804677
	2.518456
	0 . 199624
	0
	.881288
	0
	.009996

	253 Nonmetallic Mineral Products. N.E.C.
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	254 Blast Furnaces and Steel Mills
	89.058456
	67 .662682
	21.395779
	36.347813
	6.709751
	1.026627
	0 . 143987

	255  Electrometallurgical Products
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	256 Steel Wire and Related Products
	32.813850
	23 . 187027
	9 .626823
	13.559220
	2 .285814
	1.035649
	0 .187108

	257 Cold Finishin~ Of Steel Shapes
	193.246841
	112.466240
	80.780602
	70.001266
	11.034567
	0
	.971826
	0 .144714

	258 Steel Pipe ard Tubes
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	259 Iron and Steel Foundries
	1.170686
	0 .680939
	0.489747
	0330207
	0 .064649
	1.0451 25
	0 .004655

	260 Primary Copper
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	261
	Primary Aluminum
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	262 Primary Nonferrous Metals, N.E.C.
	16.390526
	9.456066
	6 .934460
	7.295421
	1.378157
	1.002743
	0 .069706

	263 Secorrlary Nonferrous Metals
	53.392132
	42 .744274
	10.647857
	18.081032
	4 .993728
	0
	.984269
	0 .045974

	264 Copper Rolling and Drawing
	317.718781
	25l.678452
	66.040337
	154.447144
	38.417255
	0
	.959793
	0 .164765

	265  Aluminum Rolling ard Drawing
	107.344940
	78 .250580
	29.094358
	54.064430
	12.668524
	0
	.989146
	0
	.081684

	266 Nonferrous Rolling and Drawing, N.E.C
	93 .545273
	64 .853165
	28.692 104
	41.255638
	18.360075
	0
	.947999
	0
	. 104450

	267 Nonferrous Wrre Drawin~ and lnsulatin;
	209.498077
	141. I 85669
	68 .312416
	83 .610924
	10.416535
	0
	.979291
	0
	. 107736

	2 6 8
	Aluminum Foundries
	20.361160
	I I .165294
	9.195866
	7 .180219
	1.517536
	1.009644
	0
	.082557

	269  Brass, Bronze, and Copper Foundries
	0 .256004
	0 .002813
	0 .253191
	0 .001723
	0 .000359
	0
	.99997 1
	0
	.067859

	270
	Nonferrous Castings, N.E.C.
	7.603882
	6 . 122892
	1.480990
	3.531272
	1.137570
	1.04901 5
	0
	.082395

	271
	Metal Heat Treatin~
	19.617069
	10.691303
	8.925766
	4 .770474
	0.421 !56
	0
	.99772 1
	0
	.194357

	272
	Primary Metal Prcrlucts, N.E.C
	10.525820
	6.518189
	4 .007630
	3 .683154
	0 .849943
	1.023862
	0.174826

	273  Metal Cans
	5.951396
	4 .522627
	1.428769
	3.293592
	0 .372547
	0
	.96560 1
	0
	. 117370

	274
	Metal Barrels, Drums and Pails
	0.214097
	0 . 174199
	0 .039898
	0 .111421
	0 .016910
	1.261893
	o:o81252

	275 Cutlery
	212.827560
	55 .589233
	157.238327
	27 .638903
	1.974554
	0
	.999999
	0.432804

	276
	Hand and Ed~e Tools, N.E.C.
	51.038254
	18.057749
	32.980507
	10.042419
	1.49161 2
	1.000000
	0
	.263967

	2 77
	Hand Saws ard Saw Blades
	33 .248791
	15.899229
	17.349562
	8 .879797
	1.414134
	0 .880920
	0
	.3651 84

	278  Hardware, N .E.C.
	245.899551
	121.55778 5
	124.341766
	68.618729
	9.514516
	0.943676
	0 .34684 1

	279
	Metal Sanitary Ware
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	280 Plumbing Fixture Fitting; and Trim
	14. 102010
	7.378050
	6 .723960
	4 .084456
	0 .349941
	1.042847
	0. 022757

	281
	Heatin~ Equipment, Except Electric
	0 .313334
	0 .14395 1
	0 . 169383
	0 .087052
	0 .013263
	1.081253
	0
	.01021 4

	282
	Fabricated Structural Metal
	8.322419
	4 .652961
	3.669458
	2 .679852
	0 .318350
	0 .948576
	0.005775

	283  Metal Doors, Sash, and Trim
	32.901218
	14.924450
	17 .976768
	9 .196383
	1.526727
	0 .872676
	0.03118 2

	284
	Fabricated Plate Wodc (Boiler ShqJs)
	22.416813
	8.722260
	13 .694551
	5.255222
	0 .656311
	1.036787
	0 .01871 7

	285
	Sheet Melli Work
	85 .232620
	40 .6 11404
	44.621216
	24.665522
	3 .319662
	0 .937384
	0 .027343

	286 Architectural Metal Work
	20.584400
	7.613390
	12 .971010
	4.883626
	0.641999
	0 .913237
	0 .017096

	287
	Prefabricated M:tal Buildings
	6 .439908
	3.941812
	2.498096
	2.379029
	0 .370223
	1.203564
	0
	.010940

	288
	Miscellaneous Metal Work
	31.105082
	24.980333
	6 .124749
	16.743773
	2.613431
	0 .981156
	0 .022357

	289 Screw Machine Products and Bolts, Etc.
	280.846588
	135 .824814
	145.021774
	71.028046
	8.514265
	0 .977482
	0 .575113

	290 Iron ard S~l Focgings
	0 .619855
	0.308241
	0 .311614
	0 .181820
	0 .022887
	1.040394
	0 .050497

	291
	Nonferrous Foq;n~
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	292
	Automotive Stampiogs
	86.705444
	63 .294495
	23.410954
	35 .351715
	5.477388
	l.037683
	0 .399461

	293
	Crowns and Closures
	23 .383320
	11 .289089
	12 .094231
	6.553857
	0 .821706
	1.070160
	0 .677280

	294 Metal Stunpings, N.E.C .
	262.891357
	130.364548
	132.526825
	67.116371
	9 .282367
	0 .896509
	0 .587307

	295  Platillj!; and Polishin~
	54. 183826
	9.137551
	45 .046276
	3.717776
	0.381334
	0 .999999
	0.331296

	296 Metal Coating and Allied Services
	85 .792053
	44 .1 I 1076
	41.680981
	25.596994
	3.394515
	0 .927235
	0.331908

	297 Small Arms Ammunition
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	298  Ammunition, Except For Small Arms, N
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	299 Small Arms
	169. 120270
	27 .988083
	141.132187
	14.720741
	2 .635623
	1.000000
	0 .004996

	300 Other Ordnance and Accessories
	24.154676
	26 .220823
	· 2.066147
	10.834514
	1.153669
	0 .999654
	0.002602

	30 I Industrial and Fluid Valves
	27.946083
	19.922209
	8.023874
	1l.775165
	1.359147
	1.016900
	0.150955

	302 Steel SII"ings, Except Wire
	0 .713979
	0 .572146
	0 . 1418 33
	0.329167
	0 .0 5171 2
	1.131080
	0.103002

	303  Pipe, Valves, and Pipe Fittin~s
	10.366938
	6.02501 5
	4 .341922
	3.561129
	0.411043
	1.017262
	0. 15095 5

	304 Miscellaneous Fabricated Wire Products
	25.975201
	13 .099934
	12.875267
	7 .729799
	0 .922722
	0 .916102
	0 .225531

	305  Metal Foil and Leaf
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	306  Fabricated Metal PDducts., N.E.C.
	27.503706
	17.749306
	9 .754400
	10.078622
	1.567333
	0 .982795
	0 .133568

	307 Steam En~ines and Turbines
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	308  Internal Combustion Engines, N.E.C.
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
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Fann Macl"inery and Equipment

I 0  Lawn and Garden Equipment

II  Construction Macl"ioery and Equipmert

12 Mining Machinery, Except Oil Field

13 Oil Field Machinery

14  ElevaiDrs and Moving Stairways

Conveyors and Conveying EQuipment

16 Hoists, Cranes, and Monorails

Industrial Trucks and Tractors

Machine Tools, Metal Cutting Types

Machine Tools, Metal Fonning Types

Industrial Patterns

Special Dies and Tools and Accessories

Power Driven Hand Tools
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323  RoUing Mill Machine!)'

Welding Apparatus

Metalworking Machinery, N .E.C .

Textile Machinery

Woodworking Machinery
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3 28  Paper Industries Machi:Jery

Printing Trades Machinery

Food Products Machinery

Speciallndustl)' Machinery N .E.C.

332 Pumps and Compressors
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333  Ball and Roller Bearings

334 Blowers and Fans

335 Packaging Machinery

-
336 Power Transmission Equipment 33 7 Industrial Furnaces and Ovens

338 General Industrial Machinery, N.E.C

3 3 9  Electronic Computers

340 Computer.SIDrage Devices

34 1 Computer Temtinals
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342 Computer Peripheral Equipment,

343 Calculating and Accounting Machines

344 Typewriters and Office Machines N.E.C

345 Automatic Merchandising Machine . 346 Commercial Laundry Equipment

Refiigeration and 1-i:ating Equipment

Measuring and Dispensing Pumps

Service Industry Machines, N .E.C.

Carl>uretors, Pistons, Rings, Valves

Fluid Power Cylinders & Actuatocs

52 Fluid Power Pu~T1'5 & M<tors

53 Scales and Balances

54 Industrial Machines N.E.C.

Transformers

56 Switchgear and Switchboard Apparatus

Motors and Generators

Carbon and Graphite Products

59 Relays & !ndustrial Controls

Electrical Industrial Apparatus, N.E.C .

Household Cooking Equipment

Household Refrigeratocs and Freezer.;

363 Household Laundry Equipment
Electric Housewares and Fans

Household Vacuum C leaners

Household Appliances, N.E.C.

Electric Lamps

Wiring Devices
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369 Lighting Fixtures and Equipment



	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	18. 188141
	12.484414
	5.703727
	8 .253860
	0 .973554
	0 .934745
	0 .033914

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	7.466603
	3.343347
	4 . 123256
	1.942211
	0.252965
	0.744986
	0 . 189349

	0. 162856
	0 . 116501
	0 .046355
	0.084890
	0 .012063
	1.082055
	0.082614

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	39.958073
	19.185310
	20.772762
	11.077502
	1.508527
	1.009238
	0.429262

	6.9 18987
	3 .375331
	3.543656
	1.981657
	0 .231842
	0.876901
	0.433701

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	105 .677399
	41.182186
	64.495216
	21.5 13964
	2. 177614
	1.001485
	0 .809950

	0.589375
	0.517956
	0 .071420
	0 .292698
	0.0 32226
	1.325747
	0.507884

	15.613167
	3 .757208
	11.855959
	2.212946
	0.416194
	0..921009
	0.52878 1

	29.093555
	15 .993655
	13 .099900
	6.952879
	0.845522
	0 .839864
	0 .469186

	44 .088135
	33 .078880
	11.009255
	17.466373
	2.206923
	1.035379
	0 .927988

	1.650280
	1.085516
	0.564765
	0.679347
	0.094334
	1.070328
	0.470848

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	3.943868
	2 .583580
	1.360288
	1.464468
	0. 179720
	1.140107
	0 .711963

	28.557823
	17 .600286
	10.957538
	10.957290
	1.547874
	1.014254
	0 .442286

	0.570867
	0.292534
	0 .278333
	0 . 167647
	0.019751
	1.021522
	0 .76291 5

	96.730598
	68 .885742
	27.844854
	40.414307
	4.948443
	1.022278
	0 .780189

	32 .458019
	22 .814283
	9 .643735
	14 .945302
	1.771016
	1.012792
	0 .039286

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	4.572984
	2.834249
	1.738734
	1.616528
	0 .2 10720
	1.014763
	0 .7511 35

	16.384901
	10.944016
	5.440885
	6 .756174
	1.028820
	1.038248
	0 .008797

	2.190266
	1.404890
	0 .785376
	0 .931752
	0. 128714
	1.131902
	0 .02 1239

	18.010796
	10.769324
	7.241472
	6.583915
	0 .867665
	0 .998473
	0 .03711 5

	10.441982
	7.588052
	2.853930
	4.259550
	1.159677
	1.184431
	0.389328

	29. 160645
	23.462479
	5.698165
	14.704296
	4 . 132189
	1.081056
	0 . 196409

	0.441744
	0 .015032
	0.426711
	0.009421
	0 .002647
	1.020555
	0 . 196409

	36.479374
	28 .704149
	7 .775223
	17.989330
	5.055346
	1.114997
	0 .196409

	24 .091801
	12.459971
	11 .631829
	7.255294
	1.626968
	1.077977
	0 .337532

	16.796825
	10 .007295
	6 .789530
	5.483743
	1.069088
	1.224039
	0 .669088

	7.236245
	5.23 1452
	2.004793
	3.280396
	0.369490
	1.088258
	0 .868894

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	3.717572
	2 .313162
	1.404410
	1.428656
	0 . 169097
	0.868545
	0 . 110665

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	19. 143223
	11.745040
	7.398183
	6.781561
	0.819314
	0.915505
	0 .932525

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	1.493384
	1.113031
	0 .380353
	0.629976
	0.063809
	1.055196
	0 .023123

	11.784962  .
	4 .871423
	6 .913538
	2.757227
	0.279274
	0.996713
	0 .023123

	5.694412
	2 .644346
	3.050066
	1.496759
	0.303577
	0 .829290
	0 .737323

	149.407837
	71.273094
	78 . 134743
	43.512112
	3.57928 1
	0 .913185
	0.016034

	0.796919
	0 .712477
	0 .084442
	0 .431166
	0.054404
	1.887784
	0 . 104065

	12.444 188
	3.925 121
	8.5 19067
	2. 134818
	0.301399
	0 .802561
	0 .307423

	29.723520
	14 .053103
	15 .670417
	8 .877661
	1.221224
	0.813449
	0.2593 37

	3.063719
	1.415168
	1.648551
	0 .796909
	0.057412
	0.897126
	0 .278785

	5.743699
	1.756778
	3.986921
	0 .903504
	0 . 150667
	0.594411
	0 .254048

	5.098177
	4.422410
	0.675767
	2.830562
	0.398184
	1.106514
	0 .327779

	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000

	60.6 101 80
	15 .543271
	4 5.066910
	6 .700212
	0.921791
	1.000000
	0 .008065

	174.599884
	68.5764 16
	106 .023460
	37 . 195160
	4.221631
	0.93 5839
	0 .041142

	53.270187
	27 .861074
	25 .4091 II
	14 . 183334
	1.6633 56
	0.847216
	0 .01 39 11


*Mi Uions of Dollars
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Industry

3 70  Radio and TV Receiving Sets

Phonograph Records and Tape

Telephone and Telegmph Apparatus

Radio and Tv Communication Equipme.

Communications Equipmert N.E.C.

Electron Tubes

3 76 Printed Circuit Boards

3 77 Semiconductors and Related Devices

Electronic Components, N.E.C.

Storage Batteries

Primary Batteries, Dry and Wet

Engine Electrical Equipmert

Magnetic & Optical Recording Media

Electrical Equipment, N.E.C.

Molor Vehicles

Truck and Bus Bodies

Molor Vehicle Pa-ts and Accessories

Truck Trailers

Motor Homes

Aircmft

Aircraft and Missile Engines and Parts

Aircmft and Missile Equipment,

Ship Building and Repairing

Boat Buii:ling and Repairing

Railroad Equipment

M010reycles, Bic)<:les, and Parts

Complete Guided Missiles

Travel Trailers and Camper

Tanks and Tank Components

Transportation Equipment, N.E.C

Search & Navigation Equipmert

I  Labomtory Apparatus & Fmniture

Automatic Temperature Controls

M echanical Measuring Devices

Instruments To Measure Electricity

Analytical Instrumen ts

Optical Instruments & Lenses

Surgical and Medical lnslrument

Surgical Appliances and Supplies

Dental Equipment and Supplies

X- Ray Appamtus

Electromedical Apparatus

Ophthalmic Goods

Photographic Equipment and Supplies

Watches, Clocks, and Parts

Jewelry, Precious Me1al

Silverware and Plated Ware

Jewelers Materials and Lapidary Work

418  Musical Instruments

Dolls

420 Games, Toys, and Childrens Vehicles

2 1 Sporting and Athletic Goods, N.E.C.

Pens and Mechanical Pen:ils

423  Lead Pencils and Art Goods

Marking Devices

425 Carbon Paper and Inked Rili>oos

26 Costume Jewelery

4 27  Fasteners, Btttons, Needles, Pins

428  Brooms and Brushes

429 Signs and Advertising Displays

430  Burial Caskets and Vaults

4 31 Hard Surface Fl<><r Coverings *Millions of Dollars



	
	Gross
	Total
	
	Total
	Absorption
	

	Industry
	Intermediate
	Value
	Total
	Foreign
	Adjust-
	Industry

	Outlay*
	Outlay*
	Added*
	lmP.Qrts*
	Imports*
	ment
	RPC

	145.025 116
	91.542374
	53.482750
	57.225 101
	14.6 13990
	1.001099
	0.256812

	0.400451
	0 . 100777
	0 .299674
	0 .065590
	0 .011027
	1.271396
	0 .070634

	311.706299
	165.06607 1
	146 .640213
	94 . 164932
	26 .332350
	1.059161
	0.802861

	324 .795288
	159.608932
	165. 186356
	87.355400
	23 .218977
	0 .933381
	0 .758608

	103.463425
	32 .345886
	71.117538
	17 .703194
	4 .705491
	0 .987145
	0.758608

	1.077947
	0 .873955
	0 .203992
	0 .412117
	0 .061620
	1.202790
	0 .350996

	50.426838
	14 .872822
	35.554016
	8.558354
	2.334 173
	0 .909848
	0 .401541

	13.422400
	4 .917576
	8 .504824
	2.573672
	0 .587226
	1.009997
	0.070474

	165 .605209
	113.711929
	51 .893276
	65.433922
	17.846 199
	0 .962495
	0.401541

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	3 .243861
	1.134018
	2 . 109843
	0.650985
	0 . 108961
	0 .826887
	0 .302672

	114 .669655
	57.214622
	57.455032
	31.861097
	5.852083
	0 .970054
	0.589991

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	29.903631
	22. 145109
	7.758522
	12 . 176077
	3.035583
	1.025759
	0.504549

	9 .961016
	6.601707
	3.359308
	3.683207
	0 .672070
	0 .859921
	0.025951

	1.170234
	0 .603629
	0 .566606
	0 .529736
	0 . 151673
	0.916143
	0. 122561

	378 .686279
	269 .380829
	109 .305466
	159.466156
	21 .368708
	1.049750
	0.466051

	0 .260634
	0. 190622
	0.07001 2
	0 . 128791
	0 .022814
	1.078734
	0 . 116607

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	142.250137
	110.963821
	31.286312
	56.842625
	8 .005503
	1.059750
	0.580570

	496.725281
	341.390686
	155 .334610
	138.407898
	12.084269
	1.052324
	0 .711362

	40.736233
	23 .443419
	17.292814
	12.92706 1
	1.816889
	1.044241
	0 .068343

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	5.979181
	2.714159
	3 .265022
	1.721289
	0 .353673
	0 .691911
	0.00224 1

	0.642679
	0 .285549
	0 .357129
	0 .202261
	0 .033930
	0.590645
	0 .016163

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	0 .278793
	0 . 177926
	0 . 100867
	0 . 119817
	0 .013000
	0.812187
	0.009086

	111.990547
	74 .319046
	37 .671501
	36.881821
	8 .55903 2
	1.134655
	0 .628583

	0 .252837
	0. 168404
	0 .084433
	0 .096586
	0 .013767
	0 .881960
	0.2218 13

	1.135973
	0 .537511
	0 .598462
	0 .2753 00
	0 .045665
	1.415548
	0. 170645

	141.88 1744
	78 .560493
	63 .321247
	42.954834
	8 .029651
	0 .947120
	0 .604004

	27 .809370
	19.483997
	8 .325373
	10 .924135
	2.506343
	1.237368
	0.351913

	36.990685
	27.362892
	9 .627790
	14.018496
	2.340480
	1.076172
	0.436559

	2.287832
	1.191544
	1.096287
	0.610449
	0 . 101919
	1.017066
	0.436559

	443.879669
	192. 159973
	25 1.719696
	84 .964027
	9.860290
	0 .678624
	0.858418

	28.603130
	21.527575
	7.075555
	10.345028
	1.004415
	1.098253
	0 .829611

	35 .067478
	23.465534
	11.601944
	11.2 18634
	2.528254
	0 .913726
	0 .845466

	3.893104
	2.802808
	1.090296
	1.477767
	0 .362 156
	1.005571
	0.582816

	204 . 115845
	145 .039993
	59 .075855
	79.773544
	20.810238
	1.061523
	0 .743350

	5.625150
	2.795737
	2.829414
	0 .987007
	0 .073491
	0 .869790
	0.333898

	62.972916
	48.455208
	14 .517710
	24.017832
	3 .537392
	1.090719
	0.416507

	67 .716705
	36.342739
	31.373966
	20.883236
	7.546985
	0 .746328
	0 . 184059

	9.543404
	4 .797287
	4 .746117
	4 .086752
	3. 102505
	0 .944228
	0 .013978

	4.401459
	2.547380
	1.854078
	1.454765
	0.492250
	0 .946242
	0 .042471

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	0.085154
	0 .005592
	0 .079563
	0 .005027
	0 .004318
	1.000004
	0.003528

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	5.738179
	3.085611
	2 .652568
	1.4577 14
	0 .237850
	1.034489
	0.008495

	233 .941452
	92 .216965
	141.724487
	40.868572
	8 .450093
	0 .899916
	0.337002

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	2. 1081 26
	0 .603838
	1.504289
	0 .339896
	0 .028734
	0 .988616
	0 .069996

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	54 .300663
	20.676624
	33 .624039
	18 .000723
	13.357625
	1.000000
	0 . 153503

	15.363 346
	3.725882
	11.637465
	2 .098014
	0 .330368
	1.000000
	0 .088176

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	9.454611
	4 .788768
	4.665843
	2.5 153 12
	0 .2035 19
	0 .9679 18
	0 .334627

	0 .000000
	0.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
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	Base Year : 1999
	NewHavCol-Type2. iap
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Gross
	Total
	
	Total
	Absorption
	
	

	
	
	
	
	lndustry
	Intermediate
	Value
	Total
	Foreign
	Adjust-
	lndustry

	
	
	Industry
	
	Outlay*
	Outlay*
	Added*
	lmgQrts*
	lmgQrts*
	ment
	RPC

	
	432 Manufacturing Industries, N.E.C.
	53 .869308
	24.091274
	29.778036
	11.617332
	1.733302
	0 .863336
	0 .050788

	
	433
	Railroads and Related Services
	151.583420
	54.230106
	97.353310
	22.627975
	2. 167804
	0 .816914
	0.999932

	
	434  Local, lrterurban Passe'l:er Transit
	239.228088
	88.718521
	150.509567
	38 .635040
	4
	.264562
	0 .942957
	0 .799176

	
	435  Motor Freight Transport and Warehousi:
	472.313965
	257.244843
	215 .069122
	95 .092972
	5. 151622
	0 .957548
	0.746062

	
	436 Water Transportation
	82.841980
	57.912651
	24.929327
	25 .099945
	1.014434
	1.065968
	0 .879575

	
	437  Air Transportation
	
	71.901237
	22.670725
	49.230515
	11.082325
	0
	.692657
	1.024161
	0
	. 19 1209

	
	438  Pipe Lines, Except Natural Gas
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0.000000

	
	439 Arrangement Of Passenger Transportati<
	35.502747
	9.327364
	26. 175383
	2.688336
	0
	.033297
	0 .999999
	0.700700

	
	440 Transportation Services
	6.569182
	1.879198
	4 .689985
	0 .705346
	0
	.016232
	1.054569
	0 .289682

	
	441
	Conununications, Except Radio and TV
	2,046.791260
	863 .818848
	1.182.972412
	368.097382
	14
	.237711
	0 .995742
	0.486280

	
	442 Radio and TV Broadcasting
	47.275650
	26.333481
	20.942169
	13.172001
	0 . 105101
	1.056496
	0 .75461 5

	
	443  Electric Services
	
	530.657104
	99.546730
	43l.l10382
	42 .764832
	1.056863
	1.000000
	0 .916729

	
	444 Gas Production and Distribution
	395.632874
	261.395660
	134.237213
	184.941254
	50.928665
	1.016063
	0 .768560

	
	445 Water Supply and Sewerage Systems
	17.585014
	7 .200880
	10.384134
	1.632822
	0
	.086477
	1.001742
	0 .941079

	
	446 Sanitary Services and Stearn Suwly
	190.638458
	72.161224
	118.477242
	22.583481
	2
	.719741
	0.999015
	0 .995527

	
	447  Wholesale Trade
	
	3,051.409668
	886. 151245
	2,165 .25830 I
	329.903809
	16.878004
	1.000000
	0 .913200

	
	448 Building Materials & Gardening
	217.867111
	28 .906542
	188.960571
	9.594057
	0
	.280508
	1.000001
	0 .950100

	-
	449 General Men:handise Stores
	236.751740
	46.111397
	190.640335
	15 .304333
	0
	.447463
	0 .999999
	0 .6771 09

	
	· 4 50
	Food Stores
	
	600.777771
	45.956776
	554.820984
	15 .253015
	0
	.445963
	1.000000
	0 .950000

	
	451
	Automotive Dealer.; & Service Staions
	650.021912
	135.553024
	514.468872
	44.989933
	1.315402
	0 .999999
	0 .950000

	
	452 Apparel & Accessory Stores
	234. 141205
	63.276543
	170.864670
	21.001431
	0
	.614033
	1.000000
	0 .950100

	
	453  Fwniture & Horne Furnishings Stores
	156.882690
	25.782488
	131.100204
	8 .557186
	0
	.250192
	1.000000
	0 .803768

	
	454  E.ating & IXinking
	
	755 .714478
	320. 143555
	435 .570923
	147 . 148743
	13
	.010997
	0.962930
	0 .736284

	
	455  Miscellaneous Retail
	546.530212
	92.398224
	454. 131989
	30.666891
	0
	.896629
	1.000001
	0 .882290

	
	456
	Banking
	
	1,301.438965
	484.544006
	816.894958
	207 .673447
	2.461871
	1.000000
	0.453513

	
	457  Credit Agencies
	
	242.950272
	117.310677
	125.639595
	57 .364399
	0
	.254231
	1.164692
	0 .622553

	
	458
	Security and Ccmmodity Broker.;
	298 . 140503
	78.344040
	219.796463
	38 .976952
	0
	.051440
	1.103258
	0.45 2700

	
	459
	Insurance Carriers
	
	803.242004
	287.998352
	515.243652
	97 .700851
	0
	.084583
	1.025465
	0.668800

	
	460
	Insurance Agents and Broker.;
	329 .617828
	97 .702812
	231 .915024
	34.399117
	0
	.746750
	1.002120
	0 .668800

	
	461 . Owner-occupied DweUi:ngs
	2,742.819824
	629 .069092
	2, 113 .750732
	168.823273
	0
	.583769
	1.000000
	0 .679200

	
	462
	Real Estate
	
	1,723 . 153687
	487.529633
	1,235.624023
	123.571793
	1.580548
	1.000001
	0 .6791 96

	
	463  Hotels and Lodging Places
	13l.340729
	42.827480
	88.513252
	14.799034
	0.530166
	0 .995602
	0.343723

	
	464  Laundry, Cleaning and Shoe Repair
	96.946739
	23 .687235
	73 .259506
	7.715608
	0
	.702356
	1.000001
	0 .883800

	
	465
	Portrait and Photographic Studios
	34.591362
	16.290377
	18 .300985
	5.421232
	0 .083650
	0 .960953
	0 .844897

	
	466
	Beauty and Barber Sho!ll
	102.576492
	36.812859
	65 .763634
	11.171510
	0 .910042
	0 .985635
	0.883800

	
	467
	Funeral Service and Crematories
	46.972145
	13 .849245
	33 . 122902
	8 .050516
	0 .072065
	1.000001
	0 .883800

	
	468
	Miscellaneous Per.;onal Services
	65 . 138962
	40.081280
	25.057682
	13.338545
	0 .205816
	0 .952342
	0 .844897

	
	469
	Advertising
	
	48.041904
	19 .353712
	28.688192
	9 .019997
	0 . 148735
	1.026210
	0 .800000

	
	470
	Other Business Services
	311.226013
	151.440598
	159.785431
	62.234222
	3.363012
	0 .959569
	0 .635468

	
	471
	Photofinishi:ng, Commercial Photograph:
	45 .337189
	22.324202
	23 .012987
	7.824714
	0 .390197
	0 .953194
	0 .583032

	
	472
	Services To Buildings
	148 .834656
	68.707230
	80. 127426
	25 .634027
	1.906929
	1.008874
	0 .8011 22

	
	473  Equipmert Rertal
	and Leasing
	74.748695
	34 .290707
	40.457989
	11.067070
	0 .512898
	0 .958450
	0 .622155

	
	474 Personnel Supply Services
	211.852112
	14.788065
	197.064041
	5.420578
	0 . 193242
	1.000003
	0.683060

	
	475
	Computer and Data Processing Services
	790.883911
	189.734924
	601.148987
	71.473701
	11.196090
	0 .%5354
	0 .800000

	
	476 Detective and Protective Services
	36.967548
	7.379427
	29.588121
	3 .084678
	0 .207456
	0 .999999
	0 .57691 3

	
	4 77
	Automobile Rental and Leasing
	114.765305
	40.832981
	73 .932327
	16.576765
	l.l73423
	1.000001
	0 .875622

	
	478 Automobile Patkingand Car Wash
	18.258364
	4 .242863
	14.015501
	1.451850
	0 .080841
	1.000000
	0 .520697

	
	479 Automobile Repai:r and Services
	298.617096
	128.747559
	169 .869537
	62 .300426
	7.809164
	0 .978270
	0.877200

	
	480  Electrical Repair Service
	44.933411
	22 .850769
	22.082640
	12 .905247
	2.859579
	0 .946032
	0 .883235

	
	481
	Watch. Clock, Jewelry and Furniture Re
	11.834726
	6 .818226
	5.016500
	4 .664973
	2.013947
	1.007813
	0 .883800

	
	482  MisceUaneous Repair Shops
	83 . 104294
	36.754448
	46.349846
	19.087055
	3 .894012
	0 .903362
	0 .800000

	
	483
	Motion Pictures
	
	45 . 106880
	34.415916
	10.690965
	18 .681761
	0 .263426
	1.338154
	0.305779

	
	484 Theatrical Producer.;, Bands Etc.
	66.937439
	44.605877
	22.331562
	12.419005
	0 .202690
	1.306924
	0 .802998

	
	485
	Bowling Alleys and Pool HaUs
	5.475294
	2.071332
	3.403963
	0.639847
	0 .014977
	0 .983490
	0.541115

	
	486
	Conunercial Sports Except Racing
	19. 125793
	8.050573
	11.075220
	4 .016102
	0 .066809
	1.552768
	0 .394110

	
	487
	Racing and Track Operation
	0.450486
	0.233441
	0 .217046
	0.145800
	0 .001123
	1.248306
	0.022734

	
	488
	Amusement and Recreation Services, N.
	220.834961
	125 .415459
	95.419502
	44 .271122
	2.279158
	1.894813
	0 .848600

	
	489
	Membership Sports and Recreation Clut
	46 .086929
	21 .645990
	24.440939
	7 .093160
	0 .259311
	0.966027
	0 .759625

	
	490  Doctors and Dentists
	1,280.031494
	401.475250
	878.556274
	122.305450
	3.647825
	0.969741
	0 .950000

	
	491
	Nursing and Protective Care
	663 .832214
	148 .759293
	515 .072937
	52 .832474
	3. 138553
	0 .878022
	0.900000

	
	492
	Hospitals
	
	1,286.810913
	417. 144287
	869.666626
	139.621277
	10 .068498
	0 .91 25 73
	0 .899827


*Millions of Dollars
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	Copyright~MIG2002
	Base Year : 1999
	NewHavCol-Type2.iap
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Gross
	Total
	
	
	Total
	Absorption
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Industry
	lnterrnediate
	Value
	Total
	Foreign
	Adjust-
	lndustry

	
	Industry
	
	
	Outlay*
	Outlay*
	Added*
	Imngrts*
	Imngrts*
	ment
	RPC

	493 Other Medical and Health Services
	
	426
	.028473
	185.492783
	240
	.535690
	64.153725
	3 .909827
	0
	.993374
	0
	.899500

	4 94 legal SeiVices
	
	565.432068
	130.362473
	435
	.069580
	42.594406
	1.073195
	1.000001
	0.796400

	495  ElemetD!y and Secoodary Scrools
	232
	. 141296
	73 .852890
	158.288406
	16.368055
	0
	.689423
	0
	.826341
	0.800000

	496 Coll~es. Universities, Schools
	
	1,157.005249
	277.323639
	879
	.681641
	76.622581
	2 .736442
	0
	.804094
	0.800000

	497 Other Educational Services
	
	121.176735
	72.820602
	48
	.356133
	29.563892
	0
	.834103
	1.080428
	0
	.800000

	498 Job Trainings & Related Services
	
	45.172928
	19. 176922
	25
	.996004
	7
	.704885
	0.470700
	0
	.998358
	1.000000

	499 Child Day Care Services
	
	113.364189
	69
	.200516
	44
	. 163673
	28
	.917440
	3
	. 126672
	1.005450
	1.000000

	500 Social Services, N.E.C.
	
	210
	.843872
	113
	. 110840
	97
	.733032
	45
	.247318
	1.341125
	0
	.982062
	1.000000

	50 I  Residential Care
	
	119.756622
	32
	.405834
	87
	.350792
	11.127701
	0.490007
	0.883942
	1.000000

	502 Other Nonprofit Organizations
	
	29.576628
	9 .463020
	20.113607
	3.593404
	0 .084391
	0 .890269
	0
	.562445

	503 Business Associations
	
	44.653259
	8.400706
	36.252552
	3
	.744909
	0 . 152271
	0.980381
	0
	.657627

	504 Labor and Civic Organizatioos
	
	67
	.085342
	1.153396
	65
	.931946
	0.461028
	0 .034401
	0.865040
	0
	.741941

	505 Religious Organizations
	
	75.371391
	65 . 135994
	10.235395
	19.633345
	0 .759866
	0.998710
	0.504880

	506 Engineering, Architectural Services
	254
	.271759
	132.476273
	121.795494
	41.764191
	0.384083
	1.02045 1
	0
	.720551

	507 Acco~nting, Auditing and Bodckeeping
	280.842133
	68.458260
	212
	.383865
	21.253315
	0.573218
	1.000000
	0
	.796608

	508 Management and Consulting Services
	332.061890
	153
	.891449
	178.170425
	56
	.905403
	3 .693723
	1.006136
	0 .799765

	509 Research, Development & Testing Servi·
	191.497421
	77.611481
	113
	.885941
	28
	.743862
	2 . 182717
	1.003292
	0
	.800000

	510 Local Govenunent Passenger Transit
	1.333337
	3.576242
	-2.242906
	1.705427
	0 .252340
	1.179407
	0
	.800004

	511 Stale and Local Electric Utilities
	
	27
	.061607
	14.594715
	12.466893
	6
	.375164
	0.668132
	0
	.901164
	0
	.916500

	512 Other State and local Govt Enterprises
	272
	.257141
	152.711945
	119.545197
	30.692661
	1.263915
	0 .952087
	0
	.820769

	513  U.S. Postal Service
	
	295
	.680145
	70.689186
	224.990967
	30.932907
	1.845720
	0.965329
	0 .7500 13

	514 Fedeml Electric Utilities
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	515 Other Federal Government Enterprises
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	516
	Noncomparable Imports
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	517
	Scrap
	
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	5 18
	Used and Secondhand Goods
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	5 19
	Fedeml Govemmert - Military
	
	69313896
	0
	.000000
	69
	.313896
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	1.000000

	520
	Fedeml Government - Non -Military
	313.413147
	0
	.000000
	313.413147
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	1.000000

	521  Commodity Credit Corporation
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000

	522
	State & Local Government - Education
	1, 126.230347
	0
	.000000
	1, 126.230347
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	1.000000

	523 State & Local Government - Non-Educa
	812
	.216248
	0
	.000000
	812.216248
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	1.000000

	524
	Rest OfThe Wodd Industry
	
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000

	525
	Domestic Services
	
	31.927143
	0
	.000000
	31.927143
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0.724873

	526
	Dummy
	
	
	0
	.000000
	0.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0.000000

	527
	Dummy
	
	
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000
	0 .000000

	52 8
	Inventory Valuation Adjustment
	
	- 12.793175
	0 .000000
	- 12.793175
	0.000000
	0 .000000
	0
	.000000
	0 .000000

	
	
	Total :
	
	48,460. 150713
	18,773.973394
	29,686. 177207
	8,357.556386
	902.439701
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•Millions of Dollars
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SUMMARY TABLES OF IMPLAN MODEL RESULTS
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	Table 1 :-Annual Effects of Closing the Coliseum: Coliseum Expenses
	

	
	Direct Effect
	
	Indirect Effect
	
	Total Effect

	
	
	Total
	Indirect Inputs
	Induced Effect
	

	
	
	
	Effect
	
	

	OUtput
	-$3,738,461
	-$3,363,089
	-$1,773,690
	-$1 ,589,399
	-$7,101,550

	Employment
	-38.0
	-39.3
	-20.4
	-19.0
	-77.3

	Employee Compensation
	-$ 1,545,333
	-$ 1,099, 121
	-$548,154
	-$550,966
	-$2,644,454

	Total Value Added
	-$1,615,333
	-$2, 128,544
	-$1,080,927
	-$1 ,047,617
	-$3,743,878

	Total Personal Income
	-$1,545,333
	-$1 ,347, 086
	-$712,903
	-$634,182
	-$2,892,418
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	Table 2:- Annual Effects of Closing the Coliseum: Net l ost Non-Coliseum Sales

	
	
	Direct Effect
	
	Indirect Effect
	
	Total Effect

	
	
	
	Total
	Indirect Inputs
	Induced Effect
	

	-
	
	
	
	Effect
	
	

	
	Output (Retail Margin)
	-$965,187
	-$602,843
	-$251 ,569
	-$351 ,273
	-$1,568,029

	
	Employment
	-22.4
	-6 .8
	-2.6
	-4.2
	-29.1

	
	Employee Compensation
	-$360,799
	-$ 196,966
	-$75,196
	-$121 ,769
	-$557,764

	
	Total Value Added
	-$626 ,377
	-$380,996
	-$149,462
	-$231 ,534
	-$ 1,007,372

	
	Total Personal Income
	-$403,725
	-$235,529
	-$95,369
	-$140, 161
	-$639,254
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	Table 2a:-Annual Effects of Closing the Coliseum:  Non-Coliseum Sales
	

	
	Direct Effect
	
	Indirect Effect
	
	Total Effect

	
	
	Total
	Indirect Inputs
	Induced Effect
	

	
	
	
	Effect
	
	

	Output (Retail Margin)
	-$1 ,183,980
	-$738,698
	-$307,921
	-$430,776
	-$ 1,922,678

	Employment
	-27.9
	-8.3
	-3.1
	-5.1
	-36.1

	Employee Compensation
	-$444,999
	-$240,916
	-$91 ,587
	-$149,329
	-$685,915

	Total Value Added
	-$767,492
	-$466,178
	-$182,241
	-$283,937
	-$ 1,233,670

	Total Personal Income
	-$496, 144
	-$287,792
	-$1 15,909
	-$171 ,883
	-$783,935


	Table 2b:-Annual Effects of Closing the Coliseum: Gravity Recovery
	

	
	Direct Effect
	
	Indirect Effect
	
	Total Effect

	
	
	Total
	Indirect Inputs
	Induced Effect
	

	
	
	
	Effect
	
	

	Output (Retail Margin)
	$218,793
	$1 35,855
	$56,352
	$79,503
	$354,648

	Employment
	5.5
	1.5
	0.5
	0.9
	7.0

	Employee Compensation
	$84,200
	$43,950
	$16,390
	$27,560
	$ 128,151

	Total Value Added
	$141,115
	$85,183
	$32,780
	$52,403
	$226,298

	Total Personal Income
	$92,419
	$52,262
	$20,540
	$31,722
	$144,681


	Table 3:- Annual Effects of Closing the Coliseum: All but Demolition
	

	
	Direct Effect
	
	Indirect Effect
	
	Total Effect

	
	
	Total
	Indirect Inputs
	Induced Effect
	

	
	
	
	Effect
	
	

	Output
	-$4,703,648
	-$3,965,932
	-$2,025,259
	-$1 ,940,673
	-$8,669,579

	Employment
	-60.4
	-46.1
	-22.9
	-23 .2
	- 106.5

	Employee Compensation
	-$1,906,132
	-$1,296,086
	-$623,351
	-$672,736
	-$3,202,218

	Total Value Added
	-$2,241,71 0   -$2,509,540
	-$1,230,389
	-$1,279,151
	-$4,751,250

	Total Personal Income
	-$ 1,949,058    -$1,582,615
	-$808,272
	-$774,343
	-$3,531,673


	Table 4:-Effects of Closing the Coliseum :  Demolition Exp enses
	

	
	Direct Effect
	
	Indirect Effect
	
	Total Effect

	
	
	Total
	Indirect Inputs
	Induced Effect
	

	
	
	
	Effect
	
	

	Output
	$10,214,300
	$7,503,679
	$2,498,041
	$5,005,639
	$17,717,979

	Employment
	125.1
	87.1
	27.4
	59.7
	212.3

	Employee Compensation
	$4,116,773
	$2,598,137
	$862,929
	$1,735,208
	$6,714,910

	Total Value Added
	$6,346,010
	$4,837,423
	$1,538,068
	$3,299,355
	$11,183,433

	Total Personal Income
	$6,053,897
	$3,055,460
	$1,058,172
	$1 ,997,288
	$9,109,357
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SUMMARY
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CALCULATED EXPENSES AND ASSUMPTIONS USED IN IMPACT ANALYSIS

[image: image617.jpg]


[image: image618.jpg]



(Developed in cooperation with Scillia Dowling & Natarelli Advisors, CERC and SMG Management, data parameters adopted from "Greater New Haven Arts and Entertainment Facilities Study, September 2000)
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Closing the Coliseum
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Based on total 2001 expenses.

employees Executives Retail sales Maintenance/janitoriaVsecurity
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Parking

Miscellaneous

Total output of these employees is measured by coliseum's expenditures of$3 ,738,460 Wages/Salaries for these employees of$1 ,545,333 .
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All parking sales and employees are embedded in expenses/employees as noted above .

Because expenses exceed sales, revenue stream can be ignored for regional economic impact.
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All data and results are estimated in as per year values.

Local Consumer Expenditures related to Coliseum Events
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Loss from Related Economic Activity Distributed by Industry

	
	Number/
	
	
	
	Net Output

	
	Percent
	Total
	Margin
	
	Change

	Local Attendees
	286,543
	
	
	
	

	Eat/Drink
	$
	(630,735)
	100%
	$
	(630,735 )

	Retail
	$
	(378,322)
	32%
	$
	(120,307)

	Gas
	$
	(124,169)
	22%
	$
	(27,193)

	Other, Misc. Retail
	$
	(277,952)
	32%
	$
	(88,389)

	Out-of-State Attendees
	15,08 1
	
	
	
	

	Hotel
	$
	(63,341)
	100%
	$
	(63,341)

	Eat/Drink
	$
	(33, 197)
	100%
	$
	(33, 197)

	Retail
	$
	(19,912)
	32%
	$
	(6,332)

	Gas
	$
	(2,353)
	22%
	$
	(51 5)

	Other, Misc . Retail
	$
	(14,629)
	32%
	$
	(4,652)

	Out-of-State Performers/Crew
	2,600
	
	
	
	

	Hotel
	$
	(182,000)
	100%
	$
	(182,000)

	Eat/Drink
	$
	(23,946)
	100%
	$
	(23 ,946)

	Retail
	$
	(3 ,433)
	32%
	$
	( 1,092)

	Gas
	$
	(6,760)
	22%
	$
	(I ,480)

	Other, Misc. Retail
	$
	(2,520)
	32%
	$
	(80 1)
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CALCULATED EXPENSES AND ASSUMPTIONS USED IN IMPACT ANALYSIS

	
	Number/
	
	
	Net Output

	
	Percent
	Total
	Margin
	
	Change

	Total
	304,224
	
	
	
	

	Hotel
	$
	(245,341)
	100%
	$
	(245,34 1)

	Eat/Drink
	$
	(687,878)
	100%
	$
	(687,878)

	Retail
	$
	(401,667)
	32%
	$
	(127,730)

	Gas
	$
	(133,281)
	22%
	$
	(29, 189)

	Other, Misc. Retail
	$
	(295,101)
	32%
	$
	(93,842)

	
	$
	(1,763,268)
	
	$
	(1,183 ,980)


ill.
Miscellaneous

For in-state attendees, this analysis assumes 3 people per party attending each coliseum event, average round-trip of 25 miles, 25 miles per gallon vehicle, $1.30 per gallon.

Out-of state visitors are assumed to have an average round-trip of 150 miles, 25 miles per gallon vehicle, $1.30 per gallon. Out-of-state visitors are assumed to comprise about 5% of attendance, while prior research indicates that 0.3% of those attending Coliseum events utilize hotel facilities.

Local people indicate those residing in Connecticut, whereas non-local visitors indicates out-of-state individuals .

Each event results in 25 performers/crew using local hotel facilities.

Estimates for sharing out IMPLAN results for Parts 1 and 2 into output and employment volumes that are specific to the City of New Haven were derived from the consensus of the three economists involved in this study (70%) .

	IV.
	Demolition
	

	Total:
	
	$10,2 14,200

	Design/Engineering Fees:
	$888,200

	Demolition Contract
	$8,882,000

	Contingency expenses:
	$444,100
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CALCULATED EXPENSES AND ASSUMPTIONS USED IN IMPACT ANALYSIS
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Assumed Dollar Recapture to New Haven Economy through Gravity Model
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	Number/
	
	
	Net Output

	
	Percent
	Total
	Marg in
	
	Change

	Local Attendees
	68 ,770
	
	
	
	

	Percent recovery of lost sales
	24%
	
	
	
	

	Eat/Drink
	$
	15 1,376
	100%
	$
	151 ,376

	Retail
	$
	90,797
	32%
	$
	28,874

	Gas
	$
	29 ,800
	22%
	$
	6,526

	Other, Misc. Retail
	$
	66,709
	32%
	$
	2 1,21 3

	Out-of-State Attendees
	15,08 1
	
	
	
	

	Percent recovery of lost sales
	10%
	
	
	
	

	Hotel
	$
	6,334
	100%
	$
	6,334

	Eat/Drink
	$
	3,320
	100%
	$
	3,320

	Retail
	$
	1,99 1
	32%
	$
	633

	Gas
	$
	235
	22%
	$
	52

	Other, Misc. Retail
	$
	1,463
	32%
	$
	465

	Out-of-State Performers/Crew
	
	
	
	
	

	Percent recovery of lost sales
	0%
	
	
	
	

	Hotel
	$
	
	100%
	$
	

	Eat/Drink
	$
	
	100%
	$
	

	Retail
	$
	
	32%
	$
	

	Gas
	$
	
	22%
	$
	

	Other, Misc. Retai l
	$
	
	32%
	$
	

	Total
	83 ,85 1
	
	
	
	

	Hotel
	$
	6 ,334
	100%
	$
	6,334

	Eat/Drink
	$
	154,696
	100%
	$
	154,696

	Retail
	$
	92,789
	32%
	$
	29,507

	Gas
	$
	30,036
	22%
	$
	6,578

	Other, Misc. Retai l
	$
	68 , 171
	32%
	$
	2 1,679

	
	$
	352,026
	
	$
	2 18,794
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Net Event Related Expenditures
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	Net Output

	
	
	Total
	Margin
	
	Change

	Hotel
	$
	(239,007)
	100%
	$
	(239,007)

	Eat/Drink
	$
	(533
	, 182)
	100%
	$
	(533 , 182)

	Retail
	$
	(308,878)
	32%
	$
	(98,223)

	Gas
	$
	( 103,245)
	22%
	$
	(22,611 )

	Other, Misc. Retail
	$
	(226
	,930)
	32%
	$
	(72, 164)

	
	$
	( 1,411
	,242)
	
	$
	(965 ,187)
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EQUIPMENT LISTING
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New Haven Coliseum -Inventory

. .

Category
Quantity

Furniture

-··--

30
Ann chairs

10
Couches



Item

---

	
	26
	Office type chairs
	
	
	- ... __ _ __

	
	23
	Desks
	
	
	

	
	7
	Coffee tables
	
	
	

	
	3
	Office coat racks
	
	
	

	--- .
	9
	4 drawer small file cabinets
	--

	
	. - ·
	
	
	----  ...
	

	
	6
	4 dra~er large file cabinets
	

	
	4
	2 drawer large file cabinets
	

	f -- ·
	5
	2 drawer small file cabinets
	----

	
	2
	Office partitions
	
	
	

	
	2
	Office safes
	
	
	

	
	2
	Walk in safes
	
	---..
	

	
	17
	Metal cabinets
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	-···-·--
	33
	Offiee trash cans
	
	
	

	
	2
	Conference tables
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	9
	Conference table chairs
	

	
	12
	High top bar tables
	
	·----

	
	67
	Bar stools
	
	

	
	
	
	--
	--
	

	
	24
	Short bar tables
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	50
	Bar chairs
	
	
	

	
	3
	Full size mirror
	
	
	

	
	1
	Magazine rack
	
	
	





----

--
--····

Office Machines

Shredder
Manual check imprint machine

Pitney bowes postage machine
8Adding machines

Cash registers
2Time clocks

1Laminator

1Label machine

1Coin counter

1Bill counter

- ····

..

Computers/Network/Telecommunications

4
Dell laptop computers

Compact desk top computers with monitors
Compact network server computer with monitor

Monitors
5
25" TVs
-... • .

19"TV
TV wall mounts
HP laser jet printers
HP desk jet printers
HP photo printer
Cisco router
1
HP procurve hub
.;_,:.!<..,_:.;
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Netgear hub-16
Netopia rotors

Network 5 port hub
US robotics modems
---

Sonic wall
	1
	Dot matrix check printer

	1
	computer call accounting system

	1
	Miter phone system

	1
	Voice support voice mail system

	1 ---
	Digital phones

	21
	

	32
	Analog phones

	15
	Ortronics patch panel - 48 port

	2
	Ortronics patch panel - 24 port

	1
	Belkin 12 port patch panel

	53
	Motorola 2 way radios with chargers

	1
	Bull hom


Operations Equipment

Turnstiles

	
	.36
	Tan rubbermaid covered trash cans

	~---- - ·-·
	.. ..  28
	40 gallon rubber maid trash cans

	
	1
	Hoover vacuum
	
	

	
	
	
	--
	

	
	53
	
	-
	
	

	
	
	Black stanchions
	
	

	
	37
	Silver stanchions
	
	

	
	1
	Guard desk
	
	
	

	
	1
	Pedestal display
	
	

	
	20
	8'tables
	
	
	

	
	9
	Outside trash cans
	
	

	·-
	12
	Box office stools
	
	

	
	2
	Hand trucks
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	6
	Large red carts
	
	

	
	70
	8'bike racks
	
	
	

	
	10
	Mic stands
	
	
	

	
	1
	Rubber maid hand cart
	
	

	
	1
	Commercial washer
	
	

	
	1
	Commercial dryer
	
	

	
	1
	Coin-op dryer
	
	
	

	
	7
	Clothing racks
	
	
	

	
	1
	Podium
	
	
	

	
	1600
	Red folding inter1ocking chairs
	

	
	6
	Carpet dollies
	
	
	

	
	mise
	~and drape
	
	

	
	1
	Set of green lockers
	
	

	f . --
	1
	Set of red lockers_
	
	

	
	1
	Set of gray lockers
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	1
	Set of orange lockers
	
	

	
	1
	Entrance tunnel
	
	

	
	12
	Shelving units
	
	
	

	
	1
	Torch
	
	
	

	
	1
	Mig welder
	
	
	

	
	1
	Air compressor
	
	

	
	2
	Drill press
	
	- ...
	·-

	
	1
	Drain snake
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	1
	Hilti gun system
	
	

	
	mise
	Tools
	. .
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	mise
	Cabinets   ··/ #:~~i;i;-:~; .
	
	




--

-- ·.

-

--

·-

. .. .

--
. -

~
- .- .•···:·.:t:.
·: .. •.

"

..  ---- -.  --- .

·-

-'.Ji;;Wl
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mise
	Cleaning equipment and supplies

	mise
	Shackles, stingers, beam clamps ... etc

	mise
	Turnover tools

	mise
	Electrical & extension cords

	mise
	Parts & supplies

	1
	~et ice system


Set of Crystaplex dashers with plexi glass and carts
Set of football dasher fill ins

Ice dam

Set of ice deck with racks

Sets of homosote
2 man lin
1 man lin
Champion basketball court with carts
Hydro sports basketball hoops
1
Set of ice ramPS with carts

Wenger stage 60'x40'with carts
Stage stairs
.• Electrical step down transformer

.  -- - ·· -
Fork lift cage
Hockey goals
Table top grinder

Hand held grinder

Table saw
300 lbs of ice melt

Work benches
Mise ladders

mics
electrical parts & bulbs

2k gladiator spot lights
1k lycian spot lights

1k supertroopers
1Set retractable seating

1Set arena seats

Stage Right H.C. infills

1Pallet lack

8" risers
16" risers
72' risers

103' risers

104' risers

1Concert barricade

2Baby changing stations

74'Christmas trees with lights

1loading ramp

	
	Building Systems ·

	
	1
	Fire alarm system

	
	30
	Fly lights

	
	-  -   1 ·
	·... Set of building fire extinguishers

	
	1
	Fall arrest system

	
	1
	Set of emergency lights

	-
	2
	Carrier chillers

	
	2
	Brine pumps

	
	
	

	
	2
	Condenser pumps


· 1· ,, Pneumati.c controls air compressor
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	2
	Soda gun systems
	

	
	2
	Under counter refrigerators

	
	
	

	
	4
	Refrigerator - home grade

	
	2
	Microwave - home grade

	
	2
	Hot dog grill
	

	
	10
	Hot dog warmers
	. ----

	·-·-
	1
	Hot dog cart
	

	
	6
	Pretzel machines
	

	
	
	
	

	
	4
	Hot plate
	

	
	3
	Coffee unit - twin plate
	

	
	3
	Low reach in commercial refligeraior  -

	
	14
	Metal counter unit
	

	-
	4
	Metal sinks
	

	
	3
	Table top ~~f!!E~P~nsers

	
	
	

	
	2
	Push cart popcorn dispensers

	
	1
	Large popcorn popper/dispenser

	
	2
	Commercial popcorn poppers

	
	8
	Heat lamps
	

	- --
	mise
	Food and beverage stock

	
	3
	Carts
	

	
	
	
	

	
	f- · -
	Metal racks
	

	
	8
	
	. --

	
	4
	Walk in commercial refrigerators

	
	1
	Walk in commercial freezer

	
	13
	Beverage coolers
	..

	
	2
	Pizza ovens
	

	
	
	
	

	--·· ·····
	Condiment stands
	

	
	6
	
	

	
	2
	-- -·····.   . ···-· -----
	

	
	
	Portable bars
	

	
	2
	Program sales stands
	

	
	4
	Nacho cheese machines


Wireless waitress ordering system with computer and register

Food warmers
7
Deep fryers
. . .

Electric grills
Chest freezers
Counter top food warmers
large reach in refrigerator
Tall reach in freezers
Tall reach in refrigerator
Sports & Exercise Equipment

	
	76
	Stall type lockers for team rooms

	
	4
	Trainers tables

	
	3
	Exei'cisebikes

	
	1
	Upper body ergometer

	
	1
	Smith machine

	
	2
	Adjustable flat benches

	
	1
	Incline bench

	
	1
	Sit up bench

	
	1
	Lat pull down machine

	
	1
	Dip/pull up machine

	
	1
	Step

	
	8
	45 lb weights

	
	8
	25 lb weights

	
	5
	10 lb weights

	- · -  --
	5
	5Jb weights
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	Set of dt.iinbbells 5-50 lbs·in 5 lb increments
	

	1
	
	Whir1pool
	

	1
	--
	Blademaster rivet machine
	

	1
	
	Blademaster skate sharpener
	

	Advertising Items
	
	

	1 -----
	
	Vomitory back light signs
	

	8
	
	
	

	3
	
	Large back light wall signs
	-- ·-··-

	8
	
	4 section back light wall signs
	

	
	
	
	

	! -- -··· - · ···
	
	. ---
	


--- -

Items in trailers in West Haven not included in this inventory.
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LEGAL OPINION

RE: GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS
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April 19, 2002
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VIA FACSIMILE AND U.S. MAIL
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John DeStefano, Jr.

Mayor

City ofNew Haven
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Church Street
New Haven, CT 06510
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Dear Mayor DeStefano:



S. FRANK D'ERCOLE

280 Trumbull Street

Hartford, CT06103-3597

Main (860) 275-S200

Fax (860} 275-8299

sdercole@rc.com

(860) 275-8246

In reply to your inquiry, it is our opinion that the City may take any action concerning the New Haven Coliseum, including closing the Coliseum, without regard to the effect of such action on any outstanding bonds of the City which were issued to finance the Coliseum . However, the use of the Coliseum facility and any proceeds received from the disposition or use of the Coliseum may be limited by applicable tax rules.
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On December 30, 1977, the City issued $13,120,000 of General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Veterans' Memorial Coliseum) 1997 Series, for the purpose of advance refunding all ofthe aggregate principal amount outstanding of the $19,500,000 New Haven Colisewn Authority, Connecticut Revenue Bonds (Guaranteed by the City of New Hitven), dated September I, 1968, and the aggregate principal amount outstanding of the $3,500,000 New Haven Coliseum Authority, Connecticut Revenue Bonds (Guaranteed by the City of New Haven), dated September 1, 1970 (collectively, the ''Refunded Bonds").
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	The Refunding Bonds are general obligations secured by the full faith and credit of the City.

	11
	The issuance of the Refunding Bonds effectively served to defease the Indentures applicable to

	
	the Refunded Bonds.  Accordingly, since the issuance of the Refunding Bonds. all revenues of

	
	the Coliseum have been generally available for operating purposes without regard to the lien of

	
	the Indentures securing the Refunded Bonds.  The Refunding Bonds are considered "exempt

	
	facility bonds" under the Internal Revenue Code of l986, as amended (the "Code") and were
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IW Officuissued pursuant to a transitional rule provided by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, which provides for continued tax exempt financing for sports facilities. The ability of the City to use the
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	STOl-l
	Coliseum for another purpose while the Refunding Bonds remain outstanding may be limited

	
	

	
	and any proceeds received from the disposition or of use of the Coliseum may also be lim ired . .
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In each of the years 1999-2002, inclusive, $500,000 of new money bonds have been authorized and issued by the City for purposes of the Coliseum. All. of those bonds have been issued as general obligations of the City, secured solely by the City's full faith and credit. These
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financings were treated as «private activity" in the applicable series of bonds when issued. As such, there are no tax concerns regarding the new money bonds.

We conclude. therefore, that the City is not subject to any contractual limitations imposed by any of the general obligation bonds issued for the purpose of refinancing the Refunded Bonds and that the Indentures securing the Refunded Bonds have been defeased and are no longer in effect. We will research the tax roles applicable to the Refunding Bonds and advise you ofthe tax consequences as soon as possible.
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Very truly yours,
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cc: Frank Altieri
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RENOVATION AND DEMOLITION COSTS
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CONSTRUCTION

CO., INC.

Mr. Anthony Scillia

CENTERPRISE ADVISORS

555 Long WharfDrive

New Haven, CT 06511

Re:
New Haven Veteran's Memorial Coliseum

Dear Mr. Scillia:

....
There are three possible fates for the coliseum, each with associated pro's and con' s.
Not

in any particular order, please note the following . Option "A" would be to close down the facility for the foreseeable future, Option "B" would be to renovate-to-new the entire complex, Option "C" is to demolish both the building and the parking superstructure. The viability of any particular option would depend on the long-term vision for this unique downtown site.

Whenever a building is "mothballed", there are costs that will be incurred. A large public building of this nature cannot ever be truly turned off. At a minimum the life-safety equipment must remain operational. Since the parking garage is situated above the arena, code dictates that the fire alarm must be functioning at all times and the sprinkler system must remain inspected, maintained, and operational. This means that the electrical power must also stay online. Power consumption, although less than a fully occupied building would still be a significant ongoing expense. The initial cost to "winterize" the building would be $100,000 to $150,000. Ongoing maintenance, security, and utility expense would run $100,000 to $125,000 per annum. During the winter months the building would have to be heated to a minimum of 50 degrees Fahrenheit to reduce the chance of a domestic water line or sprinkler pipe freezing and bursting. Due to the size of the building a lower setback temperature may not keep secondary and tertiary spaces from freezing.

There are a number of other systems that require periodic maintenance, i.e. the HV AC equipment. If there is any intention to use the Coliseum at a future date with it's current configuration, this equipment should be exercised. The sanitary system will also need to be addressed. Long-term disuse will allow the traps to dry out, potentially allowing sewer gases to build up, with potentially explosive results. The security system must be maintained to alert of any unauthorized person(s) gaining access. An unoccupied building is an attractive nuisance and will gamer negative attention, from break-ins to vandalism. While many of the building systems can be monitored remotely, there is no substitute for physical inspection.

Our experience has shown that the deterioration of a vacant building, accelerates the longer it is unused. Wild extremes in temperature can cause paint to fail and floors (athletic surface) to buckle and warp . A small roofleak untended can create massive

P. O. Box 8034 • New Haven, CT 06530 • (203) 469-1397 • Fax (203) 468-2034 • Email: info@aprete.com
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water damage. The parking superstructure would have to be inspected on a regular basis since if something did fail, it is likely to fail over a public thoroughfare.

Option "B", renovate-to-new, has it's own idiosyncratic issues. Typically, a renovation costs more than new construction. Conceptual estimates reinforced by historical data indicate that this would be a 30 million plus project. This would not include any major structural changes. Renovation by its nature has more unknown problems that will surface and have to be solved. Installing new infrastructure when the majority of the walls are masonry and existing is a tedious process with extreme architectural implications. Even though all of the building components and systems can be upgraded and installed new, the basic structure will remain the same. For instance, if it is too small now, it will be too small after renovation.

Option "C", salvage and demolition has certain advantages.
Part one would be the

auctioning off of any F,F&E (Furnishings, Fixtures, and Equipment) inventory.
This

would include items like the scoreboards, escalators, dasher boards, concession

equipment, computers and office furniture and supplies, exercise equipment, etc.  We

would also attempt to auction any salvageable building infrastructure, exhaust fans,

HV AC equipment, switchgear, toilet fixtures, etc.
We feel that, depending on the current

fluctuating market it would be reasonable to realize somewhere between $250,000 to

$750,000.
The structure may have some salvage value as well, dependent on the market

conditions at the time.  All told, it would take a crew of approximately 45 to 50 persons,

two to three large cranes and a myriad of trucks, excavators, loaders, bulldozers and the

like, to dismantle the parking garage. It would take between 9 to 12 months to return the

site to marketable acreage.
The cost for this option would be between $8,000,000 to

$ll,OOO,OOO.The ongoing expenses to maintain the building would be minimized and

-
eventually eliminated. The site would then be desirable and available and for development.

Deciding which option to implement will be dependent on what the next iteration of the site will be, whether it will remain as a coliseum or a mixed-use development. The current building is no longer suited for the purpose it was designed and is not easy to adapt to a new use. Other venues in the area have attracted the shows that have been the mainstay for years . Deferred maintenance has taken it's toll, major renovation is now required. Even if the renovation is performed, the building will still be too small and too awkward for national touring acts. Time has taken it's toll on the parking garage as well. It is now operating at or below 50% capacity. All four levels had failed in the past and only two floors were reinstalled, along with only one helix.

If you have any questions or wish to discuss this further, please feel free to contact us .

Very truly yours,

N?&i~

President

A . PRETE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.
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NEW HAVEN VETERANS MEMORIAL COLISEUM
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FEASIBILITY STUDY
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FACILITY OPERATOR
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PREPARED BY:

GREGG & WIES ARCH
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SPIEGEL ZAMECNIK & SHAH,

BVH INTEGRATED SERVICES,
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NEW HAVEN VETERANS MEMORIAL COLISEUM
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FEASIBILITY STUDY
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NEW HAVEN VETERANS MEMORIAL COLISEUM FEASIBILITY STUDY - NARRATIVE

1.0
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
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As part of a the Greater New Haven Arts & Entertainment Facilities Study prepared and submitted in July 2000 to the City of New Haven by Theatre Projects Consultants, Inc., the New Haven Veterans Memorial Coliseum was identified as a key component in the revitalization of New Haven as a regional arts and entertainment center. Based on the large number of annual visitors at Coliseum events plus its location within the proposed Arts and Entertainment District, the study team encouraged the new management team from SMG and the City of New Haven to explore all opportunities to enhance patron amenities, to improve the guest and visitor experience, and to upgrade the presentation/performer and production facilities. In November 2001, Gregg & W.es Architects, LLP in association with Spiegel, Zamecnik and Shah, structural engineers, and BVH Integrated Services, Inc, mechanical engineers, were contracted by SMG to develop a Feasibility Study for renovations and upgrades to the Coliseum
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The first objective of the study was to conduct a conditions survey of the facility and observe all existing interior and exterior building systems. After assessing the facility, the next objective was to determine a scope of upgrades, renovations, repairs and replacements. In addition, SMG, the Coliseum'soperator, identified operation and performance systems that required replacement and/or repairs. The final objective of the study was to provide City and Coliseum staff with a narrative summary of observations and recommendations along with all the pertinent costing information organized into a weighted "Statement of Probable Cost".
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The "Statement" organizes the proposed work into construction type groupings and identifies the priority level of the work. The priority levels categorize work that is essential to the ability of the Coliseum to successfully operate and stay open (level1 ); those work items that upgrade and enhance the operations and performance systems (level 2); and those items that would greatly improve the appearance and services at the Coliseum but are not essential to public safety and efficient operations (level3).
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Cost and priority information is summarized below.
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	1.1
	SummaryofCosts
	
	

	1.1.0  TOTAL - ALL PRIORITY CATEGORIES:
	
	

	4.1
	Facility Upgrades: Program/Patron Enhancements
	$
	5,531,664

	4.2
	Facility Upgrades: life Safety/Building Code/1-lazMat
	$
	811,500

	4.3
	Deferred Maintenance: Exterior Envelope & Ice Slab
	$
	11 ,825,000

	4.4
	Deferred Maintenance: Major Operations & Interior
	$
	4,338,500

	
	TOTAL UPGRADE COSTS
	$
	22,506,664

	
	DESIGN & LEGAL FEES (10%)
	$
	2,250,666

	
	CONTINGENCIES (5%)
	$
	1,125,333

	
	DESIGN SCOPE CONTINGENCY (20%)*
	$
	4,501 ,332

	
	TOTAL PROJECT COSTS
	$
	30,383,995
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1.1.1
	TOTAL- ONLY PRIORITY#1 CATEGORIES:
	
	

	4.1
	Facility Upgrades: Program/Patron Enhancements
	$
	1,479,000

	4.2
	Facility Upgrades: Life Safety.Building Code/HazMat
	$
	711,500

	4.3
	Deferred Maintenance: Exterior Envelope & Ice Slab
	$
	1,960,000

	4.4
	Deferred Maintenance: Major Operations & Interior
	$
	3,653,500

	
	TOTAL UPGRADE COSTS (PRIORITY# 1)
	$
	7,804,000

	
	DESIGN & LEGAL FEES (10%}
	$
	780,400

	
	CONSTRUCTION CONTINGENCIES (5%}
	$
	390,200

	
	DESIGN SCOPE CONTINGENCY (20%)*
	$
	1,560,800

	
	TOTAL PROJECT COSTS (PRIORITY# 1)
	$
	10,535,400
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1.2
Cost to Demolish Existing Coliseum Structure

Statement of Probable Cost for the demolition of the Coliseum.

The Total Project Costs is as follows:
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	ENGINEER'SOPINION OF COST FOR DEMOLITION
	$
	8,882,000

	DESIGN FEES {10%}
	$
	888,200

	CONSTRUCTION CONTINGENCIES (5%)
	$
	444,100

	TOTAL PROJECT COST TO DEMOLISH STRUCTURE
	$
	10,214,300
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*Note:
Design Scope Contingency provides a percentage allowance for scope that has been developed only to a Feasibility Study level and does not reflect design and specification at a Construction Document level.
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· 2.0
INTRODUCTION
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2.1
Background

Working with staff of SMG, Gregg & Wtes Architects, LLP (GWA) identified a list of upgrades, repairs and renovations that were to be studied at a conceptual level for scope, cost and priority. The upgrades, repairs and renovations divided into the following categories:

Facility upgrades that involve program and patron enhancements such as additional visitor and entertainment spaces, fa~de improvements for "curb appeal" including lighting and signage and new or improved activity support spaces .

Facility upgrades that involve improvements to life safety systems such as emergency lighting and exit signs; expanding ADA compliant systems and facilities; and modifications to meet the requirements of the CT Building Code .

Deferred maintenance repairs to exterior envelope and architectural fa~de elements such as roofing and tile work that have not been maintained in good working order.

Deferred maintenance of major building systems such as the HVAC system, asbestos abatement and lighting controls.

Miscellaneous operations improvements such as additional food and gift concession renovations and equipment like a new, zamboni.

2.2
Purpose of Feasibility Study

The purpose of the Feasibility Study is to address the major upgrade and deferred maintenance work items as well as a explore a number of patron enhancement items that have been identified as those that will improve the working and performance environment for staff as well as the visiting public. By examining and presenting the architectural and engineering tasks, developing conceptual costs, and prioritizing the proposed work according to criteria reflecting safety, comparative cost and support of the entertainment mission, the study aims to provide the City of New Haven, SMG and other interested parties the relevant information required to determine a course of action for improving the function and appearance of the New Haven Coliseum.

Given the age of the structure as well as the history of lack of funding to keep up with any number of building system failures, two major criteria are utilized to analyze the data, first which upgrades and/or enhancements will increase revenue, and second, which deferred maintenance items or life safety deficiencies system failures if left unattended can close the facility down.

2.3
Approach

three-phase study approach was utilized for the New Haven Coliseum as outlined below:

Phase 1 -  Existing Conditions Survey

-I
3
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This phase consists of individual site surveys (observational walk through) to review existing condition of architectural and engineering elements and building systems; and the collection and organization of SMG supplied information and data.
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Phase 2 -  Preliminary Feasibility Report

This phase identifies the major work components and develops a Preliminary Feasibility Report for Owner/Client review to include:

Written summary of major work components,

Cost estimate matrix for major work components

Diagrammatic Plans showing location and type of proposed improvements.
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Phase 3 - Final Feasibility Report

Based on revisions to the Preliminary Feasibility Report and comments by Owner/Client and other interested parties, prepare final Feasibility Report to include:
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Executive Summary

Introduction and Background

Summary of Major Work Components

Cost Estimate Matrix for major work components

Diagrammatic Plans showing location and type of proposed work, and

Appendix items.
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3.0
NEW HAVEN VETERANS MEMORIAL COLISEUM -  EXISTING FACILITY

3.1
Overview

The New Haven Veterans Memorial Coliseum was designed by Kevin Roche, John Dinkeloo & Associates in 1969 and completed between 1970 and1972. Constructed of concrete piers, exposed steel trusses, and brown facing tile, the Coliseum and its companion the Knights of Columbus Building are the most recognizable buildings on the New Haven skyline. The exposed steel roof trusses enclose a roof-top parking structure which is accessed (and exited) by vehicles at two helix ramp structures. The parking structure spans over the arena as well as the Orange Street underpass.
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The Coliseum occupies a city block defined by George Street to the north, Frontage Road along the south, State Street to the east and Orange Street South to the west. Public access to the arena'sticket office and main entrance is along Orange Street with service and deliveries along the State Street and Frontage Street sides. Access to the rooftop parking structure is via the George Street Helix (open) and the State Street Helix (closed)
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3.2
Building Description and Conditions Survey

3.2.1
INTRODUCTION - Use and Reliance Restrictions
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Gregg and Wies Architects, LLP, in association with Speigel, Zamecnik & Shah, Structural Engineers and BVH Integrated Services, Inc., MEP Engineers performed a series of 'Walkaround· visual inspections of the Coliseum facility, interviews with Owner representatives, random operation of equipment and cursory reviews of existing documents over a period of weeks in February of 2002. The purpose of which was to develop a broad familiarity with the Coliseum's existing conditions and to comment in a conceptual way about upgrades, improvements and new equipment. Assumptions
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regarding the overall condition of the property have been developed based upon representative areas of the building . As such, the development of schematic methods and associated costs for the correction of deficiencies is based upon the overview observation and is limited with respect to completeness. The review of the property for this report is subject to monetary restraints and scope limitations. Given those limitations and conditions, the consultants have made what in their opinion, is a reasonable investigation. They have also relied upon interviews and documents with the understanding that independent verification of their factual content is beyond the scope of this report The survey report excludes matters pertaining to testing for the presence ·of, identification of, or abatement of hazardous materials or environmental issues. An allowance amount for haz/mat is included in the costing for encapsulation of asbestos in ceiling areas previously identified by the New Haven Coliseum. A hazardous materials survey should be conducted prior to renovations of any given portion of the facility. In addition, the consultants relied upon Owner representatives for information and costing regarding various patron enhancement systems and equipment
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3.2.2
ARCHITECTURAL SYSTEMS

The existing exterior and interior architectural systems of the·Coliseum not only show their age, but also present a major impediment to expanding performance, presentation and production options. The walk around survey looked into all exterior and interior spaces including reception, administration, back-of-the-house support areas, main arena, and, other public amenity rooms such as lounges, multi-purpose rooms and public facilities. Many spaces have received some sprucing up with new finishes and fixtures such as team locker rooms and the Orange St. Mezzanine Concession areas, but generally, improvements have been limited to painting and modest repairs The following is an overview of the necessary architectural improvements and upgrades identified by Coliseum staff and as a result of the conditions survey:

New architectural features identified as improving the image of the Coliseum include:

lobby and Mezzanine Enclosure at Orange St entrance and escalators Marquee signage at Orange Street and at comer of Frontage and State Streets

"Club 1000" Multi-purpose Room: create new 1,600 SF event and meeting room with new finishes, lighting, furniture, event AV systems, and MEP.

Areas and facilities in need of architectural upgrades and renovations include: Administrative office: wall and floor finishes, new reception desk and furniture Guida Room (small conference room): refurbish all finishes, lighting replacement and new conference room furniture and sideboard.

Club lounge: renovate as multipurpose room with bar upgrade, new furniture, and improved lighting and design elements

Kitchen: re-establish as a catering kitchen to support performance activities with new equipment, finish repairs and replacements, and new kitchen systems

Orange and State Street Concourse & Ticket lobby floor finish upgrades Renovate Team Room #5 to match other recent team room upgrades including carpet, paint, furniture, shower rooms and lockers.

Replace arena guardrail system: current railing are not to code and contribute to shabby look of arena area
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Establish seating replacement program.
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Paint arena ceiling

Complete Restroom facility repairs (2); install one new unisex bathroom. Complete Concession Improvements: 3 at State Street side; (2 L shaped food; 1 other)

Miscellaneous ADA improvements such as door hardware, signage etc New premium seating areas.
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Complete ·Flying Colors" banners and signage program at interior of arena and exterior of building

Additionally, the Coliseum staff has identified a number of performance related systems and equipment improvements including:

New rigging grid

New curtaining system: allows for more flexible performance seating arrangements

New PA sound system to replace existing. New Zamboni ice cleaning machine New basketball floor

New retractable seating system 2 New snowplows

3.2.3
STRUCTURAL SYSTEMS

The Coliseum is presently over 30 years old with many of its existing building systems either in bad or poor repair due to deferred maintenance or as a result of having surpassed the useful life anticipated for that particular building system. Although, the super structure remains essentially sound, other systems such as exterior skin, roofing , floor and paving surfaces are failing due to use, moisture encroachment and general weathering .

Building systems that are commented upon in parts of this report include roofing, roof deck, fa~ade tile, flooring, and a discussion regarding the parking structures. The work related to the repair and upgrade of the parking structures represents a major portion of the effort to re-establish the Coliseum as a viable performance and entertainment venue. There have been successive efforts to rehabilitate the structure with deck replacement, lighting, signage and security systems upgrades. Currently, the renovated portions of the parking structure provide a profrt center for the CoUseum with 500 monthly parkers. With 1600 available renovated spaces, the Coliseum is a valuable source of potential parking for the City, serving the downtown area as well as Union Station. If and when the other parking decks are completed, the Coliseum has the potential to park up to 2400 cars. As it presently stands, the parking lot can serve more parking customers but past repairs must be stabilized with the structural status of the George Street helix'sveneer tile as a present danger to shutting down the entire parking operation.

3.2.4
MEP SYSTEMS

3.2.4.1 - Existing Fire Suppression Systems:

The fire service is provided by the Municipal Water Department from the water main located in Orange Street. The16" fire protections water service enters on the
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northeast side of the building into fire pump room on street leveL The fire protection system for the building is boosted in pressure and flow by an electric fire pump.
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The fire pump is located in a separate structure with entrance from outside of main building. Included in the fire pump system are isolation valves, pump bypass, test header, pressure switches, pressure gauges, relief valves, jockey pump and fire and jockey pump controllers. The fire pump system appears to be in fair condition and in

working order. The fire services have proper backflow prevention devices. The ·building alarm check valve with all associated components appears to be in fair condition and in working order.

Presently the building is not fully protected by the sprinkler system. There is no sprinkrer system within the entire concourse level and above seats within the arena (there are sprinklers heads located over the ice ring area only}. There is incomplete sprinkler coverage, on street level in the following areas: arena area space beneath the seats, lobby area and all adjacent rooms, elevator shaft, electrical rooms, etc. In some areas sprinkler heads are recessed to far above ceiling tiles and are obstructed. Some of the fire protection valves are not supervised as required by the Code.

The routing of the existing main fire protection line from fire pump room through the building switch gear room is a violation of the Code.

In some areas sprinkler heads are recessed to far above ceiling tiles and are obstructed. Some of the fire protection valves are not supervised as required by the Code.

Standpipe system. There are limited standpipe hose valves located on the street level around the arena only. The hose valves are connected to the sprinkler system and the spacing to meet the requirements of the Codes is questionable. (location should be reviewed with the Fire Marshal)

3.2.4.2- HVAC

Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning services are provided by several conventional

constant volume heating and cooling air handing systems. All the HVAC equipment

appears to be in poor condition. Each unit consists of a split air handling unit including

OX coil, hot water glycol coil, blower section, condensing unit and return fan. Originally

_all systems were equipped with electrical heating coils. HVAC systems were retrofitted in

1983 with a glycol system. At this point boilers, heat exchangers and pumps were

added. Current system is very inefficient due to the fact that refrigeration is being cooled

by air cooled condenser. Heat exchange in air cooled system is on a level much lower

than the water tower, and, as a result, the compressor'shead pressure is higher. The

power consumption of the compressor is a function of various factors including pressure

differential between suction and discharge of compressor. In a typical air cooled system,

KW/Ton could be as high as 1.2 while the water cooled system could be as low as .6

KW/Ton( including incidentals). Units are located in various part of the facility. Units

including condensing sections serving Arena are located in areas whidl are very difficult

to access for maintenance ..

See below table for information on major HVAC systems:
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	System Type
	Qty
	Age
	Capacity
	Capacity
	Service

	
	
	Years
	Ton
	CFM
	area

	SplitAHU
	2
	33
	
	8000
	West

	0/X., HW Coils
	
	
	
	
	lobb_y

	SplitAHU
	5
	33
	
	20000
	Main

	0/X., HW Coils
	
	
	
	
	Arena

	SplitAHU
	5
	33
	
	20000
	Main

	0/X., HW Coils
	
	
	
	
	Arena

	SplitAHU
	1
	33
	
	7600
	Arena

	0/X., HW Coils
	
	
	
	
	Office

	SplitAHU
	1
	33
	
	8100
	Arena

	0/X., HW Coils
	
	
	
	
	Office

	SplitAHU
	2
	33
	
	5000
	Service

	0/X., HW Coils
	
	
	
	
	Area
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3.2.4.3 - Ice Rink Chillers

Making and maintaining the ice sheet is accomplished by two electric, reciprocating type chillers located in the mechanical room. The two chillers produce approximately 250 tons of nominal cooling each. Both chillers are identical Carrier units and were manufactured in 1973. The chillers are used to chill ethylene glycol with 40% concentration which is circulated at approximately 15°F to maintain the ice sheet. Heat is removed from the chiller condensers using two cooling towers located outside the building behind the mechanical room . The cooling towers were manufactured by BAC in 1997 and are in very good condition. Cooling towers, pumps and sump tank have been replaced recently and are fairly new (1997).

Current Practice and Observations

Two Carrier chillers are being used to maintain the ice at about 20°F. They use R-11 refrigerant and together they satisfy the design ice load. The chillers are equipped with shell and tube condensers and direct expansion evaporators, and cyde with unloading controls. They each have one 250 Ton reciprocating open compressors coupled to the original 250 horsepower motors.

Pumps circulate chilled ethylene glycol under the rink and pass it over the evaporator, where heat is removed by the refrigeration cyde. Water passing over the condenser carries the heat removed from the ice out to the cooling towers, where it is rejected to the atmosphere. The cooling towers are also 5 years old. System is equipped with new water treatment system.

3.2.4.4 - Electrical Systems

Service, Switching & Panelboards:

The main electrical service is approximately 32 years old. The service comes underground from George Street utility manhole to the 13.8 kV utility switch gear in the

8

[image: image827.jpg]



...

[image: image828.jpg]



•

[image: image829.jpg]


[image: image830.jpg]



•

-t

[image: image831.jpg]



•

-~

[image: image832.jpg]


[image: image833.jpg]


[image: image834.jpg]


[image: image835.jpg]



T

[image: image836.jpg]



-


switch gear room located on the Street Level in the northeast comer of the building. The service primary metering is located within the switch gear.
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Two step-down utility transformers are located in the adjacent transformer vault. They step down the voltage to 4801277 value and feed two 2500 A switchboards #1 and #2 serving primarily the main building, excluding the mezzanine, garage and the service area.

Three (3) 1000 kVA 13.8 kV down to 480/277 volt and one (1) 500 kVA 13.8 kV down to 208/120 volt utility transformers are located in the vault at the first parking level. These transformers provide power to {4) distribution panelboards serving the mezzanine lighting panels for arena lighting, parking garage, and air conditioning units for the

building.
·

One (1) 13.8 kV down to 4801277 volt utility transformer feeds the service area. This transformer is located in the vault next to the boiler room.

The main 2500A breaker type switchboards are in good condition and spaces are available for additional loads. These switchboards have integral 225 kVA step down transformers and 800A 208/120 volt distribution sections.

1000A 480/277 volt service area switchboard has no availa~le spaces or spares .

Lighting and appliance 480/277 and 208/120 volt panelboards are located in various areas of the building. These panelboards were served directly from the main distribution switchboards in the original design. Additional local step down (480/277- 2081120) transformers were added during later renovations.

All panelboards are breaker type with original breakers or retrofitted . Most of the panelboards observed have a limited or no spare/space availability. Filler plates and proper labeling is missing .

Power for event support is provided from (2) 400A and ( 1) 200A 2081120 volt disconnect switches located under the seating area of the south side.

Kitchen panelboards have no spares on the 208/120 volt side. No shunt trips were observed under the hood. Ground fault interrupter outlets were missing within six feet of water sources. Bar power panel has no spare capacity, with open wiring and missing filler plates. No ground fault interrupter outlets by the sink.

Ground fault interrupters were missing within six feet of water sources in the locker rooms.

Lighting:

The majority of lighting is fed from 4801277 volt panels with the exception of the lounge/bar where incandescent lighting was utilized.

The building has undergone several minor renovations during recent years, which included the exterior lighting improvements, interior lighting selected improvements and fire alarm upgrades.
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The exterior lighting consists of metal halide and high pressure sodium wall packs, accenting the features of the building. Recessed metal halide cylinders provide lighting above the exterior escalators. Fluorescent recessed downlights are mounted above the main entrances to the concourse level. Metal halide low bay fixtures illuminate the driveway to the street level entrance. Partially abandoned fluorescent strips are also located there in the beam pockets.

[image: image847.jpg]


[image: image848.jpg]


[image: image849.jpg]AN




Interior lighting on the street level consists of fluorescent pendant and surface mounted strips with T-121amps.

Recessed fluorescent lensed or parabolic fixtures illuminate the administration offices.

Pendant mount cylinders, and a mixture of wall mounted HPS fixtures provide lighting for the stairwells .

The arena is illuminated with metal halide spot type fixtures mounted ·on the catwalk. The power panels and Asco low voltage control panels for these fixtures are also located on the catwalk. The main lighting controls are connected to the control booth console.

There are new high bay type metal halide fixtures on the concourse level. All bathrooms were renovated and new fluorescent lighting was provided at each.

The exterior lighting is controlled by local photocells or manually by circuit breakers. The lighting for public areas is controlled by local line type switches or Asco low voltage switches or circuit breakers. There is no centralized lighting control system.

High pressure sodium lensed type fixtures are in the garage, including the entrance helix. Garage lighting is controlled by circuit breakers.

Exterior AC units service lights consist of string of hanging incandescent bulbs.

There are two lighting systems in the service area: one original with fluorescent strips, and newer one with HID high bay fixtures. The original lighting system appears to be in a present use, however it requires maintenance.

Kitchen and Bar lighting:

Kitchen lighting is recessed, fluorescent type with lenses. The bar lighting is all

incandescent with recessed downlights in the seating area and surface mounted globes over the counter.

Life Safety Systems:

The original emergency lighting system was accomplished by the use of the transfer switches located in the main electrical room. It fed the lighting in selected egress areas. This system does not meet the present Life Safety Codes requirements.

It was supplemented in 1979-80 by individual battery units located along the egress routes, however it needs revisiting and adding more units in the stairwells, locker rooms, team rooms, toilet rooms, office areas. The main arena emergency lighting only partially covers the stairwells and is insufficient.
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Emergency battery packs at each floor provide emergency lighting for garage stairwells. The exit signs are fluorescent local battery type, blue in the arena and red in other areas. Except for the concourse main exit doors and the ticket offices the overall condition of the exit signs is estimated as poor.
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The fire alarm system has been updated for the past several years and it has enough capacity to cover entire building. The main panel by Notifter is located on the street level in the office next to the chiller room. The annunciator panel is located at the main vestibule at Street level. The system is a voice activated type. The fire alarm upgrades were partial and there are still areas without proper detection/initiation and annunciation coverage.
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Presently the building is partially sprinklered with no smoke detection. Fire alarm initiation is accomplished through manual pull stations. Smoke detection is required throughout unless full sprinkler upgrade takes place. All existing and new fire protection flow and supervisory switches shall be tied to the fire alarm system. Duct smoke detection is required for the units above 2000 CFM and locally where smoke/fire dampers are needed.

The annunciation side of the fire alarm system does not provide full coverage for the building either. The areas without proper coverage include, but are not limited to: selected toilet rooms on the street level, locker rooms, team rooms, office areas, arena, and kitchen. The arena is equipped with industrial type strobes and high wattage horns in four corners. The testing of the system is recommended for required light and sound levels (above the ambient). The relay system is recommended to shut down the event sound in a case of emergency.

Kitchen hood is equipped with the fire suppression system, which did not look active. There is no connection to the fire alarm system. The garage fire alarm system consists of pull stations and hom strobes at each floor next to the stair tower.

No elevator recalls were observed .

	-
	4.0PROPOSED UPGRADES, REPAIRS & RENOVATIONS - NARRATIVE

	
	4.1Facility Upgrades: Program I Patron Enhancements

	
	


4.1.1 - NEW ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES

4.1.1.1 - New Entry Pavilion along Orange Street
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A welcoming entryway is an asset to any building, public or private. The dark weathered steel trusses and exposed mechanical systems loom over the primary approach to the Coliseum creating an unattractive first impression to visitors. These rough finishes and raw structure convey a somber sense of age and neglect

The creation of a new enclosed lobby entrance at the comer of South Orange and George Street would have a marked impact on the image of the facility. Ideally this would be an enclosure of the entire Orange Street mezzanine with soaring glass walls (as contrasted to the glooming translucent concourse window walls) allowing plenty of daylight into the space and a bright clean ceiling. At night it would be a brightly lit beacon visible from the Rte. 34 connector as well as the surrounding streets. Instead of a vague

[image: image859.jpg]



-

[image: image860.jpg]



11

-

-


point of entry, the Coliseum would have a dearly defined "front porch" and added floor area for event support and merchandising, and "will call" ticketing area protected from the elements.
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Very high escalators bring patrons from the garage level to the mezzanine. Many users are uncomfortable with the height of these escalators and the escalators break down frequently, primarily because of the exterior environment This enclosure would reduce the sense of vertigo while providing a conditioned environment for more reliable operation of the escalators. The mezzanine deck, which was never intended to be a roof for the offices & ticket sales area below, has been a constant source of leaks. Enclosure of this area will eliminate the leaks.

4 .1.1.2 - Marquee Signage at Orange Street and Frontage and State Streets comer.

Installing large computer operated marquee signage along the fa~de has been identified as a key component to increasing the visibility of the Coliseum. Marquees not only provide performance information and help locate the main entrance but also give a sense of excitement and continuous activity. Two areas have been identified: as part of a new main entry area at the corner of Orange and George Streets providing downtown identification, and along the upper fa~de of the parking garage at the corner of State and Frontage Streets providing a view from the Rte. 34 connector and 1-95 beyond . These signs are large, in the range of 200 to 300 SF. They include Coliseum banner _lettering, a constantly changing LED read out, and room for product advertising.

4.1.1.3 - New "Club 1 000" Multi-purpose Room

Coliseum staff has recognized the need for a new multi-purpose room for events, parties, press and performance event support, hockey club support space, etc. An area along the Orange Street corridor has been identified as ideal for this purpose. The room will be approximately 1600 SF and will have a carpeted floor and finished ceiling with general lighting. The design should allow wiring for media hook-ups, furnishings, and a small PA system.

4.1.2 - ARCHITECTURAL UPGRADES

4.1.2.1 - Administrative Office Renovations

A general upgrade to the administrative offices would involve new finishes: carpet, painting, and ceiling tiles; new reception desk and seating; and, new work stations and chairs.

4.1.2.2 - Guida Room Renovations

The Guida Room also requires a general refurbishment with new finishes, furniture, sideboard cabinetry, and lighting

4 .1.2.3 - Club Lounge Renovations
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The existing Club lounge is serviceable but requires some upgrading to be more attractive and contemporary. Improvements would include re-surfacing the bar, new lighting, new paint and floor surfaces and new furniture.
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4 .1.2.4 -  Kitchen Refurbishment

The existing catering kitchen has, for the most part, been dismantled. The Coliseum's staff has identified the need to re-establish the kitchen in support of concession services as well as event planning. There is ample space and existing storage with dry storage closets, and walk-in coolers. The kitchen will require all new cooking equipment, work tables, dish and pot wash equipment, hand wash sinks, reach-in refrigerators and freezers and more. Kitchen administrative areas, product breakdown areas and staff areas would also have to be renovated . A renovated catering kitchen would be an important asset to an upgraded Coliseum facility.

4 .1.2 .5 -  Orange & State Streets Concourse Floor Re-finish

The concrete floor of the concourses has been identified as difficult to maintain and in need of fresher:'ingup. Adding ceramic tile will improve the appearance of the concourse and will provide a floor surface easier to keep clean and neat

4 .1.2 .6 -  Team Room #5 Renovations

Team Room #5 is the last of the team support locker areas remaining to be upgraded. The work includes renovated bathing areas, new lighting and finishes, new team support rooms, new locker and bench system, and refurbished changing room .

4 .1.2 .7 -  Replace Arena Guardrail

The existing guardrail at all arena stairs and along the front of seating terraces is no longer code compliant This item upgrades and replaces the guardrail with code compliant pipe rail systems.

4 .1.2 .8 -  Seating Replacement Program

The existing arena seating is old and past its useful life expectancy. Current repairs are difficult with replacement parts no longer available. This item would implement a seat replacement program that would replace the existing with new, implimented over a period of time.

4 .1.2 .9 -  Paint Arena Ceiling

The appearance of the arena ceiling appears Shabby and unaesthetic due to exposed insulation and steel truss fireproofing . This item scopes the work involved in staging and painting the entire arena ceiling with a dark color to help conceal and de-emphasize ceiling protuberances.

4 .1.2 .10 -  Restroom Facility Renovations
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This item completes the renovations and upgrade of existing restrooms. The work includes new paint, lavatory tops, sinks, toilet partitions and lighting. In addition two new accessible unisex restrooms will be installed.
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4.1.2.11 - Concession Improvements
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This item completes the upgrade of the food and retail concessions at the State Street Mezzanine. Budgetary items are based on past improvements.
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4.1.2.12 - Miscellaneous ADA Improvements

This item includes upgrades to door hardware, signage, railings and other ADA related items not covered in other facility improvements.

4.1.2.13 - Premium Seating

The Coliseum management is looking for opportunities to develop premium seating or box areas with enhanced seats, service and promotion.

4.1.3 -  NEW PERFORMANCE SYSTEMS

4 .1.3.1 - New Rigging Grid Above Arena

To facilitate the temporary suspension of lighting and show equipment in the arena, a fixed grid of structural steel members could be suspended from the structure at the A level at an elevation just below the catwalk. The Coliseum has researched the spacing and capacity requirements that would be a practical solution to its needs, and has determined that a beam would be needed that could support a 4000 lb. load, and allow for bridling to reach any point. The spacing desired would be a module grid of approximately 10 feet by 10 feet at the south end of the arena, from the catwalk south over the lower seats to the rear of the concrete columns at line R. At the area from the catwalk north to the red line ( grid line K) at the center of the arena ice floor, the grid would be on a module of approximately15 feet by 15 feet. From the center of the arena north to the catwalk, there would be a grid of 31 feet by 30 feet for two bays and a last bay of 30 feet by 20 feet to reach the south edge of the North catwalk.

The frame grid members would consist of square steel tubes of 6" by 6" to 8" by a· size, framing into nodes that would be welded to allow the tubes to be bolted in place. Hangers of pipe sections, clamped or welded to existing framing would support the nodes, with some diagonal braces to secure the frame against sway.

We have estimated the quantity of steel needed for this grid.

4.1.3.2 - New Curtaining System

Coliseum performance management is looking to provide flexibility for a variety of performance type configurations by installing a curtaining system. The system will allow the arena to be telescoped down to a 3000-seat performance venue or divide the house in half for different activities.

4 .1.3.3 - New PA System
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This item replaces the current system that is on its last legs with many of the speakers no longer working.
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4.1.3.4 - New Zamboni Ice Machine
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New zamboni ice cleaning machine to replace the existing which is very slow and soon to run out of steam.
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4.1.3.5 - New Portable Stage

As part of creating more flexibility to support different types of performance and exhibition configurations, a new portable stage will enhance entertainment opportunities.

4.1.3.6 - New Basketball Floor
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This item replaces the existing floor which is over 30 years old and no longer serviceable.
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4.1.3.7 -  New Retractable Seating System
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This item repairs the existing retractable seating system for ease of change over and safety related issues.

4.1.3.8 - New Plows
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Management has identified the need for two new plows for ice and snow clearing .
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4.2
Facility Upgrades: Life Safety I ADA I Building Code

4.2.1
LIFE SAFETY UPGRADES
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4.2.1.1 - Sprinklers

Provide complete sprinklers throughout the unprotected areas including all closets, electrical rooms, elevator shafts, concourse level, arena area and other special areas requiring coverage, per NFPA #13. Sprinkler should be provided in all unprotected areas to assure a higher degree of life safety and property damage loss in the event of fire.

Reroute existing fire  protection main  line to the outside of all electrical rooms.
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Provide tamper switches on all existing fire protection valves throughout the system.
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Addition of sprinkler in unprotected areas should be considered urgent.

4.2.1.2 - Standpipe

Provide dedicated new standpipe system (existing to be disconnected from sprinkler system) throughout the building to meet the code requirements. The present Building Code requires standpipes in all buildings with occupied floors 30 feet above or below the fire department vehicle access. Standpipe shall spaced to permit coverage
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throughout the floor when connected to 100 feet of hose and 30 feet of spray.

4.2.1.3 - Deferred Maintenance Repairs Major Operations & Interior

•
Replace existing building old sprinkler heads in light hazard areas with new quick response sprinkler heads to comply with present Code.
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Due to the age of the existing fire protection system, we recommend that the system be tested per code.

In some areas sprinkler heads are recessed too far above ceiling tiles and are obstructed .
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4 .2.1.4 - Plumbing
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Some of the building's plumbing fixtures are not in compliance with current Handicapped Codes. Handicapped accessible fixtures shall be added to the building to comply with present Code requirements.

Many of the building plumbing fixtures are not in compliance with current State of Connecticut minimum efficiency (water conservation) standards. All plumbing fixtures shall be water conservation type.

Some of the existing old fixtures have cracks in the porcelain finish. These racks can grow at points of stress, and eventually cause these stress points to fail.

Modify existing systems ejector pump system
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4 .2.1.5 - Fire Alarm
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Provide smoke detection in administration areas (unless full upgrade of the fire protection takes place)

Provide duct smoke detectors in all units exceeding 200 CFM and tie to the fire alarm system for shut down

Tie existing and new (if upgraded) flow and tamper switches to the fire alarm system

Provide additional pull stations were required (maximum 200 feet of travel distance)

Provide additional speaker/strobes in selected toilet rooms on the street level, locker rooms, team rooms, office areas, arena, kitchen

Provide interface devices for the automatic shut down of the sound system

Replace existing pull stations in the garage with new weatherproof, potted, gasketed type.
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4 .2.1.6 - Emergency lighting
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Provide 30 kVA inverter to backup the arena lighting and new metal halide fixtures with quartz restrikes for emergency operation. Relay system to control the lighting in a case of the power loss.

Back up selected exterior light fixtures directly above the egress doors from the inverter for emergency operation

Install additional battery units in the stairwells, locker rooms, team rooms, toilet rooms, office areas.
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4 .2.1 .7- Exit signs

Replace existing exit signs with new LED type throughout except for new ticket office. New exit signs to be provided with individual batteries or wired to new central inverter.
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4.2.2
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS
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4 ..2.2.1 - Asbestos Encapsulation
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Coliseum staff provided an estimated cost to encapsulate the asbestos in the end zones based on a survey report developed for them by AAIS .

4.3
Deferred Maintenance: Exterior Envelope

4.3.1
PARKING STRUCTURES

The existing parking garage is accessed at the A and B levels by the George Street Helix. The majority of traffic enters the garage on the A level on a daily basis, and wear and tear on the structures has been most severe on this level .

4.3.1.1 - George Street Helix

The George Street helix was repaired and re-opened in 1990, the slab having been repaired with partial and full depth patches and with the traffic surface protected with an extra heavy-duty elastomeric traffic deck coating. This urethane traffic deck coating was built up of a primer coat, a base coat of waterproofing material, and additional layers of urethane and sand broadcast into the wet liquid to build up a wear course that takes the abrasion from traffic. This waterproof coating is needed to keep the concrete in the slabs dry to retard corrosion of the reinforcing steel in the existing concrete deck, which contains a high salt content from its years in service prior to coating . The protective traffic deck coating on both levels of the ramps has been worn through in the wheel tracks. The traffic deck coatings need to be reapplied to re-establish the system, after patch repairs are made to the concrete at extensive areas of spalls from corroding top reinforcement in the slab. Because of the degree of wear to the driving surface, it is anticipated the coating will need to be removed on the drive lane surfaces, while the curbs may be recoated if current systems are compatible with the existing traffic coating . There is approximately 58,300 square feet of traffic deck coating on the George Street Helix. Our opinion of cost for this deck coating work is $265,000.

There are a limited number of corrosion spalls on the underside of the ramp slabs. These are typically present at the edge of patches previously completed .where new corrosion typically starts if sufficient moisture is present. Leakage through cracks or into the concrete has accelerated this spalling, and restoration of the membrane coating is vital. As these spalls may come loose and fall on traffic at any time, the loose concrete should be removed as a temporary safety measure. Determination of the amount of spalling will require a detailed survey, but we believe the soffit spalling appears to be comparatively isolated. At the top, spalls are quite frequent above the steel beams. For the proposes of our opinion of cost, we recommend an allowance of $130,000 be carried for spall repair on the George street Helix.

4 .3.1.2 - Parking Garage

The general condition of the parking garage is good, except for areas of failed sealant at the trench drains and particularly at the portions of the A level where the deck is not coated with the traffic deck coating above the arena. The sealants over the northwest quadrant of the garage, where the heaviest traffic is experienced, show widespread leakage visible at the joints on the underside of the precast planks on the soffit of the
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slab. This is true for the west bay of parking, the ramp up to the second level, and particularly the drive lane and parking areas at the north edge of the building. The pattern of staining on the underside of the slab suggest the sealants are largely ineffective in these areas.
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The heavily traveled areas of the A level and ramps up to level 8 that not protected by the traffic deck coating need complete recaulking . These caulk joints are located on an 8 foot by a ten foot grid to match the beam spacing. At these locations, the sealant would be removed, the reglet surfaces cleaned by grinding, and new sealant applied. The performance of the sealants here is in contrast to the areas protected by the traffic coating, where the sealants and coating have performed essentially perfectly, where no leakage is visible.

Within the garage, leakage was observed at trench drains at the base of the ramps. Observation of the top of the drains show areas of debonding of the sealant at the metal drain ban edges. The sealants at the tret:~ch drains at the base of the ramps should be inspected and replaced where damaged.

It was also observed that four surface spalls were seen on the top side of the A level in the entry and garage office area near the sealant joints, indicating that local areas of deterioration exist due to this leakage. It is necessary to recaulk the sealant joints over all parts of the A level that show deterioration of the sealant , and top side patch repairs be made to the slab at the sporadic local spalls. Again, a detailed survey is needed to measure quantities but we anticipate a small amount of patching in the garage.

The traffic deck coating on the A level above the arena is generally in excellent condition. Localized areas of damage or wear were observed in the drive lanes of the most heavily utilized bays adjacent to the escalator and in the adjacent bay to the east, along the north side. These areas should be spot repaired , and consideration should be given to a recoat of the entire heavily utilized area to make up for wear in the drive lanes as well as patch small areas of damage. This will provide for continued protection of the waterproofing coat and avoid the problems encountered due to wear at the helix .

Due the widespread leakage at the sealant joints in the high traffic areas as contrasted to the excellent performance of the coated areas, we recommend the areas of high use at the A level at the west and north sides, as well as the west ramp up to the 8 level be coated with the traffic deck coating after replacing the sealants and repairing the deck. This is the key to prevention of damage to the underside of the slab, where repairs will be very difficult and costly. The area at the 8 level directly in front of the entry bridge at the drive lane and one bay to the north and south should also be coated due to fine cracking noted in this area.

The expansion joint glands at the George street helix should be replaced with new joint seals. Areas of loose foam and small chips of loose concrete attached were seen below the joint at the 8 level, and should be removed. Replacement of the gland appears readily done as the concrete blockouts at the joints appear sound.

4.3.1.3 - Clay Tile Veneer Masonry Distress at George Street and State Street Helixes

The base of the helix ramps providing entry into the garage consist of curved, cast-in place, reinforced concrete walls that extend from approximately 23 to 27 feet above
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grade. The original design drawings showed the base bid to be exposed concrete walls, but an alternate was exercised during construction to wrap the concrete walls with a clay tile veneer to match the main building and the adjacent structure. The veneer consists of s single wythe of hollow clay tile, which was built without expansion joints on brick shelves around the perimeter of the walls.
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The clay tile has undergone a long-term expansion typical of fired clay products, while the concrete walls of the helixes have undergone a small amount of long-term shrinkage typical of cement materials. This has resulted in distress to the masonry veneer, as the diameter of the tile wall has increased due to linear expansion of the brick around the complete circumference of the walls. As a result of the growth of the exterior diameter of the clay tile and tiny reduction in the diameter of the concrete, the clay tile is now pushing itself off of the shelf angles at the door openings by as much as 1 Y2 inches, leaving about half of the original support for the weight of the clay tiles above the doors. This expansion also shows distress as crushing and cracking at the base of the masonry, due to the friction and bond of the base course to the concrete shelf and the relative expansion of the clay tiles above. This causes the base courses to tip outward .
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Temporary wood shoring left in place as sidewalk protection since 1990 at the State street helix has deteriorated due to weather, and the continued expansion of the tile has made the problem worse over time. The expansion of cavity between the brick and the concrete to this degree can be expected to have ruptured or pulled out the ties securing the veneer to the concrete. Along the South side of the George street helix, there has also been extensive deterioration of the curb at the base of the tile veneer.

We believe this problem with the brick has reached a critical level and represents a potential safety hazard to persons using or passing by the helix walls. We recommend the clay tile masonry be removed from both helixes as part of the first priority of tasks, exposing the concrete wall which may be covered with a another finish as desired. A temporary bracing system such as wrapping the structure with cables or installing wall ties and supports would be warranted if significant time is needed prior to removal, but due to the costs of this type of work and the relative economy and speed of removal, we recommend moving directly to this option. There is approximately 7300 square feet of clay tile veneer on the State street helix, and approximately 6700 square feet of clay tile on the George street helix.

There are other minor areas of distress on the masonry which are more localized and of less structural importance. Most areas appear to .be a result of this expansion combined with a coping plate, such as at the southeast stair, or areas on the wall along Frontage Road. These areas need local reconstruction. The main body of the building could not be observed due to the heights needed for close observation to visually find cracks ad subtle signs of distress.

4.3.1.4 - Completion of the State Street Helix - Replacement of Slabs

The State Street helix has been closed since the repair of the garage, with the slabs at the top of the ramps removed and the structural steel reinforcement needed to replace the slabs as per the 1989 plans completed . As the slabs have suffered from high salt content, there is a large amount of spalling of the concrete due to corrosion of the embedded slabs reinforcing bars. A detailed survey of the amount of damage was made in 1996, and it was determined that the inner lanes had extensive damage and must be
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	replaced, but the exterior lane might be more economical to repair by repairing the

	
	extensive spalls, and coating the entire ramp with an elastomeric traffic coating such as

	•
	utilized at the George Street helix.

	
	Due to the continued deterioration of the slabs, the difficulty in doing the large scale

	
	removals without causing damage to the part adjacent to and the comparatively short life

	
	of repairs due to the original design and high chloride contents, we recommend that the

	
	elevated slabs be completely removed and replaced with new concrete slabs. At this

	
	ramp, ttie slabs on grade at the base of the ramp could be left in place and patched as

	
	needed, while the first part of the structure which is a cast-in -place concrete frame

	
	would be shored and have the top of the beams removed along with the full thickness of

	
	the slabs, which with be recast with new concrete and epoxy coated bars. The majority

	
	of the area of the slabs is a wood-formed slab in a structural steel frame and we

	
	recommend complete replacement with a new slab utilizing epoxy coated bars and

	
	quality concrete.

	
	Although it requires periodic recoating, we recommend the new slab also be coated with

	
	a traffic coating due to the cracking observed in these structures, which are flexible and

	
	prone to thermal expansion and contraction cracking due to changes in temperature.

	
	Another component of the reconstruction is extending the guardrails higher with added

	
	channels and angles as on the George Street helix. Some of the steel components were

	
	stored on site near the George Street Helix, some in open drums and some is stacks. As

	
	the condition and quantity of materials still present is uncertain, and the code

	
	requirements for guards have been incteased since that time, we recommend that a

	
	replacement project incorporate fencing or other more complete closure solutions for the

	
	interior and perimeter of the helixes. This will need design study.

	T
	4.3.1.5 - Replacement of Slabs in the Garage- C& D Levels

	
	The slabs at the upper levels of the parking garage at the east side were not replaced

	
	in the 1990 project. The third floor, ramps up to the fourth floor, and the fourth floor

	
	remain to be completed, representing 159,000 square feet of floor area . The slabs would

	
	be replaced with new, 5ft thick lightweight concrete slabs of constant thickness placed on

	
	tapering haunches to create pitch. This system would be identical to the existing upper

	
	level slabs, due to design constraints of the existing steel frame and supporting

	
	structure. The minor modifications to the steel frame in this area including adding shear

	T
	connectors and cover plates at certain locations would be included in tl)e new work.

	
	

	
	The slabs would be reinforced with two layers of welded wire fabric, and the project

	
	would require construction of the custom wood form system utilized in the pervious

	
	project Due to the repetitive nature of the forming, some formwork could be used

	
	multiple times but special areas of slab geometry near the railroad trusses suspending

	
	the  main truss over the ice floor will make for reduced reuse of forms than on other

	
	levels. Completion of the guard rails, perimeter fencing, and m/e/p systems will also be

	
	needed.

	
	Costs for this work have been estimated by taking the actual bid costs from the previous

	
	project and amplifying them per the criteria established by R.S Means. At the current

	
	time, market conditions in our area have led to higher unit prices for reinforced concrete

	
	projects than expected by local construction managers. We have added an increase to

	
	the Means Costs based on this current experience.
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4.4
Deferred Maintenance: Major Facility Systems
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4.4.1
GENERAL HVAC RECOMMENDATIONS

Maintain the level of maintenance and do diligence observed at this site. Implement and/or continue the following concepts to become "second nature" to an operating program.

4.4.1.1 - Planned Maintenance:

Planned maintenance classifies maintenance resources that are invested in prudently selected functions at specified intervals. All functions and resources within this classification must be planned, budgeted, and scheduled. Planned maintenance embodies two concepts - preventative and corrective maintenance.

Preventative maintenance classifies resources allotted to ensure proper operation of a system or equipment under the maintenance program. Durability, reliability, efficiency, and safety are the principal objectives.

Corrective maintenance classifies resources, expended or reserved, for predicting and correcting conditions of impending failure. Corrective action is strictly remedial and always performed before failure occurs. An identical procedure performed in response to failure is classified as a repair. Corrective action may be taken during a shutdown caused by failure, provided the action is optional and unrelated.

4.4.1.2 - Preventative Maintenance:

Operation and maintenance of all HVAC systems should be considered during the original design of a building . Any successful operation and maintenance program must include proper documentation of the design intent and criteria.

There are three (3) types of maintenance programs which can be adapted. They are:

Run-to-Failure: No money is spent on maintenance until equipment or systems breakdown.

2.
Preventative Maintenance: Schedule, either by run time or by the calendar.

Predictive Maintenance: Based on equipment monitoring and the use of condition and performance indices to maximize repair intervals.

Proper operation and maintenance are important factors in providing good indoor air quality (IAQ) and ensuring that life safety systems operate as designed.

4.4.1.3 - Recommended Upgrades:

HVAC System

All air handling units to be replaced with new units to include CHW, HW, Return Fans and Economizer section

2.
Provide water cooled centrifugal chiller min.O.S KW/ Ton with  VFD

New CHW piping to be provided . If budget allows four pipe system is more desirable. Existing HW piping can be reused .
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Existing boilers and heat exchanger to remain, with repairs to each due to recent malfunctions.
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Ice Rink System:

The current chillers are very inefficient and should be replaced . Normally utility companies provide incentive for this type of upgrades. The newer chillers offer lower KW/Ton and also uses more environmental friendly refrigerant (R134a).

Please see the cost associated with replacement of these chillers. The power consumption of the circulation pumps also can be significantly reduced by installing a Variable Frequency Drive (VFD) to control their speed and by replacing the existing motors with premium efficiency motors .

The cooling load on the ice sheet varies with factors like the outdoor air temperature and relative humidity, as well as with variations in operation practices such as the frequency of ice resurfacing, indoor air temperature, and the number of skaters and spectators .

The pumps are sized to satisfy the design heat load, and in order to do so they must circulate peak flow. However, when the load is not this high, the flow rate can be lowered and electrical power consumption significantly reduced. A VFD would make this variation in flow rate possible.

4.4.2
ELECTRICAL UPGRADE RECOMMENDATIONS

4.4.2.1 - Centralize & Computerize lighting Controls

Arena lighting - install additional dimmable quartz lighting for event illumination. Provide new lighting contactors for control of existing HID lighting and dimmer system for quartz lighting. The control system by ETC or similar to be equipped with DMX protocol.

Provide centralized lighting controls for entire complex as manufactured by GE TCL series or similar. Install lighting contactors and rewire existing lighting with outputs to one central location.

4.4.2.1 - Upgrade Arena Show lighting and Sound power

Provide additional (2) 400A and (2) 200A 208/120 volt disconnects for show power. located under the seating next to existing disconnects. Feed from the main switchboard thru step down transformer.

End of Feasibility Study Narrative
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New Haven Veterans Memorial Coliseum
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Feasibility Study

Project Budget Summary

May 3, 2002

PROJECT COST SUMMARY FOR ALL CATEGORIES

	ITEM
	All PRIORITES
	ONlY PRJORJTY ONE

	Facility Upgrades, Renovations & Additions
	$22,506,664.00
	$7,804,000.00

	(Total of All Probable Cost Subtotals)
	
	

	Design & Legal Fees (10%)
	$2,250,666.00
	$780,400.00

	(Engineering, Architecture, Consultants, Legal, Etc.)
	
	

	Construction Contingency (5%)
	$1 ,125,333.00
	$390,200.00

	(Unknown Conditions During Construction)
	
	

	Design Scope Contingency {20%)
	$4,501 ,332.00
	$1 ,560,800.00

	(Conceptual Costing Allowance for Feasiblity Study)
	
	

	FINAL TOTAL  .
	$30,383,995.00
	$10,535,400.()0


Project Budget Summary - May 3, 2002
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New Haven Veterans Memorial Coliseum Consolidated Statement of Probable Cost

NO .
DESCRIPTION

4 .1
FACILITY UPGRADES PROGRAM/PATRON ENHANCEMENTS

4 .1.1
New Architectural Features

4 .1.1.1
New Entry Pavilion along Orange Street

1.1.2.  New Marquee Signage Systems

4.1.1.3  New Club 1000

Subtotal New Arch. Features (All Priorities)

Subtotal New Arch. Features (Only Priority 1)

4 .1.2
Architectural Upgrades

4.1.2.1
Administrative Offices

4 .1 .2.2
Guida Room Refurbishment

4.1.2.3
Club lounge Renovations

4 .1.2.4
Catering Kitchen Refurbishment

4 .12 .5
Orange & State Sl Concourse Floors

4 .1.2.6
Team Room#5

4 .12.7
Replace Arena Seating Guardrail

4 .1.2.8
Seating Replacement Program

4.12.9
Paint Arena Ceiling

4.12.10
Restroom Renovations (2 reno, 2 unisex)

4.1.2.11
Concession Improvements

1.2.12  Miscellaneous ADA Improvements

1.2.13  Premium Seating

Subtotal Arch. Upgrades (All Priorities)

Subtotal Arch. Upgrades (Only Priority 1)

4 .1.3
New Performance/Operations Systems

4 .1.3.1
New Rigging Grid

4.1.3.2
New Curtaining System {Theater Set)

4 .1.3.3
New PA System

4 .1.3.4
NewZamboni

4 .1.3.5
Portable Stage

4 .1.3.6
Basketball Floor

4 .1.3.7
Retractable Seating

4.1.3.8
Plows

Subtotal New Perl. fOp Systems (All Priorities)

Subtotal New Perl.!Op.Systems(Only Priority 1)

Statement of Probable Cost - May 3, 2002



QUANTITY
UNIT
UNIT COST
TOTAL
PRIORITY
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	8500
	SF
	$250.00
	$2,125,000 .00
	3

	1
	QUOTE
	$298,000 .00
	$298,000.00
	2 or 3

	1600
	SF
	$125.00
	$200,000.00
	3

	
	
	
	$2,623,000.00
	

	
	
	
	$0.00
	

	1500
	SF
	$100.00
	$150,000.00
	2

	1
	LS
	$25,000.00
	$25,000.00
	2

	1
	LS
	$50,000.00
	$50,000.00
	2

	1
	LS
	$100,000.00
	$100,000.00
	1 or 2

	19200
	SF
	$12 .50
	$240,000.00
	3

	1
	LS
	$55,000.00
	$55,000.00
	1

	14
	AREAS
	$12,500.00
	$175,000.00
	1

	1
	LS
	$125,000.00
	$1 25,000.00
	2

	40000
	SF
	$4 .50
	$180,000.00
	3

	1
	LS
	$70,000.00
	$70,000.00
	2

	1
	LS
	$475 ,000.00
	$475,000.00
	1or 2

	1
	LS
	$55,000.00
	$55,000.00
	1

	12
	AREAS
	$9,500.00
	$114,000.00
	3

	
	
	
	$1,814,000.00
	

	
	
	
	$860,000.00
	

	1
	QUOTE
	$230,664 .00
	$230,664.00
	2

	1
	QUOTE
	$195,000.00
	$195,000.00
	2

	1
	QUOTE
	$100,000.00
	$100,000.00
	1or 2

	1
	QUOTE
	$64,000.00
	$64,000.00
	1

	1
	QUOTE
	$155,000.00
	$155,000.00
	1or 2

	1
	QUOTE
	$100,000.00
	$100,000.00
	1

	1
	QUOTE
	$200,000.00
	$200,000.00
	1or 2

	2
	EA
	$25,000.00
	$50,000.00
	2

	
	
	
	$1,094,664.00
	

	
	
	
	$619,000.00
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New Haven Veterans Memorial Coliseum Consolidated Statement of Probable Cost

4.2
FACILITY UPGRADES

LIFE SAFETY I ADA I BUILDING CODE

4.2.1
LIFE SAFETY UPGRADES

4.2.1.1
Automatic Sprinkler System

42.12
Standpipe (ind. abolie)

4.2. 1.3
OMR-Sprinlder Heads (ind. above)

42.1.4
Plumbing - FIXture Replacement & ADA

4.2.1.5
Ftre Alann upgrades

4.2.1.6
Emergency Lighting

4 .2.1.6b
Lighting inverter

42.1.7
Exit signs

T

4.2.2
HAZ/MAT (provided by SMG)

4.2.2 .1
Asbestos encapsulation @ endzones

Subtotal Fac. Upgrades (All Priorities}

Subtotal Fac. Upgrades (Only Priority 1}

4.3
DEFERRED MAINTENANCE REPAIRS EXTERIOR ENVELOPE & ICE SLAB

4.3 .1
PARKING STRUCTURES (See Detailed Cost)

4.3.1.1
George Street Helix

4.3.1.2
Pari(ing Garage Maintenance

4.3.1 .3a
Removal of Masonry on Helixes

4 .3.1.3b
New Finish on Helixes & Selected Areas

4 .3.1.4
Completion of State Street Helix

4 .3.1.5
Replacement of Slabs in Garage- C&O Levels

4 .3.1.6
Misc. Concrete Repairs- Plaza & Ice Floor

4.3.1.6b . Ice Floor Replacement

4.3.2
ROOF REPAIRS

4.3.2 .1
Replacement of Roof Deck. & Re-roofing

4.3.2 .1
Repairs to State Sl & Orange St Mezzanines

4.3.3
SITE IMPROVEMENTS

4.3.3.1
Pigeon Controls

4.3.3.2
OeriYefY Area Screen Fencing

Subtotal Def. Maint. Repairs Ext. (All Priorities}

Subtotal Def. Maint. Repairs Ext.(Only Priority 1}

4.(
DEFERRED MAINTENANCE REPAIRS MAJOR OPERATIONS & INTERIOR

4.4.1
MEPSYSTEMS



	130000
	SF
	$4.00
	$520,000.00
	1

	6
	EA
	$1 ,500.00
	$9,000.00
	1

	1
	LS
	$40,000.00
	$40,000.00
	1

	1
	LS
	$65,000 .00
	$65,000.00
	1

	1
	LS
	$60,000.00
	$60,000.00
	1

	70
	EA
	$250.00
	$17,500.00
	1

	1
	LS
	$100,000.00
	$100,000.00
	1
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$811,500.00

$711,500.00

	1
	LS
	$400,000.00
	$400,000.00
	1

	1
	LS
	$400,000.00
	$400,000.00
	1

	1
	LS
	$60,000 .00
	$60,000.00
	1

	1
	LS
	$75,000.00
	$75,000.00
	1

	1
	LS
	$4,565,000
	.00
	$4,565,000.00
	3

	1
	LS
	$5,215,000
	.00
	$5,215,000.00
	3

	1
	LS
	$87,000.00
	$87,000 .00
	1

	1
	LS
	$460,000.00
	$460,000.00
	1

	1
	LS
	$369,000.00
	$369,000.00
	1

	1
	Qoute
	$109,000.00
	$109,000.00
	1

	1
	ITEM
	$50,000.00
	$50,000.00
	3

	200
	LF
	$175.00
	
	$35,000.00
	2


$11,825,000.00

$1,960,000.00

Statement of Probable Cost- May 3, 2002
Page 2 of3
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New Haven Veterans Memorial Coliseum

Consolidated Statement of Probable Cost

-

-



	4 .4 .1.1
	Replace Air Handling Units
	300000
	CFM
	$5 .00
	$1 ,500,000 .00
	1

	
	Pumps
	4
	EA
	$20,000.00
	$80,000.00
	1

	
	Cooling Towers
	1200
	TON
	$150.00
	$180,000.00
	1

	
	Install new Chiller 1000 Ton Centrifugal, VFD
	1000
	TON
	$1,200.00
	$1 ,200,000 .00
	1

	
	Boiler 12 Repairs
	1
	Quote
	$11 ,500.00
	$11 ,500.00
	1

	
	Heat exchanger Repair
	1
	Quote
	$12,000.00
	$12,000.00
	1

	
	CHW Piping
	2000
	lF
	$100.00
	$200,000.00
	1

	4.4 .12
	Replace Chiller for Ice Floor system
	1
	LS
	$450,000.00
	$450,000.00
	1

	.4.4 .1.3
	Replace Ice Floor piping system
	1
	LS
	$100,000.00
	$100,000.00
	2

	4 .4 .1.4
	Centralize & Computerize Lighting Controls
	1
	LS
	$60,000.00
	$60,000.00
	2

	4 .4 .1.5
	Upgrade Garage Security Can system
	1
	LS
	$50,000 .00
	$50,000.00
	2

	4 .4 .1.7
	Upgrade arena s how lighting power
	1
	LS
	$25,000 .00
	$25,000.00
	2

	4.4.1.8
	Sewer pump upgrades
	1
	LS
	$20,000 .00
	$20,000.00
	1

	4.42.1
	Building Automation System, ATC
	1
	LS
	$400,000.00
	$400,000.00
	3

	4 .4 .22
	Ice Machines & Freezer Repair/Replacement
	1
	LS
	$50,000.00
	$50,000.00
	2

	
	Subtotal MEP {All Priorities}
	
	
	
	$4,338,500.00
	

	
	Subtotal MEP (Only Priority 1)
	
	
	
	$3,653,500.00
	

	
	TOTA.L ALL PRIORITES
	
	
	
	$22,506,664.00
	

	
	TOTAL ALL PRIORITY ONES
	
	
	
	$7,804,000.00
	


Statement of Probable Cost - May 3, 2002
Page 3 of3
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Spiegel Zamecnik Shah Inc.
513/2002
New Haven Veleran'sMemorial Cor.seum DemolitiOn Sludy
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Structural Engineers

New Haven Coliseum Demolition - Engineer'sOpinion of Cost
I
I
I

I
I
l
I

Square Foot Method

Bu~ding Area

[image: image978.jpg]



Lower Level - el . 11

Grade level slabs-

el. 16 to 18

exdude sidewalks


I Use historically inflated costs for removal of slabs from 1991 and typical values for

	standard demo pro'ectsin our experience.Productivity based on 1991
	

	area (sf)
	Slab Type
	Unit price
	Total
	
	

	84221
	6" sag
	$5 .50
	$463,215.5(
	

	175<io
	6" Ice floor
	-$3 .00
	-$52.500
	.00
	Deduct Only

	26560
	6"sog
	$5.50
	$146.080
	.0C
	


	Rear Storage Area
	14568
	6"sog
	$5.50
	$80,124 .0(

	el. 11
	indudes roof&foundations
	
	

	Concourse level
	90844
	Ribbed slab
	$4 .00
	$363,376.0(

	I
	
	6" ribs @_ 3'oc
	
	

	
	
	14"&3"pan
	
	

	Grandstand Risers
	36528
	avg 8" thick
	$4 .00
	$146.112.0C

	Top (6179'4E&W
	
	at plan area
	
	

	Top @ 52'-2 N&S
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Low Roofs N&S

Mezzanine Below A

Level A Parking

el. 91'-4

Level B Parking

el102'-8

Level C Parking

el. 114'-0

Level 0 Parking

el. 125'-4

Level C & 0 Steel Only

West Stair Towers

& Elevator

Center Stair Towers

East Stair Towers

Roof @Rear Storage Area

el. 2 1.5



I

	
	19053
	steel deck&bms.
	$2.00
	$38,106.0C

	
	2728
	5" slab
	$3.00
	$8,184.()(

	
	199794
	Avg .9" slab
	$10.501
	$2,097,837
	.0C

	I
	199794
	Avg . 5.25" slab
	$9 .00
	$1,798,146
	.00

	
	110980 .
	Avg . 5.25" slab
	$9 .00
	$998.820
	.00

	
	87917
	Avg . 5 .25" slab
	$9 .00
	$791 ,253
	.00

	
	166040
	Steel Framing
	$2.00
	$332,080
	.00

	
	13013
	Steel framed floor
	$3 .00
	$39,039
	.00

	
	7175
	Steel framed floor
	$3.00
	$2 1,525
	.0

	
	I
	
	$3.00
	
	

	
	6731
	Steel framed floor
	
	$20,193.00


19315
Steel framing & Deck  included above

I

	Ext Wall -retaining
	
	
	

	Brick -5'x270'
	
	1350
	sf

	cone. - 20'11x 270'
	
	5400
	sf

	Ramp Sial>- 6" assumed
	
	72600
	

	Super columns Demolished
	
	7000
	cy

	George Street Helix
	10. Length (ft)
	Wodth  ft

	Slab on grade& Foundations
	3 14
	30

	Concrete framed
	
	344
	30

	Steel framed
	
	1364
	30

	Bridge
	
	91
	45

	State Street Bridge
	
	a. Length (ft)
	Wodth(ft)

	Slab on grade& Foundations
	153
	30

	Concrete framed
	
	379
	30

	Steel framed
	
	1354
	30

	Bridge
	
	100
	45

	Total
	
	
	

	Design cost exduded
	
	
	

	Inflate for two vears at 4%
	
	1.04•2
	1.0816

	Bring fill to site to blend w/
	
	180,000 sf
	10000

	processed concrete in hole
	
	@ 18" dp.
	cy

	Seed Site
	
	180,000 s.f.
	20000

	Design cost exd
	
	
	

	Environmental studies & remediation exduded
	

	Dump charges waived
	l
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Minor Footings removed but hole filled with processed materials

	Supercolumn footings are to  remain
	5000 cy

	Removal sequenoe critical for stab~ity
	I

	Probable duration 18 montrul
	I
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No Salvage taken above value implicit in unit prices



	$0.75
	$1 ,01 2.50
	

	$3.00
	$16,200
	.00
	

	$1 .00
	$72.600
	.0C
	

	$50.00
	$350.000.0(
	

	
	
	
	Notes

	$5 .50
	$51 ,810 .0C
	5"sog

	$4 .00
	$4 1,280.0(
	12" avg

	$3.50
	$143,220.0C
	5" on steel

	$6.00
	$24.570.()(
	10" on steel

	$5.50
	$25,245.0C
	5"sog

	$4 .00
	$45,480.0C
	12"avg

	$3 .50
	$142,110,(l<
	4"on steel

	$1.50
	$6,750
	.0C
	Steel only


Subtotal
$8,211,928.00

TOTAL
$8,882,021 .3

$23 .00
$230,000.00

0 .75
15000

1

I
I
I

I
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New Haven Collatum Capital Project•·
Englnttr'lOpinion of Probable Coat

Operations & Deferred Maintenance I Repairs· Mise
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Replace Ice Floor

Rem oval of Existing Slab

Saw Cutting • 6" a\ab,6'aq remove·llft

Haul

Dispose

Remove \nsu\aUon

Replace lnsu\aton.2'hlgh load Vapor Barrier

Edge filler

Reinforcing

2 layers 4x4-w4XW4 Edge& dam bars add for handling Concrete

Pump

F'lnlah

Wet cure

seal

Allow for Dasher hardware



	Slab Area
	17000 SF'
	

	ft .
	Unit Price
	Total

	6800 If
	$2 .00
	$10,720.00

	17000 sf
	$14.00
	$238,000.00

	9400.2 cy
	$1.00
	$9,496.20

	517.65 ton
	$50.00
	$25,882.50

	17000 af
	$0.50
	$8 ,500.00

	17000 sf
	$2.50
	$42,500.00

	17000 sf
	$0.25
	$4,250.00

	570 If
	$1.00
	$570.00

	17000 sf noor area
	

	34000 sf
	$0.66
	$22 ,440.00

	2 tons
	$1 ,500.00
	$3 ,000.00

	14.45 tons
	$100.00
	$1,445.00

	264  cy
	$110.00
	$29,088 .89

	264 cy
	$35.00
	$9 ,255.56

	17000 sf
	$0.65
	$1 1,050.00

	17000 sf
	$0,20
	$3 ,400.00

	17000 sf
	$0.35
	$5,950.00  .

	I. a.
	$25,000.00
	$25,000.tl0

	
	TOTAL
	$459,548 .14
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	Eatlmattd Value of Ice Slab
	$460 ,000

	excluding piping
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New Haven Collaeum Cepltel Projactl·
Engineers Opinion of Probable Coat
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Operations & Deferred Maintenance I Repairs·Mise

	New Rigging Grid
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grid Zone
	Typ. Length
	Seetlon
	Lbs/Foot
	Piece weight
	No. Members
	
	Total Weight
	#hangers

	
	ft .
	
	19.02
	199.7i
	
	69
	13780
	

	6 to 7, N.67 toR
	10.!5
	6x6x.25
	
	
	
	
	
	


Approx.elevatlon 62'

slm. To low roof

Girder beams at R

Hangers ® P & Q

Hanger• ® R

Hangers ® Elect Room

Hangers at ramp

Catwalk to Redllne

Approx.elevatlon 79'

Hangers C Elect Room ·Hangers at ramp

Hangers C  N'east

Hangers ®
L'5. west

Hangers C  L'5. east

Hangers @ L'west

Hangers C L'east

Hangers C K.5 west

Hangers @ K.5 east

Hangers @  K west

Hangers @ K east

Catwalk Redllne to Nortn

Approx.elevetlon 79'

Hangers @  H'west

Hangers @ H'aast

Hangers C G west

Hangars @  G east

Hangers ®Catwalk west

Hangers @Catwalk east

Hanger Attachments top

Hanger attachments Bott

Dlag . Braces( a sets)

Total Welgnt

Fabrlcated & Erected Unit Prtce • Allow



	21
	8x8x.2S

	11
	3x3x.25

	11
	3x3x.25

	28
	3x3x.25

	28
	3x3x.25


13
6x6x.25

exex.25
6x6x.25

15.5
6x6x.25

3x3x.25
3x3x.25
	11
	3x3x.25

	1a
	3x3x.25

	12
	3x3x.25

	17
	3x3x.26

	13
	3x3x.25

	16
	3x3x.25


3x3x.25

3x3x.25

15
3x3x.25

	31
	ax8x.25

	20
	8xax.25

	13
	3x3x.25

	17
	3x3x.25

	11
	3x3x.25

	19
	3x3x.25


3x3x.25
3x3x.25
Allow

Allow

22 Avg .Length
3x3x.25

$4 ,000
/ton



	25.82
	542.22
	69
	37413
	

	8.81
	98 .91
	22
	2132
	22

	8.81
	98 .91
	6
	581
	6

	8.81
	229
	.08
	5
	1145
	5

	8.81
	248
	.6a
	6
	1480
	8

	19.02
	247
	.26
	7
	1731
	

	19.02
	209
	.22
	4
	837
	

	19.02
	266.3
	30
	8559
	

	19.02
	294 .81
	28
	8255
	

	8.81
	79
	.29
	10
	793
	10

	8.81
	88 .1
	a
	529
	6

	a.a1
	96
	.91
	4
	3a8
	4

	a.81
	158.5a
	4
	634
	4

	a.81
	105.72
	4
	423
	4

	a.a1
	149
	.77
	4
	599
	4

	8.81
	114
	.53
	4
	456
	4

	a.a1
	140
	.96
	4
	564
	4

	a.a1
	123 .34
	.4
	493
	4

	8.a1
	132.15
	4
	529
	4

	a.a1
	132.1 5
	4
	529
	4

	25 .82
	ao0.42
	17
	13607
	

	25.a2
	516.4
	4
	2066
	

	8.81
	114
	.53
	4
	458
	4

	8.81
	149.77
	4
	599
	4

	a.a1
	96.91
	4
	3aa
	4

	a.8 1
	167.39
	4
	670
	4

	8.81
	88 .1
	4
	352
	4

	8.a1
	185.01
	4
	740
	4

	50 lb. each
	
	50
	115
	57 SO
	11 5

	
	
	
	
	
	

	50 lb. each
	
	50
	11 5
	5750
	

	8.81
	193.82
	16
	3101
	

	
	
	
	
	115332 lbs
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New Haven Collaeum Capital ProjeCtll·
Eng lneera Opinion of Probable Coat

Deferred Maintenance and Repairs· Exterior Envelope

Completion of State Str..t Helix

Replace stabs In Helix • Bases on Repair Budget Prepared by Fusco Corp. April 1998

	Budget lor repair • both levels • replace Inner roadWay and patch outer roadway
	
	State St. Helix
	CL Length (It)
	Width (ft)
	Area
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	Stab on grade
	153
	0
	0 5'slab on grade
	
	

	Total Fusco Budget
	
	
	2,500,000
	
	Concrete framed
	379
	32
	12128 12'avg
	
	

	Deduct Gen'lCondltlonsltfl 7.5%
	
	
	187,500
	
	Steetlremed
	1354
	32
	43328 4"on etael
	
	

	Deduct lor bridge stabs
	4000 sf ltfl $1 00/al
	
	400000
	
	Blidge
	100
	40
	4000 Steel only
	
	

	Deduct for mlso metats & Grilles
	
	
	250000
	
	
	
	
	59456
	total sf area
	
	

	ApproXimate net Concrete Repair coats
	
	1,662,500
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	less patching outside lanes
	1156000
	
	Replacement Area In budget (Inn er lanes)•
	10536 sf
	Unit Price I sf •
	$48
	
	

	Replace slab cost
	507,600
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total Replacement Area
	59456 sf
	
	Budget• slabs ltfl
	$2 ,863 ,887 .62
	+400,000+250,000 • 1.075
	
	$3,777,429
	
	
	

	Use Means Historical cost Index to brlng to today'scost
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Jan 1, 2002 • 100
	1998•9 1.3
	
	multiplier- 100!91 .3•
	1.095290252
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Today'aCoat
	1.095290252
	X
	3,777 ,429
	
	$4 ,137,38 1
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Local Concrete Market Factor
	( forms, rebar & Concrete)
	1.15
	2,863,888
	$429,583
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Total
	$4 ,566,965
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Estimated Value For Completing State
	$4,S8S,OOO

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Street Helix
	
	
	

	Removal Of Maeonry on Helixes
	
	Demoltlon/ sf
	Load and Disposal
	Load& Dispose/sf
	
	Paint cone . Surface
	Total
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	George Street Helix
	6700 sl
	
	$2.75 ($40/cy)/1 20 sf/cy
	$0.33
	
	$1 .00
	
	$27 ,358 .33
	

	State Street Helix
	7275 sl
	
	$2 .75
	
	
	$0.33
	
	$1 .00
	
	$29 ,706.25
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Eatlmated Value For Removing Muonry at
	$80,000

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Helix Ramps
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	New Havan Coliseum Capital Projects·
	Engineers Opinion of Probable Coot
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Deferred Maintenance and Repairs- Exterior Envelope
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Replacement of Roof Deck
	
	$/sf
	Assume no Asbestos
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Rooflng.

	
	
	SF Roof Deck Remove Roof Dee Remove rooflng& Insulation
	
	Disposal
	New roof deck
	R15 lnsut.
	
	S.P. fully adhered

	Back of house • Staging area
	
	19300
	
	$1.00
	$2.25
	
	
	$0.15
	
	$1.50
	
	$1.75
	
	$2.25

	North and South Low Roofs- Arena
	208()0
	
	$1.!50
	$2 .25
	
	
	$0.15
	
	$1 .50
	
	$1.75
	
	$2 .25

	
	
	Unit Cost
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Back of house • Staging area
	
	19500
	
	$8.90
	
	unit cost•
	
	$2 .85
	
	
	
	
	
	

	North and South Low Roofs- Arena
	20800
	
	$9.40
	
	unit cost•
	
	$3.15
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Eetlmated Value of New Roof Deck & New Roofing
	
	
	
	Eotlmoted Roof Deck Premium Only

	Back of houee • Staging area
	
	
	
	$173,550.00
	
	
	
	
	
	
	$51,875.00
	
	

	North and South Low Roof•· Arena
	
	
	$195,520.00
	
	
	
	
	
	
	$85,520.00
	
	

	Mlecel/aneoua Concrstt Rtpalr Eetlmate
	
	
	length
	SF Area
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Ice floor testi ng
	
	Width
	
	
	unit price
	
	
	cost
	
	
	
	
	

	Chain drag
	
	
	
	85
	200
	17000
	$0.10
	
	
	$1,700.00
	
	
	
	

	Copper Suffate Haff Cell
	
	
	
	eo
	200
	17000
	$0.40
	
	
	$6,800.00
	
	
	
	

	Surface Spa/I s
	allow
	t
	r1bs/CJ
	tCJ
	Total Ribs
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Allow one spa// each third r1b
	L.F. CJ ®P laza
	
	11
	4
	44
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Rlbl at Exposed Construction
	
	
	
	20
	1
	20
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Joints only
	
	
	
	4
	2
	8
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	12
	1
	12
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	4
	4
	16
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	21
	
	21
	
	
	$36,300,00
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	Patches
	
	121
	allow $ 300
	per patch
	
	
	
	
	

	Top Spa /I s
	Allow
	100 sf
	
	for plaza level
	
	
	$50.00  /Sf
	
	$5,000.00
	
	
	
	

	Ice Floor
	Allow
	100 sf
	
	for Ice floor
	
	
	$40.00  /sf
	
	$4,000.00
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	total
	$53,800 .00
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Estimated Value for Mlecellaneoue
	Conerett Patching
	$55,000
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New Haven Veterans Memorial Coliseum

Feasibility Study Cost Matrix

NO.
DESCRIPTION
QUANTITY
UNIT
UNIT COST
TOTAL
PRIORITY

4.1
FACILITY UPGRADES

PROGRAM/PATRON ENHANCEMENTS

[image: image1047.jpg]



1.1New Entry Pavilion along Orange Street
4.1.1.1. New Front Marquee & Signage Enclosure of Orange Street mezzanine &

1.1.2 escalators.

1.1 .3 Lighting, banners and awn ings
1.2Restroom Enhancements
4.1.2.1
2 Restroom upgrades (along George St. side)

4.1.2.2  New Unisex bathroom

4.1.3
Prem ium Seating along Inner Walkway

4.1 .4
Renovate Team Room #5

4.1. 5
Complete Renovation of Club Lounge

4.1.5.1 Refurbish Bar

4.1. 5.2 Lounge Furniture

1. 6Install New "Club 1000" Multi·purpose Room Floor Treatment @ Orange & State Street
4.1.7
Concourse & Ticket Lobby

4.1.8
New Curtaining System
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	4.2
	FACILITY UPGRADES
	
	
	
	

	
	LIFE SAFETY I ADA I BUILDING CODE
	
	
	
	

	4.2.1LI FE SAFETY UPGRADES
	
	
	
	

	4.2.1.1
	Automatic Sprinkler System
	
	
	
	$0.00

	4.2.1.2
	Fire Alarm upgrades
	LS.
	1
	$40 ,000.00
	$40 ,000.00

	4.2.1.3
	Exit signs
	Ea .
	70
	$250.00
	$17,500.00

	4.2.1.4
	Emerg ency Lighting
	LS .
	1
	$65 ,000.00
	$65 ,000.00

	4.2.1.5
	Lighting inverter
	LS .
	1
	$60,000.00
	$65 ,000.00

	4.2.1 .6
	Door Hardware
	
	
	
	$0.00

	
	
	
	
	
	$0.00

	4.2.2
	ADA UPGRADES
	
	
	
	$0.00

	4.2.2.1
	Area of Refuge ca ll system
	
	
	
	$0 .00
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Cost Matrix - 1
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New Haven Veterans Memorial Coliseum Feasibility Study Cost Matrix

4.2.2.2 Accessibility Improvements at entrances

4.2.3
BU ILDING CODE UPGRADES

4.2.3.1 Arena seating railings replacement

4.3
DEFERRED MAINTENANCE REPAIRS

EXTERIOR ENVELOPE

4.3.1
PARKING STRUCTURES

4.3.1.1 George Street Helix

4.3.1.1 a FaQade Surface til e work

4.3.1.1 b Deck Repairs

4.3.1.2 Orange Street Helix

4.3.1.2a Fa9ade Surface tile work

4.3.1.2b Deck Rep lacement

4.3.1. 2c Lighting

	4.3.2
	ROOF REPAIRS

	4.3.2.1  New Roof@ Orange Street Mezzanine

	4.3.2.2
	New Roof @ State Street Mezzanine

	4.3.2.3
	New Roof@ Expo Hall Servi ce Area

	4.3.2.4
	Roof Repairs @ "End zones" (2)

	4.3.2.5
	Roof Repairs@ corner roofs (4)

	4.3.3
	SITE IMPROVEMENTS


4.3.3.1 State Street streetscape; hide storage; lighting

4.3.3.2 Pidgeon control

4.4
DEFERRED MAINTENANCE REPAIRS MAJOR OPERATIONS & INTERIOR

4.4.1
MEP SYSTEMS

4.4.1.1 Replace Air Handling Units

Pumps

Cooltng Towers

Install new Chiller 1000 Ton Centrifugal, VFD CHW Piping
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$0.00

$0 .00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
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I

	CFM
	300000
	$5 .00
	$1 ,500 ,000.00

	EA
	4
	$20,000.00
	$80 ,000 .00

	TON
	1200
	$1 50.00
	$180,000.00

	TON
	1000
	$1,200.00
	$1,200,000 .00

	LF
	2000
	$100.00
	$200,000.00
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New Haven Veterans Memorial Coliseum

Feasibility Study Cost Matrix

4.4.1.2
Replace Chiller for Ice Floor system

4.4 .1. 3
Rep lace Ice Floor piping system

4.4 .1.4
Centralize & Computerize Lighting Controls

4.4 .1. 5
Upgrade Garage Security Call system

4.4 .1.6
Replace PA system

4.4 .1.7
Upgrade arena show lighting power

4.4 .1.8  Sewer pump upgrades

4.4 .1.9
Energy Conservation program

4.4 .2
BU ILDING SYSTEMS

4.4 .2.1  Asbestos Remediation

4.4 .2.2
Seating system replacement program

4.4 .2.3  Catering Kitchen Renovation

4.4.2.4
Paint Arena Ceiling

4.4 .2.5
New Rigging system

4.4 .2.6
New Roll-away stage system

Upgrade Adm inistrative Offices (renovations & 4.4 .2.7 furn iture) (incl. Guida Room )

4.4. 2.8  Rep lacement Zamboni (new)

4.5
OPERATIONS IMPROVEMENTS

4.5.1
SIGNAGE

4.5.1.1  Electronic Marquee @ east side parki ng deck

4.5.1. 2
Electron ic Marquee @ west side parking deck

4.5.1. 3
Street level marquee@ Orange/George St

4.5.1.4
Street level marquee@ Frontage/Orange St

4.5.1.5
Ext.signage & banner program @ Orange St.

4.5.1.6
Miscell aneous wayfinding signage

4.5.2
CONCESSION RENOVATIONS

4.5.2.1
L-shaped food & drink stand (2)

4.5.2.2
State Street Concourse stands (3)

4.5.2.3
Merchandice stand (1)

4. 5.2.4
Install TV monitors (6)
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	LS
	1
	$450,000 .00
	$450,000.00

	L$
	1
	$100 ,000 .00
	$100 ,000 .00

	LS
	1
	$60 ,000 .00
	$60 ,000 .00

	
	
	
	$0.00

	
	
	
	$0.00

	LS
	1
	$25 ,000 .00
	$25 ,000.00

	
	
	
	$0.00

	
	
	
	$0.00


Cost Matrix - 3
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

Board of Commissioners

New Haven Coliseum Authority

New Haven, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the New Haven Coliseum Authority, a component unit of the City of New Haven, Connecticut, as of June 30, 2001 and 2000, and the related statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in retained earnings (deficit) and cash flows for the years then ended . These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the New Haven Coliseum Authority. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit
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We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America . Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation . We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion .
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In  our opinion,  the  financial  statements  referred  to  above  present  fairly, in  all  material

respects, the financial position of the New Haven Coliseum Authority as of June 30, 2001 and 2000, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America .
~!;- ~ ,ev./P-o:
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LEVITSKY & BERNEY, P.C.

Certified Public Accountants
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[image: image1097.jpg]


[image: image1098.jpg]



-
1

[image: image1099.jpg]


EXHIBIT A

NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY

BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000
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ASSETS
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	June 30,

	
	
	2001
	2000

	Current Assets:
	
	
	

	Cash and Cash Equivalents
	$
	371,888
	789,882

	Receivables:
	
	
	

	State of Connecticut Hotel/Motel Tax
	
	184,697
	234,047

	SMG Capital Contribution
	
	4,240
	363,497

	Other Receivables
	
	86,220
	42,946

	Concession Inventory
	
	33,818
	15,388

	Prepaid Expenses
	
	35,078
	3,725

	Total Current Assets
	$
	715,941
	1,449,485

	Property and Equipment (At Cost) (Net of Accumulated
	
	
	

	Depreciation of $30,422,757 and $28,755,559 at
	
	
	

	June 30, 2001 and 2000, Respectively)
	$
	30,415,476
	30,700,067

	Total Assets
	$
	31,131,417
	32,149,552


[image: image1102.jpg]


[image: image1103.jpg]


[image: image1104.jpg]


[image: image1105.jpg]



See Independent Auditors'Report and

Notes To Financial Statements.
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EXHIBIT A

NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY

BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000
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LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
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Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Accrued Payroll and Related Liabilities

Sales and Withholding Taxes Payable

Deferred Operating Income

Capital and Refund Reserves

Capital Lease Obligations

Deposits

Total Current Liabilities
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Non-Current Liabilities:

Capital Lease Obligations (Net of Current Portion)
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Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Fund Equity:

Contributions In Aid - City of New Haven

Contributions In Aid - SMG Management Company

Total Contributions In Aid

Retained Earnings (Deficit):
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Restricted For Debt

Unreserved and Undesignated

Total Retained Earnings (Deficit)

Total Fund Equity
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Total Liabilities and Fund Equity
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See Independent Auditors'Report and Notes To Financial Statements.
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	June 30,

	
	2001
	2000

	$
	401,546
	51,554

	
	78,735
	145,824

	
	27,167
	22,924

	
	2,100
	18,082

	
	101,947
	37,910

	
	11,196
	11,456

	
	459,516
	413,311

	
	30,500
	16,000

	$
	1,112,707
	717,061

	$
	659,865
	995,639

	$
	659,865
	995,639

	$
	1,772,572
	1,712,700

	$
	54,410,828
	53,549,760

	
	462,080
	493,175

	$
	54,872,908
	54,042,935

	$
	5,119
	5,119

	
	~25,519, 182}
	~23,61 1 ,202}

	$
	(25,514,063)
	(23,606,083)

	$
	29,358,845
	30,436,852

	$
	31,131,417
	32, 149,552
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NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY
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STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000

June 30,
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2001
2000

Net Event Revenue
$ __2_;_,_61_4...;.,7_0_1_
2,339,315
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Operating Expenses:
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Payroll

Payroll Taxes

Employee Benefits

401 (k) Contribution

Concessions and Novelty Purchases

Outside Services

Insurance

Advertising

Miscellaneous Event Expenses

Utilities
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Telephone

Service Contracts
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Professional Services

Maintenance and Repairs

Operational Supplies

Office Supplies and Expense

[image: image1127.jpg]



Interest Expense

Other Operational and Administrative Expense

Other Board Expenses

Management Fee
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Total Operating Expenses
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(Loss) From Operations Before Depreciation

Less: Depreciation Expense
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(Loss) From Operations
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	$
	1,261,174
	1,086,053

	
	143,911
	105,334

	
	129,102
	113,198

	
	11 1146
	

	
	........ 437,698
	393,514

	
	279,255
	222,069

	
	129,771
	136,667

	
	136,948
	111 '109

	
	115,540
	158,320

	
	485,842
	298,354

	
	42,056
	37,117

	
	55,865
	33,739

	
	45,716
	51 '152

	
	95,171
	100,089

	
	11 ,651
	13,157

	
	38,818
	21 ,657

	
	75,072
	88,974

	
	143,724
	86,672

	L
	
	73,304

	
	100,000
	124,583

	
	
	

	$
	3,738,460
	3,255,062

	$
	(1,123,759)
	(915,747)

	
	1,667,199
	1,592,283

	$
	{2, 790,958}
	{2,508,030)
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See Independent Auditors'Report and
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Notes to Financial Statements.
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EXHIBIT B

NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000
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	June 30,

	
	
	2001
	2000

	Other Revenues (Expenses):
	
	
	

	State of Connecticut Hotel/Motel Tax Revenue
	$
	826,341
	824,494

	Interest Income
	
	25,542
	36,497

	Capital Contribution - SMG Management Company
	
	31,095
	6,825

	Net Other Revenues (Expenses)
	$
	882,978
	867,816

	Net Income (Loss)
	$
	(1 ,907,980)
	(1 ,640,214)

	Retained Earnings (Deficit) - July 1, 2000 and 1999
	
	(23,606,083)
	(21 ,965,869)

	Retained Earnings (Deficit) - June 30, 2001 and 2000
	$
	{25,514,063}
	{23,606,083}
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See Independent Auditors'Report and

Notes to Financial Statements.
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EXHIBITC

NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000
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	June 30,

	
	
	2001
	2000

	Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
	
	
	

	Net (Loss)
	$
	(1 ,907,980)
	(1 ,640,2 14)

	Adjustments To Reconcile Net (Loss) To Net Cash
	
	
	

	Provided By (Used In) Operating Activities:
	
	
	

	Depreciation
	
	1 ,667,199
	1,592,283

	Contribution Income - SMG - Management Company
	
	(31 ,095)
	(6,825)

	Increase (Decrease) In Cash Arising From Changes
	
	
	

	In Assets and Liabilities:
	
	
	

	(Increase) Decrease In Receivables
	
	365,333
	(364,372)

	(Increase) Decrease In Inventory
	
	(18,430)
	11 3

	(Increase) Decrease In Prepaid Expenses
	
	(31 ,353)
	13,001

	Increase (Decrease) In Accounts Payable,
	
	
	

	Accrued Expenses and Taxes
	
	271 t 164
	112,593

	Increase (Decrease) In Deferred Income,
	
	
	

	Reserves and Deposits
	
	78,277
	37,605

	Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities
	$
	393,115
	{255,816}

	Cash Flows Provided By (Used In) Capital and Related
	
	
	

	Financing Activities:
	
	
	

	Acquisition of Property and Equipment:
	
	
	

	Through Authority Funds
	$
	(643, 144)
	(1 ,169,568)

	Through City of New Haven Funds
	
	(380,206)
	(506,51 7)

	Through SMG - Management Company Funds
	
	(359,257)
	(136,503)

	Contributions By City of New Haven:
	
	
	

	Property and Equipment
	
	380,206
	323,804

	Capital Lease Obligation
	
	480,861
	182,71 3

	Capital Contribution - SMG - Management Company:
	
	
	

	Property and Equipment
	
	
	500,000

	Proceeds of Capital Lease Obligation
	
	128,924
	983,835

	Payments on Capital Leases Obligation
	
	(418,493}
	{157,710}

	Net Cash (Used In) Capital and Related Financing Activities
	$
	{811,109}
	20,054

	Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents
	$
	(417,994)
	(235,762)

	Cash and Cash Equivalents- Beginning of Year
	
	789,882
	1,025,644

	Cash and Cash Equivalents- End of Year
	$
	371 ,888
	789,882

	Supplemental Disclosure:
	
	
	

	Interest Paid
	$
	75,072
	88,974
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See Independent Auditors'Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
6

[image: image1160.jpg]


[image: image1161.jpg]


[image: image1162.jpg]


[image: image1163.jpg]


NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization
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The New Haven Coliseum Authority (the Authority) was established by the Board of Aldermen of the City of New Haven on June 15, 1966 under the provisions of Title 7, Chapter 97 of the General Statutes of Connecticut, as amended, and was created to construct and operate a coliseum and parking facility. The Authority is a component unit of the City of New Haven.
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The powers of the Authority are exercised by a comm1ss1on of seven members consisting of the Mayor, a member of the Board of Aldermen and five city residents who are nominated by the Mayor and appointed by the Board of Aldermen .

Basis of Accounting
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The Authority utilizes the accrual basis of accounting under which revenues are recognized when the event or activity has taken place and expenditures when the related liability is incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include time deposits, certificates of deposit, and all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less.
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Concession Inventory

The Authority'sconcession inventory of food, beverages and liquor is stated at cost on the first-in, first-out basis .

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the various useful lives of the assets, ranging from 5 to 40 years, as determined by management. Repairs and minor renewals are charged to operations as incurred.
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Non-Forfeitable Leave Compensation
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SMG employees earn vacation (leave) compensation on a monthly basis, for each full month worked . The Authority'spolicy is an employee, with at least three months of service, will be paid for unused time up to a maximum of 24 days should that employee leave the Authority in good standing .
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NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Estimates
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The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Note 2- Cash and Cash Equivalents

The cash management and investing duties within the Authority are the responsibility of the Fiscal Office.

At June 30, 2001, the carrying amount of the Authority's deposits with financial institutions and cash on hand was $371,888. The bank balances of these funds totaled $450,299 (which includes $353,205 in temporary cash investments) of which $202,094 was covered by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and related public deposit protection through their financial institutions.
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Note 3- Other Receivables

[image: image1184.jpg]



This amount represents monies owed to the Authority at June 30, 2001 and 2000 for the following :

	
	2001
	2000

	Promoters, Ticketmaster and Sponsors
	$58,506
	$ 21,655

	Parking
	26,846
	20,436

	Miscellaneous
	868
	855

	Total
	$86,220
	$42,946
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Bad Debt Expense is recognized at the time delinquent accounts are deemed uncollectible by management. There was no Bad Debt Expense recognized during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2001 or June 30, 2000.

It is the opinion of management that all amounts remaining will be collected .
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NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000
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Note 4- Property and Equipment

At June 30, 2001 and 2000, net property and equipment consisted of the following:

	
	2001
	2000

	Garage Refurbishment
	$ 25,005,763
	$ 25,005,763

	Buildings and Improvements
	33,480,233
	32,455,085

	Office Furniture and Equipment
	260,132
	228,052

	Machinery and Equipment
	2,092,105
	1,766,726

	Total
	$ 60,838,233
	$ 59,455,626

	Accumulated Depreciation
	(30,422,757)
	(28,755,559)

	Net Property and Equipment
	:11 30.4:15.476
	:11 30,7QQ,Q67


Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000 was $1 ,667,199 and $1 ,592,283, respectively.

Note 5- Accrued Payroll and Related Liabilities

The following represents the balance of accrued payroll and related liabilities as of

June 30, 2001 and 2000:
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	2001
	
	2000

	Non-forfeitable Leave Compensation
	$
	13,355
	$
	12,585

	Accrued Wages
	
	13 812
	
	10 339

	
	$
	27.167
	$
	22,924
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Note 6- Deferred Operating Income
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Deferred income consists of the following at June 30, 2001 and 2000:

2001
2000
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Advanced Ticket Sales
$
1Q1,947
$
37,910

Note 7- Capital and Refund Reserves

These amounts represent funds set aside from event settlements designated for repairs, ticket refunds, and capital replacement.
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NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000

Note 8- Obligations Under Capital Leases

/

The Authority has entered into four capital leases described below.
////

/

The assets and related liabilities are recorded at the lower of the present value of til~ minimum lease payments or the fair value of the asset. Amortization of these items is included in depreciation expense.

	Following is a summary of property held under capital leases:
	
	

	
	-
	2001
	
	2000

	Scoreboard
	$
	820,000
	$
	820,000

	Escalators
	
	1..BOO..QOO
	
	1,800,000

	Computer and Camera Equipment
	
	44,512
	
	

	Machinery
	
	84 412
	
	

	
	$
	2,748,924
	$
	2,620,000

	Less: Accumulated Amortization
	
	
	
	

	(or Depreciation)
	
	{342.468)
	
	{171,499)

	
	$
	2.4Q6.456
	$
	2.448.501
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Minimum future lease payments under capital leases as of June 30, 2001 for each of the next five years and in the aggregate are:
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	Year Ended
	
	

	June 30, 2001
	
	Amount

	2002
	$
	515,948

	2003
	
	333,236

	2004
	
	333,236

	2005
	
	27,558

	2006
	
	20,029

	Total Minimum Lease Payments
	$
	1,230,007

	Less: Amount Representing Interest
	(
	110,626)

	Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payment
	$
	1,119,381

	Current Portion
	$
	459,516

	Non..:Current Portion
	
	659,865

	Total
	$
	1,:1 19.381
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Interest rates on capitalized leases vary from 5.14% to 17.30% and are imputed based on the lower of th e Authority's incremental borrowing rate at the inception of each lease or the lessor's implicit rate of return .
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NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000
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Note 8 - Obligations Under Capital Leases (Continued)

The City of New Haven intends, but is not legally bound or required under its agreements with the Authority, to identify and secure other funding in order to provide additional financial assistance to the Authority for the lease/purchase of the scoreboard and the escalators to cover the annual debt service on the loan. Such future assistance from other funding sources, if any, will be provided to the Authority by subsequent agreement or agreements, subject to approval by appropriate City boards and agencies.
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Note 9 -  Deposits

This amount represents funds held to guarantee use of the Coliseum'sfacilities on future specified dates.

Note 10 -
Contributions In Aid

City of New Haven
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This amount represents bond principal payments and property and equipment paid for on behalf of the Authority by the City of New Haven including expenditures made under a $23 million dollar State Bonding Commission allocation and other State Grants.
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This amount represents the capital contribution provided by SMG, the Authority's management company, in the original contract amount of $500,000 net of amortization of $37,920 . The amount of the capital contribution is being amortized over a ten year period as per contract Amortization is included in depreciation expense.
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The following is a summary of the changes in this account for the years ended June 30,

2001 and 2000:

	
	
	2001
	
	
	2000
	

	
	SMG
	City of
	
	
	City of
	

	
	
	New Haven
	Total
	SMG
	New Haven
	Total

	Beginning Balance - July 1
	$ 493,175
	53,549,760
	54,042,935
	-0-
	53,043,243
	53,043,243

	Additions:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Property and Equipment
	
	861,068
	861 ,068
	500,000
	506,517
	1,006,517

	Deletions:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Revenue Recognized
	(31,095)
	
	(31,095)
	(6,825)
	
	(6,825)

	Ending Balance - June 30
	$  462,080
	54,410,828
	54 872,908
	493 175
	53,549,760
	54 042.935
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NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000
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Note 11 - Management Contract with SMG
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The Authority has entered into an agreement with SMG, a Pennsylvania general partnership, to provide management services, including promotion and operating services . The agreement is dated June 28, 1999 with a management term of July 1, 1999 through June 30, 2004, unless earlier terminated pursuant to agreement provisions . The Authority may extend the agreement for an additional five-year period .
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The Authority no longer intends to employ personnel to manage, administer and operate its daily operations and has retained SMG to do so in a manner consistent with SMG's policies and procedures and the operations of similar facilities. Furthermore, SMG shall provide management services of the Coliseum'sconcession and parking facilities.
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The annual fixed fee is $125,000.00 payable in equal monthly installments during the management and renewal terms , with the exception of $10,000 for transition period, which was the first thirty days.

[image: image1227.jpg]


[image: image1228.jpg]



SMG will further be entitled to an annual incentive fee with respect to each fiscal year during the management or renewal term which shall be equal to 35% multiplied by SMG'sannual improvement over the average of (i) the Net Operating Income (Loss) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1998 and 1999, before all includable grants and taxes and depreciation and (ii) the Net Operating Income (Loss) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1999 and 2000 (as audited) before all includable grants and taxes and depreciation.
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In the event that the performance of SMG, for a period of two consecutive fiscal years, falls below the benchmark calculation in each of those years, SMG shall remit to the Authority an amount equal to the aggregate benchmark shortfall; however, SMG shall not be required to remit an amount in excess of $25,000. This provision shall commence in the second fiscal year of this agreement; i.e ., July 1, 2000 to June 30, 2001 .
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Note 12 -
Retirement Savings Plan
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The Authority leases its employees from SMG which sponsors and administers a 401 (k) Plan for its employees . Employees are eligible after age 21 and completion of one year of service. Employees may contribute up to 15% of qualified compensation . SMG makes a matching contribution for each participant of 50% on up to the first 5% of salary an employee contributes to the Plan. SMG reserves the right to change, amend, modify or cancel this policy at any time, without notice, at its own discretion .
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As per contract with the Authority, the employer contribution for the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2000 was $11 ,146 and $-0-, respectively.
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NEW HAVEN COLISEUM AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2001 AND 2000

Note 13 -
Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to public official liability, theft or impairment of asset, error and omissions, injury to employees, natural disasters, and general protective liability.

The Authority retains the services of various commercial insurance carriers to provide various casualty and liability insurance programs. Limits of coverage vary by policy. Settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three years.

Note 14 -
Contingent Liabilities

The Authority is a defendant in numerous legal actions. It is the opinion of management and legal counsel that those cases, which involve personal injury matters, are sufficiently covered by the Authority'sinsurance.
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